CITY OF BROOKSVILLE
REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING
COUNCIL CHAMBERS
201 HOWELL AVENUE

AGENDA
NOVEMBER 5, 2007 7:00 P.M.
A. CALL TO ORDER
B. INVOCATION AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE
C. CONSENT AGENDA

1.

2.

3.

Minutes
fAugust 6, 2007| Regular Meeting/BHA Hearing

[FDLE Edward Byrne Memorial Justice Assistance Grant (JAG) | -
D.A.R.E. Project

Acceptance of FDLE JAG Grant in the amount of $4,000 for the Drug
Abuse Resistance Education (D.A.R.E.) Project.

|Petroleum Cleanup Program|

Consideration of designation of George Foster, Creative
Environmental Solutions, Inc., as the clean up contractor for the
southwest corner of Broad and Main Streets Innocent Victim
Petroleum Storage Tank Clean up Program and to authorize the
Director of Public Works to sign the necessary documents and pay
the $500 deductible.

CONSENT AGENDA APPROVAL (V)

Recommendation: Approval of Consent Agenda

Action: Motion to Approve

Attachments: 1) Minutes; 2) Memo from
Police Lieutenant dated

10/26/07, Letter from FDLE and
Application; 3) Memos from
Director of Public Works dated
10/01/07, 5/25/07 and 4/2/07;
page 1 of 6/18/07 Council
Agenda Tfor approval of DPW
site; copy of FDEP invoice;
letter from Alan Sakole, FDEP,
dated 9/24/07; letter from
George Foster, Creative
Environmental SOLUTIONS, Inc.,
dated 10/5/07; FDEP Contractor
Designation form; Hernando
County Property Appraiser map
of parcel.
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REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING - NOVEMBER 5, 2007

CERTIFICATES, PROCLAMATIONS AND PRESENTATIONS

1. [vargaret R. Ghiotto Beautification Award - Commercial Award |
Recognition of iImprovements to the property of Farmer John"s Key
West Café, John Carlone, Proprietor, located at 966 E. Jefferson
Street and owned by John F. Mason.

Presentation: Mayor
Attachments: Award Certificates; Letters
from Board dated 10/10/07

2. [Proclamation _in_Support of the 1502 Anniversary |of City of
Starke, Florida
Recognition of the 150" Anniversary of the City of Starke,
Florida, November 2007.

Presentation: Mayor
Attachments: Proclamation
PUBLIC HEARINGS
1. [Ordinance No. 750 - Habitat for Humanity Re-zoning |

Consideration of the re-zoning from Agricultural to C2 Commercial
with two Special Exception Use petitions for Light Manufacturing
and a Secondhand Retail Store.

[First reading 9/10/07, continued from 10/01/07 meeting]

Presentation: Director of Community
Development

Recommendation: Accept petitioners request to
withdraw petition

Action: Accept withdrawal

Attachments: Letter from Habitat for

Humanity dated 10/17/07; Memo
from Director of Community
Development dated 10/22/07;
Proposed Ordinance & Location
Map; Petitions

REGULAR AGENDA

1. [Ordinance No. 755 - SMALL-SCALE COMPREHENSIVE PLAN AMENDMENT | -
PETITIONER: INNOVATORS INVESTMENT GROUP, LLC
Consideration of a request for a change to the Future Land Use
designation of this property, a 5.76 acre + parcel of land located
North of Cortez Blvd. (S.R. 50), west of Hale Avenue and east of
Mildred Avenue, Tfrom Single-Family County Residential to City

Commercial.
Presentation: Director of Community
Development
Recommendation: Meeting as the governing body,

approve Ordinance No. 755 to
adopt the Comprehensive Plan
Amendment upon roll call vote

upon first reading and
schedule second reading for
11/19/07

Action: Motion to Approve

Attachments: See LPA Meeting Attachment
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REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING - NOVEMBER 5, 2007

*x 2. |Oralnance No. 756 - INNOVATORS INVESTMENT GROUP, LLC]|Property Re-

Zoning
Consideration of the re-zoning of a 7.76 acre + parcel of land

located North of Cortez Blvd. (S.R. 50), west of Hale Avenue and
east of Mildred Avenue to the classification of Planned
Development Project (PDP) with a Special Exception Use for a
Combined Planned Development - consisting of General Commercial,
Professional Office.

Presentation: Director of Community
Development

Recommendation: Approval of the first reading
of Ordinance No. 756 as

recommended by Staff and P&Z
Commission upon roll call
vote and schedule  second
reading for 11/19/07

Action: Motion to Approve

Attachments: Memo from Director of
Community Development dated
10/12/07; Proposed Ordinance
& Location Map; Petitions

3. [Resolution No. 2007-22 |- Maintenance of Traffic and FDOT Permit
Requirements for the Christmas Parade

a) Consideration of applying to FDOT for the closure of Jefferson
Street and Broad Street between Main Street and Bell Avenue on
Dec. 8, 2007, for the Christmas Parade and enacting a
resolution which concurs with the requested closure.

Brooksville.

Presentation: Emory H. Pierce, Director of
Public Works

Recommendation: Approval

Action: Motion to Approve

Attachments: a) Memo from City Manager

dated 10/26/07; Memo from
Emory H. Pierce, Director of
Public Works, dated 10/24/07;
Example letter from Dade City;
FDOT Street Closure Request
form; MOT Area Map; Resolution
b) Letter from Kiwanis Club
President dated 10/26/07 and
Street Closure Application

4. |[MLK Boulevard Re-paving
Consideration of using $100,000 from fund 308 to contribute toward
the overall estimated $200,000 cost and approval of an Interlocal
Agreement related to this project.

Presentation: Director of Public Works

Recommendation: Approval

Action: Motion to Approve

Attachments: Memo from Director of Public
Works dated 09/18/07;
Agreement; E-mail from

Hernando County DPW, Agenda
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REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING - NOVEMBER 5, 2007

Memorandum and Budget Summary
5. [Transportation Outreach Program (TOP) [- SR50 Reverse Frontage Road
& Utility Project - Drainage Retention Area Easement for Lot 9,
David/Manuel Commercial Park Subdivision
Consideration of approval of Agreement for Grant of Easement and
authorize the Mayor to sign the appropriate documentation.

Presentation: Director of Community
Development

Recommendation: Approval

Action: Motion to approve

Attachments: Memo from City Manager dated

10/26/07; Memo from Director
of Community Development dated
09/21/07; Agreement to be
distributed upon receipt.

6. [Southern Hills Reimbursement & Impact Fee Credit Request |
Verification Report Submittal #3
Consideration to accept the Southern Hills Reimbursement & Impact
Fee Credit Request Verification Report Submittal #3 provided to
the City by Coastal Engineering.

Presentation: Coastal Engineering
Recommendation: Approval or Direction to Staff
Action: Motion to approve

Attachments: Memos from Director of Public

Works dated 10/22/07 and
10/26/07; Letter from Coastal
Engineering dated 07/27/07;
Report

7. [U.S. 41 SR50-U.S. 41 Connector Road Implementation Agreements|
Consideration to approve agreement between the City of Brooksville
and Hernando County and agreement between the City of Brooksville
and Hampton Ridge Developers, LLC for U.S. 41 SR 50-US 41
connector road implementation.

Presentation: City Attorney

Recommendation: Approval or Direction to Staff
Action: Motion to approve

Attachments: Memo from City Attorney dated

10/26/07; Agreements

8.  |Advisory Board Appointments|
Appointment of members to various Advisory Board Positions, either
as a result of term expirations or current vacancies, as follows:
[Note - all applicants are registered voters as required]

Planning & Zoning CommissionOne vacancy to fill an unexpired 3-
year term of office through January 31, 2009, replacing Charles

Miller.
Shannon Andras-Pettry (New Applicant)
Ronald H. Lawson (New Applicant)
E.E. Ernie Wever, Jr. (Current Alternate)
Presentation: Director of Administration
Recommendation: Approval of Appointments
Action: Motion to Approve
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REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING - NOVEMBER 5, 2007

Attachments: Memo from Director of
Administration dated 10/26/07
Applications

G. ITEMS BY COUNCIL
H. CITIZEN INPUT
I. ADJOURNMENT

[CORRESPONDENCE TO NOTE]

Meeting agendas and supporting documentation are available from the City Clerk’s
office, and on line at www.ci.brooksville.fl.us. Persons with disabilities needing
assistance to participate in any proceedings should contact the City Clerk"s office 48
hours in advance of the meeting at 352/544-5407.

Any person desiring to appeal any decision with respect to any matter considered at
this meeting, may need a record of the proceedings including the testimony and
evidence upon which the appeal is to be based, and therefore must make arrangements
for a court reporter to ensure that a verbatim record of the proceedings is made.
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CITY OF BROOKSVILLE
REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING
COUNCIL CHAMBERS
201 HOWELL AVENUE
MINUTES

August 6, 2007 7:00 P.M.

Brooksville City Council met in regqular session with Mayor David Pugh, Vice
Mayor Frankie Burnett and Council Members Joe Bernardini, Lara Bradburn and
Richard E. Lewis. Also present were David LaCroix, City Attorney; T. Jennene
Norman-Vacha, City Manager; Karen M. Phillips, City Clerk/Director of
Administration; Janice L. Peters, Deputy City Clerk; Steve Baumgartner,
Finance Director; Mike Walker, Parks and Recreation Director; Bill Geiger,
Community Development Director; Emory Pierce, Director of Public Works; Frank
Ross, Interim Police Chief and Tim Mossgrove, Fire Chief. Members of the
Hernando Today, Hernando Times and Brooksville Belle were also present as
well as Brooksville Housing Authority Board Members Carl Pilcher, Gertrude
Mobley and Donnamarie Lopez.

The meeting was called to order by Mayor Pugh, followed by an invocation and
pledge of allegiance.

CONSENT AGENDA

Minutes
July 16, 2007 Regular Meeting

Misc. Valve & Fire Hydrant Replacement Project Bid Award
Consideration of approval to issue Notice of Award to Chilton
Construction in +the amount of $52,000 with §50,000 from Capital
Projects 2000-UT 20 and the additional $2,600 from utility reserves.

Motion:
Motion was made by Council Member Bernardini and seconded by Vice Mayor
Burnett for approval of the Consent Agenda. Motion carried 5-0.

REGULAR AGENDA

Resolution No. 2007-12 - Establishing Copy Charges
Consideration of Resolution re-establishing copy or reproduction fee
charge policy.

City Clerk Phillips reviewed the proposed changes.

Motion:
Motion was made by Vice Mayor Burnett and seconded by Council Member
Bradburn for approval of Resolution No. 2007-12.

Mayor Pugh asked for public input; there was none.

City Clerk Phillips read Resolution No. 2007-12 by title, as follows:
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REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING — AUGUST 6, 2007

RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF BROOKSVILLE, REPEALING &
RESTATING CHARGES TO BE ASSESSED AND COLLECTED FOR COPIES OF PUBLIC
RECORDS; AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE.

Motion carried 5-0 upon roll call vote, as follows:

Council Member Bernardini AYE
Council Member Bradburn AYE
Council Member Lewis AYE
Vice Mayor Burnett AYE
Mayor Pugh AYE

Brookhaven, Ltd. Street Lighting
Approval of Special Revocable License Agreement with Developer to
install 7 street lights on Emerald Springs Way.

Director Pierce reviewed the agreement and the related project,
specifying that Emerald Springs Way is a City-owned right-of-way.

Motion:
Motion was made by Council Member Bernardini and seconded by Vice Mayor
Burnett for approval of the Agreement. Motion carried 5-0.

Request to Fill Vacant Positions
Consideration of request to fill four positions.

City Manager Norman-Vacha reviewed the proposed positions, which she
felt to be critical for operations and are currently budgeted
positions. The possibility of the privatization concerning the utility
positions was discussed.

Motion:
Motion was made by Vice Mayor Burnett and seconded by Council Member
Lewis for approval to fill the vacant positions. Motion carried 4-1,
with Council Member Bernardini voting in opposition.

Mayor Pugh asked for public input; there was none.
City Manager Norman-Vacha indicated that recruitment for the Police
Chief is being completed and recruitment for the H.R. Director position

will begin this week.

ITEMS BY COUNCIL

Richard E. Lewis, Council Member

Veteran’s Day Parade

Motion:
Council Member Lewis, referencing the memo received from Anna Liisa
Covell, wherein she requested the waiver of permit and insurance for the
Veteran’s Day Parade, made a motion to add the item to the agenda;
seconded by Vice Mayor Burnett.

Mayor Pugh indicated that Mrs. Covell had been notified by e-mail that

the item would be added to the Rugust 20 agenda and she was okay with
that.

2 of 64



REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING - AUGUST 6, 2007

Council Member Lewis withdrew the motion to add the item to the agenda
and Vice Mayor Burnett withdrew the second.

David LaCroix, City Attorney

DeMaria and Bell Annexation Case

City Attorney LaCroix indicated that Judge Tombrink recused himself of
the case and the case was assigned to Senior Judge Musleh of Ocala and a
hearing is scheduled for tomorrow, August 7 at 1:30 on three motions as
follows: Motion to disqualify the County Attorney’s office, based
on the fact that they are being paid by taxpayers on both sides of the
case; motion to dismiss based on the County’s failure to follow the
new statute that reguires them to first initiate the dispute resolution
process; and finally the motion for award of attorney fees based on the
fact that they simply did not follow the statute, so the case 1is
frivolous.

Council Member Bradburn asked if City Attorney LaCroix would be the sole
council for the City, which he confirmed.

Joe Bernardini, Council Member

Council Member Bernardini indicated he had planned to discuss an
incident that happened at the fairgrounds, but since research is still
being done he declined, saying that he and the City Manager would put
something together for the August 20 agenda.

Frankie Burnett, Vice Mayor

Vice Mayor Burnett offered condolences to the Freeman Family as well as
the City employees. Mayor Pugh added that he and the rest of Council
share in those condolences.

CITIZEN INPUT

Anthony Pedonesi

Saxon Avenue Vacation of Right-of-Way

Mr. Pedonesi distributed information addressing his concerns for the
proposed development by Hilltop Partners, LLC for Hilltop Residential,
for which a special exception usage for a combined PDP has been
approved by the P&Z Board. The vacation of a right-of-way will come
before Council at the August 20 meeting. He recommended Council bring
the entire project for discussion, and felt that changes could be made
to the project that would make it viable and beneficial to the City of
Brooksville.

Sandra Nicholson

Frontage Roads
She asked that all entities wishing to establish businesses be treated
equally in regards to frontage roads when building in the City. She
requested any of the City Council Members or City Manager Norman-Vacha
meet with her.
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REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING - AUGUST 6, 2007

Mark Rials

Brooksville Housing Authority

He indicated that during his tenure on the Brooksville Housing
Authority, 8 years ago, he had never seen a Council Member at any
meeting and was surprised at the charges made by the Mayor against some
of the Housing Authority members. He indicated that he and Mr. Pilcher
had long tried to have Betty Trent removed unsuccessfully and made
significant efforts to improve conditions at the Brooksville Housing
Buthority, including the removal of crime and drugs.

City Attorney La Croix indicated that Mr. Pilcher could call witnesses
on his behalf during the hearing and that Mr. Rials could make his
comments as a witness during the hearing to be made part of the record.

BROOKSVILLE HOUSING AUTHORITY HEARING

Hearing to discuss possible removal of Brooksville Housing Authority Board
Members.

Vice Mayor Burnett asked City Attorney LaCroix to give a legal

interpretation in that he works for Lane Electrical. City Attorney
LaCroix stated that although some charges involve Lane, the appointment
or removal does not create a conflict. He stated that he could file a

conflict form and abstain, but he does not have to.

Vice Mayor Burnett reguested to abstain and turned in the necessary
paperwork [Attachment A].

City Attorney LaCroix clarified that, per Florida Statutes, the Mayor,
subject to confirmation of Council, has the authority to appoint and
remove members. The Statutes also state that the commissioner has to be
provided a statement of charges and a hearing. He advised the hearing
to be quasi ijudicial, not involving land use, and that each Council
Member needed to disclose their communications pertaining to the subject
of this hearing and with whom the communication took place.

Council Member Lewis indicated he had spoken with Mr. Pilcher regarding
the letter he received from the Mayor. He also met with Gertrude Mobley
and discussed the issues of the alleged charges as well as all issues
during the time she sat on the board and DonnaMarie Lopez, all at their
request.

Council Member Bradburn stated that some months ago she had spoken with
Mr. Pilcher but not since the alleged charges were brought forth.

City Attorney LaCroix advised that Mr. Boston requested his hearing to
be rescheduled because he is out of town and recommended the hearing be
held at the August 20 meeting.

He also advised of his intent to <call forth three witnesses and
indicated he will supply Mr. Boston with transcripts of tonight’s
hearing. He informed the Brooksville Housing Authority Commissioners
that they can make statements and call any witnesses they wish, but that
the hearing is limited to the charges listed in the letters each were
sent.
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Witness #1

REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING - AUGUST 6, 2007

City Attorney LaCroix distributed documents pertaining to the City's

investigation,

going through each document and pointing out things he

felt to be relevant [Attachment B as noted].

Mayor Pugh asked City Attorney LaCroix how much of the 520,000 repayment
by Jo Ann Bennett had been made. City Attorney LaCroix did not know but
did know that the $200 per month proposed by Ms. Bennett was rejected by
HUD and that she had plead guilty to misappropriating over $40,000.

-~ Donnie Singer

City Attorney LaCroix called Donnie Singer as a witness, who was sworn.

Attorney LaCroix:

Mr. Singer:

Attorney LaCroix:

Mr. Singer:

Attorney LaCroix:

Mr. Singer:

Attorney LaCroix:

Mr. Singer:

Attorney LaCroix:

Mr. Singer:

Attorney LaCroix:

Mr. Singer:

“Mr. Singer, you were acting as Brooksville Housing
Authority Executive Director for what period of
time?”

“T was there, acting, from January till the latter
part of April - beginning of May.”

“of 2007.”
“Yes, of 2007.”

“So you were aware of the electrical problems at
Summit Villas?”

“WYes”

“and, after Mr. Lane completed the initial repairs,
the ones that the building official had authorized as
emergency repairs, what was your recommendation to the
board, with regard to the continuation of the work?”

“I'd sent a letter to Mr. Lane to stop working once
we'd reached a certain point, based on the information
provided to me by the engineer, the City building
official, fire official and the other officials. We
sent him that letter, he went from that point, I'm
assuming he went to the Housing Authority's main
office, talked with the Project Manager there,
apparently the Project Manager called the Vice-
Chairman and Chairman at that time and they agreed to
have an emergency meeting that afternoon.”

“aAnd is that the meeting of April 24, 20072”
“I believe so.”

“and prior to that time what was the recommendation of
the City building official as to what needed to be
done as an emergency?”

“Iyell, what we saw, from all the officials, was that
we needed to take care of the meter cans that were in
the six, east units of building 520 plus a auxiliary
room and a washer/dryer room. Once that was
completed, at that point we would stop the work and we
would bring in an Electrical Engineer, have some
redrawings of the electrical wiring, then go out for
bid at that time. My recommendation was to follow the

5 of 64



REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING - AUGUST 6, 2007

Attorney LaCroix:

Mr. Singer:

Attorney LaCroix:

Mr. Singer:

Attorney LaCroix:
Mr. Singer:

Attorney LaCroix:

Mr. Singer:

Attorney LaCroix:
Mr. Singer:

Attorney LaCroix:

Mr. Singer:

Attorney LaCroix:

Mr. Singer:

Attorney LaCroix:

Mr. Singer:

Attorney LaCroix:

Mr. Singer:

guidelines that were in the policies of the Housing
Authority and the HUD guidelines.”

“What were those guidelines?

“That, once your emergency has been taken care of, you
stop all further work and bid out the project.”

“And when you say that other people have made the same
recommendations, you're talking about Mr. Bennett, the

HUD Engineer?”

“The HUD Engineer, that was a misquote in the paper,
the HUD Engineer was Gary Loftus.”

“Okay, but was that his recommendation also?”
“It was.”

“and didn't the Housing Authority hire it's own
consultant?”

“The...well we had done, after talking....the HUD
recommended we go out, under emergency rule, and bring
in an Electrical Engineer as quickly as possible. I

researched some, went out and had an engineering firm
come in that did some electrical work and do an
assessment of the site, they came, did that, they
provided a report that I presented to the Authority.”

“Was that Mr. Covington?”
“Yes it was.”

“And was his recommendation also that the rest of the
repairs were not emergency in nature?”

“That's correct.”

“Okay. In your opinion, what would be the problem with
going ahead with those repairs, even though HUD said
they were not emergency?”

“Well at that point, my understanding is that,
pursuant to Florida Law, there's...you have to have
the funds available to pay for the work that's being
contracted for, and you have to follow the bid
procedures as are in your procurement policies.”

“aAnd what happens if the Housing Authority does not
take bids on a project, just hires somebody and then
goes and asks HUD for the money to pay for it?”

“You're probably not going to get HUD to give you that
money."”

“So, in your opinion, did the action of the board on
Bpril 24 threaten the funding source from HUD for
getting money for these repairs?”

“It certainly didn't improve their chances of getting
additional money from HUD to take care of those
problems.”
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REGULAR

Attorney LaCroix:

Mr. Singer:

Attorney LaCroix:

Mr. Singer:

Attorney LaCroix:

Mr. Singer:

Mayor Pugh:

Mr. Singer:

Mayor Pugh:

Mr. Singer:

Carl Pilcher:

Attorney LaCroix:

Carl Pilcher:

Attorney LaCroix:

Carl Pilcher:

Mr. Singer:

Carl Pilcher:

Mayor Pugh:

Mr. Singer:

CITY COUNCIL MEETING - AUGUST 6, 2007

“Okay. Do you know if, at the time the Board
authorized the repairs, they had money to pay for
them?”

“At that time that they did, I don't believe there was
enough money in their resources available to them to
pay for that.”

“Okay. Are you aware of the electrical problems, I
mean, did you see them yourself?”

“Yes.”

“Are you aware of unlicensed contractors having done
work on those premises?”

“I'm not aware of any, I've heard stories that there
were but, you know, I heard that some of the staff
people there did some wiring. As far as me seeing
that, I never saw that.”

“The April 24 meeting, was that emergency
meeting...did you know about that in advance?”

“No, I was not made aware of that meeting, I walked
into that just by chance.”

“Okay. Also, were you ever in receipt of any letters
from HUD requesting a stop workage on Summit Villas?”

“No, I never received any letters from HUD on that.”

“If I'm not mistaken, Mr. Singer went out and hired
P.0O. Covington on his own, we were not involved in
that process whatsoever.”

“Is that a gquestion for Mr. Singer?”

“That's a statement I want to make.”

“This is your opportunity to ask him questions.”
“Did that not occur?”

“I did hire him under the auspice of the Interim
Executive Director of the Housing Authority and
brought that report to the Board.”

“Not to me, I wasn't there.”

“Okay. Mr. Singer, do you know of any other Electrical
Contractor or Electrical Engineer who may have
performed any inspections on the site here recently?”

“Mr. Lane's the only one, that I know of, that did any
other electrical inspections for the Housing Agency,
and I understand that those...there was one report
that he gave back in, I believe it was July 2006, that
he gave to Mrs. Trent at that time, now whether it
went any further than that, to the Housing Authority
Board I don't know.”
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Mayor Pugh:

Council Member Lewis:

Mr. Singer:

Council Member Bradburn:

Mr. Singer:

Council Member Bradburn:

Mr. Singer:

Mayor Pugh:

Mr. Singer:

Attorney LaCroix:

Mr. Singer:
Attorney LaCroix:
Mr. Singer:

Witness #2 - Ronnie McLean

“Okay. That's all the questions I have.”

“One question Mayor. Are you aware of a report that
was done by the Fire Chief for the City of Brooksville
in March, stating that there was imminent work that
needed to be done and that work had to be completed, I
believe it was within a 60-day time frame. I believe
it was March 16% or March 19, it was issued by the
Fire Chief, and at that particular time it was issued
and it said that if that work wasn't completed then
the project could be shut down entirely. Those people
would have to be moved at that particular time.”

“I did read that report and had a copy of it.”

“Mr. Singer, you said that you explained to them it
was your opinion that they should follow HUD's rules,
how may times did you go over Hood's rules as far as
coming up with a plan and going out to bid?”

“At least once in that meeting, and I believe I'd
spoke with each...with a number of the Board members
individually on some of that.”

“Did you explain to the Board members what could
happen if they did not follow Hood's rules.”

“I would assume that was evident, I can't remember if
I told them they are putting their funding in
jeopardy or not.”

“In regards to the report from the Fire Chief, was
that prior to the Electrical Inspector coming in, the
Electrical Engineer and reviewing along with BHUD,
Hood's Engineer?”

“I don't remember the exact date, it was the latter
part of March that the Engineer from HUD came down
and we had...Mr. Loftus was here, we had...the Fire
Chief was involved in that, an official from the
City's Building Department was involved with that, so
we had three or four officials there in looking at
the conditions of all the apartments and all the
wiring. We looked both at the family and the elderly
side.”

“Mr. Singer, were all of those persons in agreement
that any further work could wait until a plan was put
in place and bids were solicited from Contractors?”
“Yes Sir.”

“Including the Fire Chief.”

“Yes.”

City Attorney LaCroix called Ronnie MclLean, who was sworn.

Attorney LaCroix:

“Mr. McLean, you're currently the Executive Director
for the Housing Authority, is that correct?”
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Mr. McLean:

Attorney LaCroix:

Mr. McLlean:

Attorney LaCroix:

Mr. McLean:

Attorney LaCroix:

Mr. Mclean:

Attorney LaCroix:

Mr. McLlean:

Attorney LaCroix:

Mr. McLlean:

Attorney LaCroix:

Mr. McLlean:

Attorney LaCroix:

Mr. McLean:

Mayor Pugh:

Mr. Mclean:

Mayor Pugh:
Mr. McLean:

Mayor Pugh:

Council Member Lewis:

Mr. McLean:

“Yes.”

“pid you recently terminate an employee named
Fetrow?”

“Yeg,”

“And was one of the grounds for that termination
that...is it Ms. or Mr. Fetrow?”

“Ms. Fetrow.”

“Ms. Fetrow. Was one of the grounds for that
termination that she had signed payroll checks in
advance of work being performed, which included
payment for overtime work that had not yet been

performed?”

“She didn't sign the checks but she made the checks
for Board Members to sign.”

“Okay, so she prepared the checks?”
“Correct.”

“Did Mrs. Mobley sign them?”

“Some of them, yes.”

“Okay. And did some of the checks that Mrs. Mobley
sign were for work that had not yet been performed?”

“Correct.”

“And included payment for overtime that hadn't even
been scheduled.”

“Correct.”

“I'm going to ask the same question I asked of Mr.
Singer. Have you ever been in receipt of a letter
from HUD issuing a stop-work order after a certain
amount was performed by Lane Electric?”

“No, but I did speak with Gary Loftus and he told me
that all work should stop and had ordered the Board
to tell Mr. Lane to stop the work, for the emergency
part of it was over.”

“So roughly, about what time?”

“When I spoke with Gary Loftus it was was June 12%.”
“June 12, Okay.”

“By June 12", when you talked to this official from
HUD, had work already ceased over there at Summit
Villas? Had the work already stopped, had Mr. Lane
already stopped work over there?”

“I believe that there was an agreement that he would

possibly keep somebody on site to try to keep the
fire and City officials happy.”
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Council Member Lewis: “Okay, so you don't know the exact day Mr. McLean,
that he stopped work over there or actually stopped
installing or repairing any of the deficiencies over
there?”

Mr. McLean: “No. The only thing I can testify to is that I did
write him a letter stating that he stop work
immediately, according to HUD rules and HUD orders.”

Council Member Lewis: “When was that letter dated, do you remember?”

Mr. McLean: “T don't have the date, but it was around that week
of the 11%.”

Attorney LaCroix: “I do have a couple more questions for Mr. Mclean. I

didn't tell you I was going to ask you this, so,
sorry to surprise you. Are you aware whether the
Housing Authority 1is continuing to make it's
contractual payments to the City of Brooksville for a
policeman that's on the site?”

Mr. McLean: “The were supposed to keep...they have...they do have
a contract, which is a year-long contract, which is
worth approximately $52,000 for a Police Officer to
be on-site for 40 hours a week.”

Attorney LaCroix: “Are they current in their payments.”
Mr. McLean: “No. "
Attorney LaCroix: “Do you know when the last time the Brooksville

Housing Authority paid to the City of Brooksville a
payment under it's PILOT Agreement, Payment in Lieu
of Taxes?”

Mr. McLean: “As far as I know that they haven't paid that payment
for at least 10 years, if not more.”

Attorney LaCroix: “Alright. Thank you.”
Mayor Pugh: “Do we know the total?”
Attorney LaCroix: “No.”

City Attorney LaCroix asked if any of the Board Members had any
guestions for Mr. McLean; none did.

Mayor Pugh requested a 10-minute recess. Upon reconvening, Mayor Pugh
asked that all cell phones be turned completely off Dbecause they

interfere with the reception of the microphones.

Witness #3 - Fire Chief Mossgrove

City Attorney LaCroix called Fire Chief Mossgrove, who was sworn.

Attorney LaCroix: “Chief, do you have with you a copy of the report
that Mr. Lewis referred to?”

Chief Mossgrove: "Yes I do.”

Attorney LaCroix: “Can you read that report to us.”
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Chief Mossgrove:

Attorney LaCroix:

Chief Mossgrove:

"Yes I can, I can read it in it's entirety if you
like."

“Well, would you read the parts that give your
recommendations?”

“Sure. I can do that. This here is a result of an
inspection and it's dated to the Brooksville Housing
Authority from myself, Timothy Mossgrove, Fire Chief,
dated March 28, in reference to the Summit Villas
inspection.”

“It says: The Brooksville Fire Department received a
letter from Lane Electrical March 15, 2007 regarding
problems at Summit Villas Apartments at 510, 520 and
530 MLK Blvd., Brooksville. After receiving the
letter, it was recorded into the inspection file and
I contacted the City of Brooksville Building
Department and spoke to Mr. Lou Chandler, the
building official, about this matter. Mr. Chandler
indicated he had issued an emergency permit for 520
MLK Blvd. for electrical repairs. In conversation I
told him that I would be visiting the site next week
to take a look at the problem first hand. On March
16, Wayne Electrical General Manager contacted me
inguiring about the electrical problems and I told
them that I would be visiting the site next week when

I return from being out of town. Lane Electrical
agreed to meet with me on site Thursday, March 227 at
11:00 a.m. in the morning. On March 22, 2007 at

11:00 a.m. I met with Jim Lane, owner of Lane
Electrical, at the apartment complex, where he gave
me a brief summary of the ongoing problems and after
a briefing we proceeded to visually inspect some of
the problems which he had uncovered.”

He proceeded to generalize what his recommendation
was.

“The extinguishers in the apartments were not tagged
properly and did not meet the minimum rating
classification required by NFPA 10, which means they
needed to be tagged and brought up to code. The fire
petitions, the fire rated petitions, in the attic
area was found to be breached and open, and I gqualify
that by saying that there was holes in them, looked
like some had been moved around and they needed to be
fixed. They're required to be taped and sealed to
prevent any type of fire spread.”

“Smoke detectors, they were not present in all
apartments and I'll say that the apartment that I
inspected did not have one in it, but I will say that
it was under the opsis of being renovated so, in
conversation with Lane Electrical, it was told to me
that not all the apartments did. I said if that is
the case, all apartments need to have a working smoke
detector in them. The code reqguires a hard-wired
smoke detector in the sleeping areas and in the room
adjacent to the sleeping area. Due to the layout of
most apartments within the complex, they do not have
a complete wall or door which separates the sleeping
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areas from the living room and one smoke detector in
each apartment, with this layout, is sufficient. So,
in other words, they have a lot of times what they
call a party wall, as far as the wall doesn’'t go all
the way to the ceiling, therefore, one smoke detector
is sufficient for that type of layout in that
apartment.”

“With the venting of appliances I found that, when
inspecting the attic space of the apartment complex,
it was found where the vent pipes for the stoves and
the vent piping for the bathroom fans were not vented
properly. Piping for the stove to be vented to the
outside should be terminated. Inside the attic space,
which creates a grease laden vapors to accumulate in
the attic space can dramatically increase the fire
hazard that happens, further, the wventing of the
bathroom also terminates into the attic space, which
creates a buildup of lint, which could also be a fire
hazard.”

“At this point I would just like to clarify, by

definition, the difference between what I am
classifying as a fire hazard and a fire danger if I
could, for the record. When I'm referring to a fire

hazard, it's a problem that you would find in a
building that could cause a potential fire in that

building itself. A fire danger to me, and the
definition that 1I've Dbeen taught and made to
understand, a fire danger is something that is...you

find that's imminent, that's going to definitely
going to cause a fire, that if you don't correct it
right then and there, that it is a fire danger. So
that is how I understand the difference between a
fire hazard and a fire danger.”

“Laundry room, inspection of the laundry room does
not have emergency lighting and a lighted exit light,
which is required due to the fact that the room is
used after dark to do laundry. Last but not least
was the electrical wiring in the attic area, what I
found up there in the complex was found to be some
bare spots in the wiring that had been chewed by some
type of animal. On my inspection I did see where
there was some evidence of where there is some open
spaces where some vermin animal was getting up into
the attic. I couldn't tell what type of animal it
was but obviously it was happening.”

“Inside the apartments, while inspecting the
apartments at 510 MLK I found the kitchen area, on
the wall behind the sink, electrical outlets that had
no GFI or ground volt receptacles. Conversation with
lLane Electrical indicated that there were problems of
the same nature in other apartments as well, which I
did not go into, they were occupied by other
residents. Lane Electrical also, making some
maintenance repairs to some of the outlets had
shorted out, and noted that the outlets were not
grounded and were being backfed through the outlets
in the appliances. Inspection of the electrical
panel revealed it is not properly grounded and was
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actually backfeeding the neutral,

2007

which 1s extremely

Attorney LaCroix:

Chief Mossgrove:

dangerous with electrical, you can actually get
shocked by doing something 1like that. While
inspecting the apartment, I was advised by another
unnamed tenant that they'd went through an entire
package of light bulbs in their apartment due to the
fact that the ongoing electrical problems. And with
the electrical meters, one of the apartments that
were having some maintenance repairs done on it, it
was shown that the electrical meter had been pulled
and had extensive arcing in the lugs and the back of
the meter was discolored and partially burned and
melted away. That's a major sign of a significant
electrical short whenever arcing occurs.”

“In conclusion, on that same day on March 22 I met
with Donnie Singer, Interim Executive Director of the
Brooksville Housing Authority, and it doesn't
disclose it in my report but I met with him at the
Fire Station and what we did, we discussed the
findings and the violations found and observed from
my inspection of the apartment complex. Mr. Singer
indicated that he would be getting in touch with his
office in Jacksonville to address the problems found
and stating to put together a plan to fix the
problems within the next 30 days. We were putting a
plan together within the next 30 days to start to
address the problems. Further, we both agreed that
it would be an ongoing process to fix all the
violations and the problems found. It is obvious
that the complex was built in the late 60's and
finished in or about 1972 and there were little to no
code enforcement at that time to ensure that the
building was built to the code that was in place at
that time, if any, I'm unaware of it, in 196%9-72 I
was very young.”

“Mr. Singer and I both agreed that we would keep in
touch with each other and up to date on the progress
and what has been found in the inspection. It is my
recommendation and directive that the Brooksville
Housing Authority needs to address the violations and
problem at the the Summit Villa Apartments complex to
ensure the safety and welfare of the tenants that
live there. With this, I will be meeting with Mr.
Singer in 30 days to discuss the plan to start to fix
the violations and problems.”

“Did you ever tell Mr. Singer, or anybody else at the
Authority, that you would close down the Housing
Authority project?”

“My conversation with Mr. Singer is that we had great
discussion about that, about the tenants that were
there, and, as I previously stated about the
difference between the fire hazard and fire danger,
is if it came to the point where the problems were
not being corrected and there was no progress, in
order to fix the problems that I've identified in my
report, that we may have to come up with some
alternative plans of maybe moving some people around
and you can say for all intensive purposes that yes,
removing them, shutting it down, whatever, however
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Attorney LaCroix:

Chief Mossgrove:

Attorney LaCroix:

Chief Mossgrove:

Attorney LaCroix:

Council Member Lewis:

Chief Mossgrove:

Council Member Lewis:

you want to classify it, is what's going to have to
be done. That's a power that I have under the
Florida Statues and with the City Charter and that's
a power that I don't like to exercise or enforce, I
like to exhaust all other avenues before I would ever
tell him to do something like that.”

“Did you see any violation that could not wait until
a plan of action was developed and bids were let to
contractors?”

“In my opinion, no I did not on my initial
inspection, and I'd like to qualify that by saying
that when, as a fire inspector, and I go on site and
I find something that is to be of a code violation,
if I have a question about it at all, whether it be
electrical, mechanical, structural, I contact what I
call a subject matter expert and I confer back and
forth with them and then I make my informed decision
based on that. In this case here, with the
electrical, I contacted Lou Chandler, out Building
Official, had extensive conversation with him, who is
a Master Electrician, and he indicated that he had
issued that emergency order, they fixed the immediate
fire danger, the fire problem, the electrical problem
that was occurring there and that they were...he
didn't feel that there was any other eminent danger
out there. Based on that information is where I
determine on my part that we would be moving forward
and working together with the Brooksville Housing
Authority to address these problems.”

“So in your opinion the Housing Authority could have
taken time to develop a sound plan of action, gone
out to bids and then started on the work. Is that
correct?”

“That was my understanding of what was going to
transpire.”

“I have no further questions Mr. Mayor.”

“I have a couple Mayor. Ah, Chief, would you
consider the arcing you described on the back of that
meter, would you consider that a fire danger or a
fire hazard?”

“That would be to where I would probably refer to a
subject matter expert, that with, from an electrical
standpoint, you have ongoing, and TI'll just refer
back to the type of wiring that's in there, from what
I understand with it, is with the aluminum wiring,
that is supposed to have sometime of maintenance done
to it over a period of time of having them torgqued
and tightened down. BAh, if it goes for a long period
of time it could develop into a fire hazard. As a
fire danger, you can have a fire that's caused by
arcing at any time.”

“What would you consider the neutral background
feeding, backfeeding that you described as, is that a
fire hazard or fire danger, and what 1s that
considered a hazard or a danger as far as any
electrocution of anybody there, because I heard you
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mention the word safety and health also several times
in your report there?”

“vYes. What I understand, when I looked at it, it was
the problems that were fire hazards that needed to be
addressed.”

“Chief, was ah, do I need to give you my name again?”
“Yes, please.”

“Carl Pilcher. Chief, was that your first inspection
there?”

"My first, I'm sorry.”
“Was that your first overall fire inspection there?”
“0f that building, yes sir.”

“Is it not the City's responsibility to check those
buildings?”

“From the fire aspect of it?”
“Correct.”

“When it comes down to that, you're talking about
residential, as apposed to commercial, and, I
probably need to step up here to explain. What Mr.
Pilcher, I believe is asking, is was that my first
inspection of that facility. It was for me. Ah, I
can recall some of the records back that we had in
'95, we had another fire inspector, George I11i, had
another inspection of Brooksville Housing Authority
and what that covered I'm not, ah, I don't have all
that information with me. What I want to qualify by
that is when, as a Fire Inspector, under the statute,
we inspect commercial buildings. With an apartment
complex, which is a residential, as when a tenant
signs a lease agreement for, to rent the apartment,

that gives them property rights. It's my
understanding, through an educational process that
I've learned, through this experience to this

point,is that HUD or the Brooksville Housing
authority can schedule an inspection if they give
sufficient notice of, I believe 24 hours, to the
tenant. Okay. With that said, we can go in an
inspect that residence, I cannot just walk up to a
resident's door at 510, 20 or 30 MLK and knock on the

door and say, “I want to come in and do an
inspection.” Thats a resident, a residential.
Commercial, it is polite to <call ahead to a
commercial and say, “I'd like to come in and schedule
an appointment to inspect your building. I have

shown up just when I've had a list of inspections to
do at commercial businesses and done that, but, to
answer Mr. Pilcher's question, that 1is my first
inspection that I had there at that facility.”

“Chief Mossgrove, when a permit is typically pulled,

especially for something that is electrical, would
you go and inspect that at that point and time, or
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Chief Mossgrove:

Mayor Pugh:

Chief Mossgrove:

Mayor Pugh:

Chief Mossgrove:

Mayor Pugh:

Chief Mossgrove:

Carl Pilcher:

Chief Mossgrove:

Carl Pilcher:

Chief Mossgrove:

Mayor Pugh:

Carl Pilcher:

have any feedback on plans, residential or
commercial?”

“If it is an...are you talking about an electrical
permit?”

“Electrical permit, remodeling permit, any permits
that may be applied for, would that trigger some
mechanism where you would have to do an inspection,
plan review or anything of that nature?”

“Yes it would, and to explain that, when there is a
permit pulled in the City, we, by our Building Dept.,
they issue that to the individual, if there is any
remodels that go on that require to have a remodeling
or as set of plans done, that comes through my
office, we review them, stamp them, say, “yes, we
reviewed them”, and we approve them. It goes back to
the contractor, or the person who is doing the work,
the work is performed, when it is done, they are
required to give us a call and say, “We've completed
the work”, the remodel, whatever the permit was
issued for, and I go out and do what I call a final
fire inspection on the work that was permitted. When
I look at that I have a spot where I sign for final
fire and I initial it. That's how it works.”

“In your professional opinion, the fact that the
Housing Authority never pulled a permit for prior
remodeling or electrical work, did that cause the
City not to have a mechanism to catch some of these
potential problems and fix them prior to getting to
this stage?”

“It's very obvious if I didn't see it, if a permit
wasn't pulled, there was no way that our office would
have been ever notified that any of the work ever
occurred.”

“and ultimately putting the residents at risk.”

“It depends on what was, how it was installed, vyes.”

“Chief, have you ever inspected Tanglewood or Brooks
Vvillas?”

“Yes I have.”

“What did you find out there?”

“It's been some time back but as far as...”

“What does this have to do with the Brooksville
Housing Authority, does the Brooksville Housing
Authority oversee these two complexes?”

“He ah, hold on just a minute. I've heard, and this

has been said many, many times, by you and by a
number of other people, through the newspaper.

You're worried about the housing stock, you're
worried about the health and welfare of poor people,
okay? These are government subsidized. People are

living in these, you want to make a comparison with
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Mayor Pugh:

Carl Pilcher:
Mayor Pugh:

Carl Pilcher:

Attorney LaCroix:

Mayor Pugh:

Council Member Lewis:

Chief Mossgrove:

Council Member Lewis:

Council Member Lewis:

Chief Mossgrove:

these...”

“Someone's living in that apartment right there?”
(Mr. Pilcher had pictures of the condition of some of
the residences.)

“Yes sir, yes sir.”
“With the boards on it.”

“oh no, no, no, no, this one's already burned,
someone's living next door to it. And I have a
number of other pictures related to that. This 1is
taxpayer money that we're paying for, this is, what
is it called, rural development? They're subsidized
by the government. My guestion is, if everybody is
so terribly concerned with everybody's welfare and
health, and all these other statements that are being
made, what went on with these?”

“Mr. Mayor, this has nothing to do with the charges
that you're hearing tonight. We're not concerned
with what was ever done at any other Housing
Authority complex or any other residential project or
residential building. We're concerned with the
Housing Authority Board Members oversight of their
own property.”

“Correct.”

“Mayor, I have one more question for Chief. Chief,
are you aware of any previous fires in your tenure
working with the City of Brooksville at 510, 520 or
530 in those buildings.

“Actually yes.”

“When and where do you have any recollection of
approximate date of those fires and...”

Chief Mossgrove proceeded to relate one fire at 510,
the first complex on the west side, in June 1997,
which extended into the attic space and caused damage
to the trusses. He stated he had also been to others
throughout his 21-year <career with the City,
basically room and content fires.

“After that one that was in 510 on the west side
there, was there any follow up, I know that you
wasn't Chief at that time, in 18997. Was there any
follow up by the City as far as any fire inspections
done after that, once that repair was done or to that
unit, that building, that you know of, or you have
knowledge of?”

“aAs I recall at the time there was some...our
building division I believe was the County, cause of
course they had to pull permits to reconstruct that I
believe, and when that was done there was some
building inspections done at that time. I can't
recall anything else after that.”
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Mayor Pugh:

Chief Mossgrove:

Council Member Bradburn:

Chief Mossgrove:

Council Member Bradburn:

Chief Mossgrove:

Council Member Bradburn:

Chief Mossgrove:

Council Member Bradburn:

“Chief Mossgrove, if unit 510 was burnt and a permit
was pulled in '97, 10 years later, why is the
condition of 510 in such disrepair where they had to
do more electrical work?”

“That I can't answer, I wouldn't know why.”

“Chief Mossgrove, are you aware that HUD authorized
some emergency repairs for eminent dangers?”

“The only one that I'm aware of is the permit that
was issued on the middle building, the 520, back in
around March.”

“You have since been in may of those buildings, are
you confident that the eminent dangers are taken care
of?

“I feel that the eminent danger has been taken care
of at this time. I do believe that, with, the
Housing Authority is moving forward forward with that
and they are addressing the problems and even as of
today I've had a meeting with Mr. McLean, touching on
those various subjects.

“And you've had...how far back have your
conversations gone with HUD and what was your
understanding of the process of dealing with eminent
dangers versus fire hazards?”

“My dealings with HUD go back, my first dealings that
I've had with HUD was back in March when they had the
inspector come down and I had the opportunity to talk
with him. I will tell you, if we back up a little
bit, prior, middle March 2007, on or about the 15 or
16" of March, I was doing my research when I was
contacted by Lane Electrical about this in this
residential apartment complex. I called the State
Fire Marshall's office and talked to them at the
Tampa office and I asked them how did this work, I
wanted to educate myself to understand how this
process worked. I had an understanding from my years
of being in the fire service for the City is that
they had State inspectors that came out and we went
off their inspection report. At that time I was
advised by the Tampa office of the State Fire
Marshall's Office that that had happened in the past,
however they had no control over that because the way
that the Federal funds were distributed basically
come down to the State, which goes down to the
County, which would be Hernando County and wherever
the complex was built, the City of Brooksville, that
it fell on the local governments to govern it and the
authority having jurisdiction covered it. That was
the first I'd heard about it, in March, on or about
the 16* of 2007 is when that was explained to me and
when I found out that it fell on my shoulders, being
the Chief for less than a year, I addressed the
problem.”

“So you did an inspection and you met with Mr.

Singer, and this is a point of clarity so please
correct me if I'm misunderstanding it, and in your
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Mossgrove:

Pugh:

Mossgrove:

Pugh:

Mossgrove:

Pugh:

Mossgrove:

discussions with Mr. Singer you conveyed that there
was sufficient time to come up with a plan, go out
for bid, and it...was it your understanding from Mr.
Singer, and in your conversations with Mr. Singer,
that that is the proper procedure.”

“Right. Yes Ma'am, and when I talked with Mr. Singer
he said at that time there was a process that he had
to follow in order to obtain the funding and he was

looking at those avenues at that time. He did not
share with me the whole process, he just said there
is a process you have to go through. That's what I
recall.”

“As you stated before, Chief Mossgrove, that you have
been in contact with Mr. McLean and did you not
submit a memorandum to the City Manager on July 10,
as far as the status report, and went over that the
items were being addressed and some other...the
outstanding issues that were still out there at the
time?”

“Yes sir.”

“Are you aware of VISTA?”

“Yes I am.”

“Could you tell me who that...”

“If you give me just a second I can look it up, I
have a copy of the report here with me. I have a copy
of the...I believe it is probably the same copy you
have from the VISTA Systems. When I had met with Mr.
McLean the first time, on or about just after he took
over as Interim Director, I met with him just to meet
and greet, find out what the status was, find out
where we were going, plan of action. He shared with
me that there was a company that came out, from VISTA
SYSTEMS, and I said, “Who's VISTA Systems?”, I was
unaware of what it was. And he explained to me that
they went out and did an inspection of the Summit
View Villa Apartments, and being curious I called
them. I talked to a Mr. Robert L. Toth, and he
advised me that, yes he had went out and done the
inspection, although the P.E., the Electrical
Engineer, never actually went to the site, he had an
inspector do it and he just signed the report. In
the report I did notice a couple of things from VISTA
Systems that really caught my eye as we moved
forward. One excerpt here is that, “When the project
was constructed the appliances, except for the range,
were gas powered, not electrical. Since these were
replaced with electrical and these electrical loads
were then added to the existing system, the power
company has a plan in the works to replace their pad
mounted transformer in coordination with the power
company is included as part of the tax.” That
statement right there I have major concerns with.
When these buildings were Dbuilt, they were not
designed to put electrical ranges in. They were
designed to have gas stoves in them and they're a 100
amp system at Summit Villa Apartments. When you take
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and add that extra load on there you basically
overloaded the system of what it was designed for, so
I had, I asked VISTA Systems, when this was done. He
couldn't answer. I don't know when it was done but
I'm hearing through tonights conversation that it
probably happened around 2001 some time, or 2002, I
don't know when, but thats kind of the gquestion that
I had. That's what I know about VISTA Systems.”

Mayor Pugh: “Okay, So ultimately, not pulling a permit caused
another serious situation, in regards to life safety
and...”

Chief Mossgrove: “I couldn't tell you if a permit was pulled or not,
you could check records at the County, I'm not aware
of it.”

Mr. Pilcher: “Chief, which apartments are you referring to, that

converted gas to electric?”

Chief Mossgrove: “The reports indicating the ones over on MLK, 510,
520 and 530.”

Mr. Pilcher: “Just for the record, those have always Dbeen
electric, there was no conversion done there, the
conversion was done at Hillside Estates.”

Mayor Pugh: “We know that to be fact?”

Chief Mossgrove: “I can't tell you, I based my information on the
report that came from the inspector.”

Mayor Pugh: “Who hired VISTA?”

Chief Mossgrove: “I understand it to be Brooksville Housing
Authority.”

Mayor Pugh: “Okay, so, the Engineering firm, supposedly that
they hired, «conflicted with what's actually
there.”

Chief Mossgrove: “It's my understanding and I asked VISTA System
how they were contacted and they said it
was...that they'd had a conversation with Lane
Electrical.”

Council Member Lewis: “Mayor, what day is that letter dated?”

Mayor Pugh: “May 1, 2007, from VISTA.”

City Attorney LaCroix stated he had no further witnesses to present and
recommended Council allow the Brooksville Housing Authority
Commissioners to present any evidence and testimony they want to and to
call any witnesses they have.

Mayor Pugh asked Mr. McLean about a memo, dated June 26, 2007, to Jim
Lane Electric, which stated, “As per HUD orders all work at the Summi t

Complex must cease immediately.”

Mayor Pugh: “Was that directive give to you from HUD?”
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Mr. McLean: “Yes. Gary Loftus.”

Mayor Pugh: “Okay. And that was due to the fact that they didn't
follow HUD procedures that was set out previously?”

Mr. McLean: “Correct, they had concerns about the contract and
continuation of work being done after they told them
to stop the work.”

Mayor Pugh: “Okay. What concerns, to your best recollection, was
in regards to the contract.”

Mr. McLean: “Gary Loftus said that the emergency situation has
been abated in the first phase of the electrical work
and that he had advised the board several time to
stop work and for the work to be
properly..... procurement procedures need to be
followed, bid it out, and then the electrical firm to
be hired to be able to fix the rest of the electrical
work.”

Mayor Pugh: “To your knowledge, do you know any other work, past
this letter of 6/26/07, that was performed by Lane
Electric, by order of the Housing Authority?”

Mr. McLean: “No.”

Mayor Pugh: “No. Okay. Thank you.”

City Attorney LaCroix lead the extensive questioning of Mr. Pilcher on
topics which covered the condition of the Brooksville Housing Authority
and his role on the Board, as well as his knowledge of incidents as far
back as 2000 and the Board's handling of those issues.

Carl Pilcher Testimony

Carl Pilcher, who was sworn, proceeded to present his case. He
distributed information to Council, labeled Exhibits A-N [Attachment
C], and asked Council to follow him through the charges.

Carl Pilcher: “I'm going to need some clarification on these
because I'm not real clear as to what some of these
mean. So you're going to have to clarify some.”

“Charge one, we allowed the condition of electrical
system at Summit Villas, and other Authority
properties to deteriorate to the extent that very
expensive and extensive repairs are not necessary.”

“My response. During a meeting in 2005, it was
brought to the attention of the Brooksville Housing
Authority Board, by Betty Trent, that an assessment
of the plumbing and electrical systems at both
Hillside Estates and Summit Villas was needed. These
facilities are/were over 30 years old at that time.
In 2006, the Housing Authority Board received an
assessment regarding the plumbing systems at the two
properties from Stokes Plumbing. If you'll look at
that, you'll notice that the plumbing is pretty much
shot in those buildings as well and you're looking at
probably $3,500,000 to repair those.”
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“Also in 2006, the Housing Authority Board received a
similar assessment regarding the electrical systems
at the two properties from Lane Electric, with an
estimated cost of $2,100,000 and that was to update
the system, once again, with the electrical. This
was done...both of these assessments were done in
2006, so we knew...you know, we're dealing with
properties that are well over 30 years old, we knew
certainly that the time had come to do something with
these problems that would certainly crop up.”

“Quick question for you, Mr. Pilcher. Did you ever
seek other guotes from any other Plumbers or
Electricians?”

“At the time all we were interested in was finding
out what they felt needed to be done. We would have
gone out on bids, we would have done whatever was
proper. These were merely assessments, estimates of
what it might cost to update everything.”

“Does Lane Electric have an Electrical Engineer?”
“Does he have an Electrical Engineer?”

“Yes.”

“T don't know, he'd have to answer that question.”
“Okay. Proceed.”

“Prior to this time, there was no indication from the
Housing & Urban Development inspections that any
major problems existed with the plumbing and
electrical systems, at either Hillside Estates or
Summit Villas. If you'll refer to Exhibit C, this is
very critical, this is called a PHAS Report , and
basically what this is, is an inspection, that's done
by HUD through a private contractor called REAC. If
you'll look at the...and there is a number of things
that come in between this, but I want to point out
this last page or the page behind, this would be the
inspection for the electrical hazards, emergency
equipment, gas, oil, whatever you might add. This is
blank, if you'll look at it. If there were any major
problems that needed to be corrected, this has to be
noted immediately, and it has to go...and I don't
mean 2 days, or a day, or...it has to be done
immediately, it's taken to the Executive Director and
they have 24 hours to make those corrections. Now
what this is telling me, it may not tell you the same
thing, but what this is telling me, HUD found no
problems. This was back in 2005.7

“So you're saying that Dbasically, the problems
occurred between 2005 and 2006.”

“No, basically what I'm saying is that I went back
through all the other PHAS Reports and nobody ever

found any major problems.”

“So, it's Hood's..”
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“What I'm saying is there might be a situation there
where nobody really did an inspection.”

“Okay, so basically you're stating that it was Hood's
fault, or someone else's fault, for not catching it
at some point.”

“They certainly didn't do their job, in my opinion,
if all these things were going on. I don't think the
place could have fallen apart in 2 years.”

“You just stated that you don't think that the place
could fall apart in 2 years, and Mr. Lane had made
comments during his inspections this year that the
problems have exited for many years. Yet you say...
these documents state that Mr. Lane did an
inspection, which I don't know how you can do an
assessment without doing an inspection of some sort,
in 2006, stating that there is significant work that
needs to be done. What transpired between July 2006
and this Spring that caused so much greater damage to
be done to the structures, that Mr. Lane...?”

“vYou would have to consult with an Engineer or
Electrician, I'm neither.”

“Well didn't Mr. Lane explain to the Board back then
that he felt that there was imminent danger?”

“No, the assessment was done, it was passed out in a
meeting and that, at that point, was as far as it
went. And it was done with a number of things, not
just the plumbing and electrical, it was done with
gas and a few other things.”

“So, in July 2006 Mr. Lane did not say that there was
imminent danger, but in 2007 he said that there was
imminent danger, did that like, raise a red flag?”

“He may not say it's an imminent danger, but I think
he does say there is some serious problems and most
of those serious problems, from what I'm gathering
with what I have here, is due to the fact that the
place was never built right to begin with.”

“I'm just trying to understand how Mr. Lane's opinion
could seemingly change in such a short period of
time.”

“Mr. Lane would have to answer that for you, I
couldn't do that.”

“Mr. Pilcher, I think you just said that you weren't
aware of the condition of the electrical system at
Summit Villas until Mrs. Trent brought it to your
attention in 2006. Is that right?”

“No sir. What was brought to our attention was the
fact that we needed to do some work to the major

components of those buildings.”

“So you were aware before then of the sorry state of
the electrical system. Is that right?”
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“I was familiar by 2006, I wasn't familiar with the
state...”

“Did you read Dan Dewitt's November 2002 article
talking about all the unlicensed electrical work that

had been done at Summit Villas?”

“Well, let me say this, and then I'd like to proceed
if I could.”

“Well sir, the gquestion is did you ever read that
article?”

“Ahhh, no, actually I didn't and gquite frankly...”
“Did you hear about it?”

“Pardon me?”

“Did you hear about it?”

“aAhhh, I don't know how to answer that and I don't
know how to answer what you're asking me...”

’

“You're quoted in it. Well sir, I want to know...’

“WYou're investigation came straight out of a
newspaper.”

“Well sir, what I wanted to ask you is, after that
news article...”

“I can't answer for the newspaper.”
“Excuse me sir. After that news article came out...”

“T can't answer to the newspaper and I'm not going
to.”

“Well I'm not asking you to, I'm trying to ask a
question.”

“You're asking me what the newspaper said.”

“No sir, I'm trying to ask a different question right
now. "

“Go right ahead please.”

“After that news article came out, which you are
quoted in, did you, or any other of the Board
Members, as for an investigation of the electrical
system at Summit Villas, which at then...a lot of the
work of which had been done by unlicensed
contractors.”

“I'm not aware of any unlicensed contractors that
have done any...”

“Question is, did you ever for any investigation into
those charges?”

“I'm not sure I follow you. I'm sorry.”
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“Did you ever, between 2002 and 2006, did you, or any
of the other Board Members ever ask for an electrical
inspection or investigation to see whether in fact
there was a lot of work done at Summit Villas,
without permits, by unlicensed contractors and to see
what the condition of the electrical system was?”

“Not based on these articles. No.”

“Based on anything did you. So you never did?”
“No. And I didn't read the paper either.”
“Thank You.”

“Just for <clarification again, I'm sorry, what
article was that?”

“Dan Dewitt's November 5, 2002, the larger one about
the housing problems. The one that went through all
the unlicensed contractor work that was done then.”

“I believe that Mr. Pugh, excuse me, Mayor Pugh made
the statement, the last meeting I was at that this
was not going to be heard based on the newspapers.
That's all I've seen so far, I haven't seen too many
documents other than a newspaper clipping.”

“This VISTAS SYSTEMS report dated May 1, 2007, here,
that was hired by the Commissioners over there. It
states in here, 'In general, there is no requirement
to wupgrade older dwellings wuntil the situation
becomes life threatening, {(such as a electrocution or
fire).”

“I have all that information in my presentation.”

“So its going to take a death in order to get
something done, and this is a...VISTA SYSTEMS that
was hired to do this and they're tell you the
problems but they said that there is no requirement
until you either have a fire or electrocution.”

“Was that a question for him or just a statement?”

“I was just wondering if he was aware of that
statement in that VISTA report.”

“Yes, it's part of what I was entering here.”

“I think what they are saying 1is there is no legal
requirement, but if you own property or manage
property, you have a managerial responsibility.”

“I'd say you have a serious moral obligation.”

“Okay, I think we got to the HUD inspection. The
following year, which would have been 2006, and it
would be your Exhibit D, HUD exempted us from any

further inspections for that particular year.”

“In 2007, Lane Electric discovered life-threatening
conditions during a service call. Refer to Exhibit
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NOTE:

E, these conditions were substantiated by the City of
Brooksville Fire Chief. Refer to Exhibit F, I'm going
to read this, this is Lane Electrical's inspection.

It was actually Exhibit E.

'Upon  inspection from Mr. Singer with the
Engineering Firm on April 4, 2007, it was brought
to my attention by Mr. Robert 0. Covington P.E.
that existing wiring in buildings is type TIW
installation 60 degrees Celsius and 140 degrees
Fahrenheit which is not compatible to new breakers
and panels which are now rated 75 degrees Celsius
and 167 degrees Fahrenheit or the breakers that
were 1in existing panels. This could cause a
serious life safety issue for the fact that these
ratings must match so a circuit breaker has the
capability of tripping before the wire is over
heating and melting.'

“And your Fire Chief, I think this has already been
stated but I'll state it again.

"I have met with Donny Singer, the Interim
Director of Brooksville Housing Authority on
March 22, 2007, and discussed the findings of
violations found and observed from my inspection
of the apartment complex. Mr. Singer indicated
that he would be getting in touch with his
office, in Jacksonville, to address the problems
and start to put together a plan to fix the
problems withing the next 30 days.'

And we were left with the impression that he was
going to be able to get what is called SHIP funds.

'Further, we both agreed that it would be an
ongoing process to fix all the violations and
problems found, it 1is obvious the complex was
built in the late 60's and finished about 1972,
and there were little or no Code Enforcement at
that time to ensure the building was built to the
code that was in place at that time, if any. It
is my recommendation and directive that the
Brooksville Housing Authority needs to address
the violations and problems at Summit Villa
complex to ensure the safety and welfare of the
tenants that live there.'

That we had attempted to do. Chief Mossgrove attended
a Board Meeting, I'm sorry there's no date on it, I
only copied the back page of the minutes.

'The Chair asked Chief Mossgrove to report on his
position on Summit Villas. Chief Mossgrove
states that he does not want to shut down Summit
Villas, and does not believe that anyone else
involved in the project wants to see it shut down
either; particularly at the expense of the
elderly people living there. After stating that
he is glad to see the Electrical engineer's
report, Chief Mossgrove again states that he
would re-visit the project in another 60 to 90
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days and would want to see it move forward
again. '

The rest of that I'll be glad to read but it gets a
little boring I think after that.”

“So basically from Exhibit E, you've taken Lane
Electrics word as far as, this could be a serious
life safety issue for the fact that these ratings
must match so the circuit breaker has the capability
of tripping before the wire 1is overheating and
melting. Now VISTA SYSTEM, you took that word over
VISTA SYSTEM, which basically said that there is no
requirement to upgrade older dwellings until the
situation becomes life~threatening, such as
electrocution or fire. So basically, you hired
VISTA, and then Lane Electric brought their own
Engineer and you too their word over...”

“No, VISTA came on the scene after Lane Electric and
in a presentation to to us was that these were life-
threatening conditions.”

“QOkay, VISTA SYSTEM was dated May 1, 2007, the letter
that you are referring to in your Exhibit E is April
6, 2007. Yea it did, you're right, sorry. Continue
on.

“So after the VISTA SYSTEM you just went back to Lane
Electric, you ignored VISTA's recommendation.”

“I'm not there yet so I don't have the slightest idea
what you're talking about.

“This whole situation between Chief Mossgrove and Jim
Lane Electric was presented to us as a life-
threatening situation. As a Board Member, I felt I
had a moral obligation to see that something was
done. I am not an Electrician, nor am I an Engineer,
but I certainly did not want anyone's death on my
hands and quite frankly, that's the way it was
presented to me, that there was that possibility.”

“Okay, you stated that you morally did not want...or
you didn't want anybody to be harmed by it, but yet
you failed to hire a licensed electrician for prior
work.”

“I don't have the slightest idea what you're talking
about. When did we not hire a licensed Electrician?
Jim Lane is a Master Electrician.”

“I'm talking about in 2000, roughly 2002.~"

“I am not gonna...I am not gonna make comments on the
newspapers okay.”

“No we're just asking did you hire Mr....”
“I am not gonna make comments on the newspapers.”
“I'm not talking about newspapers. Did you hire Mr.

Darby?”
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“Did you or did you not hire a licensed Electrician
for any work that was done prior to this? Yes or no.
It does not...it has nothing to do with the paper or
not, it is a question I'm asking you.”

“I have no idea what you're talking about. I have no
idea what you're talking about.”

“You know who Mr. Darby is?”
“Patrick Darby.”

“Yeah.”

“Yes”

“Was he hired by the Authority to do electrical
work?”

“He may very well have been.”

“Did he have an electrical license?”

“Okay, but you have no idea, if he was hired?”

“The way I understand the story between Patrick Darby
and Anthony Leongone is that Patrick Darby wired the
stove units, and I'm only going to exp...I'm not sure
of this, wired the stove units at Hillside Estates.
Anthony Leongone, who is a licensed Electrician,
checked those units seven to eight at a time. That's
the way I understand it.”

“Was any permit pulled for the work.”

“That I have no idea.”

“You were on the Board at the time, right?”

“We would have not been responsible for that. Thats
an Administrative function.”

“But you were on the Board.”
“Thats an Administrative function.”
“Does the Board oversee Administration?”

“We are policy makers, we don't oversee everything
the Administration does, no.”

“Who does the Executive Director work for?”
“We don't look at every check they write.”
“Who does the Executive Director work for?”

“You don't sign...one of your Board Members do not
sign all the checks?”

“T don't look at the checks. I don't sign checks.”

“But does one of your Board Members.”
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“Certainly.”

“Okay. So they wouldn't be aware of payments or
something of that nature going out. You said you
don't look at the checks, but Board Members, whoever,
the Chairman or Co-Chairman, would have the authority
to sign checks. Correct?”

“Oh certainly. Sure.”
“Have you ever been the Chairman or Co-Chairman?”

“I was a Co-Chairman for a very short time. I signed
checks probably twice at the very most.”
“Okay. Continue.”

“Charge number two. In allowing this condition to
develop, you have sanctioned or allowed electrical
work to be done not in accordance with the City's
adopted Electrical Code, by Authority employees and
other persons not licensed as Electricians or
Electrical Contractors.

If you'll look at Exhibit H, Pat Brayton, who was on
our board at that time, wrote a letter and I'd like
to read it.

'Pertaining to Item 1 of the letter of proposed
removal from office sent to Mr. Carl Pilcher, T
feel that it 1is important to point out to the
Brooksville City Council that on May 19, 2003
(copy of minutes attached) the Brooksville
Housing Authority Commissioners made 1t very
clear to the Executive Director and the Project
Manager that absolutely no electrical or plumbing
work was to be completed except by certified
personnel.

As the City Council is well aware of, it 1is the
responsibility of the Brooksville Housing
Authority Board to establish policies and
procedures, not to micro manage each and every
project. That is why you have a manager.'

If you'll look at these minutes on the second page.

'Discussion regarding materials and a storage
trailer followed. Member Brayton also added that
any work requiring plumbing or electrical work,
make sure we get a certified electrician or
plumber.'

This doesn't pertain to this, but 'Larry stated we
only have 8 apartments left to rewire for electric
stoves.’' It doesn't really pertain to this. Any
questions about that?”

“Do you feel...you made a statement Jjust a 1little
while ago. Do you feel it's the obligation of the
Board to make sure the Manager, or in this case, the
Housing Director Authority, does it's job in
accordance to the policies you set?”
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“Well of course. But we're not there everyday.”

“But do you take responsibility for their actions.
Yes or no.”

“Let me ask you this question.”

“Can you answer mine first?”

“Yea, be glad to. If it's something I'm directly
involved with and know about, yes, I would certainly
take responsibility for it. Now my gquestion to you

is, if someone tomorrow steals a million dollars out
of City of Brooksville funds are you responsible for
that?”

“If it's a one-time occurrence, I don't know what it
has to do with this.”

“I might remind you that when I first started working
for Brooksville, shortly after that, somebody from
Finance dis steal some money from the City and he was
immediately removed from his position and fired. He
wasn't allowed to continue to keep working for the
City for a period of time afterwards.”

“I'm not real sure that has anything to do with what
I asked.”

“Yea, I would. I would say that yes it is my
responsibility as it was when I voted to remove the
ex-City Manager, so yes, I would say it's my

responsibility, ultimately.”

“Wery good, very good. Mr. Niesz of HUD, who I
talked with last week, told me that we were policy
makers, we weren't in there to micro manage those
units, we weren't in there to check the electrical.
We were there to set policy, period.”

“Do you believe that once a problem has come to your
attention that you should follow up on it?”

“If its brought to my attention certainly. But not
every problem that ever went through there came to my

attention.”

“Well obviously the problem of hiring unlicensed
personnel...”

“I was not aware of that until it was all over with.”

“So there was no work after 2003 by unlicensed
personnel, when it comes to electrical?”

“Not that I know of.”
“Did you take any corrective action to ensure that
that wouldn't happen again, as far as the Housing

Director, cause obviously you can't do anything in
regards to Mr. Larry Trent?”
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“Did I do what now?”

“Did you do any further...anything further, as far as
ensuring that it wouldn't happen again.”

“I can assure you that I would probably scrutinize
phone messages after all of this.”

“Okay. Move forward.”

“During my term of service on the Housing Authority
I'm only aware of two contractors with whom the
Authority did business, and we're talking electrical
now, other than the situation with Tony Leongone.
The first was A&L Electrical of Hernando County and
most recently Jim Lane. My understanding is that
both of these contractors are licensed Master
Electricians.

Although the Housing Authority Board was not aware of
this, the two ©properties were apparently not
constructed to code originally, if the code existed
at all at the time. The City's own Fire Chief, who
recently inspected these properties, made the
statement there was little to no Code Enforcement at
that time to ensure the buildings were built to code.
You can refer back to that exhibit. This was
subsequently verified by the City's Building
Department.

As far as employees and other persons not licensed as
electricians and electrical contractors, the only
issue I can speak to relates to employees. Refer to
Exhibit H, I'm sorry, we've already gone over that.

“I have a quick question.”
“Certainly, go ahead.”

“In regards to the minutes, I know you stated the Mr.
Brayton had added that all work requiring plumbing
and electrical work make sure we get certified
electricians and plumbers. It says, 'Larry stated
that we only have eight apartments left to be rewired
for electrical stoves. Vice~Chairman Pilcher
suggested going ahead and tying these into the
renovations.' Are you talking about renovations as
far as going out and getting licensed contractors at
that point to finish up the eight?”

“These were all the renovations that were going on,
the cabinets, the appliances and everything. There
were only eight units left.”

“So did they go out and hire a licensed contractor?”

“ (undecipherable) and Paul Tanner were handling that,
I have no idea.”

“Okay you Jjust made a direction that you wused
licensed contractors, but yet you didn't ensure that
they went ahead on those final eight stove re-
wirings?”
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“No, that's no what I'm saying there at all. I'm not
real sure I understood the gquestion.”

“Well, in your statement you stated that you were
supposed to use licensed contractors, but at the very
end you made a suggestion that, go ahead and tie this
into the renovations as far as rewired for electrical

stoves, that's electrical work. So Larry Trent came
to you and said, 'We only have eight more apartments
left. '

“This had nothing to do with the wiring. This was a

total renovation program. This was plumbing, this
was tile, this was painting, this was kitchen
cabinets. That statement has nothing...”

“And rewiring for electrical stoves.”

“Yes, but that particular statement, about the eight
other units, has nothing to do with the wiring.”

“Okay, Larry stated 'we only have eight apartments
left to be rewired for electrical stoves.' Vice-
Chairman Pilcher suggested going ahead and tying
these into the renovations...that had something to do
with the electrical work. Does it not? It clearly
states that.”

“QOkay, well which one?”

“The minutes that you provided us, behind Mr.
Brayton's letter.”

“Okay, thats...if you'll notice, after electric and
plumbing, there's a period there.”

“Absolutely.”

“Larry stated we only eight apartments left, I'm
sorry, you're absolutely right. You're absolutely
right.”

“I'm not...I haven't always had the brain of a gnat.”

“Well I would question that since you took everything
out of the newspaper.”

“I know. But that wasn't out of the newspaper and
you contradicted it.”

“Most everything else is.”
“Yea. Continue.”

“I believe I stopped here but I'm not positive. In
the middle of all this chaos Donny Singer, Interim
Housing Authority Executive Director at that time,
brought in an Engineer, Robert O. Covington, to asses
the electrical systems, refer to Exhibit I, which I
think Donny Singer and a number of other people have
already reviewed with you. This man was not an
Electrical Engineer. Assessment had to be done by an
Electrical Engineer. According to Hood's rules and
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regulations, if an Architect or Engineers...and these
are Hood's regulations, state, if an Architect or
Engineer is disbarred or does not have certifications
or licenses they can not be hired. And this further
delayed our chances of resolving these electrical
issues in a timely fashion. We were then presented
with a company called Parker Stephens. Sorry that I
couldn't copy this entire booklet, but it was a very

professional packet, put together very nicely. The
people...anyone is certainly welcome to look at it,
these people have done a tremendous amount of
government work, school work, a number of things. We

hired them after reviewing this resume and they
agreed to a fee of $10,000 for assessment of both the
electrical systems at Hillside Estates and Summit
villas. At the next Housing Authority Board Meeting,
which was probably less than a month after, their
Engineer for the company came to the meeting, he
returned the Housing Authority $10 check with an
explanation that they wanted no involvement with the
project due to possible liabilities and the potential
for non-payment for services rendered. This related
to the ongoing politics of the situation and
conflicts between the City Council, the Housing
Authority Board and HUD. After that part I though
everything was pretty much at a stand-still. Did
anybody want to glance at this?”

“If I can Jjust ask a point of clarity on that. Mr.
Mayoxr?”

“Yes, go ahead.”

“You said this related to the ongoing politics, how
do we not know that Parker Stephens chose not to do
the work because there was no money in the bank?”

“Well, Charlie Luckie, the Housing Authority's
Attorney, was there and I think he can confirm that
for you that when they returned the check they just
didn't want any involvement in it, too much
nonsense.”

“Would that be Mr. Luckie who was quoted on the
indictment tape...my question is, in regards to this,
because we talk about authorizing work without money
in the bank that Mr. Singer referred to. Do we know
that Parker Stephens chose not to do the work because
there wasn't money in the Housing Authority's bank?”

“Do we know that that's the reason? I'm sure it
played a part in it, certainly.”

“Then what would that have to do with politics?”

“Well they read the papers and they listen to what's
going on and you know, this has been in every paper
as far down as Miami.”

“I guess I'm trying to piece together. If HUD came
down and said okay, we need a plan, we need to go out
for bids, there is no imminent danger, come up with a
plan and lets go out for bids. And you cannot hire
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City Attorney LaCroix:

Mayor Pugh:

Mr. Singer:

Mayor Pugh:

someone without money in the bank.”

“That's been one of my arguments all along and I
think Mr. Singer can confirm that.”

“Mr. Pilcher, down underneath response here it says,
'With the approval of Paul Tanner, $40,000 was put
into the 1014 Administrative Account. For
clarification, who is Paul Tanner.”

“He was hired as a HUD approved consultant and he 1is
basically the one that oversaw the renovations.”

“Was he the one that was overseeing the 4-year
renovation period.”

“Yes, he hired people, he fired people.”

“Did he hire the contractors to do the renovations
for the 4 years.”

“Probably 99% of them, yes.”

“Did he have a General Contractors License?”
“Paul Tanner?”

“Yes.”

“I believe he does.”

“Okay, so he was the overseeing, the actual general
contractor for that 4-year project that you had there
for this total renovation.”

“yes, '

“You still have to have a licensed Electrician
underneath him to do any electrical work.”

“I'd like to ask a question for clarification David,
if I may- There was a comment that Mr. Covington
wasn't able, under HUD rules, to perform the duties
that he did. I'd like to ask Mr. Singer if that's
true, can we do that at this point or do we need to
wait until...”

“No formal rules for this hearing, so.”

“Point of clarification Mr. Singer, I don't believe
you were in here at the time. There was a statement
that Mr. Covington, under HUD rules, was not allowed
to do the assessment that he was hired to do. Is
that...do you know that to be a true statement?”

“I would have to look at HUD rules, I don't know if
that's true or false. Mr. Covington's firm was an
engineering firm that did Electrical Engineering
work, that was the reason I went out and brought them
in.”

“Do you know what his engineering degree was in?”
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“I don't know what his exactly was in. He did tell
me. I can't remember that at this time, but his firm
was a qualified electrical engineering firm.”
“Okay, thank you.”

“Were you still on board when Parker Stephens...”
“No.”

“So this was after you left.”

“Yes.”

“Was Mr. McLean on board at that time?”

“I was present.”

“You probably need to come forward, I'm sorry. State
your name for the record.”

“Ronnie McLean.”

“Were you present at the meeting when Parker Stephens
was at the Housing Authority?”

“That was the same meeting where he returned back the
$10,000 check, yes I was at that meeting.”

\\Okay- ”

“Mayor. For clarification, Mr. Covington back here,
it shows his license, after page 6 of 6, after his
proposal, and it shows he was licensed as a

Professional Engineer, Certified General Contractor,
Certified Pool and Spa Contractor and Certified
Pollutant Storage Contractor.”

“And I believe under Professional Engineers there are
categories Electrical Engineers can receive their
P.E.'s by taking a test, so you can't go by just P.E.
They can be a Civil Engineer, an Industrial Engineer,
something of that nature, they do have the same

classification as Professional Engineer. So
unfortunately its hard to tell from just his license
number. We'd have to actually see what he had

actually taken.

“During that meeting was there an altercation or any
type of verbal exchange when Parker was at the
meeting between Mr. Pilcher and Mr. Boston.”

“I believe there was some sort of altercation there
but I can't remember exactly what the exchange was.”

“Okay. And I believe that was...Mr. Luckie was there
also. The only reason I ask, we did receive a letter
from Mr. Rhodes, stating that there was an
altercation during that meeting where Mr. Luckie had
to get involved and I guess we'll ask Mr. Luckie at
some point and time about that question. Thank you.”

“Is anyone interested in looking at this?”
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“Well we have a brief copy do we not?”
“I have no doubt that they are a gualified Engineer.”
“Alright.”

“The last charge, I'm really not real clear on this.
'You have supported the continued employment of
employees who were charged with theft of Authority
funds even after being advised by a HUD audit that
one of these employees had borrowed HUD funds for her
personal use without authorization of the Authority.’

That's not an accurate statement, but what I guess
I'm asking is what are you looking for here? I don't

gquite comprehend it.”

“What action did you take once you found out about
the unauthorized loan?”

“What action did I take?”

\\Yes . ”

“Well, let me do this. Let me explain this first
because this was not a loan and that, once again, is
fabrication of our local media. This was never

intended as a loan, and with the approval of Paul
Tanner, $40,000 was put into the 1014 Administrative
Account to cover overtime and any other miscellaneous
expenses during the 4-year capital improvement
project. $20,000 was pulled out in advance with no
documentation and paid to Joe Ann Bennett. After
hearing of this I, myself, called the HUD District
Office and spoke with Ayiesha Crawford and requested

an immediate audit. Fortunately, there was one
already scheduled and they came into town within a
very short period of time. This account was not in

any way illegal, but to pay the funds out in advance,
with no time records for overtime, was certainly
questionable and against HUD regulations. I insisted
that the 520,000 be paid back with interest. It
became a loan when HUD set it up with a promissory
note and a repayment plan, but without interest. No
other action, per HUD, was warranted, and if you'll
refer to Exhibit K that will support what I've said.
And there is a section in here if I can find it...”

“Down at the bottom of the first column, second
page.”

“It actually has to do with a HUD statement...'Linda
Allen, a HUD spokeswoman in Atlanta said nothing will
be done, Allen said, until the department reviews a
response to the findings that the Housing Authority
completed September 13. Normally, when we do that
kind of monitoring, it's a process of give and take
until things are brought back into order,’ she said.
'These reviews are not meant to beat anyone over the
head. They're meant to make the housing authorities
run better.’

Now that...”
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“are vyou, for the record, you're stating out of
Exhibit K, which is the Hernando Times paper?”

“Yes. Yes, just like you have.”
“Okay, you gave no credence to ours so I just wanted

to make sure that I give you credence to yours.”

“Quite frankly, I give no credence to most of what
you say.”

“Oh I know.”

“Mr. Mayor, May I ask Mr. Pilcher a couple
questions?”

“Sure, go ahead.”

“Nor do I him.”

“Mr. Pilcher, when you became aware, from the HUD
audit, that Joe Ann Bennett and Mrs. Trent had made
improper payments of HUD funds to themselves, to
their relatives, and then when you became aware that
they'd been charged with crimes, for how long after
that did you and the other board member keep them on
the payroll?”

“The only comment that I ever made was that, I
believe the Honorable Mayor Pugh said the same thing,
"they're innocent until proven guilty’.”

“That's in a criminal court.”

“Beyond that...”

“But the guestion is, how long did you keep them on
the payroll?”

“That's the question you asked me, correct?”

“No, I asked you how long did you keep them on the
payroll?”

“I didn't keep them on the payroll, that was a board
vote.”

“How long did you and the other Board Members keep
them on the payroll?”

“J did not...if I'm not mistaken, I was not there at
that particular meeting.”

“pidn't Joe Ann Bennett continue to work for the
Authority until she retired?”

“What do you...”

“After those charges were made public, after vyour
2002 audit, didn't Joe Ann Bennett continue to....”

“HUD saw no reason to pursue that further.”
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“Excuse me. Didn't Joe Ann...I'm asking what you did.
Didn't Joe Ann Bennett continue to work for the
Buthority until she retired?”

“aAfter the $20,0002”

“Yes, and after the criminal charges had been filed.”

“The criminal charges have nothing to do with what
I'm talking about here.”

“They have to do with my question.”

“There were no criminal charges on this.”

City Attorney LaCroix: “Joe Ann Bennett was
charged with criminal charges for misappropriating
Brooksville Housing Authority money, was she not?
Didn't she plead guilty to those charges?

Well yes or no, she was charged or not.”

“No, you're confusing what I'm saying here and you're
Yy ying Yy
mixing it in...”

“I'm trying to get you to answer my question.”

“I'm not going to answer your guestion until I get
mine clear. Period.”

“Did Joe Ann Bennett get charged with theft of
Housing Authority and HUD money?”

“They both did.”

“Okay. Did the Housing Authority continue to employ
her after she was charged?”

“No, she had already retired.”

“She retired before they were charged. Okay. Did
Betty Trent continue to be employed after she was
charged?”

\\NO . ”

\\NO? "

“She was released with pay.”

“By HUD. By HUD she was removed, wasn't she?”

“That's correct.”

“So, Housing Authority was continuing to pay her
until HUD removed her, right?”

“As far as I know, yes.”
“Okay. Did not the Board Members become concerned
about looking at these facts when they found out all

these improper payments had been made and Joe Ann
Bennett and Betty Trent had been charged with crimes
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for stealing those money? Weren't you concerned
about looking into those facts yourselves?”

“I'm not sure that I still understand your question.”
“Did you look into those...”

“We didn't even know, my friend, what the indictment
was until we to court.”

“Did you ask? Did you look for any information?”
“Yes I asked.”

“Did you conduct your own investigation to determine
if there were grounds for firing Betty Trent?”

“When?”
“At any time.”

“I'm sorry, but I'm totally lost with what you're
asking me.”

“After you became aware of the 2002 HUD audit, that
said all that money had been improperly paid, and you
became aware of the criminal charges against Betty
Trent...”

“The criminal charges have absolutely nothing to do

with what I'm trying to explain. I'm trying to
explain...”
“They have to do with my gquestion Sir. Will you

kindly answer my question.”

7

“No, because your charges...”’

“After those charges were made, did you and the other
board members make any investigation of your own to
determine if they were true.”

“Let me read your charges one more time.”

’

“Did you determine if...make any investigation...’

“I'm not going to answer that. I'm not going to
answer that.”

“Okay fine.”

’

“He's not going to answer it. I mean, obvious...”
“Charge number 3, you have supported the continued
employment of employees who were charged with theft
of Authority funds, and the only...”

“And every time you've been in front of this Council
since then, all you've ever said is, 'she's innocent

until she's proven guilty'...”

“That's right.”
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“...and you've kept her on the payroll.”

“We did not keep her on the payroll, HUD...”
“HUD finally took some action.”

“Yes, they certainly did.”

“You didn't.”

“I guess we didn't in a timely enough fashion.”

“oOkay, and you didn't conduct any investigation to
determine if there were grounds to fire her.”

“What investigation could we have possibly
conducted?”

“vYou could look to see if the charges were true.”
“She had already been indicted.”

“Right, and you could investigate to see if any of
those charges were true.”

“We didn't even know what the charges were. We were
not privy to that.”

“Because you didn't investigate.”

“We were not privy to that until we showed up in
court.”

“The evidence was sufficient enough to have her
convicted beyond a reasonable doubt, and yet your
board made no effort to look and see what that
evidence was.”

“Well at this point she's appealing that so I'm not
going to comment on it. Okay?”

“Okay. I'm not asking about the criminal conviction,
I'm asking about did this board take any action...

’

“There is nothing in here...”
“Excuse me Sir.”

“Go right ahead.”

“You keep interrupting the questions.”
“Yes, I do.”

“Did the board take ANY action to investigate ANY of
the charges to determine if there were grounds to
fire her. 1I'm not talking about to convict her of a
crime, but to fire  her. pid you take ANY
investigation...any investigatory action to look into
any of those charges that you heard about and to look
into any of the things that the HUD audit pointed out
and see...'Gee, do we have grounds to fire her?.'
Did you investigate at all, you and the board?”
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“Let me see if I can be a little clearer.”
“It's a YES or NO gquestion.”

“No it's not either. It's more to it than a yes or
no."”

“Did you conduct any investigation? You or the
Board?”
“Did we conduct any investigation of what? Her

criminal charges? Or this loan that...”

“I think it's clear that you just don't want to
answer the gquestion. I'll withdraw.”

“Let's move on.”
“No, I want to answer all the gquestions.”

“Let's move on, go...finish your...cause quite
frankly I want to get through this, so go ahead and
finish up your...”

“As soon as your illustrious attorney clears
everything up I'11...”

“I know, and you're outstanding too. I'm sorry, 1
forgot. Please continue.”

“I might not Dbe outstanding but at least my
investigation didn't come straight out of the paper.”
“Oh yeah, obviously. Exhibit K. Keep going, thank
you.”

“Please read it.”

“No, go ahead. You read it, I don't need to read it.
You put it in your packet.”

“Betty Trent was still receiving unemployment
benefits from December to June.”

“Also a gquick...I want to read something from Mr.
Rhodes that goes into play with the comments that,
obviously, since this has been in the paper that it's
political and that's why Parker Stephens left and
it's dated May 26, 2007 from Alan Rhodes, Vice-
Chairman. And basically it states and goes into the
incident that I alleged to earlier, and it says,
'Earlier this week Mr. Boston caused BHA to lose a
vital contract with an Electrical Engineering Firm.
In an incident at approximately 10:30 a.m., after
much discussion, Paul Boston left his chair and
started in the direction of Carl Pilcher, in an
unfriendly attitude.’ Basically it shows that the
Board's action...basically the Board's action at that
meeting could have caused Parker Stephens to leave.”

“Parker Stephens wasn't even there at that meeting.”

“I thought we just heard that he turned a check in at
that meeting.”
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“I'm sure that's something else that came of the
newspapers.”

“I thought you just... Did he Jjust say that?”
“The record is the record.”

“You just said that he gave the check back at that
meeting.”

“Yeah, he did, but...”
“But he wasn't at the meeting.”

“Whatever you're talking about with Paul
Boston...Paul Boston and I had a couple of run-ins
but Parker Stephens wasn't there.”

“Maybe Mr. Rhodes is mis-representing it.”
“Maybe. Okay, continue.”

“There's a couple other things I think it might be
important to point out to y'all Considering the fact
that you're probably looking at a good $5,000,000 or
better to repair these facilities. One of the other
things that we had done, that I can’'t find my copy
of, I think you have copies of, is we had soil
testing done and we had LRE Ground Service come out
and tell us what it would cost to underpin these
buildings, and it was, by far, cheaper to underpin
them than it was to destroy them.

“Excuse me Mr. Pilcher, can you tell me what that
means? I don't know what underpin means.”

“It stabilizes the foundation. Typically they do it
in sinkhole repairs, things of that nature.”

“pid that have any connection with the plumbing and
electrical or is that just another added problem.”

“It's just another thing that we wanted to check on
and clarify because three or four of the buildings
have already sustained quite a bit of structural
damage. And now we're seeing that a number of other
ones are sinking as well. And according to...I'm
sorry I can't find the other sheet...but according to
the report from Bechtol Engineering & Soil Testing,
the grounds shifting because of the layers of sand
and clay and it shifts more as it dries up. So 1if
you have more drought, needless to say, it's going to
shift more and it's gonna...you're going to have more
buildings...so, you know...a tremendous amount of
work needs to be done over there. And, talk about
funding at the tune of four hundred something
thousand dollars. I don't ever remember seeing a
fund of four hundred something thousand dollars. In
fact, Brooksville Housing Authority is one of the
lowest on the totem pole and I think this is in your
package as well, if we request $400,000 that
generally means you're going to get about $200,000,
if you're lucky maybe $190,000. But we were like the
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8t lowest funded in the state. Miami, a number of
other major cities, $4,000,000, $2,000,000,
$1,000,000. Try running those properties, try

keeping them up to standards on $189,000.

Mayor Pugh: “$189,000 per year?”
Carl Pilcher: “That was just for that year.”
Mayor Pugh: “How much did you receive over, lets say, the last 7

years in capital improvement?”

Carl Pilcher: “I couldn't give you the figures for that, not total
figures.”

Mr. Pilcher distributed pictures of what Hillside Estates looked like when he
went on the board and how it looked after total renovations. He also showed
pictures of units after people move out and indicated that to be where a lot of
money is spent, in cleaning up after people move out.

A 10-minute recess was taken.

Discussion continued of the expensive process of renovating after people move
out.

Carl Pilcher: “I'm not going to read the rest of this. I think we
all know that this is a big political fiasco. I will
apologize to Mayor Pugh for past outbursts, I hope
Mayor Pugh is man enough to apologize to me for some
of his. And I apologize to you as well, David
(LaCroix), and I'll leave it at that.”

Mayor Pugh: “Well I'll apologize, I don't know what for off the
top of my head. It's a 1little 1late but 1I'1ll
apologize.”

Carl Pilcher: “Well my friend, everything that's been in the paper

lately has been...not too cool, so.”

Mayor Pugh: “Oh, okay, you're talking about the charges. Okay.
Thank you.

Just for the record, I don't think I ever had any
personal attacks on Mr. Pilcher, his capabilities, or
anything of that nature.”

Carl Pilcher: “Well you certainly had nothing nice to say.”

City Attorney LaCroix: “I apologize for asking questions too complex for him
to understand.”

Mr. Pilcher called Mark Rials, who was sworn and again reiterated what
he had previously stated, that he and Mr. Pilcher had tried
unsuccessfully to remove Mrs. Trent and her son, stating that a formal
motion to remove them was never made because of feedback during normal
discussions at board meetings. He indicated some board members may
have received favors from Executive Director Trent, which he felt may
have been the reason for them not taking action to remove her from the

Housing Authority. For the record he stated that he served on the
board about 8 years ago and that even then complaints had been made to
HUD and the City Manager about Mrs. Trent. Discussion continued.
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Mr. Pilcher called Jim Lane, of Lane Electrical, who was sworn. He
proceeded to elaborate on the condition of the project according to
inspections he had performed and stated that he was informed by Mr.
McLean that Lane Electric can not be paid for any work done and will not
be allowed to bid on any work. Mr. Lane further indicated that the
contract Lane Electrical has is with the Brooksville Housing Authority
not HUD. Discussion continued of the inspections and work being done, a
well as work performed in the past. Mr. McLean reviewed the work being
done on the firewalls.

Mr. Pilcher called Charlie Luckie, Attorney for the Brooksville Housing
Buthority for the past 6 years. Mayor Pugh asked Mr. Luckie if he was at
the meeting in which Mr. McLean informed the board that the firewall
restoration would occur. Mr. Luckie didn't recall but stated that he
recommended to the board that they close the structure and move the
residents out immediately upon hearing of the extent of the electrical
problems. City Attorney LaCroix asked Mr. Luckie if he had recommended
to the Housing Authority that they continue the work with Lane
Electrical on a no-bid contract and jeopardize their funding with HUD.
Mr. Luckie advised that he had nothing to do with the contract with Lane
Electrical and was not consulted on any legal matters concerning
funding, nor did he advise against having a hearing to notify the
residents of the state of the electrical system.

A 5-minute recess was taken.

Gertrude Mobley Testimony

Gertrude Mobley, who was sworn, stated that she wanted to clear her name
as to check signing, stating that she only signs check because it is her
duty as Chairperson and there has to be two signatures.

City Attorney LaCroix: “Mrs. Mobley were you aware that the 2002 audit was
very critical of the Brooksville Housing Authority
for payments that had been made and checks that had
been written for work that hadn't been done? Paying
people in advance, advancing salaries...are you aware
that those were some of the major concerns of HUD?”

Mrs. Mobley: “No, I wasn't.”

City Attorney LaCroix: “Did you receive any training on HUD policies after
that 2002 audit as HUD demanded be done of Board
Members?”

Mrs. Mobley: “Did I receive any?”

City Attorney LaCroix: “Yes.”

Mrs. Mobley: “No, that was one of the issues that Paul Boston came

into with us over there.”

City Attorney LaCroix: “So even though the HUD audit said Board Members need
to be trained in applying these policies and learning
what their role and their function is, and even
though the Housing Authority responded to that audit
several times, you never got that training?”

Mrs. Mobley: “No Sir.”
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“Who would have been responsible for scheduling you
to get that training?”

“Well it would have to come from our City Council.”

“No, we don't train you on HUD rules and regulation.”

“No no no, I'm not saying you train us. But you make
sure we get the training. Cause you are higher than
we are.”

“No Ma'am, you're on the board that directs your
Executive Director to do what you tell him to do.
Did you ever tell your Executive Director, I need
this training, HUD demands that we have this
training, give it to me.”

“No, I couldn't do that at that time. I wasn't
Chairman.”

“You were a Board Member weren't you?”

“I was a Board Member but you can only do something
as a member and you have to have a quorum.”

“So while you were on the Board, the Board never
scheduled, or never asked Executive Director to
schedule the training that HUD said you needed on the
policies about making proper payments of HUD monies.
Is that correct?”

“I'm not going to state that that didn't happen, I'm
going to say I wasn't there at the time it may have
happened.”

“But you never got that training?”

“No I never did.”

“And you signed some checks just recently for work
that had not yet been done, right?”

“That's because I went to the bank to get my name put
on there because those people could not be paid if

that person wasn't in town.”

“Okay, those were checks for work that hadn't been
done yet weren't they?”

“Because she was leaving town sir.”

“Okay, and didn't those checks include payment for
overtime that hadn't even been worked or scheduled.”

“I don't know cause I don't go into the office to go
through the files cause that's not my job.”

“Okay, when you're asked to sign check do you ask
what they're for?”

“I'11 ask what they're for or who 1is it for or

something like that but I can't in that books in that
office.”
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“These were payroll checks that were dated ahead,

were they not?”
“Yes it was payroll.”

“Okay, did you ask is for work that's been performed
already?”

“No I didn't have to ask, they told me.”

“Okay, did you ask if there was any overtime work in
those checks.”

“No I didn't cause she said, 'This is for payroll.'’
You don't do payroll and then get overtime for it.
You just get payroll.”

“Mrs. Mobley, knowing that Mrs. Trent and Ms. Bennett
had been indicted, and then later convicted on fraud
and financial mishandlings, when you were asked to
sign a check, would it have risen to the occasion of
greater scrutiny, given the fact that there were
financial mishandlings that were being prosecuted.”

“Come back with it again cause I think I
misunderstood you.”

“If....we know that Mrs. Trent, Ms. Bennett, were
mishandling money. We know that Billye was then

we know that there were audits
that pointed out the financial mishandlings. With
all this going on, with all the scrutiny in the
newspaper and the public arena, did you think twice
about signing the checks? Did you think twice about
questioning what the money was for?”

handling the money,

“I didn't have to. She explained to me that she was
going on vacation and these were payroll checks and I
was signing them.”

“So you just thought you were signing payroll checks
and nothing else.”

“Yes.”

“Mrs. Mobley, do you have any witnesses you want to
present?”

“Mr. Lewis has a guestion also.”

“Do you have any direct control over any of the
Authority employees that work for...the employees for
the Brooksville Housing Authority? Do you have any
authority over them as far as directing what work
they do on a daily basis?”

“No I don't cause the Board 1s a group, not a
person.”

“Okay. So you would...one of the charges said that
you have sanctioned or allowed electrical work to be
done not 1in accordance with the City's adopted
electrical code by Authority employees and other
persons not licensed as electricians or electrical
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contractors. Have you ever personally done this?
Authorized anybody to do any electrical work?”
“I think you're reading from Mr. Pilcher's letter.”

“No I'm reading from Mrs.
page two at the top.”

Mobley's on charge two on

“Oh I'm sorry, my mistake.”

“So, have you ever allowed anybody that's an
Buthority employee, or any other persons not licensed
electricians or electrical contractor, you
personally, to do any work at Summit Villas, at

Hillside Villas, have you authorized them or allowed
then to do any work?”

“Anybody thats got my authorization to do anything
has already been put on staff by the board, not me
personally.”

“Okay, that's all I have Mayor.”

“Any other questions?”

“Do you have any other witnesses you'd like to call
or any other information?”

“No, I think Mr.
presenting our case tonight,
person, we're a group.

Pilcher did a pretty good job of
and we're not Jjust a

But I do have a question for the Council Members. I
would like to know, how many of you have ever lived
in a low-income housing, and how many of you have
visited them?”

“I've never lived there, but I've visited often.”

“I've visited but I've never lived there.”

“I've never lived there. But I have lived in
conditions where it was a choice of eating or
electricity. As a single mother {(my mother), trying
to raise me, so, that could be considered just as
much as...”

“Mr. Bernardini, would you like to answer that?”

“I've never lived there, but I work in there all the
time. Constantly in there, and I'm not a maintenance
man, but I could see that things weren't going right,
and I've known that for years.”

“Do you have a Capital Outlay Plan?”

“Do we have a what?”

“Capital Outlay Plan.”

“Well, when we have our meetings, we always consider

for the next meeting what we're going to be talking
about.”
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“Okay. Do they...I know with the City, and this is

just off experience with the City, when we
have...lets say...the generators come before us,
they'll actually come before the Council for approval
due to the purchase and the price. Do you have any

mechanism of that nature, to come before the board
and give approval before moving on, at that time
realizing whether or not it's a licensed contractor?”

“We was working with our Office Manager and Director
on our plans and we always have it come up to the
next meeting, and most of the time they were at out
meetings. So, we always had a choice of one or two
peoples advice-wise, as to how would go buy it.”

“Mrs. Mobley, I know that you were a former resident
of the Housing Authority, were you not?”

"Yes."

“And...you know, I know it's...in just conversations
from you in the past that it's been your desire to
just step up and give back to the community and to
help out those that reside there now. I have
absolutely no doubt about that, at all. But, as
you've testified today, it's become, you know, even
more clear to me that perhaps you relied on staff to
provide you with certain information and did not take
the authoritative role that perhaps we're looking
for.”

“Yes. I'd also like to state that, you know, from my
experience, our Housing Authority in Hernando County
has come a long way. I can greatly say that because
my parents lived in the Housing, because of a burnt
down home. And my step father was standing out on
the highway and sald 'Ooh, somebody's house is on
fire.' Not knowing it was his own, and that's when he
had to get put up in the Housing. The same Housing
Authority I'm talking about now, Brooksville Housing.
And it has come a long way and that's been over 30
years ago. So, I can only say, we've made an
improvement. And Summit Villas over there, our
Housing Authority purchased that to put our low-
income elderly into, because of the children in our
Brooksville site was so great in number that they
were getting on our older peoples nerves. So we put
them over there to house them. That's how we come
into the Summit Villas.”

“So Summit is age restricted?”
“It's a disability type age.”

“Okay. Any other questions or comments? Do you have
any witnesses Mrs. Mobley?”

“Nope, I don't think I need anymore, other than
our...Mr. Cartwright right here, about our crime.
I'd like for him to get up and tell about how far the
crime has come and gone.”
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City Attorney LaCroix: “Mrs. Mobley, that really doesn't have anything to do
with the charges here.”

Mrs. Mobley: “No, no, no, no, I'm talking about the improvement in
the area.”
City Attorney LaCroix: “Right. That doesn't have anything to do with the

charges here either.”

Mrs. Mobley: “No it's not a charge, I just want him to state.”
City Attorney LaCroix: “Yes, but this is a hearing on these charges.”
Mrs. Mobley: “He could tell you about both sides because I've been

on both ways as far as crime and of the housing
itself. That is part of it moving up, crime-wise.”

Mayor Pugh: “Any further questions?”
There was none.

Donnamarie Lopez Testimony

Donnamarie Lopez was sworn and her charge read.

City Attorney LaCroix: “Ms. Lopez, the only charge made against you was that
you, long with other Housing Authority Members, voted
to authorize additional expensive repairs after the
HUD Engineer, your own retained engineer, your
Interim Executive Director and the Brooksville
Building Official told you that they were not
emergency repairs and by doing so you jeopardized

your HUD funding. That's the only charge against
you. "
Donnamarie Lopez: “Thats correct. I understand that. Noted as my

letter, from the Mayor, Mayor Pugh, it states on
here, on April 24 that I had authorized extensive
repairs. Looking at my minutes on April 24%, no
where does it state my name at all in the minutes.”

Mayor Pugh; “I believe it was that you were present...”
Donnamarie Lopez: “That I was just present.”
Mayor Pugh: “,..wait a minute, and the motion passed unanimously.

Which means you did not vote against it.”

Donnamarie Lopez: “I didn't say anything.”

Mayor Pugh: “It doesn't matter if said anything.”

Donnamarie Lopez: “I understand that Sir.”

Mayor Pugh: “It's you voted.”

Donnamarie Lopez: “I understand that Sir.”

City Attorney LaCroix: “On a motion, silence is taken as an affirmative
vote.”

Donnamarie Lopez: “I understand that, I learned that the hard way.”

City Attorney LaCroix: “Okay.”
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“Just to let you know, that when I applied to be on
the Brooksville Housing Authority's Board of
Commissioners, in October of 2005, it was not to make
a name for myself or to gain publicity in the media.
It was because of me being a responsible, hard-
working, work-ethic impeccable, my experience and
education in property management, but most of all
going way beyond the call of duty where my residents
are concerned and putting them first before myself or
my family.

When I received a letter that I was scheduled for a
hearing to be removed as a Brooksville Housing
Authority Board of Commissioner I was very appalled
as well as degraded and humiliated. I could Jjust not
believe the alleged charge against me. I would never
let a resident or resident live anywhere that would
be considered life-threatening.

I took it upon myself to clean up the apartment
community where I manage here in the City limits for
the residents so they had a peaceful, safe and clean
place to live because they deserved it and it was
owed to them. I wanted them to feel safe, no matter
what time of the day it was, as well as provide them
a non-life-threatening apartment to live in.

One in a while you need to take your horse blinders
off and look around your surroundings and actually
see what's going on in the world. Go down to where
we live and see how the other side lives, not just up
here towards City Hall. Take a look, really take a
look. Clear your mind and take a look and see how
they 1live. That's what you all need to do. Really
see it, through a stethoscope if you have to and see
how these people live. Not for what we do, people do
what they do because they don't earn respect, because
they don't give respect. When you have people in
authority, who don't treat people with respect, they
feel they don't have to treat where they live with

respect. You understand what I'm saying? You have
to earn respect to give respect, and by you accusing
me, or allegedly accusing me of my charges, 1is

uncalled for. I did not authorize this...”
“Did you vote?”

“because I myself Sir have background HUD
experience.”

“Okay, did you vote, did you say nay?”
“Yes I did.”

“You said nay?”

“Yes I did Sir.”

“So the minutes are incorrect.”

“That's correct. My minutes have always been
incorrect. Always have been incorrect. I myself had

told them over and over again, 'You need to go by HUD
regulations.'”
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“Well I guess the charge...the charge is the200...or
the April 24, 2007, meeting and, whether or not you
voted for it, and you're saying that...”

“I did not vote for it Sir.”

“But earlier you just said that you didn't say
anything.”

“During my minutes, during my meeting I asked...”

“Did you just...wait a minute, let me ask you. Did
you just say that you did not say anything?”

“Yes, but I also voted down though, we cannot pull
forward when we don't have the funding, we have to go
by HUD regulations. I have many certificates. Not
because of...”

“I understand that, but unfortunately you're being
judged on this actions.”

“Correct, which is very uncalled for.”

“Well, and this is just one thing I had thought also.
I want to ask Mr. Lane a question in regards to this
April 24 meeting. If you'd like to come forward

real quick please.”

“Do you currently have a lien on this property, and
if so, how much?”

“Yes sir, we had a lien, I believe it's $224
thousand. ..some hundred dollars.”

“Okay. Thank you.”

“Let me add that they've filed a lien, but you can
not get a lien on pubic property.”

“Well, it's not owned by the public, it's actually
owned by...now this is a discussion I had with HUD
and they don't think it would stick but, you know
what, you never know with attorneys, so.”

“Our attorney does.”

“So, I know...that's probably why you hired them.”
“Yes Sir.”

“But that's all I wanted to check, that there is a
lien on the property due to work being done and not

being paid for it.”

“Ms. Lopez, do your minutes, after they're prepared,
come back to the Board for approval?”

“Some times they do Sir, sometimes they don't.”

“Did you ever ask that the minutes of the April 24°th
meeting be corrected in any way?”
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“Yes we do.”

“Did YOU ever ask that the minutes be corrected?”
“Yes Sir, yes Sir.”

“What did you ask be corrected on them.”

“The way it was stated, the way I state my stuff.”

“What specifically did you ask be corrected on the
April 24* minutes?”

“That I was against what they were doing.”
“Oh so...when did you do that?”
“I've always done it at my meetings.”

“When did you ask that
corrected?”

specific minutes be

“This one here?”
“Yes, the April 24 minutes.”

“We did not get our minutes after this meeting Sir.
We never got minutes after this particular meeting.”

“Okay. Did you ask for them?”

“ves, and they were never written up.”
“Well it was signed by...”

“Somebody wrote them up.”

“,..Mrs. Mobley...Billye Fetrow.”
“I've got copies of them right here.”
“Of which meeting Sir.”

“The April 24, 2007.”

“I'm talking about after this meeting, Sir. You
asked me a guestion. Am I correct?”

“I asked you did you ever ask that these minutes be
corrected?”

“Yes, and we never got a revised set.”

“Okay, who did you ask.”

“T told that to our appointed Project Manager.”
“Was that during a Board Meeting?”

“Yes Sir it was.”

“Okay, did the Board move to correct the minutes?”
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“She made a notation on her notebook.”

“Did the Board move to correct the minutes?”
“Yes.”

“and who made that notation?”

“I don't have my book in front of me, and I keep very
good notes. Ask where our tapes are at.”

“May I ask Mr. Singer who was at that meeting?”
\\'Y'eS . r”

“Mr. Singer do you mind coming forward? You were at
that April 24®" meeting were you not?”

“I believe so, yes.”

“Are the minutes incorrect when it says the Board
approved that motion to direct Mr. Lane to continue
with the work unanimously?”

“Yes that's correct.”

“That was correct? Did you hear Ms. Lopez say no?”
“No I did not.”

“Okay, thank you.”

“Mr. Singer, please. How many times have I told the
Board that what they were doing was incorrect?”

“But that doesn't have anything to do with the
charges.”

“Yes it does Sir.”

“No, the charges is that you voted, on April 24,
2007...

“Sir, not to be rude, it does.”

“Maybe I wrong...Mr. LaCroix, does it have anything
to do with the charges.”

“T don't know, wait until we see what the answer is.”
“Tt does, it does.”

“Mr. Singer, during this whole deal, when we were
instructed, am I correct? Not to proceed further,
because we had to do certain steps required by HUD,

what did I tell the Board numbers of times?”

“You had said a number of times that the Board should
be following HUD policies.”

“Was it ever stated on any of our meetings?”

“Not that I've seen in the minutes.”
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“Mr. Singer, what she award that HUD, prior to this
vote, that HUD was not 1in favor of what was
happening, or that there was a procedure that needed
to take place, prior to moving on with the electrical
work?”

“Yes, there was a meeting prior to this...I want to
say it was around April 12 or 13*, somewhere in that
neighborhood. I began about 1:30 in the afternoon

that I did go over all the guidelines on what HUD
requirements were to go forward with this project,
that the work was to end at that...that I had sent a
letter to Mr. Lane to stop his work, that the Board
would need to go out, I believe at that time there
was an emergency meeting called by the municipal
(inaudible) . A tape recorder was there, whether it
was working or whether they lost the tape or what,
somebody said it's been lost, they can't find the
minutes of it. But at that meeting I did lay it out
to the Board Members who were present at that time
what the HUD requirements were and the steps to be
taken.”

“And that was prior to the April 24 meeting.”

“Yes, this was meeting possibly the 12 or 13" that
began at about 1:30. It a meeting that, by happen
chance, I walked in on. I was not informed about the
meeting prior to it.”

“Okay, thank you. Any further comments or witnesses
you'd like to call?”

“No. It's just that, you know, it's Jjust really bad
what you guys are doing to me, as a whole, not just
one, but as a whole. I don't think you really took
into consideration my position I have right now, as a
Property Manager. The publicity and the media and
the negativity that it's causing, not Jjust to me but
to my residents where I manage and live on site at.”

“I think it's important to note that we didn't ask
you to vote this way also.”

“No S$ir you didn't, but like I stated, I always put
my residents first, regardless of the situation.”

“Ms. Lopez, I just want to clarify what you said
earlier, that you learned the hard way. That your
silence was taken as a affirmative vote...”

“Correct.”

“...to approve the contract, and you learned the hard
way.”

“But there was no contract that I was aware of Ma'am
either.”

“That the contract was presented and approved and
that the work was being done.”
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“What contract? That's what I'm trying to explain to
you, there was no contract ever brought to the Board.
The one that Mr...”

“Actually the contract was not signed by any of the
Board Members until in May, but the issue is, Mr.
Lane had proposed all this work be done, said it was
life-threatening in his opinion. In spite of all the
other opinions the Board got, the motion was made to

authorize Mr. Lane to go ahead with the work,
jeopardizing the HUD funding.”

“Yes.”

“and the vote was unanimous, according to the
minutes.”

“and that's Jjust what I want to <clarify, your

statement on the record, that your silence was taken
as an affirmative on that, that you did learn the
hard way. We understand that you understand Hood's
rules now and that you understand...”

“No Ma'am, I've always understood Hood's rules.”
“Do we have the minutes?”

“I've been a HUD Manager before, I've been a Rural

Development Manager before.”

“Do we have the minutes
contract was approved?”

of the meeting where the

“I don't even know that it was.”
“There has never been one Sir.”
“Well my question to you then is...
“Just one moment please, if you don't mind. This is
the April 24 meeting minutes, okay. We did not know
about the contract. This contract was dated a day

later.”

“The work was discussed, it was affirmed.”
“This is a contract with Mr. Lane, a day later. A

day later.”

“Okay, cause it...it says right here, it says, 'Mr.
Lane requests this directive be put in writing and
signed by the Chair and Vise-Chair. The ‘'Board
approved unanimously.' Is that signed? Is that

contract signed?”

“Actually, what Ms. Lopez is saying, is the Board had
previously authorized Mr. Lane to do work at the
project, without any contract. On April 24 they're
authorizing him to go ahead and do additional work,
without any contract.”

“But they did state, 'Put it in writing.’' Which I
think is that document that she...”
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“Yeah, it's the letter attached to the minutes.”
\\Okay- r

“The letter to Mr. Lane says go ahead and do the rest
of the work. That's what the motion was, to go ahead
and tell him to finish the work.”

“The 4/25 letter.”

\\'Yes R 1

\\Okay. "

“But no contract was the Board

Members until May 25%,

signed by any of
I think.”

“What contract are you referring to that I signed?”
“We didn't say you signed.”

“I didn't say you, I said any of the Board Members.
It was signed by somebody on behalf of the Board on
May 25,7

“The contract in your hand, when was it signed.”

“Based on the action of the 24% ”

“This is the day after the April 24 meeting.”

“Where...let me see. Can I see your document real
quick please?”

“The date...initial terms...general provisions.”

“It even says 1in there how we had the funding
available to pay the poor man...and how 1is that
possible?”

“I don't know, I can't recognize the...oh, its Alan
Rhodes and Gertrude Mobley.”

“Whats the date on it signed by?
“May 29, 2007.”

“May 29, 2007, it was signed by the Board Members.”

“It was drawn up on April 25 Sir.”

“Well it has a date written in the first part of it
but it wasn't signed by the Board Members until May
29

“Correct”

“Who drew the contract up?”

This is the first time I ever
And I'm

“I have no idea Sir.
even seen it nor hearing about the contract.
a Board Member.”
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Mr. Lane:

“Mr...I'd like to call Mr. McLean, just for a quick
question.”

“Mr. McLean, did the Board have any knowledge of the
contract that's being presented tonight?”

“This contract was presented to every Board Member,
along with paperwork with Lane Electric. Also, Lane
Electric, on several occasions, came to board
meetings and gave this very same contract in a packet
to each and every Board Member.”

“Thank you. Mr. Lane?”

“Excuse me for one second please.”

“Wait a minute, you'll have your chance, Jjust one
second. Mr. Lane, have you presented that document
to the Board Members personally, during any board

meetings?”

“Yes Sir, it was along with a packet with pictures,

first board meeting...second board meeting, excuse
me, with 300 something pictures, I'm the only one
that believes there was anything wrong. And this

contract was put in a packet and to help Donnamarie
here try to clarify this if I may, a little of it.
She 1is correct when she said she voted no. This
meeting that took place, she requested a meeting, the
minutes of this meeting, that followed, with the
corrections. I was there. We were talking about the
second phase of building 520. We had completed the
first phase, that's why I'm always Jjoking about Mr,
Singer saying we spent...they spent $100,000, I
haven't gotten it. I don't know how you spent it.
But we were on to complete the second phase of this
building, we had gotten six, seven, eight units
completed. The building official wanted all these
buildings brought up to code, so we came in, when Mr.
Boston made the motion Sir, we gave them a cost price
to do this...finish this building plus building 530,
working 530. The first time it was brought up
Donnamarie voted no, the second phase of this was
again, she repeated, you've got to do HUD procedures.
Right or wrong?”

“Yes Sir.”
“I'm not going to lie, she said that. Mr. Singer was
not aware of the meeting and he was the Secretary, so

I don't even know it it's a meeting.”

“Well he's aware of this meeting that he said she
voted yes, to continue.”

“He came...he came to it S8ir, vyes, he was not
called.”

“He testified it was a special meeting he wasn't
notified of.”

“Yes Sir, and he's the Secretary, so was it a
legitimate meeting?”
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City Attorney LaCroix:

Mr. Lane:

City Attorney LaCroix:

Donnamarie Lopez:

Mayor Pugh:

Donnamarie Lopez:

Mayor Pugh:

Donnamarie Lopez:

Mayor Pugh:
Donnamarie Lopez:

Mayor Pugh:

Donnamarie Lopez:

Mayor Pugh:

Donnamarie Lopez:

Mayor Pugh:

Donnamarie Lopez:

Council Member Bernardini:

“Yea, it was called by the Board Meeting as a Special
Meeting without notifying him.”

“Well don't you have to have the Executive Director
and Secretary? I'm just asking a gquestion.”

“We're not going to argue. We're not going to get
off into every little thing. Come on.”

“Let me say, for the record please, and...I'd like
for Mr. Singer please to verify this with me. There
have been numerous of times where...”

“You have to ask him a question.”

“No no, I'd like to verify this, so I'd 1like to

verify this with Mr. Singer. There have been
numerous of times in the past that we depend, which
is actually...we don't depend, it is the

responsibility of the Project Manager, Assistant
Manager or the Executive Director to contact the
Board Members when we have meetings. Okay. Mr.
Singer...I had asked to have him in place of us
because of his experience with us, to help us with
our predicament that we were in at the time, with
HUD. HUD stopped all our funding because of the
arrest that had occurred. Were you aware of that?
Which I probably doubt it.”

“I...yea but...here's the problem.”

“Okay, what I'm trying to say to you that, I had to
call him personally, as a courteous, not as a Board
Member, but because I work with him one-on-one myself
with Section 8 participants and clients on my
property. And I would let him know that there was
going to be a meeting held, today, at this time, and
he was unaware of them.”

“Well I can understand that, I don't disagree that,
that there's communication problems.”

“It's not appropriate, I understand that sir.”

“The charge 1s whether or not you voted to have
Mr...”

“I didn't, I've been totally against it.”

“Okay. Alright, that's all the questions I have.
Anybody else have any questions?”

“Because I have...I know how we have to go by HUD
regulations.”

\\Okay‘ ”

“Oh yea, we have live by HUD all the time, we have to
go by HUD all the time. Yes Sir we do, that's who
gives us our money.”

”Did she state that at the following meeting....or

Mr. Lane stated that at the following meeting she
asked for those minutes to be corrected?”
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Mr. Lane:

Council Member Bernardini:

Mayor Pugh:

Council Member Bernardini:

City Attorney LaCroix:
Mayor Pugh:

Council Member Bernardini:
Council Member Lewis;
Mayor Pugh:

Council Member Lewis:

Mr. Lane:

Mayor Pugh:

Mr. Lane:

Mayor Pugh:
Mr. Lane:

Council Member Lewis:

“Did you say that at the following meeting?”

“Yes.”

“So this should be in the minutes of the following
meeting that she asked that those meetings...that
those minutes be corrected that state that you voted

in opposition.”

“Yea, but we have a witness, who was there, that says

'Yes, she voted for it', so, that's 1like going
back...”
“Well if you realize you've voted...I mean...if she

can go back.”

“You can't change your vote.”
“You can't change your vote.”
“Well.”

“Clarification Mayor.”

“Yes.”

“This April 24*...we heard Mr. Lane state...the vote
that was taken on April 24*, was this for Phase 1,
was this for the first eight wunits that was done
emergency work. From the testimony I heard, it was
for the continuation of the rest of building of 520,
West Summit...or Dr. Martin Luther King, and the
completion of 530 also, the other building. Am I
correct?”

“You're 100% correct Sir, that's what the meeting was
called for, and again, it was a last minute...we had
been fired so many time from this job it's hard to
remember, it was five, six times. But we were called
in and I think we were dismissed again, I'd have to
ask Mr. Singer. Here he is. I don't know for sure.
And that's why the emergency meeting was called, and
again, like I say, I don't...I didn't...wasn't aware
of whether Mr. Singer was called or not, as the
Executive Director and Secretary. So we were in a
meeting and Mr. Boston was trying to work out, with
us, to complete the project and do financial
planning. We tried for weeks and weeks and weeks to
have a meeting to do the financial planning.”

“So it had nothing to do with the emergency
situation.”

“No Sir, absolutely not, we already were in to that
project for over $100,000.”

“Okay. So this was additional work.”
“This was additional.”

“The package you presented was for the additional
Phase II, the rest of 520 building and 530.”
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Mr. Lane:

Mayor Pugh:

City Attorney LaCroix:

Mayor Pugh:

City Attorney LaCroix:

Donnamarie Lopez:

City Attorney LaCroix:

Donnamarie Lopez:

City Attorney LaCroix:

Donnamarie Lopez:

City Attorney LaCroix:

Donnamarie Lopez:

City Attorney LaCroix:

Donnamarie Lopez:

City Attorney LaCroix:

Council Member Lewis:

City Attorney LaCroix:

Donnamarie Lopez:

City Attorney LaCroix:

Donnamarie Lopez:

City Attorney LaCroix:

Donnamarie Lopez:

City Attorney LaCroix:

Donnamarie Lopez:

City Attorney LaCroix:

Donnamarie Lopez:

City Attorney LaCroix:

Mayor Pugh:

Donnamarie Lopez:

COUNCIL MEETING - AUGUST 6, 2007

7"

“Yes, 100% correct Sir. Yes.
“Thank you.”

“Mr. Mayor.”

“Yes Sir.”

"

“Ms. Lopez.

“Yes Sir.

“What was the date of the meeting when you asked that
these minutes be corrected?”

“The following meeting.”
“*When was that?”

“I couldn't tell you Sir.
meetings.”

We had so many emergency

“Within a week?”

“We've had s0 many
that...it's unbelievable.”

emergency meeting after

“Who was your Executive Director then?”

“I think it was...no, it wasn't Mr. Singer. We
didn't have one actually.”

“Okay. Who was doing the minutes?”

“Project Manager was.”

“Okay. Did you ask the Project Manager to come here
and testify?”

“No Sir, I did not.”

“Okay.”

“Under the circumstances of everything else that was
happening at the Housing Authority.”

“Did you get a copy of the minutes of that next
meeting to bring here tonight?”

“I have all my files at my office Sir.”

“Did you bring a copy of the minutes in tonight?”
“I did not bring it with me.”

“QOkay, thank you.”

“If that's going to crucify me then so be it.”
“This is your hearing.”

“Any further witnesses you'd like to call?”

“No. It's just that I really hope that you really
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Mayor Pugh:

Donnamarie Lopez:

Mayor Pugh:
Donnamarie Lopez:
Mayor Pugh:

Donnamarie Lopez:

Mayor Pugh:

City Attorney LaCroix:

Carl Pilcher:

Mayor Pugh:

Mrs. Mobley:

thought, and considered, what I do for a living right
now and where I'm at. Each and every one of you, and
how much it impacts my personal life.”

“Trust me, you weren't here at the meeting, and I've
said it before, that I though long and hard and it
was a painstaking event to come to this. So it
wasn't something I've lightly took.”

“I don't think you thought really hard enough Sir, to
be honest with you.”

“Well...”
“I would just like to say in closing.”

“I didn't have a lien a piece of property either.”

“I understand that. I would just like to say in
closing to please carefully think this through before
any final decision is made. I feel that making...it
would be a mistake to remove me at this point. I

know that I would make a positive impact on the
residents that 1live at Hillside Estates and Summit
Villas and they were given the respect that they
deserve.”

“Thank you.”

“I think at this point, if either of the other two
Commissioners want to make any argument, this would
be the time.”

“Mr. Pilcher or Mrs. Mobley, do you have any other
arguments you want to make? Like a closing argument
or anything?”

“I'd just like to say that I took this responsibility
on to try to help the community. That entire side of
town has been disenfranchised for...ever since it's
existence. I don't know how many years that might
be. I did it in good faith, tried to do the best job
I could possibly do. That's it. The decision's up
to y'all”

“Thank you.”

“Mrs. Mobley?”

“Gertrude Mobley. I took on the job, I'll say, of
being a member of the board. Because believe me,

it's a job, and if you haven't ever done it, I'm
going to ask any and every one of you in here to

please come down and help. You don't have to be a
Board Member, you can Jjust come down and help with
what's going on in our side of town. There's also

other issues other than Jjust housing that we need
help with and I would like to ask any and every one
of you if you would come down and sit in on our
meetings, would you?

What I'm there for 1is to help my community. I
volunteer all of my time, no body forced me to come
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up and sign up to get on that Board. Nobody forced
me to come up and fill out the papers, first of all,
not Jjust to be on the board, but to be in the
community. I had to come about some other way. And,
you can take me off the board, but, I'm still going
to help and do my thing, so, that's all I have to

"

say.

Mayor Pugh: “Thank you.”

City Attorney LaCroix: “Mr. Mayor, it's really your decision, after
this hearing now, whether to remove any or all
of these Commissioners from the Housing

Authority. And then if you decide to remove any
or all of them it will be up to the Council to
either confirm that action or not. Since I've
been sort of acting as a prosecutor here, do you
want me to go through and make a little closing
argument about the evidence or do you want to

just...”
Mayor Pugh: “I don't think we need to.”
City Attorney LaCroix: “Okay.”

City Attorney LaCroix stated to Mayor Pugh that it is his decision to
remove any or all of the members and it is up to Council to concur or
not. He urged Mayor Pugh to keep in mind that the grounds for removal
are inefficiency or neglect of duty.

Mayor Pugh stated that Mr. Boston requested continuance of the hearing
to August 20" to hear his testimony, which was discussed. Mayor Pugh
recommended continuation.

Motion:
Motion was made by Council Member Bernardini and seconded by Council
Member Lewis to continue Mr. Boston's hearing to 7:00 p.m. on August
20*, Motion passed 4-0, with Vice Mayor Burnett abstaining.

In regards to Carl Pilcher, based on the evidence presented, Mayor Pugh
recommended his removal from the Brooksville Housing Authority Board.

Motion:
Motion was made by Council Member Bernardini and seconded by Council
Member Bradburn for confirmation of Mayor Pugh's recommendation for the
removal of Carl Pilcher from the Brooksville Housing Authority Board.
Motion carried 3-1 with Council Member Lewis voting in opposition and
Vice Mayor Burnett abstaining.

In regards to Gertrude Mobley, based on the evidence presented, Mayor
Pugh recommended her removal from the Brooksville Housing Authority
Board.

Motion:
Motion was made by Council Member Bradburn and seconded by Council
Member Bernardini for confirmation of Mayor Pugh's recommendation for
the removal of Gertrude Mobley from the Brooksville Housing Authority
Board. Motion carried 3-1 with Council Member Lewis voting in
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opposition and Vice Mayor Burnett abstaining.

In regards to Donnamarie Lopez, based on the evidence presented, Mayor
Pugh recommended her removal from the Brooksville Housing Authority
Board.

Motion:
Motion was made by Council Member Lewis to deny Mayor Pugh's
recommendation for the removal of Donnamarie Lopez from the Brooksville
Housing Authority Board. Motion died for lack of a second.

Council Member Bradburn stated that she would like to see the minutes of
the April 24*" meeting. City Attorney LaCroix reaffirmed that Ms. Lopez
stated that she was silent, which constitutes an affirmative vote, which
can not be changed.

Motion:
Motion was made by Council Member Bradburn and seconded by Council
Member Bernardini for confirmation of Mayor Pugh's recommendation of the
removal of Donnamarie Lopez from the Brooksville Housing Authority
Board. Motion <carried 3-1, with Council Member Lewis voting in
opposition and Vice Mayor Burnett abstaining.

Possible temporary appointment(s) to the Brooksville Housing Authority Board

Mayor Pugh recommended background checks be done on each applicant
seeking a position on the Brooksville Housing Authority Board and

declined to appoint any new members at this time. He will be doing
further investigation on the applicants to come up with qualified
members.

Hearing for Paul Boston

The hearing for Paul Boston was discussed.

Motion:
Motion was made by Council Member Lewis and seconded by Council Member
Bradburn to reconsider the action continuing the hearing for Paul Boston

to 7:00 p.m. on August 20, 2007. Motion carried 3-1, with Council
Member Bernardini voting in opposition and Vice Mayor Burnett
abstaining.

Motion:

Motion was made by Council Member Bernardini and seconded by Council
Member Bradburn to amend his previous motion to continue Mr. Boston's
hearing from 7:00 p.m. to 6:00 p.m. on August 20™. Motion passed 4-0,
with Vice Mayor Burnett abstaining.

Vice Mayor Burnett asked for clarification as to how the appointments
would be made. City Attorney LaCroix clarified that the Mayor will make

the appointments, which will be confirmed or rejected by Council. Vice
Mayor Burnett reiterated that two appointees should be tenants if at all
possible.
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ADJOURNMENT

There being no further business before the jpoard, the meeting adjourned

at 12:40 p.m.
P
(b hzﬁf%

City Clerk

Attest:

Mayor

ANOTE: Attachments on file in the Clerks Office.

08-06-~07 Regular Meeting.docG:\WP_WORK\ClerkOffice\MINUTES\2007\08-06-07 Regular Meeting.doc
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Brooksville Police
Department

AGENDA ITEM NO.

Memo

To: Honorable Mayor and Brooksville City Council /
7 a
Via: Jennene Noman-Vacha, City Manag w"’ S W
From: Police Chief George Turmer — :’ ‘ e~ __
Date: October 26, 2007
Re: Brooksville Elementary School D.A.R.E. Program

General Information: On June 4, 2007, the City Council approved for staff
to apply for a Edward Byrne Memorial Justice Assistance (JAG), Drug Abuse
Resistance Education (D.A.R.E) llI through the Florida Department of Law
Enforcement (FDLE). Staff proceeded with application.

We have been notified by FDLE of award in the amount of $4,000. The
notice of award is attached. The grant will be utilized for an education and
prevention project at the Brooksville Elementary School, paying for the
training of an existing police officer in D.AR.E. and supplies for the
instructional program.

Budget impact: The grant was projected within the 2007/08 fiscal year
budget as previously adopted by City Council. The monies are projected
within Fund 118, Justice Assistance Grant (JAG). This grant does nof
require local match monies.

Recommendation: Staff recommends that the City Council accept the
award for the D.A.R.E. grant, authorizing the signature of the Mayor on the
Certification of Acceptance and appropriate grant documents.



FEOLE

Florida Department of Office of Criminal Justice Grants Charlie Crist, Governor
Law Enforcement Post Office Box 1489 Bill McCollum, Attorney General
Tallahassee, Florida 32302-1489 Alex Sink, Chief Financial Officer
Gerald M. Bailey (850) 617-1250 Charles H. Bronson, Commissioner of Agriculture
Commissioner www fdle. state.fl.us
OCT 10 2007

The Honorable David Pugh
Mayor

City of Brooksville

201 North Howell Avenue
Brooksville, FL 34601

Re: Contract No. 2008-JAGC-HERN-1-Q9-233
Dear Mayor Pugh:

The Florida Department of Law Enforcement is pleased to award an Edward Byrne
Memorial Justice Assistance Grant to your unit of government in the amount of

$ 4,000.00 for the project entitled, DRUG ABUSE RESISTANCE EDUCATION
D.A.R.E.lll. These funds shall be utilized for the purpose of reducing crime and
improving public safety.

A copy of the approved subgrant application with the referenced contract number is
enclosed for your file. All correspondence with the Department should always refer to
the project number and title.

Your attention is directed to the Standard Conditions of the subgrant. Changes were
made to these conditions after your application was received in this office. Therefore,
these Standard Conditions should be reviewed carefully by those persons responsible
for project administration to avoid delays in project completion and costs
reimbursements.

The enclosed Certification of Acceptance should be completed and returned to the

Department within 30 calendar days from the date of award. This certificate constitutes
official acceptance of the award and must be received by the Department prior to the

reimbursement of any project expenditures.
T
e CL

\j/\) L)
Committed to %
Service * Integrity * Respect » Quality 6’%)



The Honorable David Pugh
Page Two

We look forward to working with you on this project. If we can be of further assistance,
please contact Janice Parish at 850/617-1250.

Sincerely,

Cngto . Vﬁd‘er

Administrator
CHW/JP/th

Enclosures



State of Florida
Office of Criminal Justice Grants
Florida Department of Law Enforcement
2331 Phillips Road
Tallahassee, Florida 32308

CERTIFICATE OF ACCEPTANCE OF SUBGRANT AWARD

The subgrantee, through its authorized representative, acknowledges receipt and
acceptance of subgrant award number 2008-JAGC-HERN-1-Q9-233, in the amount
of $ 4,000.00, for a project entitled, DRUG ABUSE RESISTANCE EDUCATION
D.A.R.E.lI, for the period of 10/01/2007 through 09/30/2008, to be implemented in
accordance with the approved subgrant application, and subject to the Florida
Department of Law Enforcement's Standard Conditions and any special conditions
governing this subgrant.

(Signature of Subgrantee's Authorized Official)

DAVID PUGH, MAYOR
(Typed Name and Title of Official)

CITY OF BROOKSVILLE
(Name of Subgrantee)

(Date of Acceptance)

Rule Reference 11D-9.006 OCJG-012 (Rev. October 2005)



State of Florida
Office of Criminal Justice Grants
Florida Department of Law Enforcement
2331 Phillips Road
Tallahassee, Florida 32308

SUBGRANT AWARD CERTIFICATE
Subgrantee: City of Brooksville

Date of Award: /0-/0-07

Grant Period: From: 10/01/2007 TO: 09/30/2008

Project Title: DRUG ABUSE RESISTANCE EDUCATION D.A.R.E.IlI
Grant Number: 2008-JAGC-HERN-1-Q9-233

Federal Funds: $ 4,000.00

State Agency Match:

Local Agency Match: $ 0.00

Total Project Cost: $ 4,000.00

State Purpose Area: 01A : Drug Reduction Education

CFDA Number: 16.738

Award is hereby made in the amount and for the period shown above of a subgrant
under Title 1 of the Omnibus Crime Control and Safe Streets Act of 1968, P.L. 90-
351, as amended, and the Anti-Drug Abuse Act of 1988, P.L. 100-690, to the above
mentioned subgrantee and subject to any attached or special conditions.

This award is subject to all applicable rules, regulations, and conditions as contained
in the Financial and Administrative Guide for Grants, Guideline Manual 7100 1D,
Office of Justice Programs, Common Rule for State and Local Governments and A-
87, or OMB Circulars A-110 or A-102, as applicable, and A-21, in their entirety. Itis
also subject to such further rules, regulations and policies as may be reasonably
prescribed by the State or Federal Government consistent with the purposes and
authorization of P.L. 90-351, as amended, and P.L. 100-690.



SUBGRANT AWARD CERTIFICATE (CONTINUED)

This grant shall become effective on the beginning date of the grant period provided
that within 30 days from the date of award, a properly executed Certificate of
Acceptance of Subgrant Award is returned to the Department.

Qpﬂ»vhly\ N b bdo
Authorized Official
Clayton H. Wilder
Administrator

‘D~ /0-07
Date

( ) This award is subject to special conditions (attached).



Application for Funding Assistance

Florida Department of Law Enforcement
Justice Assistance Grant - County-wide

Subgrant Recipient

Organization Name: City of Brooksville

County: Hernando

Chief Official

Name: David Pugh

Title: Mayor

Address: 201 North Howell Avenue

City: Brooksville

State: FL Zip: 34601

Phone: 352-544-5400 Ext:

Fax: 352-544-5424

Suncom:

Email: rhankins@ci.brooksville.fl.us

Chief Financial Officer

Name: Stephen Baumgartner

Title: Finance Director

Address: 201 North Howell Avenue

City: Brooksville

State: FL Zip: 34601

Phone: 352-544-5400 Ext:

Fax: 352-544-5424

Suncom:

Email: sbaumgartner@ci.brooksville.fl.us
Application Ref#  2008-JAGC-610 Section #1 Page 1 of 2

Contract  2008-JAGC-HERN-1-Q9-233
Rule Reference 11D-9.006 OCJG-005 (rev. April 2005)



Application for Funding Assistance

Florida Department of Law Enforcement
Justice Assistance Grant - County-wide

Implementing Agency

Organization Name:

County: Hernando

Chief Official

Name: George Turner

Title: Police Chief

Address: 87 Veterans Avenue

City: Brooksville

State: FL Zip: 34601
Phone: 352-754-6800 Ext:
Fax: 352-754-6809

Suncom:

Email: rhankins @ci.brooksville.fl.us

Project Director

Name:
Title:
Address:
City:
State:
Phone:
Fax:
Suncom:
Email:

Richard Hankins

Lieutenant

87 Veterans Avenue

Brooksville

FL Zip: 34601

352-754-6808 Ext:
352-754-6809

rhankins@ci.brooksville.fl.us

City of Brooksville Police Department

Application Ref#  2008-JAGC-610

Contract  2008-JAGC-HERN-1-Q9-233

Rule Reference 11D-9.006 OCJG-005 (rev. April 2005)

Section #1 Page 2 of 2



Application for Funding Assistance

Florida Department of Law Enforcement
Justice Assistance Grant - County-wide

General Project Information

Project Title: DRUG ABUSE RESISTANCE EDUCATION D.A.R.E.lII
Project Sequence No: 1

Subgrant Recipient: City of Brooksville

Implementing Agency:  City of Brooksville Police Department

Project Start Date: 10/1/2007 End Date: 9/30/2008

Problem ldentification

The Brooksville Police Department D.A.R.E. Program will provide accurate information about
alcohol and drugs. A designated trained police officer(s) will instruct students in decision making
skills on resisting peer pressure, alcohol and drug use. The Brooksville Police Department will also
provide elementary students with ideas and alternatives to violence.

As the City of Brooksville continues to see a rise in juvenile alcohol and drug use, we have strived
to reach the youth at an early age. The program will be beneficial to students, parents and the
community as a whole.

Project Summary

The departmental goals of the D.A.R.E. program will be to instruct approximately 139 5th graders
the dangers of drugs and alcohol by positive reinforcement and at the same time providing them
with ways to avoid the negative influences from their peers.

A trained police officer will interact with the students of the elementary level creating a direct role
model atmosphere, he or she will build the necessary relationships to achieve the program
objectives. We believe that this program is an essential part of the awareness process which
teaches children to resist drugs from the earliest point until the complete high school. Early
intervention is critical to ensuring that a child will possess the skills necessary to succeed in life.
The DARE Officer will instruct the 5th graders along with visitation for students who have not
previously attended visitation.

Application Ref#  2008-JAGC-610 Section #2 Page 1 of 1
Contract  2008-JAGC-HERN-1-Q9-
Rule Reference 11D-8.006 OCJG-005 (rev. April 2005)



Application for Funding Assistance

Florida Department of Law Enforcement
Justice Assistance Grant - County-wide

General Performance Info:

Performance Reporting Frequency: Quarterly

Federal Purpose Area: 003 - Prevention and Education Programs

State Purpose Area: 01A - Drug Reduction Education

Activity Description
Activity: D.AR.E.

Target Group: Children

Geographic Area: School District

Location Type:  School, Elementary

Address(es) :

Brooksville Elementary Schoo!
885 N. Broad Street
Brooksville , FL 34601

Objectives and Measures

Objective: 01A.04 - Provide Visitation Instruction to a specified number of children.

Measure: Part1

How many prevention awareness training classes for law enforcement personnel will
be provided?

Goal: 1
Objective: 01A.05 - Provide Core Curriculum Instruction to a specified number of children.
Measure; Part 1

How many children will COMPLETE the D.A.R.E. Core Curriculum?
Goal: 115

Application Ref#  2008-JAGC-610 Section #3 Page 1 0of 2
Contract  2008-JAGC-HERN-1-Q9-
Rule Reference 11D-9.006 OCJG-005 (rev. April 2005)



Application for Funding Assistance

Florida Department of Law Enforcement
Justice Assistance Grant - County-wide

Section Questions:

Question:  If "other" was selected for the geographic area, please describe.
Answer:

Question:  [f "other” was selected for location type, please describe.
Answer:

Application Ref#  2008-JAGC-610

Contract  2008-JAGC-HERN-1-Q9-
Rule Reference 11D-9.006 OCJG-005 (rev. April 2005)

Section #3 Page 2 of 2



Application for Funding Assistance

Florida Department of Law Enforcement
Justice Assistance Grant - County-wide

General Financial Info:

Note: All financial remittances will be sent to the Chief Financial Officer

of the Subgrantee Organization.

Financial Reporting Frequency for this Subgrant:  Quarterly

Is the subgrantee a state agency?: No
SAMAS / Vendor Number: 59 6000479

Budget:

Budget Category Federal Match Total
Salaries and Benegfits $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
Contractual Services $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
Expenses $4,000.00 $0.00 $4,000.00
Operating Capital $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
Outlay
Indirect Costs $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

-- Totals -- $4,000.00 $0.00 $4,000.00
Percentage 100.0 0.0 100.0
Project Generated Income:
Will the project earn project generated income (PGI) ? No

Application Ref#  2008-JAGC-610
Contract  2008-JAGC-HERN-1-Q9-
Rule Reference 11D-9.006 OCJG-005 (rev. April 2005)

Section #4 Page 1 of 3



Application for Funding Assistance

Florida Department of Law Enforcement
Justice Assistance Grant - County-wide

Budget Narrative:

Expenses:

$1,200.00 of the grant funds will be utlized to pay for a police officer to attend D.A.R.E Officer
certification training. The associated cost will be travel and per diem.

$2,800.00 from this category will contribute to education visual necessities which will promote and
lure, students to participate in the program.

DARE Stickers

DARE Pencils

DARE Ink Pens

DARE Basebail Caps

DARE Erasers

Jr. DARE Officers Badges
Ways to Say No Activity Books
DARE Rulers

DARE Banners

Daren Lion Stuffed Toys
DARE Coffee Mugs

Violence Prevention Brochures
Say No To Drugs Coloring Books
Drug Prevention Book Marks
Anti-Drug Pocket Sliders
Anti-Drug Slogan Crayons
DARE C/D Cases

DARE T-Shirts

DARE Polo Shirts

Drug Awareness Bracelets
DARE Jackets

DARE Teachers Awards
Temporary Children?s Tattoos
Safety Sticky Pads

Teachers Curriculum

Application Ref#  2008-JAGC-610 Section #4 Page 2 of 3
Contract  2008-JAGC-HERN-1-Q9-
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Application for Funding Assistance

Florida Department of Law Enforcement
Justice Assistance Grant - County-wide

Section Questions:
Question:  Indicate the Operating Capital Outlay threshold established by the subgrantee.

Answer: $1000.00

Question:  If salaries and benefits are included in the budget as actual costs for staff in the
implementing agency, is there a net personnel increase, or a continued net personnel
increase from the previous Byrne program?

Answer: No

Question:  If indirect cost is included in the budget, indicate the basis for the plan (e.g. percent of
salaries and benefits), and provide documentation of the appropriate approval of this
plan.

Answer: N/A

Question:  If the budget includes services based on unit costs, provide a definition and cost for
each service as part of the budget narrative for contractual services. Include the
basis for the unit costs and how recently the basis was established or updated.

Answer: N/A

Application Ref#  2008-JAGC-610 Section #4 Page 3 of 3
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Edward Byrne Memorial Justice Assistance Grant (JAG) Program

Florida Department of Law Enforcement

Standard Conditions

Conditions of agreement requiring compliance by units of local government (subgrant recipients),
implementing agencies and state agencies upon signed acceptance of the subgrant award appear in
this section. Upon approval of this subgrant, the approved application and the following terms of
conditions will become binding. Failure to comply with provisions of this agreement will result in
required corrective action up to and including project costs being disallowed and termination of the
project, as specified in item 17 of this section.

1.  All Subgrant Recipients must comply with the financial and administrative requirements set
forth in the current edition of the U.S. Department of Justice, Office of Justice Programs
(OJP) Financial Guide and Edward Byrne Memorial Justice Assistance Grant (JAG)
Program Guidance as well as Florida laws and regulations including the Florida
Administrative Code Chapter 11D-9, Edward Byrne Memorial State and Local Law
Enforcement Assistance Formula Grant Program. Further, the Subgrant Recipient agrees
to comply with all Federal statutes, regulations, policies, guidelines and requirements,
including OMB Circulars A-21, A-110, A-102, A-122, A-133, A-87, as applicable; E.O. 12372
and Uniform Administrative Requirements for Grants and Cooperative Agreements 28 CFR,
Part 66, Common Rule and Part 67, Drug-free Workplace, Equal Treatment Regulation 28
CFR, Part 38.

2. Allowable Costs

a. Allowance for costs incurred under the subgrant shall be determined according to the general
principles of allowability and standards for selected cost items set forth in the OJP Financial
Guide, U.S. Department of Justice Common Rule for State And Local Governments and
federal OMB Circular A-87, "Cost Principles for State, Local and Indian Tribal Governments”,
or OMB Circular A-21, "Cost Principles for Educational Institutions".

b. All procedures employed in the use of federal funds for any procurement shall be according
to U.S. Department of Justice Common Rule for State and Local Governments, or OMB
Circular A-110, or OMB Circular A-102, and Florida law to be eligible for reimbursement.

3. Reports
a. Project Performance Reports — JAG Countywide Only

(1) Reporting Time Frames: The subgrant recipient shall submit Quarterly Project
Performance Reports to the Florida Department of Law Enforcement, hereafter known as
the Department, by February 1, May 1, August 1, and within forty-five (45) days after the
subgrant termination date. In addition, if the subgrant award period is extended beyond
the "original" project period, additional Quarterly Project Performance Reports shall be
submitted.

Failure to submit Quarterly Performance Reports that are complete, accurate and timely
may result in sanctions, as specified in item 17, Performance of Agreement Provisions.

(2) Report Contents: Performance reports must include both required sections, the
quantitative response (in response to specific objectives and measures) and the
qualitative narrative. The narrative must reflect on accomplishments for the quarter,
incorporate specific items specified for inclusion in performance measures, and also
identify problems with project implementation and address actions being taken to resolve
the problems.
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Edward Byrne Memorial Justice Assistance Grant (JAG) Program

Florida Department of Law Enforcement

b. Financia! Reports

(1) Project Expenditure Reports

(a) The JAG Countywide subgrant recipient shall have a choice of submitting either a

(b)

()

(d)

(e)

(f)

Monthly or a Quarterly Project Expenditure Report to the Department. Monthly
Project Expenditure Reports (1-11) are due thirty-one (31) days after the end of the
reporting period. Quarterly Project Expenditure Reports (1-3) are due thirty-one (31
days after the end of the reporting period. In addition, if the subgrant award period is
extended, additional Project Expenditure Reports shall be submitted

The JAG Direct subgrant recipient shall submit one Project Expenditure Report for
the entire subgrant period.

All project expenditures for reimbursement of subgrant recipient costs shall be
submitted on the Project Expenditure Report Forms prescribed and provided by the
Office of Criminal Justice Grants (OCGJ).

All Project Expenditure Reports shall be submitted in sufficient detail for proper pre-
audit and post-audit.

Before the "final" Project Expenditure Report will be processed, the subgrant
recipient must submit to the Department all outstanding project reports and must
have satisfied all special conditions. Failure to comply with the above provisions

shall result in forfeiture of reimbursement

Reports are to be submitted even when no reimbursement is being requested.

(2) The Closeout Documentation shall be submitted to the Department within forty-five (45)

days of the subgrant termination period

(3) If applicable, the subgrant recipient shall submit Quarterly Project Generated Income

Reports to the Department by February 1, May 1, August 1, and within forty-five (45)

days after the subgrant termination date covering subgrant project generated income and
expenditures during the previous quarter (See Item 10, Program Income.)

Other Reports

The recipient shall report to the Uniform Crime Report and other reports as may be
reasonably required by the Department

4. Fiscal Control and Fund Accounting Procedures

a.

SFY 2008

The subgrant recipient shall establish fiscal control and fund accounting procedures that
assure proper disbursement and accounting of subgrant funds and required non-federal
expenditures  All funds spent on this project shall be disbursed according to provisions of the

project budget as approved by the Department.

All expenditures and cost accounting of funds shall conform to OJP Financial Guide (as

amended), U S Department of Justice Common Rule for State and Local Governments, and
federal Office of Management and Budget's (OMB) Circulars A-21, A-87, and A-110, or A-102
as applicable, in their entirety

All funds not spent according to this agreement shall be subject to repayment by the subgrant
recipient
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Edward Byrne Memorial Justice Assistance Grant (JAG) Program

Florida Department of Law Enforcement
5. Payment Contingent on Appropriation and Available Funds

The State of Florida's performance and obligation to pay under this agreement is contingent upon
an annual appropriation by the Florida Legislature. Furthermore, the obligation of the State of
Florida to reimburse subgrant recipients for incurred costs is subject to available federal funds

6. Obligation of Subgrant Recipient Funds

Subgrant funds shall not under any circumstances be obligated prior to the effective date or
subsequent to the termination date of the subgrant period Only project costs incurred on or after
the effective date and on or prior to the termination date of the subgrant recipient's project are
eligible for reimbursement

7. Advance Funding

a JAG Countywide - Advance funding may be authorized for up to twenty-five (25) percent of
the federal award for each project according to Section 216 181(16)(b), Florida Statutes, the
OJP Financial Guide, and the U S. Department of Justice Common Rule for State and Local
Governments. Advance funding shall be provided to a subgrant recipient upon a written
request to the Department. This request, shall be either enclosed with the subgrant
application or submitted to the Department prior to the first request for reimbursement
Justification should address a 30/60/90-day need for cash based on the budgeted activities
for the period

b JAG Direct — The Department shall award program funds to the recipient in a single, lump
sum payment

8. Trust Funds

a The unit of local government must establish a trust fund in which to deposit JAG funds. The
trust fund may or may not be an interest bearing account

b The account may earn interest, but any earned interest must be used for program purposes
and expended before the subgrant end date

9. Travel and Training

a Al travel expenses relating to field trips with youth requires written approval of the
Department prior to commencement of actual travel

¢ The cost of all travel shall be reimbursed according to local regulations, but not in excess of
provisions in Section 112 061, Florida Statutes

d Al bills for any travel expenses shall be submitted according to provisions in Section
112 061, Florida Statutes

10. Program Income (also known as Project Generated Income)

Program income means the gross income earned by the subgrant recipient during the subgrant
period, as a direct result of the subgrant award Program income shall be handled according to
the OJP Financial Guide and U S. Department of Justice Common Rule for State and Local
Governments (reference 31 CFR Part 206 - Management of Federal Agency Receipts,
Disbursements, and Operation of The Cash Management Improvement Fund)
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Edward Byrne Memorial Justice Assistance Grant (JAG) Program

Florida Department of Law Enforcement

11. Approval of Consultant Contracts

The Department shall review and approve in writing all consultant contracts prior to employment
of a consultant when their rate exceeds $450 (excluding travel and subsistence costs) for an
eight-hour day Approval shall be based upon the contract's compliance with requirements found
in the OJP Financial Guide, U S. Department of Justice Common Rule for State and Local
Governments, and in applicable state statutes The Department's approval of the subgrant
recipient agreement does not constitute approval of consultant contracts

12. Property Accountability

a The subgrant recipient agrees to use all non-expendable property for criminal justice
purposes during its useful life or request Department disposition.

b The subgrant recipient shall establish and administer a system to protect, preserve, use,
maintain and dispose of any property furnished to it by the Department or purchased
pursuant to this agreement according to federal property management standards set forth in
the OJP Financial Guide, U S. Department of Justice Common Rule for State and Local
Governments or the federal OMB Circular A-110 or A-102, as applicable This obligation
continues as long as the subgrant recipient retains the property, notwithstanding expiration of
this agreement

13. Ownership of Data and Creative Material

Ownership of material, discoveries, inventions, and results developed, produced, or discovered
subordinate to this agreement is governed by the terms of the OJP Financia! Guide (as
amended), and the U S. Department of Justice Common Rule for State and Local Governments,
or the federal OMB Circular A-110 or A-102, as applicable

14. Copyright

The awarding agency reserves a royalty-free non-exclusive, and irrevocable license to reproduce,
publish, or otherwise use, and authorize others to use, for Federal government purposes

a The copyright in any work developed under an award or subaward, and

b Any rights of copyright to which a subgrant recipient or subrecipient purchases ownership
with support funded under this grant agreement

15. Publication or Printing of Reports

The subgrant recipient shall submit for review and approval one copy of any curricula, training
materials, or any other written materials that will be published, including web-based materials and
web site content, through funds from this grant at least thirty (30) days prior to the targeted
dissemination date

All materials publicizing or resulting from award activities shall contain the following statements:
“This project was supported by Award No. [contact OCJG for award number} awarded by the
Bureau of Justice Statistics, Office of Justice Programs. The opinions, findings, and conclusions
or recommendations expressed in this publication/program/exhibition are those of the author(s)
and do not necessarily reflect the views of the Department of Justice.”

16. Audit

a Subgrant recipients that expend $500,000 or more in a year in Federal awards shall haye a
single or program-specific audit conducted for that year. The audit shall be performed in
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Edward Byrne Memorial Justice Assistance Grant (JAG) Program

Florida Department of Law Enforcement

accordance with the federal OMB Circular A-133 and other applicable federal law The
contract for this agreement shall be identified in The Schedule of Federal Financial
Assistance in the subject audit The contract shall be identified as federal funds passed
through the Florida Department of Law Enforcement and include the contract number, CFDA
number, award amount, contract period, funds received and disbursed When applicable, the
subgrant recipient shall submit an annual financial audit that meets the requirements of
Sections 11 45 and 215 97, Florida Statutes, and Chapters 10 550 and 10.600, Rules of the
Florida Auditor General.

b A complete audit report that covers any portion of the effective dates of this agreement must
be submitted within 30 days after its completion, but no later than nine (9) months after the
audit period 1n order to be complete, the submitted report shall include any management
letters issued separately and management's written response to all findings, both audit report
and management letter findings Incomplete audit reports will not be accepted by the
Department and will be returned to the subgrant recipient

¢ The subgrant recipient shall have all audits completed by an Independent Public Accountant
(IPA) The IPA shall be either a Certified Public Accountantor a Licensed Public Accountant.

d. The subgrant recipient shall take appropriate corrective action within six (6) months of the
issue date of the audit report in instances of noncompliance with federal laws and
regulations

e The subgrant recipient shall ensure that audit working papers are made available to the
Department, or its designee, upon request for a period of three (3) years from the date the
audit report is issued, unless extended in writing by the Department.

f  Subgrant recipients that expend less than $500,000 in Federal awards during a fiscal year
are exempt from the audit requirements of OBM Circular A-133 for that fiscal year In this
case, written notification, which can be in the form of the "Certification of Audit Exemption”
form, shall be provided to the Department by the Chief Financial Officer, or designee, that the
subgrant recipient is exempt This notice shall be provided to the Department no later than
March 1 following the end of the fiscal year

g |f this agreement is closed out without an audit, the Department reserves the right to recover
any disallowed costs identified in an audit completed after such closeout

h  The completed audit report or notification of non-applicability should be sent to the following
address.

Florida Department of Law Enforcement
Office of Criminal Justice Grants

2331 Phillips Road

Tallahassee, Florida 32308

17. Performance of Agreement Provisions

In the event of default, non-compliance or violation of any provision of this agreement by the
subgrant recipient, the subgrant recipient's consultants and suppliers, or both, the Department
shall impose sanctions it deems appropriate including withholding payments and cancellation,
termination, or suspension of the agreement in whole or in part. In such event, the Department
shall notify the subgrant recipient of its decision thirty (30) days in advance of the effective date of
such sanction. The subgrant recipient shall be paid only for those services satisfactorily
performed prior to the effective date of such sanction
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Edward Byrne Memorial Justice Assistance Grant (JAG) Program

Florida Department of Law Enforcement

18. Commencement of Project

a If a project has not begun within sixty (60) days after acceptance of the subgrant award, the

subgrant recipient shall send a letter to the Department indicating steps to initiate the project,
reason for delay and request a revised project starting date

b If a project has not begun within ninety (90) days after acceptance of the subgrant award, the
subgrant recipient shall send another letter to the Department, again explaining the reason
for delay and request another revised project starting date.

c. Upon receipt of the ninety (90) day letter, the Department shall determine if the reason for
delay is justified or shall, at its discretion, unilaterally terminate this agreement and re-
obligate subgrant funds to other Department approved projects. The Department, where
warranted by extenuating circumstances, may extend the starting date of the project past the

ninety (90) day period, but only by formal written amendment to this agreement
19. Excusable Delays

a Except with respect to defaults of consultants, the subgrant recipient shall not be in default by
reason of any failure in performance of this agreement according to its terms (including any
failure by the subgrant recipient to make progress in the execution of work hereunder which
endangers such performance) if such failure arises out of causes beyond the control and
without the fault or negligence of the subgrant recipient Such causes include, but are not
limited to, acts of God or of the public enemy, acts of the government in either its sovereign
or contractual capacity, fires, floods, epidemics, quarantine restrictions, strikes, freight
embargoes, and unusually severe weather, but in every case, the failure to perform shall be
beyond the control and without the fault or negligence of the subgrant recipient

b If failure to perform is caused by failure of a consultant to perform or make progress, and if
such failure arises out of causes beyond the control of subgrant recipient and consultant, and
without fault or negligence of either of them, the subgrant recipient shall not be deemed in
default, unless’

(1) Supplies or services to be furnished by the consultant were obtainable from other
sources,

(2) The Department ordered the subgrant recipient in writing to procure such supplies or
services from other sources, and

(3)  The subgrant recipient failed to reasonably comply with such order

¢ Upon request of the subgrant recipient, the Department shall ascertain the facts and the
extent of such failure, and if the Department determines that any failure to perform was
occasioned by one or more said causes, the delivery schedule shall be revised accordingly

20. Written Approval of Changes in this Approved Agreement

Subgrant recipients shall obtain approval from the Department for major substantive changes
These include, but are not limited to:

a Changes in project activities, target populations, service providers, implementation
schedules, designs or research plans set forth in the approved agreement,
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Edward Byrne Memorial Justice Assistance Grant (JAG) Program
Florida Department of Law Enforcement

b Budget deviations that do not meet the following criterion That is, a subgrant recipient may
transfer funds between budget categories as long as the total amount of transfer does not
exceed ten (10) percent of the total approved budget and the transfer is made to an approved
budget item, or,

¢ Transfers of funds above the ten (10) percent cap shall be made only if a revised budget is
approved by the Department  Transfers do not allow for increasing the quantitative number
of items documented in any approved budget item, i.e., increasing the quantity of equipment
iterns in Operating Capital Outlay or Expense categories, of staff positions in the Salaries and
Benefits category )

d Under no circumstances can transfers of funds increase the total budgeted award.

21. Disputes and Appeals

a The Department shall make its decision in writing when responding to any disputes,
disagreements or questions of fact arising under this agreement and shall distribute its
response to all concerned parties. The subgrant recipient shall proceed diligently with the
performance of this agreement according to the Department's decision

b If the subgrant recipient appeals the Department's decision, the appeal also shall be made in
writing within twenty-one (21) calendar days to the Department's clerk (agency clerk) The
subgrant recipient's right to appeal the Department's decision is contained in Chapter 120,
Florida Statutes, and in procedures set forth in Rule 28-106 104, Florida Administrative Code.
Failure to appeal within this time frame constitutes a waiver of proceedings under Chapter
120, Florida Statutes.

22. Conferences and Inspection of Work

Conferences may be held at the request of any party to this agreement Atany time, a
representative of the Department, of the U S Department of Justice, or the Auditor General of the
State of Florida, have the privilege of visiting the project site to monitor, inspect and assess work
performed under this agreement

23. Access To Records

a The Department of Law Enforcement, the Auditor General of the State of Florida, the U.S
Department of Justice, the U.S. Comptroller General or any of their duly authorized
representatives, shall have access to books, documents, papers and records of the subgrant
recipient, implementing agency and contractors for the purpose of audit and examination
according to the OJP Financial Guide (as amended), and the U S Department of Justice
Common Rule for State and Local Governments.

b The Department reserves the right to unilaterally terminate this agreement if the subgrant
recipient, implementing agency, or contractor refuses to allow public access to all documents,
papers, letters, or other materials subject to provisions of Chapter 119, Florida Statutes, and

made or received by the subgrant recipient o its contractor in conjunction with this
agreement

24. Retention of Records
The subgrant recipient shall maintain all records and documents for a minimum of three (3) years

from the date of the final financial statement and be available for audit and public disclosure upon
request of duly authorized persons.
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Edward Byrne Memorial Justice Assistance Grant (JAG) Program
Fiorida Department of Law Enforcement

25. Signature Authority

The Subgrant Recipient Authorizing Official or Designated Representative and the Implementing
Agency Official, Administrator or Designated Representative, who sign the Signature fage, have
the authority to request changes to the approved agreement The prior mentioned individuals
have authority to sign or make amendments to the Sole Source, ADP Justification and the
Privacy Certification forms The Project Director has authority to submit requests for approval of
specific travel, and Performance Reports, with the exception of the Financial and Closeout

Package, which also requires the signature by the Chief Financial Officer of the Subgrant
Recipient or authorized designee

26. Delegation of Signature Authority

When the authorized official of a subgrant recipient or the implementing agency designates some
other person signature authority for him/her, the chief officer or elected official must submit to the
Department a letter or resolution indicating the person given signature authority  The letter
indicating delegation of signature authority must be signed by the chief officer or elected official

and the person receiving signature authority. The letter must also specify the authority being
delegated

27. Personnel Changes

Upon implementation of the project, in the event there is a change in Chief Executive Officers for
the Subgrantee or implementing Agency, Project Director, or Contact Person, the Department
must be notified in writing with documentation to include appropriate signatures

28. Background Check

Whenever a background screening for employment or a background security check is rquired by
law for employment, unless otherwise provided by law, the provisions of Chapter 435, Florida
Statutes shall apply.

a  All positions in programs providing care to children, the developmentally disabled, or
vulnerable adults for 15 hours or more per week, all permanent and temporary employee
positions of the central abuse hotline; and all persons working under contract who have
access to abuse records are deemed to be persons and positions of special trust or
responsibility and require employment screening pursuant to Chapter 435, F.S, using the
level 2 standards set forth in that chapter.

b, All employees in positions designated by law as positions of trust or responsibility shall be
required to undergo security background investigations as a condition of employment and
continued employment For the purposes of the subsection, security background
investigations shall include, but not be limited to, employment history checks, fingerprinting
for all purposes and checks in this subsection, statewide criminal and juvenile records checks
through the Florida Department of Law Enforcement, and federal criminal records checks

through the Federal Bureau of Investigation, and may include local criminal records checks
through local law enforcement agencies

(1 Any persdn who is required to undergo such a security background investigation and
who refuses to cooperate in such investigation ot refuses to submit fingerprmts shall be
disqualified for employment in such position of, if employed, shall be dismissed

(2)  Such background investigations shall be conducted at the expense of the emp!oying
agency. When fingerprinting is required, the fingerprints of the employee or applicant
for employment shall be taken by the employing agency of by an authorized taw
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Edward Byrne Memorial Justice Assistance Grant (JAG) Program
Florida Department of Law Enforcement

enforcement officer and submitted to the Department of Law Enforcement for
processing and forwarding, when requested by the employing agency, to the United
States Department of Justice for processing. The employing agency shall reimburse
the Department of Law Enforcement for any costs incurred by it in the processing of the
fingerprints

29. Drug Court Projects

a A Drug Court Project funded by the JAG Grant Program must contain the 10 key elements
outlined in the U S. Department of Justice, Office of Justice Programs, Drug Courts Program
Office, program guidelines "Defining Drug Courts' The Key Components”, January 1997 This
document can be obtained from FDLE, Office of Criminal Justice Grants, at (850) 410-8700

b To ensure more effective management and evaluation of drug court programs, the subgrant
recipient agrees that drug court programs funded with this award shall collect and maintain
follow-up data on criminal recidivism and drug use relapse of program participation. The data
collected must be available to U S DOJ and FDLE upon request

30. Overtime for Law Enforcement Personnel

Prior to obligating funds from this award to support overtime by law enforcement officers, the U S
Department of Justice encourages consultation with all allied components of the criminal justice
system in the affected jurisdiction The purpose of this consultation is to anticipate and plan for
systemic impacts such as increased court dockets and the need for detention space.

31. Criminal Intetligence System

a The purpose of the federal regulation published in 28 CFR Part 23 - Criminal Intelligence
Systems Operating Policies is to assure that subgrant recipients of federal funds for the
principal purpose of operating a criminal intelligence system under the Omnibus Crime
Control and Safe Streets Act of 1968, 42 U S C 3701, et seq, as amended, use those funds
in conformance with the privacy and constitutional rights of individuals

b The subgrant recipient and a criminal justice agency that is the implementing agency agree to
certify that they operate a criminal intelligence system in accordance with Sections 802(a)
and 818(c) of the Omnibus Crime Control and Safe Streets Act of 1968, as amended and
comply with criteria as set forth in 28 CFR Part 23 - Criminal Intelligence Systems Operating
Policies and in the Bureau of Justice Assistance's Formula Grant Program Guidance
Submission of this certification is a prerequisite to entering into this agreement

¢ This certification is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when
this agreement was made  If the subgrant recipient or criminal justice agency operates a
criminal intelligence system and does not meet Act and federal regulation criteria, they must
indicate when they plan to come into compliance. Federal law requires a subgrant-funded
criminal intelligence system project to be in compliance with the Act and federal regulation
prior to the award of federal funds. The subgrant recipient is responsible for the continued
adherence to the regulation governing the operation of the system or faces the loss of federal
funds. The Department's approval of the subgrant recipient agreement does not constitute
approval of the subgrant-funded development or operation of a criminal intelligence system

32. Confidential Funds
A signed certification that the project director or the head of the Implementing Agency has r'ead,
understands, and agrees to abide by all of the conditions for confidential funds as set forth in the
effective edition of OJP's Financial Guide is required from all projects that are involved with
confidential funds from either Federal or matching funds The signed certification must be
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Edward Byrne Memorial Justice Assistance Grant (JAG) Program

Florida Department of Law Enforcement
submitted at the time of grant application
33. Equal Employment Opportunity (EEO)

a No person, on the grounds of race, creed, color or national origin shall be excluded from
participation in, be refused benefits of, or otherwise subjected to discrimination under grants
awarded pursuant to Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, Section 504 of the Rehabilitation
Act of 1973, as amended, Title IX of the Education Amendments of 1972, The Age
Discrimination Act of 1975, and, Department of Justice Non-Discrimination Regulations 28

CFR Part 42, Subparts C, D, E, F, G and H

b, The subgrant recipient and the implementing agency agree to certify that they either do or do
not meet EEQ program criteria as set forth in Section 501 of The Federal Omnibus Crime
Control and Safe Streets Act of 1968, as amended and that they have or have not
formulated, implemented and maintained a current EEO Program  Submission of this
certification is a prerequisite to entering into this agreement This certification is a material
representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when this agreement was made. If the
subgrant recipient or implementing agency meet Act criteria but have not formulated,
implemented and maintained such a current written EEQO Program, they have 120 days after
the date this agreement was made to comply with the Act or face loss of federal funds subject
to the sanctions in the Justice System improvement Act of 1979, Pub L 96-157, 42 UscC
3701, et seq (Reference Section 803 (a) of the Act, 42U S C.3783 (a) and 28 CFR Section
42207 Compliance Information)

c. Any subgrant recipient or implementing agency receiving a single grant award for $500,000
or more OR an aggregate of grant awards for $1,000,000 or more during any 18 month
period in federal funds, must have approval of its EEO Planbythe U S DOJ, Office for Civil
Rights (OCR) The subgrantee shall submit its EEO Plan to FDLE, for submittal to the U S
DOJ, OCR for approval The submission shall be in both paper copy and electronic format If
the U.S DOJ, OCR has approved an agency's EEO Plan during the two previous years, itis
not necessary to submit another EEO Plan Instead, the subgrantee need only send a copy
of its approval letter from the OCR. However, if the EEO Plan approval is more than two
years old, an updated Plan must be submitted.

d Inthe event a Federal or State court of Federal or State administrative agency makes a
finding of discrimination after a due process hearing on the grounds of race, color, religion,
national origin, sex, or disability against a recipient of funds, the recipient will forward a copy
of the finding to the Office for Civil Rights, Office of Justice Programs.

34. Americans with Disabilities Act

Subgrantees must comply with the requirements of the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA),
Public Law 101-336, which prohibits discrimination by public and private entities on the basis of
disability and requires certain accommodations be made with regard to employment (Title 1), state
and local government services and transportation (Title 1), public accommodations (Title lil), and
telecommunications (Title 1V)

35. Immigration and Nationality Act

No public funds will intentionally be awarded to any contractor who knowingly employs
unauthorized alien workers, constituting a violation of the employment provisions contained in 8
US C Section 1324a(e), Section 274A(g) of the Immigration and Nationality Act ("INA") The
Department shall consider the employment by any contractor of unauthorized aliens a violation of
Section 274A(e) of the INA Such violation by the subgrant recipient of the employment
provisions contained in Section 274A(e) of the INA shall be grounds for unilateral cancellation of
this contract by the Department
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Florida Department of Law Enforcement

36. National Environmental Policy Act (NEPA)

a The subgrantee agrees to assist FDLE in complying with the NEPA and other related federal
environmental impact analyses requirements in the use of subgrant funds by the subgrantee
This applies to the following new activities whether or not they are being specifically funded
with these subgrant funds That is, it applies as long as the activity is being conducted by the
subgrantee or any third party and the activity needs to be undertaken in order to use these
subgrant funds,

(1) New construction,

(2)  Minor renovation or remodeling of a property either (a) listed on or eligible for listing on
the National Register of Historic Places or (b) located within a 100-year flood plain,

(3) A renovation, lease, or any other proposed use of a building or facility that will either (a)
result in a change in its basic prior use or (b) significantly change its size, and

(4)  Implementation of a new program involving the use of chemicals other than chemicals
that are (a) purchased as an incidental component of a funded activity and (b)
traditionally used, for example, in office, household, recreational, or educational
environments

b. Forany of a subgrantee’s existing programs or activities that will be funded by these
subgrants, the subgrantee, upon specific request from the Department and the U.S
Department of Justice, agrees to cooperate with DOJ in any preparation by DOJ of a national
or program environmental assessment of that funded program or activity.

37. Non-Procurement, Debarment and Suspension

The subgrant recipient agrees to comply with Executive Order 12549, Debarment and
Suspension (34 CFR, Part 85, Section 85.510, Participant’s Responsibilities) These procedures
require the subgrant recipient to certify it shall not enter into any lower tiered covered transaction
with a person who is debarred, suspended, declared ineligible or is voluntarily excluded from
participating in this covered transaction, unless autherized by the Department.

38. Federal Restrictions on Lobbying

a. Each subgrant recipient agrees to comply with 28 CFR Part 69, "New Restrictions on
Lobbying” and shall file the most current edition of the Certification And Disclosure Form, if
applicable, with each submission that initiates consideration of such subgrant recipient for
award of federal contract, grant, or cooperative agreement of $100,000 or more, or federal
foan of $150,000 or more

b This certification is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when
this agreement was made. Submission of this certification is a prerequisite to entering into
this agreement subject to conditions and penalties imposed by Section 1352, Title 31, United
States Code Any person who fails to file the required certification is subject to a civil penalty
of not less than $10,000 and not more than $100,000 for each failure to file.

¢ The undersigned certifies, to the best of his or her knowledge and belief, that.
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Edward Byrne Memorial Justice Assistance Grant (JAG) Program

Florida Department of Law Enforcement

(1) No federally appropriated funds have been paid or shall be paid to any person for
influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any federal agency, a
member of congress, an officer or employee of congress, or an employee of a member of
congress in connection with the awarding of any federal loan, the entering into of any
renewal, amendment, or modification of any federal contract, grant, loan or cooperative
agreement

(2) If any non-federal funds have been paid or shall be paid to any person for influencing or
attempting to influence an officer or employee of congress, or an employee of a member
of congress in connection with this federal contract, grant loan, or cooperative
agreement, the undersigned shall complete and submit the standard form, Disclosure of
Lobbying Activities, according to its instructions

(3) The undersigned shall require that the language of this certification be included in awa_rd
documents for all subgrant awards at all tiers and that all subgrant recipients shall certify
and disclose accordingly

39. State Restrictions on Lobbying

In addition to the provisions contained in item 39, above, the expenditure of funds for the purpose
of lobbying the legislature or a state agency is prohibited under this contract.

40. Additional Restrictions on Lobbying
Recipient understands and agrees that it cannot use any federal funds, either directly or
indirectly, in support of the enactment, repeal, modification or adoption of any law, regulation or
policy, at any level of government, without the express prior written approval of OJP

41. “Pay — to - Stay”

Funds from this award may not be used to operate a “pay-to-stay" program in any locat jail
Furthermore, no funds may be given to local jails that operate "pay-to-stay” programs. “Local

jail’, as referenced in this condition, means an adult facility or detention center owned and/or
operated by city, county, or municipality it does not include juvenile detention centers "Payito~w
stay” programs as referenced in this condition, means a program by which extraordinary services,
amenities and/or accommodations, not otherwise available to the general inmate population, may
be provided, based upon as offender’s apparent ability to pay, such that disparate conditions of
confinement are created for the same or similar offenders within a jurisdiction.

42. Mitigation of Health, Safety and Environmental risks dealing with Clandestine
Methamphetamine Laboratories

If an award is made to support methamphetamine faboratory operations the subgrant recipient
must comply with this condition, which provides for individual site environmental .
assessment/impact statements as required under the National Environmental Policy Act.

a. General Requirement The subgrantee agrees to comply with Federal, State, and local
environmental, health and safety laws and regulations applicable to the investigation and
closure of clandestine methamphetamine laboratories and the removal and disposal of the
chemicals, equipment, and wastes used in or resulting from the operation of these
laboratories

b.  Specific Requirements The subgrantee understands and agrees that any program or
initiative involving the identification, seizure, or closure of clandestine methamphetamine
laboratories can result in adverse health, safety and environmental impacts to (1) the law
enforcement and other governmental personnel involved, (2) any residents, occupants,
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Edward Byrne Memorial Justice Assistance Grant (JAG) Program
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users, and neighbors of the site of a seized clandestine laboratory, (3) the seized laboratory
site's immediate and surrounding environment of the site(s) where any remaining chemicals,
equipment, and waste form a seized laboratory’s operations are placed or come to rest.

Therefore, the subgrantee further agrees that in order to avoid or mitigate the possible
adverse health, safety and environmental impacts from any of clandestine
methamphetamine operations funded under this award, it will (1) include the nine, below
listed protective measures or components, (2) provide for their adequate funding to include
funding, as necessary, beyond that provided by this award, and (3) implement these
protective measures directly throughout the life of the subgrant In so doing, the subgrantee
understands that it may implement these protective measures directly through the use of its
own resources and staff or may secure the qualified services of other agencies, contractor or
other qualified third party.

(1) Provide medical screening of personnel assigned or to be assigned by the subgrantee to
the seizure or closure if of clandestine methamphetamine laboratories,

(2) Provide Occupational Safety and Health Administration (QSHA) required initial and
refresher training for law enforcement officials and other personnel assigned by the
subgrantee to either the seizure or closure of clandestine methamphetamine
faboratories,

(3) As determined by their specific duties, equip personnel assigned to the project with
OSHA required protective wear and other required safety equipment,

(4) Assign properly trained personnel to prepare a comprehensive contamination report on
each closed laboratory,

(5) Employ qualified disposal contractors to remove all chemicals and associated
glassware, equipment, and contaminated materials and wastes from the site(s) of each
seized clandestine laboratory,

(6) Dispose of the chemicals, equipment, and contaminated materials and wastes removed
from the sites of seized laboratories at properly licensed disposal facilities or, when
allowable, properly licensed recycling facilities,

(7) Monitor the transport, disposal, and recycling components of subparagraphs 5 and 6.
immediately above in order to ensure proper compliance,

(8) Have in place and implement an inter-agency agreement or other form of commitment
with a responsible State environmental agency that provides for that agency's (i) timely
evaluation of the environmental conditions at and around the site of a closed clandestine
laboratory and (i) coordination with the responsible party, property owner, or others to
ensure that any residual contamination is remediated, if necessary, and in accordance
with existing State and Federal requirements; and

(9) Included among the personnel involved in seizing of clandestine methamphetamine
laboratories, or have immediate access to, qualified personnel'who can respond to the
potential health needs of any offender(s) children or other children present or fiving at
the seized laboratory site  Response actions should include, at a minimum and as
necessary, taking children into protective custody, immediately testing them for
methamphetamine toxicity, and arranging for any necessary follow-up medical tests,
examinations or heallh care
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Edward Byrne Memorial Justice Assistance Grant (JAG) Program

Florida Department of Law Enforcement

43. Limited English Proficiency

National origin discrimination includes discrimination on the basis of limited English proficiency
(LEP) To ensure compliance with Title VI and the Safe Streets Act, recipients are required to
take reasonable steps to ensure that LEP persons have meaningful access to their programs
Meaningful access may entail providing language assistance services, including oral and written
translation when necessary The U S Department of Justice has issued guidance to assist
agencies to comply with Title VI requirements The guidance document can be accessed on the
Internet at www lep.gov, or by contacting OJP's Office for Civil Rights at (202) 307-0690, or by
writing to the following address

Office for Civil Rights

Office of Justice Programs

U S. Department of Justice

810 Seventh Street NW, Eighth Floor
Washington, DC 20531

44. The Coastal Barrier Resources Act

The subgrantee will comply and assure the compliance of all contractors with the provisions of
the Coastal Barrier Resources Act (P L. 97-348) dated October 19, 1982 (16 USC 3501 et seq))
which prohibits the expenditure of most new Federal funds within the units of the Coastal Barrier
Resources System.

45. Enhancement of Security
If funds are used for enhancing security, the subgrant recipient agrees to:

a  Have an adequate process to assess the impact of any enhancement of a school security
measure that is undertaken on the incidence of crime in the geographic area where the
enhancement is undertaken

b Conduct such an assessment with respect to each such enhancement, and, submit to the
Department the aforementioned assessment in its Final Program Report.

46. Environmental Protection Agency's (EPA) list of Violating Facilities

The subgrantee assures that the facilities under its ownership, lease or supervision which shall be
utilized in the accomplishment of the Program Purpose are not listed on the EPA's list of Violating
Facilities and that it will notify the Department of the receipt of any communication from the
Director of the EPA Office of Federal Activities indicating that a facility to pe used in the project is
under consideration for listing by the EPA.

47. Flood Disaster Protection Act

The subgrantee will comply with Section 102(a) of the Flood Disaster Protection Act of 1973,
Public Law 93-234, 87 Stat 975, requiring that the purchase of flood insurance in communities
where such insurance is available as a condition of the receipt of any federal financial assistance
for construction or acquisition purposes for use in any area that has been identified as an area
having special flood hazards

48. National Historic Preservation Act

The subgrantee will assist the Department in its compliance with Section 108 of the National
Historic Preservation Act of 1966 as amended (16 USC 470), Executive Order 1 1593, and the
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Archeological and Historical Preservation Act of 1966 (16 USC 569a-1 et seq ) by (a) consulting
with the State Historic Preservation Officer as necessary, to identify properties listed in or eligible
for inclusion in the National Register of Historic Places that are subject to adverse effects (see 36
CFR Part 800 8) by the activity, and notifying the Department of the existence of any such
properties and by (b) complying with all requirements established by the Federal grantor agency
to avoid or mitigate adverse effects upon such properties

49. Omnibus Crime Control and Safe Streets Act

The subgrantee will comply and assure the compliance of all contractors, with the applicable
provisions of Title | of the Omnibus Crime Control and Safe Streets Act of 1968, as amended, the
Juvenile Justice and Delinquency Prevention Act, or the Victims of Crime Act; as appropriate, the
provisions of the current edition of the Office of Justice Program Financial and Administrative
Guide for Grants, and all other applicable State and Federal laws, orders, circulars, or
regulations

50. Public Safety Officers’ Health Benefits Provision

The recipient has certified it is in compliance with the Public Safety Officers’ Health Benefits
Provision of the Fiscal Year 2002, Departments of Commerce, Justice, and State, the Judiciary,
and Related Agencies Appropriations Act (Pub L No 107-77)and agrees to remain in
compliance during the life of the grant. This provision requires that the unit of local government
which employs a public safety officer (as defined by Section 1204 of Title | of the Omnibus Crime
Control and Safe Streets Act of 1968, as amended) to afford such public safety officer who retires
or is separated from service due to injury suffered as a direct and proximate resuit of a personal
injury sustained in the line of duty while responding to an emergency situation or hot pursuit (as
such terms are defined by State law) with the same or better level of health insurance benefits at
the time of retirement or separation as the officer received while employed by the jurisdiction. If
the recipient demonstrates noncompliance during the life of the grant, 10 percent of the award
amount must be returned to the grantor.

51. Human Research Subjects )
Grantee agrees to comply with the requirements of 28 C F.R part 46 and all Office of Ju;tice ‘
Programs policies and procedures regarding the protection of humnan research subjects, including

obtainment of Institutional Review Board approval, if appropriate, and subject informed consent

52. National Information Exchange Model specifications
To support public safety and justice information sharing, OJP requires the grantee to use the
National Information Exchange Model (NIEM) specifications and guidelines for this particular
grant. Grantee shall publish and make available without restriction all schemas generated as a
result of this grant to the component registry as specified in the guidelines For more information
on compliance with this condition, visit http‘.//www_niemAqov/imglementationquideApAhQ

53. Reporting, Data Collection and Evaluation
The subgrant recipient agrees to comply with all reporting, data collection and evaluation
requirements, as prescribed by the BJA in the program guidance for the Justice Assistance Grant
(JAG) Compliance with these requirements will be monitored by BJA

54. Privacy Certification
The Subgrant recipient agrees to comply with the confidentiality requirements that are applicable
to collection, use, and revelation of data or information and thatare in accordance with
requirements of Confidentiality of |dentifiable Research and Statistical Information (28 C F R Part
22 and, in particular, section 22 23, Privacy Certification)
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If an award is made for a project which has a research or statistical component under which
information identifiable to a private person will be collected, the subgrant recipient agrees to:

1 Project plans will be designed to preserve anonymity of private persons to whom information

relates, including, where appropriate, name-stripping, coding of data, or other similar
procedures

2 Project findings and reports prepared for dissemination will not contain information which can
reasonably be expected to be identifiable to a private person

3 A log will be maintained indicating that identifiable data have been transmitted to persons other
than BJA, OJJDP, BJS, NIJ, or OJP or grantee/contractor staff or subcontractors, that such
data have been returned, or that alternative arrangements have been agreed upon for future
maintenance of such data

4. A description of the project containing assurance by the applicant that
(1) Data identifiable to a private person will not be used or revealed

(2) Access to data will be limited to those employees having a need and that such persons
shall be advised of and agree in writing to comply with these regulations.

(3) All subcontracts which require access to identifiable data will contain conditions meeting the
requirements

5. Any private persons from whom identifiable data are collected or obtained, either orally or by
means of written questionnaire, shall be advised that the data will only be used or revealed for
research or statistical purposes and that compliance with requests for information is not
mandatory Where the notification requirement is to be waived, a justification must be included
in the Privacy Certificate.

6 Describe the precautions that will be taken to insure administrative and physical security of
identifiable data

55 State Information Technology Point of Contact

The subgrant recipient agrees to ensure that the State Information Technology Point of Contact
receives written notification regarding any information technology project funded by this grant
during the obligation and expenditures period. This is to facilitate communication among focal
and state governmental entities regarding various information technology projects being
conducted with these grant funds. In addition, the recipient agrees to maintain an administrative
file documenting the meeting of this requirement. For a list of State information Technology

Points of Contact, go to http.//www.oip.usdoi.qov/ec/stateshtm

56. Interstate Connectivity

To avoid duplicating existing networks or IT systems in any initiatives funded by BJA for law
enforcement information sharing systems which involve interstate connectivity between
jurisdictions, such systems shall employ, to the extent possible, existing networks as the
communication backbone to achieve interstate connectivity, unless the subgrant recipient can
demonstrate to the satisfaction of BJA that this requirement would not be cost effective or would
impair the functionality of an existing or proposed IT system

57. Supplanting

The recipient agrees that federal funds under this award will be used to supplement but not
supplant state or local funds
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CERTIFICATION OF COMPLIANCE WITH ”‘mmm{ JUSTICE GRANT!
EQUAL EMPLOYMENT OPPORTUNITY (EEO) PROGRAM REQUIREMENTS

Florida Department of Law Enforcement
Edward Byrne Memorial Justice Assistance Grant Program

e

SUBGRANTEE CERTIFICATION

Federal regulations require recipients of financial assistance from the Office of Justice Programs (OJP) to
prepare, maintain on file, submit to OJP for review and implement an EEQ Plan in accordance with the
Omnibus Crime Control and Safe Street Act of 1968, as amended, and 28 CFR Part 42.301-.308,
Subparts C through H, if they meet the following criteria:

(i) have 50 or more employees; and
(ii) received a total of $25,000 or more in grants or subgrants; and
iii) have 3 percent or more minorities in services population (however, if less than 3

percent minorities in service population, an EEOP must still be prepared, but must
focus on employment practices affecting women only).

I, the undersigned authorized official, certify that according to Section 501 of the Omnibus Crime Control
and Safe Streets Act of 1968 as amended, that the Subgrantee (Subgrant Recipient):

_X__Does meet Act Criteria and does have a current EEO Plan.

—__ Does meet Act Criteria and does not have a current EEQ Plan.

— Does not meet Act Criteria, and therefore not required to have an EEQ Plan.
Recipients that meet criteria (i) and (i) above, and receive over $500,000 (or $1 million during and 18

month period) are required to submit an EEO Plan to the Office for Civil Rights, Office of Justice
Programs for review.

Has included a copy of the current approval letter from the US DOJ.

| further affirm that if the Subgrant Recipient meets the Act criteria and does not have a current written
EEO Plan, federal law requires it to formulate, implement, and maintain such a Plan within 60 days after a

subgrant applio federal% is approved or face loss of federal funds.

Signature of Subgrantee Authorized Official

Type Name:David Pugh Jr.

Title: Mayor

Subgrant Recipient:_City of Brooksville

Date:__10/01/2007

FDLE JAG Grant Application Package EEO Certification
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CERTIFICATION OF COMPLIANCE WITH E GRANTS

EQUAL EMPLOYMENT OPPORTUNITY (EEO) PROGRAM REQUIREMENTS

Florida Department of Law Enforcement
Edward Byrne Memorial Justice Assistance Grant Program

IMPLEMENTING AGENCY CERTIFICATION

Federal regulations require recipients of financial assistance from the Office of Justice Programs (OJP) to
prepare, maintain on file, submit to OJP for review and implement an EEO Plan in accordance with the
Omnibus Crime Control and Safe Street Act of 1968, as amended, and 28 CFR Part 42.301-.308,
Subparts C through H, if they meet the following criteria:

(i) have 50 or more employees; and
(if) received a total of $25,000 or more in grants or subgrants; and
(iii) have 3 percent or more minorities in services population (however, if less than 3

percent minorities in service population, an EEOP must still be prepared, but must
focus on empioyment practices affecting women only).

l, the undersigned authorized official, certify that according to Section 501 of the Omnibus Crime Control
and Safe Streets Act of 1968 as amended, that the Subgrantee (Subgrant Recipient):

Does meet Act Criteria and does have a current EEQ Plan.
Does meet Act Criteria and does not have a current EEQ Plan.

Does not meet Act Criteria, and therefore not required to have an EEO Plan.
X

Is Included in the EEO Plan of the Subgrant Recipient.

Recipients that meet criteria (i) and (iii) above, and receive over $500,000 (or $1 million during and 18
month period) are required to submit an EEO Plan to the Office for Civil Rights, Office of Justice
Programs for review.

Has included a copy of the current approval letter from the US DOJ.
| further affirm that if the Subgrant Recipient meets the Act criteria and does not have a current written

EEO Plan, federal law requires it to formulate, implement, and maintain such a Plan within 60 days after a
subgr pplication for federal assistance is approved or face loss of federal funds.

‘/Wplemeﬁﬁng Agency Authorized Official

Type Name:_George Turner

Title: Police Chief

Implementing Agency:_Brooksville Police Department

Date: 10/01/2007

FDLE JAG Grant Application Package EEQ Certification
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Application for Funding Assistance

Florida Department of Law Enforcement 0CT 05 2007
Justice Assistance Grant - County-wide OFFICE OF

e T

In witness whereof, the parties affirm they each have read and agree to the conditions set
forth in this agreement, have read and understand the agreement in its entirety and have

executed this agreement by their duty authorized officers on the date, month and year set
out below.

Corrections on this page, including Strikeovers,
whiteout, etc. are not acceptable.

State of Florida
- Department of Law Enforcement
Office of Criminal' Justice Grants

Signature: 0}%/(4)4\, /Q/ Wa&,\)

Typed Name and Title:

Date: J0=706~067

Subgrant Recipient
Authorizing Official of Governmental Unit -
(Commission Chairman, Mayor, or Designated Representative).

Typed Name of Subgrant ’éit@Brooksville
Signature: f —-—

Typed Name and David Pugh Jr., Mayor

Date: 10/01/2007

L : Implementing Agehcy :
Official, Administrator or Designated Representative

Typed Name Oflmpaﬂémng Brooksville Police Department
-
Signature: £ ?\ k A
— —
Typed Name George Turner, Police Chief
Date: 10/01/2007
Application Ref#  2008-JAGC-610 Section #6 Page 1 of 1

Contract -JAGC-HERN- - -



Office of Criminal Justice Grants
Florida Department of Law Enforcement
2331 Phillips Road
Tallahassee, Florida 32308
Edward Byrne Memorial JAG Program
GRANT ADJUSTMENT NOTICE
SUBGRANTEE: City of Brooksville
TITLE OF PROJECT: DRUG ABUSE RESISTANCE EDUCATION D.A.R.E.IlI
GRANT NUMBER: 2008-JAGC-HERN-1-Q9-233  ADJUSTMENT NUMBER: 1
NATURE OF ADJUSTMENT: Change FEID Number
TO SUBGRANTEE:
Pursuant to your request of 10/10/2007 the following change, amendment, or

adjustment in the above grant project is approved subject to such conditions or
limitations as may be set forth below:

Qagh M. bdilller 1010707
Authorfzed Official Date
Clayton H. Wilder

Administrator

The FEID Number has been changed to 596000284.

NOTE: Retain this Grant Adjustment Notibe as part of official project records.



Application for Funding Assistance

Florida Department of Law Enforcement
Justice Assistance Grant - County-wide

General Financial Info:

I I, o g o S Sy By o
ances will be sent to the

1anization.

Financial Reporting Frequency for this Subgrant:  Quarterly
Is the subgrantee a state agency?: No
SAMAS / Vendor Number: 59 6000284

Chief Financial Officer

Budget:

Budget Category Federal Match Total
Salaries and Benefits $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
Contractual Services $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
Expenses $4,000.00 $0.00 $4,000.00
Operating Capital $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
Outlay
Indirect Costs $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

-- Totals -- $4,000.00 $0.00 $4,000.00
Percentage 100.0 0.0 100.0
Project Generated Income:
Will the project earn project generated income (PGI) ? No

Application Ref#  2008-JAGC-610

Contract  2008-JAGC-HERN-1-Q9-233
Rule Reference 11D-9.006 OCJG-005 (rev. April 2005)

Section #4 Page 1 of 3
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AGENDA ITEM NO.
/-3-07

CITY OF BROOKSVILLE
MEMORANDUM

To: City Council

Via: T. Jennene Norman-Vacha, City Manager™ -

From: Emory H. Pierce,

Re: Seeking Council Approval to Enter the Petroleum Clean Up Program for the

Site at Intersection (SW Corner) of Broad and Main (near Patricia's
Boutique) and Designate Creative Environmental Engineering as the Clean
Up Contractor

Date: 10/01/07

As per the Innocent Victim Petroleum Storage System Restoration Program requirements, Tam
requesting permission to pay FDEP $500; there are no other costs associated with the clean up of
the above mentioned site. As was done with the DPW site that Council approved for the same
program at the June 18, 2007 Council meeting, I am also requesting that I be permitted to sign as
the “authorized representative” on page 4 of the application and that Creative Environmental
Solutions, Inc. (George Foster) be named as our local contractor in charge of the program. We
will owe no money to Mr. Foster's company; DEP pays the contractor directly.

This site at the intersection of US41/Broad and Main (15 S. Broad Street, Patricia’s Boutique)
came into being during the course of the bulbout construction when the contractor came across
an abandoned underground petroleum storage tank. At that time City staff removed the tank and
as much contaminated soil as possible with out undermining the adjacent building or Broad
Street. We have a drawing dating to the 1950's that shows this site was a gas station. In 2003,
George Foster’s group produced a Closure Assessment Report, and in 2006 we applied for the
Innocent Victim Program.

I request that this be put on the November 5th council agenda for approval.

Grpoliuted sites\broad & main\10012007 broad main innocent victim to council.doc
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CITY OF BROOKSVILLE
MEMORANDUM

To: Steve Baumgartner, Interim City Manager % //M

From: Emory H. Pierce, Director of Public Works
Re: Seeking Council Approval to Enter Petroleum Contamination Clean up Program
Date: May 25, 2007

~T'have just been notified that our polluted DPW site at 602 S Brocksville Ave was approved to
be in the Petroleum Contamination Clean up Program. I request council approve our

participation, which includes payment of a $500 deductible to the Florida Department of
Environmental Protection. We will then be in the Innocent Victim Petrolenm Storage System
Restoration Program. There are no other costs associated with the cleanup once you become
accepted into the program. I also request that I be permitted to sign as the “authorized
representative” on page 4 of the application and that Creative Environmental Solutions Inc.

(George Foster) be our local contractor in charge of the program. We owe no money to Mr.

Foster’s company, DEP pays the contractor directly.

We have included all the program documents. There is a time limit of 60 days that we must have
the check and application back to DEP. We received the contractor information portion of the

form this morning and we are ready to apply.

G:\polluted sites\bréad & maim\052507 council perm enter cleanup program wpd
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CITY OF BROOKSVILLE
REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING
COUNCIL CHAMBERS
201 HOWELL AVENUE
MINUTES

June 4, 2007 7:00 P.M.

Brooksville City Council met in regular session with Mayor David Pugh, Vice Mayor
Frankie Burnett and Council Members Joe Bernmardini, Lara Beura Bradburn and
Richard E. Lewis. Also present were David LaCroix, City Attorney; Karen M.
Phillips, City Clerk/Director of Administration; Janice L. Peters, Deputy City
Clerk; Jim Delach, Acting Finance Director; Mike Walker, Parks and Recreation
Director; Bill Geiger, Acting City Manager; Bmory Pilerce, Director of Public
Works; Frank Ross, Interim Police Chief; Brovksvitie Poiice Bept. and Fire Chief
Tim Mossgrove, BreoksviitleFire—BPept. Members of the Hernando Today, Hermando
Times and Brooksville Belle were also present. gﬁ crivener Error Correction 06-21-07

Lo

The meeting was called to order by Mayor Pugh, followed by an invocation and
pledge of allegiance.

Mayor Pugh advised that Interim City Managér Baumgartnéfviéuéﬁéﬂgﬁd Director of
Community Development Bill Geiger would be filling in as Acting City Manager.

Minutes .
April 16, 2007 Appeals Public Hearings
April 16, 2007 Regular Meeting

FDLE Edward Byrne Memorial Justice Assistance Grant (JAG) Program
Consideration of approval to apply for FY2007/2008 funds in the amount of
$4,000. The Law Enforcement Trust Fund #1009 will be utilized for the 25%

grant match.

Utilities Meter Reader Trucks
Consideration of transfer of truck #5239 to Parks and truck #528 to replace
truck #576 in Utilities; and, truck #576 be declared surplus and authorize

City Manager to dispose of accordingly.

Transportation Outreach Program
authorization of the issuance of a purchase order in the amount of $9,840
to pay Applied Sciences Consulting, Inc. for services rendered in
modifying the frontage road plans to address changes necessitated by the
City’s modification of the project intent, which will be reimbursed

through the TOP grant.

vValve and Fire Hydrant Replacement Pro-ect
Authorization to go out for bids to replace valves and fire hydrants

without the requirement for payment and performance bonds.

DPW Innocent Victim Storage Tank Cleanup
Consideration of designation of Creative Environmental Soluticns, Inc. as
cleanup contractor for DFW Innocent Victim Storage Tank Cleanup Program,
authorizing the Director of Public Works to sign the necessary documents

and pay the $500 deductible.

APPROVED BY BROOKSVILLE

A . ,CITY COUNGIL s
on__ L8 /o7 INITIALS.;ZZ




CITY OF BROOKSVILLE
MEMORANDUM

To: Steve Baumgartner, City Manager / )
/} 4 2 4" 72
From: Emory H. Pierce, Director of Public Wo ; %/ﬁk{ Y/ W

Laureen Busacca, Project Manager
]
Re: Public Works Compound
Innocent Victim Petroleum
Storage System Restoration Program

Date: April 2, 2007

Over a year ago, with the help of George Foster, President Creative Environmental, we started
providing FDEP with background information on this site. That process included taking soil samples
which showed that we have contamination ffom petroleum on this site, not a serious problem, but
still one that needs to be addressed. Copies of previous relevant reports and correspondence are

attached.

Multiple copies of the attached FDEP document should be made, filed, but kept accessible.

At present, the City’s only obligation is to pay $500.00 at some later date when we are notified that

“site re-mediation will start. This program will probably not cover all costs associated with
contamination at this site; only those costs associated with the contamination from some previously
removed underground petroleum storage tanks. We must remember that our Public Works compound
was previously an electrical co-op maintenance facility which was previously part of a railroad
switching yard and there is no telling what could have been dumped or spilled in this area in the past.

Another site the City is working on is at the intersection of US41/Broad and Main (15 S. Broad
Street, Patricia’s Boutique). During the course of the bulbout construction the contractor came
across an abandoned underground petroleum storage tank. At that time City staff removed the tank
and as much contaminated soil as possible with out undermining the adjacent building or Broad
street. We have a drawing dating to the 1950's that shows this site was a gas station. In 2003,
George Foster’s group produced a Closure Assessment Report, and in 2006 we applied for the
Innocent Victim Program. We have not received word from FDEP since our last response to them
on Jan. 29, 2007. Copies of relevant documents and correspondence related to this site are also

attached.

cc:  George Foster, Creative Environmental

EHP/ko
GAW_PERFIEMOR Y\(4022007Public Works Compouné.wpd



STATE OF FLORIDA
DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

INVOICE

September 24, 2007

Mr. Emory Pierce

City of Brooksville

600 South Brooksville Avenue
Brooksville, FL 34601-3710

REMIT TO: Florida Department of Environmental Protection
ATTN: Bureau Accountant
Bureau of Petroleum Storage Systems
2600 Blair Stone Road, MS 4575
Tallahassee, FL 32398-2400

To ensure proper credit, please return this invoice with your '
" ‘¢heck AND-a photocopy of the check to the above address. =

Make check payable to: Department of Environmental Protection

(NOTE: FACILITY ID# SHOULD BE WRITTEN ON YOUR CHEC@

Facility ID Number: 279805507

~ AMOUNT _

DESCRIPTION
Deductible for the Florida Innocent Victim Petroleum
Storage System Restoration Program (FIVPSSR)

$500.00

Discharge Date: 01/28/2003
Payable within 60 Days of Receipt
Broad Street R/W

SW Corner of Broad St & Main St
Brooksville, Hernando County, FL

TOTAL DUE: . $500.00

Phone Number: (850) 671-6362

Invoice Contact Person: Alan Sakole

Cc: Bureau Accouniant, MS 4575




T | RECEIVRL

1 ‘ nepm  |Charlis Crist
Florida Department ofep 2 6 2007 " 6ouema
Environmental Protegtion I Kottkamp
. Lt. Governor
Bob Martinez Center
2600 Blair Stone Road M5 7575 . e
Tallahassee, Florida 32399-2400 Michael W. Sole
Secretary
September 24, 2007

Certified Mail
RETURNED RECEIPT REQUESTED

Mr. Emory Pierce

City of Brocksville

600 South Brooksville Avenue
Brooksville, FL 34601-3710

Re: Request for Deductible Payment and Designation of Pefroleum Contamination Cleanup
Contractor — PROMPT RESPONSE REQUIRED
Broad Street R/ W
SW Corner of Broad Street & Main Street
Brooksville, FL. .. . :
FDEP Facility # 279805507 -
Discharge Date:January 28, 2003

Dear Mr. Pierce:

The above referenced discharge is eligible for State funding assistance under the
Innocent Victim Petroleum Storage System Restoration Program IVPSSRP. Based on a priority
score of 59 indicating a potential threat to human health and the environment, funding is

available to begin petroleum contamination clean up work.

Our records and the property tax appraiser's office indicate that you are the real property owner of
this site. The real property owner is considered the entity responsible for the petroleum
contamination at a site provided there is no legal agreement between you and another party
delegating site cleanup responsibility. If you believe that you have been contacted in error, please
notify me as soon as possible to provide us with any information you may have on who you feel

1s the appropriate party for us to contact.

Review of our records indicates that the required IVPSSRP deductible for this discharge has not
been paid to the Florida Department of Environmental Protection (FDEP) as required by Section
376.30715, Florida Statutes (F.S.). This deductible must be paid within 60 days of this letter in
accordance with the mstructions below and the enclosed invoice.

“Morz Protection, Less Process”

Visit Our Imternet Site AL www.d




If you are financially unable to submit the entire amount of the invoice immediately, please
contact me as soon as possible for information regarding the establishment of a limited payment

schedule.
PLEASE CAREFULLY REVIEW THE INSTRUCTIONS BELOW:

Failure to Respond

Assuming that you are the appropriate party and were noticed to pay the deductible but have not
done so, the 1ssue of an unpaid deductible will be referred to the Office of General Counsel
[OGC] and cost recovery may be pursued in court. Such an action will include a demand for the
deductible and may also include a demand for attorney’s fees, court costs and penalties.

Additionally, failure to pay the required deductible may subject you to enforcement by the FDEP,

the local government, or a third party to compel cleanup of the site at your own expense 1n
accordance with Section 376.308(5), F.S. Due to the priority status of the site, the FDEP may
select one of its cleanup contractors to begin conducting work on the contaminated area of your
property. The fransfer of the site to state cleanup does not relieve you of the responsibility for
allowing site access. To avoid the above and as a condition of eligibility for state- a531stance the--

: 'Vnecessary deductible must be provided within the next 60 days.
I RN

‘What Yon Need to Do

Please immediately remit $500.00 vrith the enclosed invoice to the following address:

Florida Departmeént of Environmental Protection

Attn: Bureau Accountant

Bureau of Petroleurn Storage Systems. . .
T 2600 Blair Stene Road — MS 4575

Tallahassee, Florida 32399-2400

Attach a brief letter with your check that clearly indicates that the remittance is for the IVPSSRP
deductible associated with Broad Street R/W, FDEP Facility ID# 279805507.

And

To expedite processing please also send a copy of the check, letter and invoice to my attention at

the letterhead address, Mail Station 4592.1.

Please note that the site’s IVPSSRP eligibility has an unlimited spending ca cap. The total cost of
" cleanup is dependent on many factors including the extent of contarmnination and site-specific

conditions.




Also

Please choose a contractor concurrent with the payment of the-deductible or deductible pavment
plan, by submitting the attached Contractor Designation Form [CDF] to:

Florida Department of Environmental Protection

Attn: Leila Shuffler -
Bureau of Petroleum Storage Systems %
2600 Blair Stone Road —~ MS 4540

Tallahassee, Florida 32399-2400

In the Preapproval Program the Department works directly with the contractor selected by the
property owner or other responsible party to determine the scope and cost for cleanup work. The
Department promptly pays the contractor directly, as work is completed.

Questions

If you should have any questions, please contact me at York Claims Service Inc., contractor to
the Bureau of Petroleum Storage Systems [BPSS] for administrative services (850) 671-6362, or
at the letterhead address, Mail Station #4595. If you feel that you are not the correct responsible
party for this site, contact me immediately.

Sincerely,

York Claims Service Inc
BPSS Administrative Services Contractor

ce: File

Enclosure: Invoice and CDF



R Engineers, Environmental Scientists and Geologists

700 Desoto Avenue ¢ Brooksville, FL e 34601

October 5, 2007

FDEP

Petroleum Cleanup Section One

2600 Blair Stone Rd., Mail Station 4540
Tallahassee, F1.32399-2400

Re: CDF

City of Brooksville
FAC ID 27-9805507

To Whom It May Concern: |

Please find a CDF for the facility identified above. Please contact me with any questions.

Sin}ere)l? e
Liope (D i/
/C‘reor% K. Foster, P.G.

President
Attachment

Pc: Laureen Busacca, City of Brooksville Public Works

Tei- (332) "96-3374  Faxr (352

e-mail: bvilleinfo@creativeenvironniental .com



Charlie Crist

Florida Department of Governor
Environmental Protection JTeff Kottkamp
Bob Martinez Center Lt. Governor

2600 Blair Stone Road

Michael W. Sole

Tallahassee, Florida 32399-2400
Secretary

Bureau of Petroleum Storage Systems - Petroleum Cleanup Preapproval Program

CONTRACTOR DESIGNATION FORM & REAL PROPERTY OWNER/RESPONSIBLE PARTY AFFIDAVIT

» This Contractor Designation supersedes all previous designations for this site made by the Real
Property Owner or Responsible Party whose signature appears below.

o Please read this entire four-page form carefully and complete all applicable portions, it contains
important information regarding the cleanup of your site.

Please Print or Type all required information (except for the signature block in Part 6).

This request will not be processed without the completed Owner/RP Affidavit in Part 6.

» If you prefer not to designate a specific contractor, you may request that the Department select the
" cleanup confractor in Part 4 of this form.
1. The Florida Depariment of Environmental Protection (Department) is required by statute to preapprove the

scope of work and cost for the cleanup of a petroleum contaminated site if state funds will be used to pay for
that cleanup [Section 376.30711(1)(b), Florida Statutes (F.S.)].

2. The current Real Property Owner or Responsible Party for the cleanup must use this form to designate a
contractor that meets certain criteria (Sections 376.30711(2)(b)-(c), F.S.) for the Department to work with on
their site. In addition, if the Department should coordinate its actions with your representative, you can use this

form to designate such an altemnative contact.

3. If the current Real Property Owner is not the person responsible for completing the cleanup, then the
Responsible Party should compiete this form and submit it along with a copy of the iegal agreement between
them and the current Real Property Owner that details their cleanup responsibility. ~Responsible party
agreements with former Real Property Owners will not be accepted without a signed letter from the current Real
Property Owner which indicates that they either concur with the responsible party agreement or do not object to
the Responsible Party (identified in Part 3 of this form) selecting the contractor. '

4, Piease fill out this form completely and carefully. The form will be rejected if there is any omission, error or
correction (including “white-ouf”) in any of the required information, including the notary portion of the form. This

will delay the cleanup of your site.

5. The current Real Property Owner or Responsible Party may designate a contractor or request a change to a
new contractor at any time by submitting a completed Contractor Designation Form (CDF). However, changes
in contractor designation are limited to no more than two (2) in any 12-month period. Changes in
contractor designation may also create a delay in the cleanup of your site. Also, the current Real Property
Owner or Responsibie Party will be liable for payment for any work that the new contractor must perform in order
to assume the site cleanup if the Department previously paid for such work. If a new contractor is designated,
then any work in progress will be completed by the contractor to whom the work was awarded through the end of
the current Work Order unless that contractor is being replaced for documented poor performance or it
voluntarily agrees (in writing) to forgo the remaining work. A new designation does not take effect until the
completed CDF is accepted and approved by the Department.

“More Protecrion, Less Process”™ CDF&ATTdavit-020607
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Bureau of Petroleum Storage Systems - Petroleum Cieanup Preapproval Program
CONTRACTOR DESIGNATION FORM & REAL PROPERTY OWNER/RESPONSIBLE PARTY AFFIDAVIT

6. Designating a contractor means that you are responsibie for its actions. Pursuant to Section 2. of the
Petroleurn Cleanup Preapproval Program work order issued by the Department, your contractor is required to
pay all subcontractors and vendors within 7 days of receipt of payment from the Department that includes their
costs for non-final invoices and prior to submittal of the final invoice for each work order (uniess there is a written
agreement between the contractor and subcontractor/vendor to the contrary). To protect their financial
interests, subcontractors and vendors may file a lien against your property that can be exercised in the
event the contractor does not pay them in full. Accordingly, you should take steps to insure that your
contractor pays all of its subcontractors and vendors. Furthermore, it is advised that you request that your
contractor demonstrate that they are financially solvent and that they have an acceptable performance record
with respect to successful completion of cleanup projects and payments to subcontractors and vendors.

7. Pursuant to Florida Law, “It is untawful for a site owner or operator, or his or her designee, fo receive any
remuneration, in cash or in kind, directly or indirectly, from a rehabilitation contractor performing site cleanup
activities...” under the preapproval program (Section 376.30711(6) F.S.). It is also unlawful for any contractor to
offer any remuneratton in cash or in kind, either directly or indirectly, to a site owner, operator or their designee.
This prohibition includes payment of any program deductible by a contractor. See Sections 2.1 and 7.13 of the

BPSS Standard Operating Procedures Manual.

8. Please return the form with original signatures (copies cannot be accepted) to Petroleum Cleanup Section

One, Mail Station 4540, in the Bureau of Petroleum Storage Systems at the letterhead address. If you

~ choose not to designate a cleanup contractor, you may ask the Department to select one for you. in Part 4 below,
If you have any queshons please call Leila Shuffler at (850) 245-8839. Thank you for your cooperation.

Part 1. FDEP Facility Name and Identification # (reqmred)
a. Name of Facility/Site: L/U{/b\ ¢ br i c/(»xﬁ a'n/[vﬁ
b. FDEP Fagility Identification #: ) Ve i RGosSs0F

Part 2. Real Property Identification and Current Ownership Verification (required):

This information must match that listed in the applicable County Property Appraiser's Office. While the real
property owner listed here may be the same as that listed in Part 3, the actual designation of the cleanup

contractor occurs only by the entity listed in Parts 3 and 6 of this form.
T LS. M £
a. Real Property Street Address of Record: N4 e S A 1k (o

Rrpak Ctrects ; Bcofccoil e
b. Parcel # or Property identification # of Record: R ZZ, 222 | 7 ( (7/90 Cocn CJCOA cet 74)

c. Legal Property Description of Record (may attach legible copy):

d. Name of Current Real Property Owner(s) of Record: C [;’LH ({L g'ho@ ({—& L;[/,(fe'
{

e. If There is Any Reason Why the Property Appraiser's Records May Not Be Accurate, Provide an

Explanation and Attach Documentation:

“More Protection, Less Process”™ CDF&AMdavit-020607
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Bureau of Petroleum Storage Systems - Petroieum Cleanup Preapproval Program
CONTRACTOR DESIGNATION FORM & REAL PROPERTY OWNER/RESPONSIBLE PARTY AFFIDAVIT

Part 3. Entity Designating the Preapproval Program Cleanup Contractor (required}):
Name of the Entity Designating the Preapproval Cleanup Contractor (if business, inciude nameftitie of

7 . 7 e
representative): &’\.«-{m 1+ Reoeloind € / fe oy pmruc(/‘ §

Fos

Vrestor g Dulle, el

¥ curef
b. (Check One): Curretit Real Property Owner Or Responsible Party ,
c. Mailing Address and Telephone # of the Entity Designating the Contractor: (a 00 S . @fcf"&ﬁ/‘fi m/@

bz, Reootesedl L SH6od Phone (352) S YY~S Y5~

Part 4. Preapprovai Program Cleanup Contractor Designation (required}:

Please check one of the options below. You may request that the Department select the cleanup contractor
(State) or you may designate a specific cleanup contractor (Owner/RP). Complete section a through d below

only if Owner/RP designated contractor.
(Check One) State Designated Confractor Or V Owner/RP Designated Contractor

a. Designated Contractor Name: /) - Cod—vie. EAV w’zlau'&e?»&ft/Q ff U ¢ —zf&L
. 4 ot ‘
b. Designated Contractor Mailing Address: 00 De g@ T zlﬁﬁ? >

14

T % i_ A v ; —.‘ /
Contact Person for Designated Contractor: <0 Y e ‘F—/C‘- e s
< " D -y M N
d. Telephone # for Contact Person: ( ?ﬁ,) ;79@ - 53 f?(’/
e. E-Mail address for Contact Person __§ ~+U KTIL@"@GFG&VH PP LY fmg‘m.@ﬂf& o Lo

Part 5. Alternate Contact Designation for Current Real Property Owner or Responsible Party (optional}:

Use this section to designate an aiternative point of contact to act on behalf of the entity named in Part 3.a. This
person will serve as your representative regarding the cleanup of this site and receive all further notices on your
behalf. Do not list the contact person for the contractor. If you do not wish to designate an altemate point of

contact, then leave this part blank.
a. Alternate Contact Name: L&‘Cbu’“ =2 RL&,E & CC A
b. Alternate Contact Address and Telephone #: oo g . F[)) e é’C}' v 1/ / 4’” V/;Ib(ﬁ’z/
Dyvodkes s VK[ £ Im“’L Yol Phone (332 5 Yy - sYes
c. Relationship of Alternate Contact to Current Real Property Owner or Responsible Party:
CoM S Trwey v IW*O Vet UALber (e,

a.

Part 6. Real Property Owner/Responsible garty Affidavit (required)

This affidavit must be completed and signed by the current real property owner or responsible party in the
presence of a notary public when designating a contractor for the Petroleum Cleanup Preapproval Program.
The signature of the current real property owner or responsible party shall be notarized as set forth below. No
work will be authorized on your site until this form is accepted by the Department. By signing below you are
certifying that you have read and understand all of the information on all four pages of this form and that alt of
the information listed above is true and correct to the best of your knowledge. The name in Part 6.a. must

match that listed in Part 3.a.

“More Protection, Less Process” CDF&Affdavit-020607
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Bureau of Petroleum Storage Systems - Petroleum Cleanup Preapproval Program
CONTRACTOR DESIGNATION FORM & REAL PROPERTY OWNER/RESPONSIBLE PARTY AFFIDAVIT

_Euneu Prexce amtve_Jiresto o Qudlic &mZU

(name of pe son appearing) ) (title of person appearing)

(J‘/ I“Lh J: B‘FD ('C'&,LQ/Q— and hereby certify:

(name of real property owner or responsible party listed in Part 3.a.)
b. That the Contractor Designated in Part 4 of this form is authorized o perform work in the Petroleum

Cleanup Preapproval Program on the real property identified in Parts 1 and 2 of this form.

c. That the contractor has not offered any remuneration in cash or in kind directly or indirectly in exchange
for designating them as my contractor.

d. That | have not solicited or accepted remuneration in cash or in kind directly or indirectly from the
confractor in exchange for designating them as my contractor.

e. That | acknowledge that soliciting or accepting remuneration in cash or in kind directly or indirectly in
exchange for designation of a contractor is prohibited pursuant to Section 376.30711(6), F.S., and may
result the loss of eligibility for State funded petroleum contamination cleanup assistance at this site.

f. That the person appearing is authorized to make the statements set forth in this affidavit.

(Signature of the Gy(wer, RP or Authorized representative listed above)

'emmemmemeeamm - NOtarization of Signature of Real Property Owner or Responsible Party (required) ~—-————
State of F lor d(L County/Parish of Hfi( DOJV\/W '

Sworn to and subscribed before me by Eﬂ\ Ol ‘j PE&I {.E, this q‘i’h day of OQ)&O\D&( L, 20371
Personally known (Yf

Produced !dentification ( ) Type of ID: (if produced identification)

&QQLD(‘/T) fﬁft&l)f)iﬁ My Commission Expires /):\ng \ Ll i a\()\o

(notary’s signature)

=~ - 2L NN On
Notary Public, State of - l[;‘“ Aﬁ : Commission Number (if applicable)'%' D D‘w)g L} q | q

NOTARY PUBLIC-STATE OF FLORIDA
~e,  Allison Earwood
~Comm1551on #DDS84777

e Expires: AUG. 14, 2010
BONDED THRU ATLANTIC BONDING CO, INC.

srr
\u |,,

“More Prorecrion, Less Process” CDF&AfIdavii-020607
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Hernando County Property Appraiser - Map Printed on 7/24/2007 11:48:43 AM Page 1 of |

R22 222 19 1480 OOG0 Q00X
ROOKSYILLE CITY OF
ADSH

Hernando County Property Appraiser 0

Alvin R. Mazourek CFA - Brooksville, Florida - 352-754-4190

PARCEL: R22 222 19 1480 0000 000A | KEY: 01645232

EName: BROOKSVILLE CITY OF (ROABS) Landval $0.00
Site: BldgVal $0.00
Mail: 201 HOWELL AVE JustVai $0.00

* BROOKSVILLE FL 34601 Assd $0.00

Sales Exmpt $0.00
1/1/2007 0.00 (S

info v ®) Taxable $0.00

This information was derived from data which was compiled by the Hernando County Property Appraiser Office solely for tha govemmental purpose of property assassment. This information shoukd not be relied upon
by anyone asa determination of the market valus, ownarship, or zoning of the property. Zoning information should be obtained from the Hemando County Development Department. No warranbes, axpressed or
impled, are provided for the accuracy of the data hersin, it's use, or it's interpretation  Although it is pariodically updated, this information may nat reflect the datz currently on file in the Properly Appraiser’s office The

assassad vahes are NOT cerfified values and therefore are subject to changs before being finalized for ad valorem assassment purposas
Data Updated: 7/20/2007 | GIS Map Updsted: 7/20/2007 | © Copyright 2003 All Rights Reserved - Hemando County Property Appraiser

) 27-9805507F

g@“ C—‘C—*{C C ué/ L

7247007



D SearchResults Page 1 of 2

Hernando County Property Appraiser imi ,
Dats Undotedt: /2812007 2007 Preliminary Values -
Parcel: R22 222 19 1480 0000 000A | KEY: Property Gard  Interaciive GIS Map  Print
01645232

<< Next Lower Parcel  Next Higher Parcel >> New Super Homestead Exemption Estimator

Owner & Froperty Info Search Result: 1 of 6 Next >>
Owner's Name(s) [BROOKSVILLE CITY OF (ROADS) s Show: 2006 | 2005 | 2004
GIS Aerial , )
Site aerial date: Oct. 2006
First Owner's 201 HOWELL AVE
Mailing BROOKSVILLE FL 34601
. BROOKSVILLE TOWN OF TRACT A BEING
Brief Desc ALL ROADS
DOR Code (94) - Rights-of-way Map Code 76D4
Levy Code CRBRES GIS Code B029
Land Use Land Units
RIGHT OF WAYS 8.90 ACRES

TAX Information

Tax History TAX > Access real-time Tax info

Links - pay your Taxes on-line

Property & Assessment Values

Land Value $17,800.00 Assessed Value $17,800.00
Bidg Value $0.00 Exempt Value $17,800.00
Features Value $0.00 Excluded Exempt $17,800.00
Class Value $0.00 Taxable Value $0.00
Limit Value $0.00 Just Mkt Value $17,800.00
Szales
Sale Date | OR Book/Page | ORInst.Type | Sale V/I (Qual) | Sale Price Sale Party
1/1/2007 0/0000 (5) $0.00{BROOKSVILLE CITY OF
Building Charactaristics
Bidg# | BldgDesc | YearBit | Area (Base / Aux) |  Bed/Bath
NONE

xira Features & Out Buildings
Description l Actual Year l Dimensions l Dep. Cost
NONE

Address Listings
I NONE l

Hernando County Property Appraiser - Roll Year: 2007 Data Updated: 5/28/2007

Search Result: 1 of 6 Next >>

d

hitn:/Awew?2 hemanda floridana.com/GTST SearchRauile aen 1057007
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(352) 544-5400 (Phone)
(352) 5445424 (Fax)
(352) 544-5420 (TDD)

City of Brookswille

October 10, 2007

John F. Mason, Jr., owner

c/o Farmer John's Key West Cafe
1588 E. Jefferson Street
Brooksville, FL 34601

Dear Mr. Mason:

The City of Brooksville Beautification Board is pleased to advise you
that you have been selected to receive the monthly Margaret R. Ghiotto
Commercial Beautification Award for beautifying your business at 966
E. Jefferson Street.

The Certificate of Recognition and outdoor sign will be presented to
you by a Board Representative at the next regular Council Meeting to
be held Monday, November 5, 2007 at 7:00 p.m. in the City Hall Council
Chambers at 201 Howell Avenue. Please call the Beautification Board
Secretary, Lindsay Morgan, and let her know, no later than Monday,
October 22, 2007 by 5:00 p.m. if you will or will not be able to
attend this meeting or if you have any further questions, 544-5407
x130.

We extend our appreciation for your outstanding efforts in the
improving and beautifying not only your business but the City of

Brooksville.
Sincerely,
Sally Szi;llng, Cha1rmag<%%%l

Beautification Board

S3/lam
cc: T. Jennene Norman-Vacha, City Manager
Karen M. Phillips, City Clerk/Dir. of Administrationv//

Lindsay A. Morgan, Beautification Board Secretary

G:\Boards\Beautification\Awards\966 E. Jefferson Street - Farmer Johns Key West Cafe.doc
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201 Howell Avenue, Broscksville, Florida 34 601-2041



(352) 5445400 (Phone)
(352) 544-5424 (Fax)
(352) 544-5420 (TDD)

City of Brooksville

October 10, 2007

John Carlone, owner

c/o Farmer John's Key West Cafe
22075 Lake Lindsey Road
Brooksville, FL 34601

Dear Mr. Carlone:

The City of Brooksville Beautification Board is pleased to advise you
that you have been selected to receive the monthly Margaret R. Ghiotto
Commercial Beautification Award for beautifying your business at 966
E. Jefferson Street.

The Certificate of Recognition and outdoor sign will be presented to
you by a Board Representative at the next regular Council Meeting to
be held Monday, November 5, 2007 at 7:00 p.m. in the City Hall Council
Chambers at 201 Howell Avenue. Please call the Beautification Board
Secretary, Lindsay Morgan, and let her know, no later than Monday,
October 22, 2007 by 5:00 p.m. if you will or will not be able to
attend this meeting or if you have any further questions, 544-5407
x130.

We extend our appreciation for your outstanding efforts 1in the
improving and beautifying not only your business but the City of

Brooksville.

Sincerely,

t( /‘ # - ./JI
ully conling |l
éally perling, Ch&ifman

Beautification Board

SS/lam
cc: T. Jennene Norman-Vacha, City Manager //
Karen M. Phillips, City Clerk/Dir. of Administration'i

Lindsay A. Morgan, Beautification Board Secretary

G:\Boards\Beautification\Awards\966 E. Jefferson Street - Farmer Johns Key West Cafe - 2.doc
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201 Howell Avenue, Broolksville, Florida 34601-2041
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AGENDAITEMNO. _—__—
7 //-§-0

WHEREAS, the history and traditions of a community are a vital part of the character of that
community; and,

WHEREAS, it is important to always look to the future and prepare for what les abead but an
awareness of our past provides the framework Jor such foresight; and,

WHEREAS, in 1857 the Florida Railroad Company brought the rail line through an area now
known as the City of Starke, Bradford County, Florida to connect the Atlantic Ocean with the Gulf of
Mexzico; and,

WHEREAS, with the influx of construction workers to the area, a settlement soon emerged and Ihe
rail line further provided badly needed transportation for the timber, naval stores and long staple cotton, which
were the main economic base of the community at that time; and,

WHEREAS, the residents of the City of Starke, Florida will celebrate their 150" Anniversary
during the month of November, 2007.

NOW, THEREFORE, ON BEHALF OF THE CITY COUNCIL FOR THE
CITY OF BROOKSVILLE, I, DAVID PUGH, MAYOR, do hereby recognize and proclaim the
occasion of the 150" Anniversary of the establishment of the City of Starke, Florida.

FURTHER, as a fellow Florida city recently having celebrated its own 150" Anniversary in 2006,
the City of Brooksville does hereby congratulate its Sister City as it attains this auspicions milestone and nole
that it has taken the combined efforts of generations of proud residents of the City of Starke to grow and
strengthen this great city to make it what it is loday.

IN WITNESS WHEREOEF, we have hereunto set our hand and caused the seal of the City of
Brookswille to be affixced this 5 day of November, 2007.

CITY OF BROOKSVILLE

David Pugh, Mayor

Frankie Burnett, Vice Mayor Joe Bernardini, Council Meniber

Lara Bradburn, Council Member Richard E. Lewis, Council Member

ATTEST:
Karen M. Phillips, City Clerk
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Officers

President:
Bob Jillings

Vice-President:
Ken Aldridge

Secretary:
Arlene Palmeri

Treasurer:
Diana Bartlett

Directors

Don Berg

Glenn Claytor
Sarah Duncan
Lisa Kiddon
Gerard Schneider
B.J. Stasek

Doug Steele

Bill Yoos

David VanHorn

Advisory Beard

Ginny Brown-Waite
Josh Kelly

Richard Nugent
David Sasser

Grant Tolbert

Have you
remembered
Habitat in your
will?

0CT 22 2007

for Humanity®
Hernando County

Office and Thrift Store: 2035 Broad Street

Office: (352) 754-1159 Fax: (352) 754-6044
Thrift Store: (352) 754-1255
Mailing: P.O. Box 15389, Brooksville, Fl. 34604

October 17, 2007

Bill Geiger, Community Development Director

201 Howell Avenue

Brooksville, Fl.

34601

Dear Mr. Geiger:

-/
AGENDA ITEM NO. £

//-5-07

This is a formal request to withdraw our zoning change and
special exception petition we submitted for 19370 Oliver Street,

Brooksville, Fl.

34601.

We certainly appreciate all of the assistance that you and Pat
Jobe provided to us in this process. We also appreciate the fact
that the City Council was so willing to assist Habitat in this
project and we appreciate their patience as we tried to work
through these difficulties.

We are sorry that we were unable to come to a workable
compromise, related to build-out costs, with the building
owners in order for Habitat to be able to use this building.

In the end we have to make the decision based on what is
financially sound for the future of Habitat's mission.

Thank you again and God Bless,

gs, President
mamt of Hernando County

Email: mail@habitathernando.org Web-site: www. habitathernendo.org
Habitat for Humanity does not retain a professional solicitor or professional fundraising consultant.
All donations to Habitat for Humanity under this program are used exclusively for the building of
Habitat houses. Habitat for Humanity of Hernando County is a 501 (c) 3 tax-exempt organization.
Florida Department of Agriculture and Consumer Services L.D. SC-03131
Habitat for Humanity of Hernando County is a United Way Agency

Jesus replied, “You must love the Lord your God with all your heart, all your soul, and all your mind..’
This is the first and greatest commandment. A second is equally important: Love your neighbor as

yourself. “Matthew 22: 37-39 NLT



STAFF REPOR

T ol v‘ City Council Members : )

Via: T. Jennene Norman-Vacha, City Mana T L///jzg //4(9
From: Bill Geiger, Community Development Birectér

Subject:  RZ2007-04 and SE2007-07 and 08; Petition request to rezone from Agricultural to
C-2 (Commercial) with a Special Exception Use for Light Manufacturing and a
Special Exception Use for a Secondhand Retail Store

Petitioner: Hernando County Board of County Commissioners (property owner) and Grace M.
Haines (lessee/building owner); Presented by Clifford Fouts - Habitat for Humanity
of Hernando County

Location: 19370 Oliver Street - Ref. HCPA Parcel Key # 01305607
Date: Qctober 22, 2007

Introduction and Backeground Information:

The subject property is 3.25 acres +, currently zoned as Agricultural and is located on the north-
central side of the Hernando County Fairgrounds property off of U.S. Highway 41 South, and on the
south side of Oliver Street (See attached location map). The Petitioner is specifically requesting that
the property be rezoned from Agricultural to C-2 Commercial, with two (2) Special Exception Use
(SEU) petitions. One SEU petition is for Light Manufacturing and one is for a Secondhand Retail
Store, both to be located at this site. This property was annexed into the city on June 7, 1993.
Historically, light manufacturing operations have been a primary use on this property (including a
sewing factory and Clinch-On Tools, a fastener manufacturer).

Land Use/Zoning:

The subject property is zoned Ag (Agricultural) with a City Comprehensive Plan Future Land Use
(FLU) designation of Public Facilities and Land. Property located on the north side of Oliver Street
has a County zoning designation of Residential with a FLU designation of residential, and properties
to the south, east and west have a City zoning designation of Agricultural, with a FLU designation
of Public Facilities and Land.

Factual Information:

1. The property has a current zoning designation of Agricultural. The Petitioner is requesting
a C2 zoning designation with Special Exception Use for a second hand store and light
manufacturing.

2. The property for this petition’s zoning is approximately 3.25 + acres.

3. The site is already developed with buildings and parking that will support the proposed use.

4. Habitat for Humanity of Hernando County is proposing to use the site for their office, thrift

store, warehouse and pre-assembly activities associated with their programto build affordable
housing in Hernando County.

5. The subject property has existing, improved access to Oliver Street.
6. The on-site soil type is Blichton loamy fine sand (2% to 5% Slopes).
7. The property is located in flood zone C (as per the FIRM). Elevations range from 100' to

112" with the property sloping/draining toward the northwest.
8. The subject property is not located within a wellhead protection area.
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RZ2007-004 & SE 2007-07 and 08
Hernando County BCC, Grace M. Haines &
Habitat for Humanity of Hernando County
November 5, 2007

Staff Findings:

The petitioner is requesting this re-zoning and two (2) special exception uses to enable the petitioner
to use the existing, developed property for light manufacturing (storage of building materials,
construction of walls to be transported to home building sites, etc.) and also to enable the petitioner
to operate a secondhand retail store with all the proceeds going toward defraying the cost for
construction materials. No new buildings or development is being proposed with this project.

The city will continue to provide services to the site, including police & fire protection, water service
and solid waste collection services.

The Habitat for Humanity project traffic will be served by Oliver Street, which is currently a small,
local road with varying pavement width. This general area is transitioning, with additional higher
density residential and commercial uses anticipated for the future. City and County staff have done
some preliminary coordination and planning with prospective developers in this vicinity, and
anticipate that Oliver Street will eventually be improved and extended to the east to connect with the
future road to be constructed by 2008-2009, know as Governor Boulevard. The anticipated traffic
impact produced by Habitat for Humanity’s use of the subject property is expected to be nominal, in
consideration of its prior established use. However, if another heavier commercial use were to
occupy the property in the future, additional evaluation of the impacts of said heavier use would need
to be measured and mitigated, if necessary.

If approved, the petitioner’s requested zoning and SEU will facilitate their proposed use for the
property. Any future development or change of use on the property will be subject to concurreny
review and analysis at the time when a development order/permit application is submitted.

Budget Impact:
There are no budget amendments or adjustments required in conjunction with the processing of this
petition.

NOTE: The zoning amendment/special exception use petition process is a land use determination which
does not constitute a permit for either construction on or use of the property. Nor are these actions
considered a Certificate of Concurrency. Prior to use of or construction on the property, the petitioner
must receive construction plan or use approval from the appropriate City and/or other governmental
agencies that have regulatory authority over the proposed development/use.

The granting of this land use determination does not protect the owner from civil liability for recorded
deed restrictions which may exceed amy City land use ordinances. Homeowner associations or
architectural review committees may require submission of plans for their review and approval. The
applicant for this land use request should contact the local association (if there is one) and review the
Public Records for all restrictions that may be applicable to this property.

This report does not include the perspective of adjacent landowners, who may be present at the public
meeting to address and present questions and comment.
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RZ2007-004 & SE 2007-07 and 08
Hernando County BCC, Grace M. Haines &
Habitat for Humanity of Hernando County
November 5, 2007

Planning & Zoning Commission and Staff Recommendation:

At their meeting on August 8, 2007, the Planning & Zoning Commission concurred with staff to

recommend that City Council approve the re-zoning of this property from Agricultural to C2

(Commercial) witha Special Exception Use for Light Manufacturing and a Special Exception Use

for a Secondhand Retail Store, subject to the following conditions (Strikeout/Underline formatting

is usedto indicate modifications made by the Commission to the original staff recommendation-Staff

endorse the modifications made):

1. Use of this property is restricted exclusively for a secondhand store and light manufacturing
with related offices and storage areas. No other uses are permitted on this property. The
owner must apply to the city with a request to rezone the property in order to establish a

different use for this property.

2. The petitioner/developer must obtain all required permits and meet all applicable land
development regulations, for construction or use of the property.
3. If additional site development were proposed for the property (beyond the scope of exiting

site coverage and floor area ratio), the prospective developer will be required to construct an
on-site storm water drainage control system that meets the design and performance standards
as specified by the technical requirements for open and closed basins in the Environmental
Resource Permitting Information Manual, latest edition, as published by the Southwest
Florida Water Management District. The proposed stormwater plan associated with this
project must comply with all applicable federal, state and local standards. The developer will
be required to coordinate with the City’s Department of Public Works and Community
Development to properly plan for and address drainage.

4. The active leasehold interest will need to coordinate with the City’s Customer Service

Division to activate an account for City services.

Any future use of the site, other than that which is being proposed by Habitat for Humanity

of Hernando County, will be subject to concurrency and compliance review to determine

consistency with city codes and regulations.

|

At the September 10, 2007 meeting, City Council approved the first reading of Ordinance No. 750,
and authorized the public hearing for second and final reading of the Ordinance to take place on
October 1, 2007 at 7:00 p.m. in the City Council chambers. At the October 1, 2007 meeting, City
Council continued the hearing on this petition to the November 5, 2007 meeting at 7:00 p.m., to
allow the petitioners time to review and address internal issues among themselves related to Habitat
for Humanity’s proposed lease of the subject property.

Attachments:  Rezoning Petition
Special Exception Use Petitions (Including existing site plan)
Letter dated January 25, 2007 from Habitat for Humanity
Letter dated May 18, 2007 from Hernando County Deputy County Administrator
Letter dated June 18, 2007 from Attorney Joseph M. Mason, representing Grace Haines
Zoning/SEU Ordinance No. 750
Site Location Map

G:\Bgeig\Zoning\Rezoning\cc10012007 RZ07-04 SE07-07 & SE07-07 Habitat for Humanity. wpd



ORDINANCE NO. 750

AN ORDINANCE REZONING CERTAIN PROPERTY FROM
AGRICULTURAL DISTRICT TO C-2 COMMERCIAL
DISTRICT WITH SPECIAL EXCEPTION USE FOR
LIGHT MANUFACTURING AND WITH SPECIAL
EXCEPTION USE FOR SECONDHAND RETAIL STORE
FOR CERTAIN REAL PROPERTY DESCRIBED HEREIN;
AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE.

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF BROOKSVILLE, FLORIDA, AS
FOLLOWS:

Section 1. -- That the property in the City of Brooksville, Florida as
shown on Exhibit “A” and described below is hereby zoned as C-2 Commercial with
Special Exception Use for Light Manufacturing and with Special Exception Use for
Secondhand Retail Store and the zoning map of the City of Brooksville shall be
amended accordingly.

Commencing at the NE corner of the SW 1/4 of Section 33, Township 22
South, Range 19 East, Hernando County, Florida, to thence S 01°10'13" W,
a distance of 25.00 feet to the POINT OF BEGINNING, continue thence
S01°10'13"W, a distance of 637.01 feet; thence N 30°34'41"W, a distance of
97.29 feet; thence N 42°49'11"W, a distance of 168.74 feet; thence N
32°40'26"W, a distance of 327.25 feet; thence N 00°30'14"E, a distance of
157.00; thence S89°29'41"E, a distance of 352.49 feet to the POINT OF
BEGINNING. Also described as: A TR 637X97X168X327X157X352 FT MOL IN El/2
OF SW1l/4 ORB 1041 PG 1705. PARCEL R33 422 19 0000 0510 0010

Location: 19370 Oliver Street
Petitioner: Hernando County Board of County Commissioners

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF
BROOKSVILLE, FLORIDA, AS FOLLOWS:

A. The aforementioned property located within the City of Brooksville,
Florida, is hereby assigned a zoning classification of Cc-2
Commercial with a Special Exception Use for Light Manufacturing and
a Special Exception Use for a Secondhand Retail Store, subject to
the following conditions:

1. Use of this property 1is restricted exclusively for a
secondhand store and light manufacturing with related offices
and storage areas. No other uses are permitted on this
property. The owner must apply to the city with a request to
rezone the property in order to establish a different use for
this property.

2. The petitioner/developer must obtain all reguired permits and
meet all applicable 1land development regulations, for
construction or use of the property.

3. If additional site development were proposed for the property
(beyond the scope of exiting site coverage and floor area
ratio), the prospective developer will be required to
construct an on-site storm water drainage control system that
meets the design and performance standards as specified by the
technical requirements for open and closed basins in the
Environmental Resource Permitting Information Manual, latest
edition, as published by the Southwest Florida Water
Management District. The proposed stormwater plan associated
with this project must comply with all applicable federal,
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state and local standards. The developer will be required to
coordinate with the City’'s Department of Public Works and
Community Development to properly plan for and address
drainage.

The active leasehold interest will need to coordinate with the
City'’s Customer Service Division to activate an account for
City services.

BAny future use of the site, other than that which is being
proposed by Habitat for Humanity of Hernando County, will be
subject to concurrency and compliance review to determine
consistency with city codes and regulations.

Section 2. - The City Council does hereby find that zoning classification
for the property described is consistent with the City of Brooksville Future Land
Use Element of its Comprehensive Plan and shall take effect immediately upon its

adoption.

Section 3. -

Attest:

All Ordinances in conflict herewith are expressly repealed.

CITY OF BROOKSVILLE

By:

Karen M. Phillips David Pugh

City Clerk

Mayor

PASSED on First Reading September 10, 2007
NOTICE Published on _September 21 & 28, 2007

PASSED on Second & Final Reading

Approved as to form and content VOTE OF COUNCIL:
for the reliance of the City of Bernardini
Brooksville only: Bradburn o
Burnett
Lewis
yzﬁﬂ;;f/ Pugh
Y i

David La Croik, City Attorney

G:\WP_WORK\ClerkOffice\ORDIN\750 Habitat Rezoning.wpd
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HERNANDO COUNTY BOARD
w E OF COUNTY COMMISSION PROPERTY
HABITAT FOR HUMANITY

MABON SMITH|RD

R

FAIRGROUNDS

Legend

RN  Habitat for humany rzshp
Ciy Boundary as of August 14, 2006

Prepared by

City of Brooksville Community
Development Department
August 8, 2007



CITY OF BROOKSVILLE ZONING AMENDMENT PETITION

Date: May 5, 2007

Print or Type All Information.

Applicant: Clifford B. Fouts

Mailing Address: P. 0. Box 15389
Brooksvlle, FL 34604

352-754-1159

Daytime Telephone:
Representative: Clifford B Fouts for Habitat for Humanity
Mailing Address: Same as above

Daytime Telephone:
Legal Description: Section: 33 Township:_ 223 Range: j9F i
Size of Area Covered by Application: 3.25 aten L
Highway&Street Boundaries: Qliver Streetr and U .S Hwy 41 South
Future Land Use Designation: Public Facilities and Land
Current Land Use Designation: __ Agricultural
Current Zoning Classification:  poricultural
Zoning Classification Desired: C—2 Commercial

Has a public hearing been held on this property within the last twelve months? NO

Zoning Amendment Petition Page 1 of 2 Community Development



ACKNOWLEDGMENT

I U,{J)}ﬁ/\ ,{'Q, b EE @auj—:a D , hereby state and affirm that all answers to the

questions B aid application and all sketches and data attached to and made part of this application
are honest and true to the best of my knowledge.

I am the owner of the property covered under this application.

X I am the legal representative of the owner or lessee of the property described which is

the subject matter of this application.
CO M ps E%&ﬁw\

Signatuj /

STATE OF FLQRIDA

COUNTY O

THE FOREGOING INSTRUMENT WAS ACKNOWLEDGED BEFORE ME THIS&& DAY
oF Qs , 200" BY THE ABOVE PERSON(S) WHO IS

PERSONALLY KNOWN TO ME OR-WHO HAS PRODUCEDAS-IDENTIFICATION AND
WHO @8 (DID NOT) TAKE AN OATH.

SIGNATURE Y

DA A i dihd m——vw?

PATRICIA J. JOBE 3
3

g

¢ MY COMMISSION # DD317067
&% & EXPIRES: May 06, 2008

Q Proendt i
% 1.3083343“}15( F1. Notary Discount Assoz. Co

C:\Ibolt\boards\pet_form\za_petit
Rev. 09/14/97

Zoning Amendment Petition Page 2 of 2 Community Development



PETITION FOR SPECIAL EXCEPTION USAGE

TO THE CITY OF BROOKSVILLE, FLORIDA
PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION

The undersigned Petitioner/Property Owner hereby submits this Petition for a Special Exception
Usage at the following described property, to wit: (insert typewritten legal description)

Commencing at the NE corner of the SW ¥ of Section 33, township 22 South,
Range 19 East, Hernando County, Florida, to thence S 01 degrees 10' 13" W, a
distance of 25.00 feet to the POINT OF BEGINNING, continue

thence S 01 * 10' 13" W, a distance of 637.01 feet;

thence N 30 * 34'41" W, a distance of 97.29 feet;

thence N42° 49' 11" W, a distance of 168.74 feet;

thence N 32 * 40' 26" W, a distance of 327.25 feet;

thence N 00 * 30' 14" E, a distance of 157.00 feet;

thence S 89 * 29'41" E, a distance of 352.49 feet to

the POINT OF BEGINNING,

Also described as: A TR 637X97X168X327X157X352 FT MOL IN E1/2 OF SW %
ORB 1041 PG 1705. PARCEL R33 422 19 0000 0510 0010

Subject Property Street Address: 19370 Oliver Street. Brooksville, Fl. 34601

Special Exception Petition 1 Community Development



PETITIONER IS SPECIFICALLY REQUESTING SPECIAL EXCEPTION USAGE FOR
THE FOLLOWING:

Habitat for Humanity of Hernando County needs a location which will
provide office space to administer the Habitat home building program

in Hernando County, a warehouse area for the storage of building
materials used in the construction of Habitat homes, an area where
frame wall section can be pre-built for delivery to the home construction
site and a large area suitable for the operation of a Thrift Store where
Habitat is able to sell donated used items. The proceeds of the Thrift
Store are used to pay for the administrative costs of the Habitat Affiliate
so that other donations can be used entirely toward building homes for
low-income families.

Property future land use is: manufacturing and retail

Current land use is:_Currently vacant, was light manufacturing
Property is zoned: Agricultural, grandfathered as manufacturing

Petitioner requests that said Special Exception Usage be permitted so that the Owner may utilize the
above said property to its highest and best use.

It is in the opinion of the Petitioner that the granting of a Special Exception Use of said property will
not be materially detrimental to the Public Welfare, nor to the persons or properties located in the

immediate area.

Wherefore, the Petitioner requests that the City of Brooksville, Florida, Planning and Zoning
Commission convene to hear and take jurisdiction over the subject matter of this petition.

Petitioner's Name: Clifford B. Fouts for Habitat for Humanity of Hernando County, Inc.

Street Address: 2035 Broad Street
mailing: P.O. Box 15389

City/State/Zip:Brooksville, Fl. 34604

Daytime Phone:352-754~-1159

Signature: %‘W@[}T@Z

C:\Ibolt\boards\pet_form\se_petit
Rev. 09/14/97, 12/09/97

Special Exception Petition 2 Community Development



SITE PLAN OF 19370 OLIVER STREET
EXISTING BUILDING

OLINE F{
352

O

J

A=Y

?A\nzD PARKING !

CHAIN | N




Bl1/24/2887 12:11 13527546844 HABITAT HERNANDO PAGE B7/B9

APPOINTMENT OF AGENT

CITY OF BROOKSVILLE
COUNTY OF HERNANDO
STATE OF FLORIDA

I, Grace M. Haines , the owner(s) in fee simple of the below described real
property hereby appoint C1ifford Fouts-Habjtat For Humanity as my (our) agent to file
required petitions,sign required documents, make reprosentations as to issues of fact and to appear,
as may be necessary, before the appropriate City of Brooksville authority. My agent shall also have
the authority to commit myself as owner to the necessary future performance conditions as may be

directed by the appropriate City authority as a condition of granting my petition.

Cornmencing at the NE corner of the SW % of Section 33, township 22 South,
Range 19 East, Hernando County, Florida, to thence S 01 degrees 10' 13" W, a
distance of 25.00 feet to the POINT OF BEGINNING, continue

thence S 01 * 10' 13" W, a distance of 637.01 feat;

thence N 30* 34'41" W, a distance of 97.29 feet;

thence N 42 * 49' 11" W, a distance of 168.74 feet;

thence N 32+ 40' 26" W, a distance of 327.25 feet;

thence N 00* 30' 14" E, a distance of 157.00 feet;

thence S 89 29' 41" E, a distance of 352.49 feet to

the POINT OF BEGINNING.

Also described as: A TR 637X97X168X327X157X352 FT MOL IN E1/2 OF SW %
ORB 1041 PG 1705. PARCEL R33 422 19 0000 0510 0010

Dated: /I/Q.’J/Zw(ﬁ
Sipned in the presence of:
WITNESSES: LANDOWNER(S):
Signature ('i,é;ly‘/uﬁ:h’f a,éjé() Signature J‘(géﬁ‘i% ' QC/{UYMMP ‘
Print Narne I,MH/]\ 5 WM. HI-Ko Print Name Grace M. Haines
Signature

Print Name £/ ;JAC] ~- 7 (b

Signature Signature
Print Name Print Name
Signature

Print Name

G:WP_work\Bgeig\Planning\oldINBOARDSPET\FORMMPPT,_AGT. WD

Appointment of Agent ! Community Development
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OWNER OR AGENT AFFIDAVIT

CITY OF BROOKSVILLE
COUNTY OF HERNANDO
. STATE OF FLORIDA
1, Grace M. Haines . being duly swom, bereby depose and say
Grace M. Haines is the owner of the berein described property to-wit:

Commencing at the NE corper of the SW % of Section 33, township 22 South,
Range 19 East, Hernando County, Elorida, to thence S 01 degrees 10' 13" W, a
distance of 25,00 feet to the POINT OF BEGINNING, continue

thence S 01 * 10' 13" W, a distance of 637.01 feet;

thence N 30* 34' 41" W, a distance of 97.29 feet;

thence N 42+ 49' 11" W, a distance of 168.74 feet;

thence N 32 ¢ 40' 26" W, a distance of 327.25 feet;

thence N 00 * 30' 14" E, a distance of 157.00 feet;

thence S 89 29' 41" E, a distance of 352.49 feet to

the POINT OF BEGINNING.

Also described as; A TR 637X97X168X327X157X352 FT MOL IN E1/2 OF SW %
ORB 1041 PG 1705. PARCEL R33 422 19 0000 0510 0010

Owner or Agent Affidavit ! Community Development
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ACKNOWLEDGMENT
All information mlbrrﬁtte? i, this Petition is in all respects true and correct to the best of my
knowledge and belief. // )

Witness Signature: / ’ L\ »
/ié . "Uaines
Owner/Agent Signature:__ I/ ALK T, ’

STATE OF-sEermma M ime sote
COUNTY OF _amsey

T~
OING INSTRUMENT WAS ACKNOWLEDGED BEFORE ME THIS a
DAy OF I )cc}u:\u\a ry____, B BY THE ABOVE PERSON(S)R(ETI’HCé M Hznes

WHO 18 PERSONALLY KNOWN TO ME OR WHO HAS PRODUCED
“ AS IDENTIFICATION AND WHO (DID) (DID NOT) TAKE AN

AQM\A()A M. HDM&L Blendp . Howle

SJGNATURE OF NOTARY PRINTED NAME OF NOTARY
‘(:{T:--’i. PRPRAE AR SEARSIRAA oy
: % GLENDA h. HOULL |

NOTRRY PUBLIC-BIRNESOTA &
.MvGMrMonEwlm.m. 3, 8019 s

WA e

G:\WP~WORK\Bgeig\lening\n\d]b\BOARDS\PET_FORM\OWN_,AFF.W'PD
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Officers

President:
Bob lillings

Vice-President:
Ken Aldridge

Secretary:
Arlene Palmeri

Treasurer:
Diana Bartlett

Directors

Don Berg

Glenn Claytor

Al Hernandez
Lisa Kiddon
Gerard Schneider
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Executive Pirector:

i [
itat
for Humanity®
Hernando County

C. B. Fouts

Have you
remembered
Habitat in your
will?

Office and Thrift Store: 2035 Broad Street
Office: (352) 754-1159 Fax: (352) 754-6044
Thrift Stere: (352) 754-1255

Mailing: P.O. Box 15389, Brooksville, Fl. 34604

January 25, 2007

To: The City of Brooksville, Florida
Planning & Zoning Commission

Habitat for Humanity of Hernando County is an affiliate of Habitat for Humanity
International. Habitat of Hernando receives no funds from Habitat International
and accepts no Government funds. Donations in time and money from individuals,
businesses and organizations in Hernando County are used to build the simple,
decent, affordable houses for low-income families.

In order to attempt to build more homes Habitat opened a Thrift Store in July of
2003 because people were willing to donate "things" when they would not donate
funds. We have been able to turn donated items into cash used to build homes.
The success of our Thrift Store has become very important to the continued
success of the Affiliate. That is, by funding the construction of homes.

Since July of 2003 the Thrift Store has been in two different locations. We moved
the first time to increase space. This time we are moving at the request of our
current landlord. Habitat needs to be in a consistent location where we can
concentrate on developing funding and building more homes.

The location at 19370 Oliver Street would give us the space for offices, a Thrift
Store and still provide warehouse space where we can store building materials and
build walf sections to be transported to the home building site.

The building at 19370 Oliver Street is owned by Mrs. Grace Haines, who lives in
Minnesota. The land is owned by Hernando County and is adjacent to the Fair
Grounds. I understand that it is zoned Agricultural but the property was
grandfathered in as industrial. Mrs. Haines wishes the property to retain its
industrial designation.

Habitat is requesting that the Planning and Zoning Commission grant a Special
Exception Usage for this property to C-2 zoning, which would allow the property to
support both industrial (manufacturing) and retail use.

Habitat wishes to continue, and increase, its work in Hernando County and asks for
your assistance in helping our Affiliate to have a "home" for our operation.

Thank you,

Email: habitathernando@juno.com Web-site: habitat-hernendo.com
Habitat for Humanity does not retain a professional solicitor or professional fundraising consultant.
All donations to Habitat for Humanity under this program are used exclusively for the building pf
Habitat houses. Habitat for Humanity of Hernando County is a 501 (c) 3 tax-exempt organization.
Florida Department of Agriculture and Consumer Services [.D. SC-03131
Habitat for Humanity of Hernando County is a United Way Agency

Jesus replied, “You must love the Lord your God with all your heart, all your soul, and all your mind..’
This is the first and greatest commandment. A second is equally important: Love your neighbor as
yourself. “ Matthew 22: 37-39 NLT



Board of County Commissioners

Hernando County

_ 20 N. Main Street, Room 460
MAY 2 2 708 Brooksuville, FL 34601
(352) 754-4000
Fax (352) 754-4477

www.co.hernando.fl.us

May 18, 2007

Mr. William “Bill” Geiger
Community Development Director
City of Brooksville

201 Howell Avenue

Brooksville, Florida 34601

Re: Habitat for Humanity
Application to City of Brooksville for Commercial Uses

Dear Bill:

This letter will confirm action taken by the Hernando County Board of County
Commissioners at their meeting on May 15, 2007. On that date, the Board authorized
the re-zoning of the property located at 19370 Oliver Street, which is leased to Grace
Haines and will be subleased by Habitat for Humanity, to allow a thrift store provided
the re-zoning includes the continuation of the light manufacturing use.

If you need additional information or further action by the Board of County
Commissioners, please advise.

Sincerely,

Deputy County Administrator

pc:  Joseph M. Mason, Jr.



Law OFFICES OF

18
JUR L6 i . MCGEE & MASON
JosePH M. MASON, JR.
PROFESSIONAL ASSOCIATION
101 SOUTH MAIN STREET

CAROLE JOY BARICE+ #m POST OFFICE BOX 1900

“ BROOKSVILLE, FLORIDA 34605-1900
RICHARD M, MITZEL

oF COUNSEL TELEPHONE: (352) 796-0795
FACSIMILE: (352) 796-0235
* ALSO ADMITTED IN THE DISTRICT OF COLUMBIA E-MAIL: MAIL@MCGEEMASONLAW.COM

*ALSO ADMITTED IN ALASKA
# ALSO ADMITTED IN MICHIGAN
"BoARD CERTIFIED IN LOCAL GOVERNMENT Law PLEASE REPLY TO:

BROOKSVILLE

June 18, 2007

Mr. William “Bill” Geiger
Community Development Director

RIcCHARD E. McGEE, SR.
(1916 -2005)

4026 COMMERCIAL WAY
SPRING HiLL, FLORIDA 34606-2398
TELEPHONE: (352) 686-1028

1520 WEST CLEVELAND STREET
TAMPA, FLORIDA 33606
TELEPHONE: (81 3) 259-1098

City of Brooksville HAND DELIVERY

201 Howell Avenue
Brooksville, Florida 34601

In Re: Habitat for Humanity
Hernando County Chapter
Property at 19370 Oliver Street

Dear Bill:

Enclosed is a copy of a letter dated June 15, 2007, which I have received from Edward L.
Pardee, primary counsel, in Minnesota, for my client, Grace Haines, who I represent locally. The

letter is self-explanatory.

As you are aware, Habitat for Humanity seeks to lease the building, on Oliver Street, which

Grace Haines has under long-term lease from Hernando County. It is my understanding that Habitat
has submitted an application requesting the City to re-zone the property from agriculture (with a
preexisting non-conforming light industrial/ manufacturing use) to C-2, with a special exception for
retail uses, to accommodate both its light manufacturing/industrial and its thrift store activities.

Recently, you received a letter from the County consenting to that re-zoning, so long as the
entire property retained at least its “light manufacturing” uses. According to our conversations
regarding this matter, prior to the issuance of the County’s consent letter, both “light manufacturing”
and “thrift store retail commercial” will be allowed on the property following the rezoning as
requested.

Apparently the application by Habitat for Humanity is languishing, and not making progress
toward an ultimate decision thereon. Please let me know if there is anything I can do that will assist

in moving this matter towards a resolution.
‘ Very sincerely y%

IMM/kpm/km\D: 06/17/07 JOSEPH M. MASON, JR.
HAB061707.H-1LET

Enclosure
pc (w/o enc.): Edward L. Pardee, Esquire
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Honorable Mayor & City Council Members

Via: T. Jennene Norman-Vacha, City Managey/ﬁ’# / g 47D
From: Bill Geiger, Community Development Diteetor { ¥X

Subject: CPA 2007-S3; City of Brooksville Small-Scale (‘omprehenswe Plan Amendment,
providing a land use classification for property annexed into the City

Petitioner: [nnovators Investments Group; Presented by Gaylor Engineering

ILocation: |[North of Cortez Blvd, west of Hale Avenue and southeast of Mildred Ave.

Date: October 11, 2007

Introduction & Background Information:

This report is for a petitioner initiated, small-scale Comprehensive Plan amendment. The subject
properties related to this amendment are 5.76-acres +/-, and are located north of Cortez Blvd (S.R. 50),
west of Hale Avenue and southeast of Mildred Avenue. These properties were annexed into the City on
August 7, 2006, via Ordinance No. 720, and on June 4, 2007, via Ordinance No. 745. The properties
have a County land use designation of Residential on the Future Land Use Map of the Hernando County
Comprehensive Plan. However, the properties are within 1,320' of an established commercial node
which, pursuant to established policy in the County Comprehensive Plan, allows for commercial use to be
extended to this property. The County’s current zoning for the property is Planned Development Project
(SF) on the eastern parcel, and R1C Residential on the western parcel.

The petitioner is requesting that the City amend its Comprehensive Plan to designate this property with a
Commercial future land use designation. The petitioner has expressed an intent to build a general
commercial/office professional planned development project that would include professional office space,
retail sales, a restaurant and a hotel. The petitioner’s overall project concept plan includes a 1.95-acre £
parcel that was previously annexed and ascribed with a commercial future land use designation in the city
(previously zoned PDP-OP in the county), making the total project area approximately 7.71-acres in size.
For purposes of analyses, the total project area of 7.71 acres is considered within this report. Based on the
County’s Comprehensive Plan policies for the property, it appears that the land use designation of
Commercial for this property may be considered consistent with the County’s Comprehensive Plan.

The City’s adoption of the proposed land use amendment will establish a land use designation for the
property within the City’s Comprehensive Plan, as is customary following the annexation and
incorporation of property into the City’s jurisdiction.

The table below identifies the proposed amendment.

Table 1 - Future Land Use Map Amendment

File No. Existing County FLU |Propesed City FLU Location Acreage | Petitioner
Map Designation Map Designation
CPA 2007-S3 Residential (County) Commercial North of Cortez Blvd. (S.R. 50),| 5.76+/- Innovators
(City) west of Hale Avenue and Investment
southeast of Mildred Avenue Group

The subject parcels are identified by Hernando County Property Appraiser Key #358231 (2.03-acres 1),
and a portion of Key #150491 (3.79-acres +).
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DATA & ANALYSIS (As previously stated, this data and analysis section will address the total
project area of 7.71-acres +/-, which includes a 1.95-acre+/- parcel that currently has a Commercial

land use designation):

Natural Resources and Features:

The parcel located east and south of Mildred Avenue has a single family residence located on it. A barn
structure is located on the parcel west of Hale Avenue. Vegetation on the subject properties consist of
Pine and Oak trees primarily, with a medium cover underbrush. The soil on the subject properties is
identified as Wachula and Blichton. Topography consists of a ridge running north and south and sloping
east and west. The proposed amendment is not within nor will it affect an Area of Critical State Concern.

Compatibility with Surrounding Area:

If the land use change is approved, the property owner is proposing a Commercial Planned Development
Project with up to 90,000 square feet of commercial floor area. Specifically, the project proposal is for up
to 30,000-square-feet for general offices, 10,000-square-feet for general retail, a 5,000-square-foot
restaurant and a 45,000-square-foot hotel. Subject to the application of appropriate performance
standards and the project meeting the requirements of the City’s Adequate Public Facilities Ordinance,
the proposed commercial land use designation would be compatible with the surrounding area.

Public Facilities and Level of Service:

This amendment property will be served by City water and sewer services. Access will be via Cortez
Boulevard and Hale Avenue. Police, fire and sanitation collection services will also be provided by the
City. Based on data assumptions contained within the City's Comprehensive Plan, the following analysis
depicts the impacts associated with the proposed level of development:

Trip Generation: Per the ITE Trip Generation Manual, the proposed land uses (which include
LU Code #820 [General Commercial], #710 [General Office], #310 [Hotel] & #931 [Restaurant]), this
project would generate approximately 360 vehicle trips during the P.M. Peak Hour. A more detailed
traffic analysis would be required in order to address the impact of the proposed project on the level of
service for the impacted road network.

Water: The daily demand for potable water is estimated to be approximately 23,500 GPD. This
quantity does not cause the City to exceed its allowable maximum daily consumption of 2.24 MGD.
Detailed plans are required to determine the extent of what water system improvements will be needed to
serve the project.

Sewer: The estimated daily effluent generation is approximately 21,500 GPD. The project’s
effluent can currently be accommodated by the City’s treatment capacity, which is currently being
expanded from 1.5 to 3.0 MGD. Detailed plans are required to determine the extent of what wastewater
system improvements will be needed to serve the project.

Drainage: The subject site is located within Flood Zone C, which is defined as an area
exhibiting minimal flood potential. No wetlands have been identified within the site. Development of the
site will have to meet SWFWMD 40D-4 permitting requirements, as well as the City's Comprehensive
Plan policies relating to stormwater retention and conveyance.
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Recreation Facilities: Not applicable to a commercial project.

Consistency with the Comprehensive Plan: This plan amendment represents a small-scale
amendment permitted under state law [as defined in Section 163.3187(1)(c), F.S.]. The proposed land use
amendment provides a future land use designation for the subject property that appears to be compatible
with growth and development patterns in the area. Additional information and support documents for the
proposed plan amendment are contained in the petitioner’s application documents.

Budget Statement: Direct costs incurred by the City in processing this plan amendment are absorbed in
the petition fee structure.

Legal Note: The processing of this amendment is subject to the review and approval by the City’s legal
counsel.

Public Input: This report does not include the perspective of adjacent landowners, who may be present
at the public meeting to address and present questions and comment. Three individuals that own property
in the vicinity of the subject site spoke against the petition at the Planning & Zoning Commission meeting
on October 10, 2007. Concerns cited by these individuals included the impact of additional traffic on
Hale Avenue, the proximity and buffering of commercial property adjacent to residential, lighting, fear
that the commercial area would connect to Mildred Avenue, tree removal that would occur with project
development and the potential height of commercial structures with future development of the property.

Staff and Planning & Zoning Commission Recommendation:

At their meeting on October 10, 2007, the Planning and Zoning Commission concurred with the staff
recommendation to find that the proposed Future Land Use Map Amendment CPA 2007-S3 is consistent
with the City’s Comprehensive Plan, and recommend that the City Council, sitting as the Local Planning
Agency (LPA), hold a public hearing to receive and consider input from the general public related to the
Comprehensive Plan Amendment. After holding the Public Hearing as the LPA, the City Council should
then hold a public hearing to take action on an Ordinance to adopt the Plan amendment, and authorize the
Mayor to sign the transmittal letter to send the Comprehensive Plan Amendment to the appropriate
agencies as required by Statute.

Attachments: (1) Draft Submittal Letter prepared pursuant to Section 9J-11.015(1), F.A.C.
) Form RPM-BSP-Small Scale-3 & Transmittal Check list
3) Draft Ordinance No. 1755
) CITY OF BROOKSVILLE PROPOSED FUTURE LAND USE MAP
AMENDMENT - CPA 2007-S3
% Petition (As submitted by Innovators Investment Group)
6) Site Plan

G:\Bgeig\CPA 2007\Small Scale\PZ10102007 CPA SmSc Amend - Innovators.doc



ORDINANCE NO. 755

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF BROOKSVILLE,
FLORIDA, APPROVING A SMALL-SCALE AMENDMENT
TO THE FUTURE LAND USE MAP OF THE CITY OF
BROOKSVILLE COMPREHENSIVE PLAN; PURSUANT
TO PROCEDURES ESTABLISHED IN SECTIONS
163.3187(1) (C), FLORIDA STATUTES;
PROVIDING SEVERABILITY; REPEALING ALL
ORDINANCES IN CONFLICT; AND PROVIDING AN
EFFECTIVE DATE

WHEREAS, Section 166.021, Florida Statutes, empowers the City Council
of the City of Brooksville, Florida, hereinafter referred to as the City
Council, to prepare, adopt, implement and amend city ordinances; and

WHEREAS, Sections 163.3161 through 163.3215, Florida Statutes, the
Local Government Comprehensive Planning and Land Development Regulation Act,
empowers and requires the City Council to prepare, adopt, implement and amend
a Comprehensive Plan by ordinance; and

WHEREAS, Application No. CPA 2007-S3 to amend the Future Land Use Map
of the Comprehensive Plan, has been filed with the City; and

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Brocksville, Florida, has been
designated as the Local Planning Agency of the City of Brooksville, Florida,
hereinafter referred to as the Local Planning Agency; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Section 163.3174, Florida Statutes, the City
Council, serving also as the Local Planning Agency, held the required public
hearing, with public notice having been provided, on said application for
amendment, as described herein, to the Future Land Use Map of the City’'s
Comprehensive Plan, and at said public hearing, the City Council, serving as
the Local Planning Agency, reviewed and considered all comments received
during said public hearing concerning said application for amendment, as
described herein, to the Future Land Use Map of the City’'s Comprehensive
Plan, and endorsed the approval of said application for amendment, as
described herein, to the City’s Comprehensive Plan; and

WHEREAS, the City Council (serving as the Local Planning Agency) did on
November 5, 2007, review and consider all comments received during a public
hearing, including recommendations of the City’s Planning and Zoning
Commission, and the Comprehensive Plan Amendment support documents concerning
said application for amendment as described herein, to the Future Land Use
Map of the City’s Comprehensive Plan; and on November 19, 2007, the City
Council, sitting as the governing body, did hold the required public hearing,
with public notice having been provided, under the provisions of the small-
scale development amendment procedures established in Sections 163.3187(c)
Florida Statutes, on said application for amendment, as described herein, to
the Future Land Use Map of the City’'s Comprehensive Plan; and

WHEREAS, the City Council has determined and found said applications
for amendments, as described herein, to the Future Land Use Map of the City's
Comprehensive Plan, to be consistent with the Future Land Use Element's
goals, objectives and policies, and those of other affected elements of the
Ccity’s Comprehensive Plan and Land Development Regulations; and
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WHEREAS, the City Council has determined and found that approval of
said applications for amendments, as described herein, to the Future Land Use
Map of the City’s Comprehensive Plan, would promote the public health,
safety, morals, order, comfort, appearance, prosperity, or general welfare of
the community.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF
BROOKSVILLE, FLORIDA, AS FOLLOWS:

Section 1: The following small-scale amendment to the City of
Brooksville Comprehensive Plan is hereby approved:

Future Land Use Map Amendment

File No. Existing Proposed Location Acres Petitioner
Future Land Future Land Use
Use Map MAP Designation
Designation
CPA 2007-83 Residential Commercial North of Cortez|5.76+/~ Innovators
(County) (City) Blvd. (S.R. Investment
50), west of Group, LLC

Hale Avenue and
east of Mildred
nvenue

CPA 2007-83

pursuant to a Comprehensive Plan Amendment application, CPA 2007-83, by
Innovators Investment Group, LLC, to amend the Future Land Use Map of the
Ccity's Comprehensive Plan, specifically amending the future land use
classification of the following described property, as graphically shown on
Exhibit “A” attached to this Ordinance, from RESIDENTIAL to COMMERCIAL:

LEGAL DESCRIPTION

COMMENCING AT THE NORTHEAST CORNER OF THE SOUTHWEST % OF SECTION 27,
TOWNSHIP 22 SOUTH, RANGE 19 EAST, HERNANDO COUNTY, FLORIDA, GO THENCE
NORTH 88°38'58” WEST ALONG THE % SECTION LINE A DISTANCE OF 847.04 FEET;
THENCE SOUTH 01°50'32" WEST, A DISTANCE OF 666.67 FEET TO THE POINT OF
BEGINNING; THENCE CONTINUE SOUTH 01°50'32” WEST, A DISTANCE OF 125.00
FEET; THENCE SOQUTH 87°24'58" EAST, A DISTANCE OF 353.00 FEET; THENCE
NORTH 01°50'32" EAST, A DISTANCE OF 125.00 FEET; THENCE NORTH 87°24'58"
WEST, A DISTANCE QF 353.00 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING.

LESS THE WESTERLY 40 FEET THEREOF TO BE USED FOR ROAD RIGHT-OF-WAY
PURPOSES. SATID LANDS LYING IN AND BEING A PART OF THE SOUTHWEST 4 OF
SECTION 27, TOWNSHIP 22 SOUTH, RANGE 19 EAST, HERNANDO COUNTY, FLORIDA.

AND

COMMENCING AT THE NORTHEAST CORNER OF THE SOUTHWEST % OF SECTION 27,
TOWNSHIP 22 SOUTH, RANGE 19 EAST, HERNANDO COUNTY, FLORIDA, THENCE NORTH
88°38'58” WEST ALONG THE % SECTION LINE, A DISTANCE OF 847.04 FEET,
THENCE SOUTH 01°50'32” WEST, A DISTANCE OF 791.67 FEET TO THE POINT OF
BEGINNING; THENCE CONTINUE SQUTH 01°50'32” WEST, A DISTANCE OF 150.00
FEET; THENCE SOUTH 87°24'58” EAST, A DISTANCE OF 353.00 FEET; THENCE
NORTH 01°50'32"” EAST, A DISTANCE QF 105.00 FEET; THENCE NORTH 87°24'58"
WEST, A DISTANCE OF 353.00 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING.

LESS THE WEST 20 FEET THEREOF AND ALSO LESS THE EAST 20 FEET OF THE WEST
40 FEET THEREOF RESERVED FOR ROAD RIGHT-OF-WAY PURPOSES. SAID LANDS
LYING IN AND BEING A PART OF THE SOUTHWEST 4 OF SECTION 27, TOWNSHIP 22
SOUTH, RANGE 19 EAST, HERNANDO COUNTY, FLORIDA.

AND

COMMENCE AT THE NORTHEAST CORNER OF THE NORTHEAST % OF THE SOUTHWEST 4 OF
SECTION 27, TOWNSHIP 22 SOUTH, RANGE 19 EAST, HERNANDO COUNTY, FLORIDA,
THENCE RUN SOUTH 00°42'18” EAST ALONG THE EASTERLY BOUNDARY OF SAID
NORTHEAST Y% OF THE SOUTHWEST % A DISTANCE OF 546.28 FEET, THENCE RUN
NORTH 89°13'57" WEST A DISTANCE OF 119.34 FEET TO THE WESTERLY RIGHT-OF-
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WAY LINE OF HALE AVENUE AND THE POINT OF BEGINNING, THENCE RUN SOUTH
00°34'34" WEST ALONG SAID WESTERLY RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE A DISTANCE OF 434.52
FEET, THENCE RUN SOUTH89°53'26” WEST ALONG THE NORTHERLY BOUNDARY AND THE
EXTENSION THEREOF OF THAT CERTAIN PARCEL OF LAND DESCRIBED IN OR BOOK
118, PAGE 260, PUBLIC RECORDS OF HERNANDO COUNTY, FLORIDA A DISTANCE OF
364.80 FEET TO THE NORTHWEST CORNER OF SAID PARCEL, THENCE RUN SOUTH
00°49'09” EAST ALONG THE WESTERLY BOUNDARY OF SAID PARCEL A DISTANCE OF
217.44 FEET TO A POINT ON THE NORTHERLY RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF CORTEZ
BOULEVARD (S.R. 50), THENCE RUN ALONG SAID RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE SOUTH
89°34'09"” WEST A DISTANCE OF 346.06 FEET, THENCE RUN NORTH 00°03'53" WEST
A DISTANCE OF 249.76 FEET TO THE SOUTHERLY BOUNDARY OF A PARCEL DESCRIBED
IN OR BOOK 74, PAGES 620 THROUGH 635, OF SAID PUBLIC RECORDS, THENCE RUN
SOUTH 89°13'57” EAST ALONG THE SOUTHERLY BOUNDARY OF SAID PARCEL A
DISTANCE OF 333.00 FEET TO THE SOUTHEAST CORNER OF SAID PARCEL, THENCE
RUN NORTH 00°03'537 WEST ALONG THE EASTERLY BOUNDARY AND THE EXTENSION
THEREOF OF SAID PARCEL A DISTANCE OF 415.00 FEET TO THE SOUTHERLY
BOUNDARY OF THAT CERTAIN PARCEL OF LAND DESCRIBED IN OR BOOK 1367, PAGES
672 AND 673, THENCE RUN SOUTH 89°13'57” EAST ALONG SAID SOUTHERLY
BOUNDARY A DISTANCE OF 379.93 FEET TO THE SOUTHEAST CORNER OF SAID
PARCELS AND THE POINT OF BEGINNING. LESS THAT PORTION DEEDED TO THE
STATE OF FLORIDA IN OR BOOK 1152, PAGE 1802, PUBLIC RECORDS OF HERNANDO
COUNTY, FLORIDA. SUBJECT TO AN EASEMENT TO FLORIDA POWER CORPORATION
RECORDED IN OR BOOK 749, PAGE 1721, PUBLIC RECORDS OF HERNANDO COUNTY,
FLORIDA.

LESS

A PARCEL OF LAND LYING IN AND BEING A PART OF THE NORTHEAST 1/4 OF THE
SOUTHWEST 1/4 OF SECTION 27, TOWNSHIP 22 SOUTH, RANGE 1S EAST, HERNANDO
COUNTY, FLORIDA AND BEING MORE PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS:

COMMENCE AT THE NORTHEAST CORNER OF SAID NORTHEAST 1/4; THENCE S 00 ° 42°
18" E, ALONG THE EASTERLY BOUNDARY OF SAID NORTHEAST 1/4, 546.28 FEET;
THENCE N 89°13' 57" W 119.34 FEET TO THE WESTERLY RIGHT OF WAY LINE OF
HALE AVENUE, THENCE S 00°34' 34" W, ALONG SAID WESTERLY RIGHT OF WAY LINE
434 .52 FEET; THENCE S 89° 53' 26" W, ALONG THE NORTHERLY BOUNDARY AND THE
EXTENSION THEREOF OF THAT CERTAIN PARCEL OF LAND DESCRIBED IN OFFICIAL
RECORDS BOOK 118, PAGE 260 OF SAID PUBLIC RECORDS, 364.80 FEET TO THE
NORTHWEST CORNER OF SAID CERTAIN PARCEL AND THE POINT OF BEGINNING;
THENCE S 00° 49' 09" E, ALONG THE WESTERLY BOUNDARY OF SAID CERTAIN
PARCEL, 217.44 FEET TO THE NORTHERLY RIGHT OF WAY LINE OF STATE ROAD 50
(CORTEZ BOULEVARD) ; THENCE S 89° 34' 09" W, ALONG SAID RIGHT OF WAY LINE,
346.06 FEET; THENCE N 00°03' 53" W, 249.76 FEET TO THE SOUTHERLY BOUNDARY
OF THAT CERTAIN PARCEL OF LAND (STEVE AND GERRY MANUEL PARCEL) DESCRIBED
IN OFFICIAL RECORDS BOOK 74, PAGES 620 THROUGH 635 OF SAID PUBLIC
RECORDS; THENCE S 89° 13' 57" E, ALONG THE SOUTHERLY BOUNDARY OF SAID
CERTAIN PARCEL, 342.90 FEET TO THE SQUTHEAST CORNER OF GSAID PARCEL;
THENCE S 00°19' 09" E 25.15 FEET TO THE NORTHWEST CORNER OF SAID CERTAIN
PARCEL AND THE POINT OF BEGINNING. SUBJECT TO EASEMENTS AND RIGHTS OF
WAY OF RECORD.

Section 2. Purpose and Intent. This Ordinance is enacted to carry out
the purpose and intent of and to exercise the authority set out in the Local
Government Comprehensive Planning and Land Development Regulations Act,
Sections 163.3161 through 163.3215, Florida Statutes and Chapter 97-351 Laws
of Florida, as amended.

Section 3. Adoption of Amendment to Comprehensive Plan. The plan
amendment to the City of Brooksville Future Land Use Map, as described
hereto, is hereby adopted by the City of Brooksville.

Section 4. Severability. If any provision, word, sentence, or
paragraph of this Ordinance is declared by any court of competent
jurisdiction to be void, wunconstitutional or unenforceable, then all
remaining provisions, words, sentences, paragraphs and portions of this
Ordinance shall remain in full force and effect.

Section 5. Conflict. All ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict
herewith are, to the extent of such conflict, hereby repealed.

Section 6. Effective Date. This plan amendment shall become effective
immediately upon the adoption of this Ordinance.
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CITY OF BROOKSVILLE

Attest: By:

Karen M. Phillips, City Clerk David Pugh, Mayor

PASSED on First Reading
NOTICE Published on
PASSED on Second & Final Reading

Approved as to form and content VOTE OF COUNCIL:

for the reliance of the City of Bernardini

Brooksville only: Bradburn
Burnett

A

- Lewis
JZJ/ it /4 o

Thémas S. Hogan, Jr.;/éity Attorney

G: \WP_WORK\ClerkOffice\ORDIN\755 - Innovators SSCPA
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Date

Mr. D. Ray Eubanks, Planning Manager
Florida Department of Community Affairs

Bureau of Local Planning
Plan Processing Team MAILED VIA CERTIFIED MAIL
Sadowski Building RETURN RECEIPT REQUESTED

2555 Shumard Oak Boulevard
Tallahassee, FL. 32399-2100

RE: Submittal of Adopted Small-Scale Amendment to the Future Land Use Map of the
City’s Comprehensive Plan (Ref. No. Brooksville CPA 2007-S3)

Dear Mr. Eubanks:

Please find enclosed, in accordance with Sections 163.3187(1)(c), Florida Statutes and Rule Section 9J-
11.015(1), Florida Administrative Code, one copy of the above-referenced adopted Small-Scale Amendment
to the Future Land Use Element/Maps of the Comprehensive Plan.

The City Council serving also as the Local Planning Agency held the public hearings concerning the
amendment to the future land use map of the Comprehensive Plan on and

after public notice was issued as required. At the second public hearing, the City Council adopted the
amendment and authorized its submittal to the State and Regional Planning Council. Copies of the public
notice(s) for the public hearings are enclosed.

The amendment involves property totaling 5.76 acres +/- in size. The cumulative total number of acres for
small-scale amendments that the City of Brooksville has approved for calendar year 2007, including this
amendment, is 8.40 acres +/-.

The proposed amendment is not subject to an area of critical state concern. The proposed amendment is not
related to a proposed Development of Regional Impact pursuant to Chapter 380, Florida Statutes.

The proposed amendment is exempt from the twice per year limitation on the adoption of comprehensive plan
amendments.

The proposed amendment is not proposed to be adopted under a joint planning agreement pursuant to Section
163.3171, Florida Statutes.

All of the applicable items required by Rule 9J-11.015(1)(2), F.A.C. are enclosed with this submittal. The City
has also enclosed the Comprehensive Plan Citizen Courtesy Information List which was made available at the
public hearings to anyone who expressed an interest in being advised of the Department’s Notice of Intent
determination. No one provided information on the form.
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Mr. D. Ray Eubanks
CPA 2007-S3

Bill Geiger, the City’s Community Development Director, is the person who is familiar with the proposed
amendment and can be contacted in writing at 201 Howell Avenue, Brooksville, Florida 34601, or by
telephoning (352) 544-5430 (fax number 352-544-5429), or by email at bgeiger@eci.brooksville fl.us

The adopted amendment is available for public inspection during regular business hours at the Brooksville
Community Development Department located at 201 Howell Avenue, Brooksville, Florida.

Sincerely,

David Pugh
Mayor

Enclosures
XC: Michael R. Moehlman, Executive Director, Withlacoochee Regional Planning Council
Ronald F. Pianta, Planning Director , Hernando County Local Planning Agency,

Ken Pritz, Facility & Support Operations Executive Director, Hernando County School Board
File
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FORM RPM-BSP- EXEMPT REVIEW

AMENDMENTS EXEMPT FROM STATE AND REGIONAL REVIEW
1. Name of Local Government ?\ll\/@&m ) M/U’.Q .

Person completing this form Q;l; U Mﬁw\,

Phone Number 25 -5 454U D0 '

Name of Newspaper in which notice of amendment was publishm\dibm,u\/
0

Date Publication Noticed ¥ 2-4 2% -0
(Please attach copy of notice)

.2. Please indicate type of amendment being submitted:

\__a). a map amendment directly related to proposed small scale development activities that meet the criteria of

Section 163.3187(1)(c), F.S.;

b). a map amendment solely to property within an urban service boundary that meets the criteria of Section

163.3184(17), F.S;
¢). a map amendment solely to property within a designated urban infill and redevelopment area pursuant to
Section 163.3184(18), F.S.;

d). a plan amendment associated with an area certified pursuant to Section 163.3246, F.S.

Please complete the following information if amendment is submitted under 2(a):
3. If amendment contains a residential land use category indicate:

density allowed prior to change _&_{A dwelling unit(s) per acre.

density allowed after change N A dwelling unit(s) per acre.

4. Number of acres of small scale development amendments contained in package: 3. Te

a. Within Urban Infill, Urban Redevelopment or Downtown Revitalization as defined by Section 163.3164, FS £~
b. Within Transportation Concurrency Exception Area pursuant to Section 163.3180(5), FS__—5—

c. Within Regional Activity Centers or Urban Central Business Districts pursuant to Section 380.06(2)(e), FS &—
d. Within a Rural Area of Critical Economic Concern pursuant to Section 163.3187(1)(c)4, FS -

(Please attach certifying letter to OTTED)

e. Outside categories a., b,c. andd. __ -0~

5. Cumulative total number of acres of small scale development amendments for the calendar year: q. q (@
a. Categories listed in Item 4 a, b, ¢ and d. above —&—
b. Categories listed in Item 4 e above —&~

6. Total number of acres of small scale development amendments in this package that are located within the coastal high
hazard area as identified in the comprehensive plar—S—

Pursuant to Rule 9J-11.015(1)(b)5, Florida Administrative Code, this form must be mailed with all amendments as
defined by Section 9J-11.015(1)(a) Florida Administrative Code to:

DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY AFFAIRS
PLAN PROCESSING SECTION

2555 Shumard Oak Boulevard

Tallahassee, Florida 32399-2100

(850) 488-4925



9J-11 TRANSMITTAL REQUIREMENTS FOR THE SUBMISSION OF
ADOPTED SMALL- SCALE COMPREHENSIVE PLAN AMENDMENTS

APRIL 2006

NUMBER OF COPIES TO BE SUBMITTED: Please submit within ten working days after
adoption, one copy of all plan amendment materials, which may be on CD ROM in Portable
Document Format (PDF), including graphic and textual materials and support documents directly
to the Florida Department of Community Affairs, Division of Community Planning, Plan
Processing Team and one copy each to the appropriate Regional Planning Council and any other
local government or governmental agency in the state of Florida that has filed a written request
with the focal govemment.

SUBMITTAL LETTER REQUIREMENTS: Please include the following information in the
transmittal cover letter transmitting the adopted small-scale amendment (9J-11.015(1), F.A.C.):

"\~ A statement indicating that the local government is submitting the adopted small-scale
amendment in accordance with Section 163.3187(1)(c), F.S.;

\1 A statement identifying the number of acres of the small-scale amendment;

. A statement identifying the cumulative total number of acres for small-scale amendments
the local government has approved for the calendar year,

A statement identifying whether the amendment involves the same property that was
granted another change within the prior 12 months.

A statement identifying whether the amendment involves the same owner’s property within
200 feet that was granted a change with the prior 12 months.

A statement identifying whether the proposed amendment involves a text change.
"\s_A statement identifying whether the amendment is within an area of critical state concern.

Nl A statement indicating the residential land use density before and after the adopted change
if the land use change contained a residential land use category

(9] A statement indicating the that the amendment has been submitted to the appropriate
Regional Planning Council, the Office of Tourism, Trade and Economic Development (if
amendment is being adopted pursuant to Section 163.3187(1)(c)4, F.S.) and any other local
government or governmental agency in the state of Florida that has filed a written request with
the local government.

S~ The name, title, address, telephone and fax number of the local contact person.
ADOPTION: The amendment package must include the following (see 9J-11.015(1), (2), F.S.):

One copy of the executed ordinance(s) adopting the small-scale development amendment
(Rule 9J-11.015(1)(b)2, F.A.C.),



CITY OlF
BROOKSVYIILILIE

PETITION FOR VOLUNTARY ANNEXATION, AMENDMENT OF
THE FUTURE LAND USE MAP OF THE BROOKSVILLE
COMPREHENSIVE PLAN, AND AMENDMENT OF THE OFFICIAL
ZONING MAP

(DO NOT WRITE IN THIS SPACE, FOR CITY OFFICE USE ONLY)

Petition # _ Annexation FLUMA

Date received: Arﬁount Paid: §

Tentative dates of Hearings:

Property Owner

Name: Innovators Investment Group/ Dan Pitts and Bob Nelson

Address: P.0. Box 671

City: _ Lutz State: F1 Zip: 33548  Phone/Fax: 813-909-8393
Fax: 813-909-8373

Applicant

Name: Innovators Investment Group/ Dan Pitts and Bob Nelson

Address: P.O. Box 671

City: Lutz State: F1  Zip: 33548 Phone/Fax: 813-909-8393
Fax: 813-909-8373

Agent

Name: Michael J. Gaylor, P.E./ Gaylor Engineering

Address: Osprey Cove Professional Park/ 21764 State Road 54

City:  Lutz State: g1 Zip: 33549  Phone/Fax: 813-949-5599
Fax: 813-949-0818




General Information

Property Location and/or Address: _Mildred Avenue West of Hale Road
and North of S.R. 50
LqﬁlDemxmﬁom SEE ATTACHED EXHIBIT "A"

Tax Parcel #2 R27 222 19 3580 0000 0020 Parcel Key #:_ 00150491
R27 422 19 0000 0270 0000 00358231

Site Acreage: 7.71 acres

(2) Incorporated Area:__7.71 acres

(b) Unincorporated Area:

(¢) TOTAL ACREAGE _7. 71 acres

Existing and Proposed Land Use & Zoning Information

Present Zoning/Land Use Map Designation: _Professional Office and Single Family/
Commercial and low density RESIDENTIAL

Proposed Zoning/Land Use Map Designation: Planned Development Proj ect/ Commercial

Land Use Map Amendment Required: Yes _XX No From To
For All Development:
Flood Zone: __ ¢ Base Elevation Required: _N/A

Residential Development:

Total # Units: __ N/A Single Family: B _Multi-Family:

Non Residential Development:

Total Non-Residential Floor Area: 90,000 .

Commercial 60,000  Professional 30,000 Industrial N/A
Mixed Use N/A

Description of Existing Land Uses on the subject property:

Mostly vacant with one single family house

Description of Existing Land Uses surrounding the subject property:

North - Vacant and Residential
East - Vacant
West - Vacant

South ~ Cortez Boulevard/ S.R. 50



Proposed Use of the subject property (development description, schecule, and phases):

Motel, Professional Offices, Retail Sales and Restaurant

Maximum allowable density under adopted future land use map designation:

N/A
Maximum allowable density under proposed future land use map designation:
N/A

Analysis of Soils and topography on the site:

The site soils are Wachula and Blichton. Topogarphy consists of
a ridge running north and south and sloping east and west.

Analysis of flood prone areas on the site:

None

Analysis of vegetation and natural resources on the site:

The site has a significant number of pine and oak trees along with a
medium cover of understory brush.

Analysis of historical/archeological resources on the site:

None listed or known

Analysis of the relationship of the amendment to adopted population projections:

Development will not increase population

Analysis of the impact of amendment on levels of service:

Traffic: ITE 820 General Commercial 155.09
710 General Office 22.6
310 Hotel 8.92
931 Restaurant 89.95

Total Trips per day 3,393

Potable Water: 23,500



Sanitary Sewer: 23,500° GPD

Drainage: B
Onsite retention with predevelopment runoff

Solid Waste: 2,214 pounds/day

Parks and Recreation: No impact due to commercial nature of project

Submittal Requirements
The following MUST be furnished with this application:
Signed and sealed survey
Application Form
Justification for analysis responses (computations, copies of original analyses)
Proof of Ownership (Warranty Deed, Title Certification, etc.) -

Application fee(s):
Comprehensive Plan Amendments: ~ .
Text Amendment ..........covseeresicreeenrereenrerereseneesersone $ 00 LD
Map Amendment............eeveveeeeerreeesernesessesssesessseesnes $.500, 00
Voluntary Annexatlon ......... $ No Fee
Advertising Fee (to be billed to petitioner by newspaper)......$
Certified Letters @$4:92 €ach ......ovueveveevereveereerreerseesesn. $

55j



Oct 02 07 02:37p Gavlor Engineering 813 8948 0818

AFFIDAVIT

- 1(we), the undersigned, certify ownership of the property within this application, that said ownership
has been fully divulged, whether such ownership by contingent or absolute, and that the name of all
parties to an existing contract for sale or any options are filed with this application. I (we) certify that

Michael J. Gaylor. P.E, is (are) duly designated as the agent(s) for the owner, that
the agent(s) is (are) authorized to provide subject matter on the application contained herein, whether
verbal or written, and appear at any public hearing(s) involving this petition. Further, it is understood
that this application must be complete and accurate and the fee paid prior to processing.

Date: R22-07 S Title Hold
Date: __ ¥-72-071 Title Holder: _<
Date: Title Holder: :

- State of ¥‘D€idﬁ\,
County of P(EJ‘D

The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this 272 dayo A
20,457 by Lon BRS ol 808 L\ﬂ%  whe(Epersondllyk

who has produced . - as identificaficrrand-who did not take an

oath.
| 3B Moty Publc - Ststeof Forida
. .Yy Commission Expires Apr 12, 2008
2 Commission # DD 417882
Bonded B ~

"3

]

N\otary Public L134). A. DISHRI O

HAWP_WORKRHESE\Comm Dev Projects\Comp Plan Amendment App.wpd
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AGENDA ITEM NO.
/(-3-07

MEMORANDUM o

TO: Honorable Mayor & C1ty Council Members ‘

Via: T. Jennene Norman-Vacha, City Managér W\/c/@a& )
From: Bill Geiger, Community Development Director

Subject: RZ2007-07 and SE2007-13; Petitioner is requesting a zoning classification of
Planned Development Project (PDP) with a Special Exception Use for a Combined
PDP consisting of General Commercial, Professional Office category uses.

Petitioner: Innovators Investment Group, LLC (Petition presented by Gaylor Engineering)

Location: The properties are located north of Cortez Boulevard, west of Hale Avenue and
east of the south side of Mildred Avenue - See attached drawing.

Date: October 12, 2007

Introduction & Background Information:

The subject combined properties are 7.76 acres +. The subject properties were annexed on August
7, 2006, via Ordinance No. 720 ( Harris property - 5.73 acres +) and on June 4, 2007 via Ordinance
No. 745 (Gamba property - 2.03 acres +). A Comprehensive Plan Amendment assigning a Future
Land Use of Commercial for 1.95 acres + of the subject site (fronting on Cortez Boulevard) was
approved by the City on January 22, 2007, and the Department of Community Affairs on February
5,2007. A land use amendment is currently being processed to assign a Commercial land use to the
balance of the property. A single family residence is located on the subject parcel that fronts on
Mildred Avenue, and an old barn is located on the property just west of Hale Avenue.

At this time the property owner is requesting that the City assign a zoning designation of Planned
Development Project (PDP) with a Special Exception Use for a Combined PDP, consisting of
General Commercial and Professional Office uses. Zoning of this property for the proposed project
is contingent on the processing and approval of a land use amendment for the northern 5.78 acres of
the subject site.

Land Use/Zoning:

The southerly 1.95 acres + of the subject site has a City land use designation of Commercial on the
City’s Future Land Use Map (FLUM) of its Comprehensive Plan, and was zoned OP-PDP in the
County. The balance of the subject property has a County land use designation of Residential with
the eastern portion of the property being zoned PDP-SF, and the western portion zoned R1C. A City
small-scale Comprehensive Plan Amendment to designate the northern portion of the subject site with
a future land use designation of Commercial is currently being processed, and it is noted that this
zoning request is contingent on the land use being approved.

Factual Information:

1. The southerly 1.95 acres + of the subject site has a City land use designation of Commercial
on the City’s Future Land Use Map (FLUM) of its Comprehensive Plan, and was zoned OP-
PDP in the County. The balance of the subject property has a County land use designation of
Residential with the eastern portion of the property being zoned PDP-SF, and the western
portion zoned R1C.



PAGE 2

RZ2007-06 & SE2007-13
Innovators Investrment Group, LLC
November 5, 2007

2. A City small-scale Comprehensive Plan Amendment to designate the northern portion of the
subject site with a future land use designation of Commercial is currently being processed.
This zoning request is contingent on the land use being approved.

3. The properties for this petition’s zoning total approximately 7.76 + acres.

4. The subject parcel east of Mildred Avenue has a single family residence located on it and the
parcel west of Hale Avenue contains an old barn structure. The balance of the property is
undeveloped.

5. The developer is proposing to development the entire site with office spaces, retail shops, a

restaurant and a 3-story hotel. Site development will be required to address conservation,
drainage, open space areas and all other applicable development regulations.

6. The subject properties will have access from Cortez Boulevard and Hale Avenue. A frontage
road will be constructed through the site to facilitate east-west access.

7. The on site soil types include Wachula and Blichton.

The properties are located in flood zone C (as per the FIRM).

9. The developer will be required to negotiate a utility service agreement with the City of
Brooksville to facilitate the provisions for and determine the availability of water and sewer
services to the property.

10.  The subject properties are not located within a wellhead protection area.

®

As noted, the subject properties have been annexed into the City of Brooksville’s jurisdiction.
Development of portions of this property are subject to being consistent with the County’s land use
and zoning regulations until a Comprehensive Plan Amendment assigning a City land use is
accomplished. Assigning a Planned Development Project (PDP) zoning designation with a Special
Exception Use for a Combined PDP, consisting of General Commercial and Professional Office uses
is consistent with development patterns in this area.

The petitioner proposes to develop the site with office spaces, retail sales, a restaurant and a hotel.
Development will be subject to meeting all applicable federal, state and local development and
permitting requirements. The developer will be required to comply with the City’s landscaping, buffers
and tree protection regulations.

The developer is proposing two points of access to the property. One access drive will connect to
Cortez Boulevard. The other access drive will connect to Hale Avenue. A frontage road will be
required to connect Hale Avenue with property located to the west of the subject site. A traffic study
will be required to establish the proposed developments impacts on the transportation network, as well
as mitigation measures that may be required to address any deficiencies or safety issues.

The developer will be required to construct an on-site storm water drainage control system that meets
the design and performance standards as specified by the technical requirements for open and closed
basins in the Environmental Resource Permitting Information Manual, latest edition, as published by
the Southwest Florida Water Management District.
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RZ2007-06 & SE2007-13
Innovators Investment Group, LLC
November 5, 2007

The concept plan submitted with this petition is very general in its scope. The final, detailed PDP
development plan will be required to be submitted for review and approval by the Planning & Zoning
Commission and the City Council.

When development plans are submitted for permitting of this project, they will be reviewed and
analyzed for impact to roads, utilities, drainage, the environment and compliance with all other
applicable land use criteria and will be subject to meeting all federal, state and local agency permitting
requirements.

Budget Statement: Direct costs incurred by the City in processing this petition are absorbed in the
petition fee structure.

Legal Note: The processing of this amendment is subject to the review and approval by the City’s
legal counsel.

Public Input: This report does not include the perspective of adjacent landowners, who may be
present at the public meeting to address and present questions and comment. Three individuals that
own property in the vicinity of the subject site spoke against the petition at the Planning & Zoning
Commission meeting on October 10, 2007. Concerns cited by these individuals included the impact
of additional traffic on Hale Avenue, the proximity and buffering of commercial property adjacent to
residential, lighting, fear that the commercial area would connect to Mildred Avenue, tree removal that
would occur with project development and the potential height of commercial structures with future
development of the property.

NOTE: The Zoning/Special Exception Use process is a land use determination which does
not constitute a permit for either construction on or use of the property. These actions are
not considered a Certificate of Concurrency. Prior to use of or construction on the
property, the petitioner must receive approval from the appropriate City and/or other
governmental agencies that have regulatory authority over the proposed development.
The granting of this land use determination does not protect the owner from civil liability
for recorded deed restrictions which may exceed any City land use ordinances.
Homeowner’s associations or architectural review committees may require submission of
plans for their review and approval. The applicant for this land use request should contact
the local association (if there is one) and review the Public Records for all restrictions that
may be applicable to this property.

This report does not include the perspective of adjacent landewners, who may be present at
the public meeting to address and present questions and comment.
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November 5, 2007

STAFF AND PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION RECOMMENDATION:

At their October 10, 2007 meeting, the Planning and Zoning Commission concurred with staff to
recommend that City Council approve an ordinance for the subject properties to assign a zoning
designation of Planned Development Project (PDP) with a Special Exception Use for a Combined
PDP, consisting of General Commercial and Professional Office uses, subject to the following
performance conditions (modifications made by the Commission and agreed to by staff are noted in
strikethrough/underline format):

1.

(9]

Within one year of the final approval of the Comprehensive Plan Amendment and City
Council’s approval of the Planned Development Project (PDP) with a Special Exception
Use for a Combined PDP, consisting of General Commercial and Professional Office uses,
the petitioner/developer will need to provide a final detailed PDP development plan that
addresses performance standards specified by code and this approval. Said final plan is
subject to review and approval by the Planning & Zoning Commission and the governing
body of the City of Brooksville. Failure to submit the final plan within the specified time
frame will result in this SEU approval becoming null and void.

The petitioner/developer must obtain all permits and meet all applicable land development
regulations, for construction or use of the property.

The minimum building setbacks for this project are as follows:

From Cortez Boulevard - 75'
From Hale Avenue - 75'
From all other property lines - 35
Separation between buildings - 15

Setbacks from internal drive lanes - 10
The maximum building height is three stories.
A maximum of one access drive to Cortez Boulevard and one access drive to Hale Avenue
is allowed, subject to the permitting requirement of agencies having jurisdictional authority
on those roadways.
The petitioner shall provide adequate buffers around the perimeter of the property that are
consistent with or exceed City adopted standards and comply with the City’s landscaping,
buffers and tree protection regulations. Enhanced buffering in the form of an eight (8) foot
opaque fence or wall will be required between the subject property and adjacent residential
properties, and directional lighting is required to be installed so as to minimize impacts to
adjacent property. Said buffers shall be designed and submitted to the Community
Development Department for review and comment, and will be subject to review and
possible modification as part of the public meeting processing for the final Planned
Development Project Plan.
The developer will be required to coordinate with the City Department of Public Works to
properly plan for and address drainage and pedestrian improvements around the perimeter
of the site. Public sidewalks are to be installed along the public rights-of-way and design
shall provide for crosswalks and underground drainage where appropriate.
The developer will be required to successfully negotiate a utility service agreement with the
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11.

12.

13.

City prior to permitting.

All utilities serving this project shall be installed underground.

Unless specifically addressed to the contrary by conditions referenced herein, City
ordinance regulations which apply with regard to zoning district classification shall apply to
this PDP as if it were zoned C2.

The developer will be required to construct an on-site storm water drainage control system
that meets the design and performance standards as specified by the technical requirements
for open and closed basins in the Environmental Resource Permitting Information Manual,
latest edition, as published by the Southwest Florida Water Management District.

This zoning/SEU approval is contingent on and will not become effective until the approval
of the small scale Comprehensive Plan Amendment (CPA2007-S3) takes effect, that
assigns this entire property with a Commercial land use designation.

Prior to the City issuing a development order for this project, the developer will be required
to address and resolve all issues related to impacts of the proposed development on public
infrastructure and services. Concurrency deficiencies shall be mitigated with agencies that
provide and maintain infrastructure that directly serve the proposed development.

Enclosures: 1) Zoning Petition

2) Special Exception Use Petition

3) Planned Development Project -Conceptual Drawing
4) Narrative

5) Draft Zoning Ordinance & location exhibit sketch

G:\Bgeig\Zoning\cc1 1052007 RZ2007-07 & SE2007-13 Innovators Investment. wpd



ORDINANCE NO. 756

AN ORDINANCE PROVIDING A ZONING
CLASSIFICATION OF PDP (PLANNED
DEVELOPMENT PROJECT) WITH A SPECIAL
EXCEPTION USE FOR A COMBINED PLANNED
DEVELOPMENT PROJECT (CPDP) FOR CERTAIN
REAL PROPERTY DESCRIBED HEREIN; AND
PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE.

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF BROOKSVILLE,
FLORIDA, AS FOLLOWS:

Section 1. That the following described property in the City of
Brooksville, Florida is hereby zoned as Planned Development Project (PDP)
with a 8pecial Exception Use for a Combined Planned Development Project
(RPDP) - (Reference Exhibit “A” for a graphic view of the property):

Innovators Investment Group, LLC, and Brooksville Hotel & Office Park,
LLC - Parcel Key # 00358231 and 00150491; Legal Description:

COMMENCING AT THE NORTHEAST CORNER OF THE SOUTHWEST % OF SECTION 27,
TOWNSHIP 22 SOUTH, RANGE 19 EAST, HERNANDO COUNTY, FLORIDA, GO THENCE
NORTH 88°38'58” WEST ALONG THE Y% SECTION LINE A DISTANCE OF 847.04 FEET;
THENCE SOUTH 01°50'32” WEST, A DISTANCE OF 666.67 FEET TO THE POINT OF
BEGINNING; THENCE CONTINUE SOUTH 01°50'32” WEST, A DISTANCE OF 125.00
FEET; THENCE SOUTH 87°24'58” EAST, A DISTANCE OF 353.00 FEET; THENCE
NORTH 01°50'32” EAST, A DISTANCE OF 125.00 FEET; THENCE NORTH 87°24'58"”
WEST, A DISTANCE OF 353.00 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING.

LESS THE WESTERLY 40 FEET THEREOF TO BE USED FOR ROAD RIGHT-OF-WAY
PURPOSES. SAID LANDS LYING IN AND BEING A PART OF THE SOUTHWEST %% OF
SECTION 27, TOWNSHIP 22 SOUTH, RANGE 19 EAST, HERNANDO COUNTY, FLORIDA.

AND

COMMENCING AT THE NORTHEAST CORNER OF THE SOUTHWEST % OF SECTION 27,
TOWNSHIP 22 SOUTH, RANGE 19 EAST, HERNANDO COUNTY, FLORIDA, THENCE NORTH
88°38'58” WEST ALONG THE % SECTION LINE, A DISTANCE OF 847.04 FEET,
THENCE SOUTH 01°50'32” WEST, A DISTANCE OF 791.67 FEET TO THE POINT OIF
BEGINNING; THENCE CONTINUE SOUTH 01°50'32” WEST, A DISTANCE OF 150.00
FEET; THENCE SOUTH 87°24'58” EAST, A DISTANCE OF 353.00 FEET; THENCE
NORTH 01°50'32” EAST, A DISTANCE OF 105.00 FEET; THENCE NORTH 87°%24'53"
WEST, A DISTANCE OF 353.00 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING.

LESS THE WEST 20 FEET THEREOF AND ALSO LESS THE EAST 20 FEET OF THE WEST
40 FEET THEREOF RESERVED FOR ROAD RIGHT-OF-WAY PURPOSES. SAID LANDS
LYING IN AND BEING A PART OF THE SOUTHWEST % OF SECTION 27, TOWNSHIP 22
SOUTH, RANGE 19 EAST, HERNANDO COUNTY, FLORIDA.

AND

COMMENCE AT THE NORTHEAST CORNER OF THE NORTHEAST % OF THE SOUTHWEST % OF
SECTION 27, TOWNSHIP 22 SOUTH, RANGE 19 EAST, HERNANDO COUNTY, FLORIDA,
THENCE RUN SOUTH 00°42'18” EAST ALONG THE EASTERLY BOUNDARY OF S5AID
NORTHEAST %% OF THE SOUTHWEST % A DISTANCE OF 546.28 FEET, THENCE RUN
NORTH 89°13'57” WEST A DISTANCE OF 119.34 FEET TO THE WESTERLY RIGHT-OF-
WAY LINE OF HALE AVENUE AND THE POINT OF BEGINNING, THENCE RUN S50QUTH
00°34'34"” WEST ALONG SAID WESTERLY RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE A DISTANCE OF 434.52
FEET, THENCE RUN SQUTHB89°53'26"” WEST ALONG THE NORTHERLY BOUNDARY AND THE
EXTENSION THEREOF OF THAT CERTAIN PARCEL OF LAND DESCRIBED IN OR BOOK
118, PAGE 260, PUBLIC RECORDS OF HERNANDO COUNTY, FLORIDA A DISTANCE OF

1 of 4



364.80 FEET TO THE NORTHWEST CORNER OF SAID PARCEL, THENCE RUN SOUTH
00°49'09” EAST ALONG THE WESTERLY BOUNDARY OF SAID PARCEL A DISTANCE OF
217.44 FEET TO A POINT ON THE NORTHERLY RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF CORTEZ
BOULEVARD (S.R. 50), THENCE RUN ALONG SAID RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE SOUTH
89°34'09” WEST A DISTANCE OF 346.06 FEET, THENCE RUN NORTH 00°03'53" WEST
A DISTANCE OF 249.76 FEET TO THE SOUTHERLY BOUNDARY OF A PARCEL DESCRIBED
IN OR BOOK 74, PAGES 620 THROUGH 635, OF SAID PUBLIC RECORDS, THENCE RUN
SOUTH 89°13'57” EAST ALONG THE SOUTHERLY BOUNDARY OF SAID PARCEL A
DISTANCE OF 333.00 FEET TO THE SOUTHEAST CORNER OF SAID PARCEL, THENCE
RUN NORTH 00°03'53” WEST ALONG THE EASTERLY BOUNDARY AND THE EXTENSION
THEREQF OF SAID PARCEL A DISTANCE OF 415.00 FEET TO THE SOUTHERLY
BOUNDARY OF THAT CERTAIN PARCEL OF LAND DESCRIBED IN OR BOOK 1367, PAGLES
672 AND 673, THENCE ROUN SOUTH 89°13'57” EAST ALONG SAID SOUTHERLY
BOUNDARY A DISTANCE OF 379.93 FEET TO THE SOUTHEAST CORNER OF SAID
PARCELS AND THE POINT OF BEGINNING. LESS THAT PORTION DEEDED TO THE
STATE OF FLORIDA IN OR BOOK 1152, PAGE 1802, PUBLIC RECORDS OF HERNANDO

COUNTY, FLORIDA. SUBJECT TO AN EASEMENT TO FLORIDA POWER CORPORATION
RECORDED IN OR BOOK 749, PAGE 1721, PUBLIC RECORDS OF HERNANDO COUNTY,
FLORIDA.

Location: North of Cortez Boulevard, west of Hale Avenue and
east of the south side of Mildred Avenue

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF
BROOKSVILLE, FLORIDA, AS FOLLOWS:

The aforementioned property located within the City of Brooksville,
Florida, 1is hereby assigned a zoning classification of PDP (Planned
Development Project) with a Special Exception Use for a Combined
Planned Development Project (CPDP) including General Commercial and
Professional Office categories, and the =zoning map of the City of
Brooksville shall be amended accordingly. The Special Exception Use
consideration for this Combined Planned Development Project is subject
to the following conditions:

1. Within one year of the final approval of the Comprehensive
Plan Amendment and City Council’s approval of the Planned
Development Project (PDP) with a Special Exception Use for
a Combined PDP, consisting of General Commercial and
Professional Office wuses, the petitioner/developer will
need to provide a final detailed PDP development plan that
addresses performance standards specified by code and this

approval. Said final plan 1s subject to review and
approval by the Planning & Zoning Commission and the
governing body of the City of Brooksville. Failure to

submit the final plan within the specified time frame will
result in this SEU approval becoming null and void.

2. The petitioner/developer must obtain all permits and meet
all applicable land development regulations, for
construction or use of the property.

3. The minimum building setbacks for this project are as
follows:

From Cortez Boulevard 75!
From Hale Avenue 75!
From all other property lines 35!
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10.

11.

12.

13.

Separation between buildings 15"

Setbacks from internal drive lanes 10"
The maximum building height is three stories.
A maximum of one access drive to Cortez Boulevard and one
access drive to Hale Avenue 1is allowed, subject to the
permitting requirement of agencies having jurisdictional
authority on those roadways.
The petitioner shall provide adequate buffers around the
perimeter of the property that are consistent with or
exceed City adopted standards and comply with the City’s
landscaping, buffers and tree protection regulations.
Enhanced buffering in the form of an eight (8) foot opague
fence or wall will be required between the subject property

and adjacent residential ©properties, and directional
lighting is zreqguired to be installed so as to minimize
impacts to adjacent property. Said Dbuffers shall be

designed and submitted to the Community Development
Department for review and comment, and will be subject to
review and possible modification as part of the public
meeting processing for the final Planned Development
Project Plan.

The developer will be required to coordinate with the City

Department of Public Works to properly plan for and
address drainage and pedestrian improvements around the
perimeter of the site. Public sidewalks are to be

installed along the public rights-of-way and design shall
provide for crosswalks and underground drainage where
appropriate.

The developer will be required to successfully negotiate a
utility service agreement with the City prior to
permitting.

All wutilities serving this project shall be installed
underground.

Unless specifically addressed to the contrary by conditions
referenced herein, City ordinance regulations which apply
with regard to zoning district classification shall apply to
this PDP as if it were zoned C2.

The developer will Dbe required to construct an on-site
storm water drainage control system that meets the design
and performance standards as specified by the technical
requirements for open and closed basins in the
Environmental Resource Permitting Information Manual,
latest edition, as published by the Southwest Florida Water
Management District.

This zoning/SEU approval 1is contingent on and will not
become effective until the approval of the small scale
Comprehensive Plan Amendment (CPA2007-83) takes effect,
that assigns this entire property with a Commercial 1land
use designation.

Prior to the City issuing a development order for this
project, the developer will be required to address and
resolve all issues related to impacts of the proposed

3 of 4



development on public infrastructure and services.
Concurrency deficiencies shall be mitigated with agencies
that provide and maintain infrastructure that directly serve
the proposed development.

Section 2. The City Council does hereby find that the proposed
zoning of this property with a PDP designation is consistent with the
City’'s Comprehensive Plan and development patterns in this area, and
is compatible with existing land uses.

Section 3. This Ordinance and zoning of the property described
hereto shall take effect immediately upon the £final adoption and
approval of a Comprehensive Plan amendment designating the entire
subject property as described in this ordinance with a Future Land Use
designation of Commercial.

CITY OF BROOKSVILLE

Attest: By:
Karen M. Phillips, City Clerk David Pugh, Mayor

PASSED on First Reading
NOTICE Published on
PASSED on Second & Final Reading

Approved as to form and content VOTE OF COUNCIL:

for the reliance of the City of Bernardini

Brooksville only: Bradburn
Burnett

//////”\ ) 7 Lewis o
//,/ i . ngéééizigi’ //////// ENJE}}I o

Theflas S. Hogan, Jr., City Attorney

G:\WP_WORK\ClerkOffice\ORDIN\756 - Innovators Rezoning
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CITY OF BROOKSVILLE ZONING AMENDMENT PETITION

Date: 9’} ’7 / 07

Print or Type All Information.

Applicant:_Innovators Investment Group/ Dan Pittsand Bob Nelson
Mailing Address:_P.O. Box 671
Lutz, F1 33548

Daytime Telephonc:_813-909-8393

Representative; Michael J. Gaylor, P.E./ Gaylor Fndineering
Mailing Address:_ 21764 State Road 54

Tutz, F1 33549
Daytime Telephone:__ 813-949-5599 Fax: 813-949-0818

Legal Description: Section: 27 Township:__ 22 _Range: _19 East

Size of Area Cavered by
Application: 7.71 acres

lHighway & Street Boundarics: _ Mildred Avenue West of Hale Road

and North of S.R. 50
Future Land Use Designation:___Commercial
Current Land Use Designation:_Commercial and SingleZEamily Residential
Current Zoning Classification: _Professional Office and Single Family
Zoning Classification Desired:_Planned Development Project

Has a public hearing beer held ox s property within the last tweive months?
ye S-.,..

Zoning Amendment Petition 1 Communiily Development



ACKNOWLEDGMENT

Bob Nelson
i, Inpnovators Investment. Group . hereby state and affirm that all answers to the
questions in said application and zll sketehes and data attached to and made part of this application
are honest and true to the best of my knowledge.

XX [ am the owner of the property covered uncder this application.

1 am the legal representative of the owner or lessee of the property described which s
the subject matter of this application.

Signaturc [

STATE OF FLORIDA, COUNTY OF (Lo

THE FOREGOING INSTRUMENT WAS ACKNOWLEDGED BEFORE ME THIS _2°Z. DAY
ofF QgL 1@ 2097BY THE ABOVE PERSON(S) (¥ Nl WHO 18
PERSONALLY KNOWN TO ME OR WHO HAS PRODUCED AS IDENTIFICATION AND
WHO (DID) (DID NOT) TAKE AN OATH.

%( U \/n\/ \le Loty 4. DS

SIGNATURE OF NOTARY PRINTED NAME OF NOTARY
§ i, USAADISTABO
Cvolrkcards'pes_famiao_petil § % Notary Public - State of Florida

Rev G 14197 v ,’ » My Commission Expires Apr 12, 2009
Commissim# oD 417892

Zoning Amendment Petlition 2 Communily Developrent



ACKNOWLEDGMENT

Dan Pitts :
I, Innovators Investment Group , hereby state and affirm that all answers to the
questions in said application and all sketches and data attached to and made part of this application
are honest and true to the best of my knowledge.

.

XX I am the owner of the property covered under this application.

1 am the legal representative of the owner or lessee of f
the subject matter of this application.

property described which is

STATE OF FLORIDA, COUNTY OF __{QS¢.0

THE FOREGOING INSTRUMENT WAS ACKNOWLEDGED BEFORE ME THIS_2Z DAY
(os—g%i ,70071-BY THE ABOVE PERSON(S) i) 8 HS — WHO'IS
PERSONALLYKNOWN TO ME OR WHO HAS PRODUCED AS IDENTIFICATION AND

1’D"NOT) TAKE AN QOATH.
AT TN
TTLUNCL MJ\/‘/ Lisan B DSISIC
SI(’}NATURE OF NOTARY PRINTED NAME OF NOTARY

Colrkenrdsiper_fomman,_petil
Rex 09714007

Zoning Amendment Pelitior 2 Community Development



APPOINTMENT OF AGENT

CITY OF BROOKSVILLE
COUNTY OF BERNANDO
STATE OF FLORIDA

Dan Pitts / Bob Nelson
[, Innovators Investment Group, the owner(s) in fec simple of the below described real
property hereby appoint Michael J. Gaylor. P-E. as my (our) agent to file
required petitions, sign required documents, make representations as to issues of fact and to appear,
as may be nccessary, before the apprapriate City of Braoksviile authority. My agent shall also have
the authority to commit myself as owner to the necessary funure performance conditians as may be
dirccted by the appropriate City authority as a condition of granting my petition.

(Insert Legal Description Below)

(SEE ATTACHED EXHIBIT "A")

Dated: OLUC? W3 “) 172.207)

Signed in the presence of:

WITNESSES: | :

Signature @C{\A()\, ' Signature (7 49/ :

Print Namel UK/ % DS ID Print Nam@ Dan Pitts
N/ o

Signatute Z N

Print Nange [ ap '7@2;;”“ mvp
Signatuze 6&/u}\ /47:5* I Signature s

Print Name_SHg/1 4, ﬁkﬂaj&_ Print Name Bob Nelsoh
TN T
Signature j{ St S

Print Name ~ Slicheel gcaaz»;/ﬂf

GV _\VORKADECipPEmning o WIBOARDSWET_FORMWPTS_AGT WD

Appointment of Agent / Comnmunity Development



OWNER OR AGENT AFFIDAVIT

CITY OF BROOKSVILLE
COUNTY OF HERNANDO
STATE OF FLORIDA

I, Bob Nelson , being duly swom, hereby depose and sy
Innovators Investment Group isthe owner of the herein described property to-wit:

(Inscrt Legal Description Below)

(SEE ATTACHED EXHIBIT "A™)

Owner or Agenl Affidavit ) Communify Development



OWNER OR AGENT AFFIDAVIT

CITY OF BROOKSVILLE
COUNTY OF HERNANDO
STATE OF FLORIDA

}, _Dpan Pitts , being duly swom, hereby depuse and say
Innovators Investment Group _ is the owner of the herein described property to-wit:

(Inscrt Legal Description Below)
(SEE ATTACHED EXHIBIT "A")

Owner or Agent Affidavil ) Communify Developmen(



ACKNOWLEDGMENT

All information submiteed within this Petition is in all respects truc and correet to the bust of my
knowledge and belief.

Witness Signature: 5/ MJZL @Ch’? y4

4 C
Qwraer/Agent Signature: \747/%”7/%4 <~

STATE OF FLORIDA
county oF __ OG0

THE FOREGOING INSTRUMENT WAS ACKNOWLEDGED BEFORE ME THIS 7.

DAY OF Ul 19 70D 7BY THE ABOVE PERSON(S) A Chye) TERIC

WHO 1S PERSONALLY KNOWN TO ME OR WHO HAS PRODUCED
AS IDENTIFICATION AND WHO (DID) (DID NOT) TAKE AN

@’W@\ Li=0 B, DISIcY

OF NOTARY PRINTED NAME OF NOTARY

WA LA
SIGNATURE

W,

- " LISAA. DISTASIO

SRY B, o
SO & Notary Public -
' 5 z - State i
' EM :“ * My Commission E o Floida
Zale JI o)y $ xpires Apr 12, 2009
'Zgb SRS Commission # DD 417892
Bonded By National Nota

OF FLaw
gt

GAWP_\VORKADgeig\Plazningald DO ARDSIPE T _FORMOWN_AFF WPD

Owner or Agent Affidavil 2 Community Development



PETITION FOR SPECIAL EXCEPTION USAGE

'TO THE CITY OF BROOKSVILLE, FLORIDA
PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION

The undersigned Petitioncr/Propesty Owaer hereby submits this Petition for a Special Exception
Usage at the following dcscribed property, to wit: (insert typewritten legal description)

(SEE ATTACHED EXHIBIT "A")

Subject Property Street Address: __ Mildred avedue West of Hale.Road
and North of S.R.AH0

Special Excaption Pelition l} Community Developrient



PETITIONER IS SPECIFICALLY REQUESTING SPECIAL EXCEPTION USAGE FOR
THE FOLLOWINC-

Commercial Planned Development Project

Property future land use is: _Commercial
Cumrent land wseis: _Commercial and Single Family -Residential
Property is zoned: _Professional Office and Single Family

Pelitioner requests that said Special Exception Usage be permitted so that the Owner may utjlize the
above said property to its highest and best usc.

It is in the opinion of the Petitioncr that the granting of a Special Exception Use of seid property will
not be materially detrimental to the Public Wclfare, nor to the persons or properlies located in the
immediate area.

Whercfore, the Petitioner requests that the City of Brooksville, Florida, Planning and Zoning
Commission convene to hear and take jurisdiction over the subject matter of this petition.

Petitioner’s Name: _Mjichael J. Gaylor., P.E.

Gaylor Engineering
Strect Address: _Qsprey Cove Professional Park.. .
21754 State Road 54
City/State/Zip: __Lutz, F1 33549 .
Daytimec Phone: 813-949-5599 z

Signature: ) %@%/W *

CboXboardzipre_onn'se, petic
Rew DAN40Y, 12005007

Special Exception Pelition 2 Communily Development



APPOINTMENT OF AGENT

CITY OF BROOKSVILLE

COUNTY OF HERNANDO

STATE QF FLORIDA

I, pan Pitts and Bob Nelson ,fheowner(s) in feesimplgof the below described real
property hereby appoint Michael J. Gaylor, P.E. as ny (our) agent to file

required petitions, sign required documents, meke representations as to issues of fact and to appear,
as may be necessary, before the appropriate City of Brooksville authority, My agent shall also have
the authority to commit myself as owner to the necessary future performance conditions as may be
directed by the appropriate City authority as a condition of granting my petition.

(Insert Legal Description Below)

(SEE ATTACHED EXHIBIT "A")

Dated: %1 A , o1

Signed in the presence of:

WITNESSES: o LANDOWN/ER(;«){ é
Signature Hﬁ,m Signature / - i 4"’/
NS

Print Name( 1<} ISS1O0S0 Pont Namie Dan Pitts

Signature /l%ru\ﬂo\@» L Wﬂ@

Prit Name Prenda. L. Pagano Q Q
Signature W Z. )ﬁz Av Signatur L‘v\-@"/

Print Nam?//j//JZJ St A. Gg 'ﬂﬁf@ﬁ- Print Name_Bob Nelsbn

, 7
Signature | A & :
Print Name” [ A B

\

G:l“'P_“'ORK'.Bgcig\l’lnnniun\oldlb'lBDAltDS'PET_FDRIWAPFI’_I\Gl' WID

Appointment of Agent 1 Community Development



OWNER OR AGENT AFFIDAVIT

CITY OF BROOKSVILLE
COUNTY OF HERNANDO
STATE OF FLORIDA

], Bob Nelson , being duly swom, hereby depose and sty
Innovators Investment Group g the owner of the herein described property to-wils

(Insert Legal Description Below)
(SEE ATTACHED EXHIBIT "A")

Owner or Agent Affidavit : l Communify Devoelopment.



OWNER OR AGENT AFFIDAVIT

CITY OF BROOKSVILLE
COUNTY OF HERNANDO
STATE OF FLORIDA

I, Dan Pitts , being duly swom, hereby depose and sy
Innovators Investment Group s the owner of the herein described propesty lo-wit:

{Insert Legal Description Below)
(SEE ATTACHED EXHIBIT "A")

Owner or Agent Affidavit : ) Community Developmen.



ACKNOWLEDGMENT

All information submitted within this Petition is in all respects true and correct to the best of my
knowledge and belief.

Witness Signature: 7/L£ J/ K[) ud’ g

Owner/Agent Signature: 77/ g////é <
7

STATE OF FL.ORID

COUNTY OF (D

THE FOREGOING INSTRUMENT WAS ACKNOWLEDGED BEFORE METHIS 270

DAY OF DSt |, 70y BY THE ABOVE PERSON(S) MiCicie oy € 0 s

WHOIS ALL OWN TO ME OR WHO HAS PRODUCED
—————ASTDENTIFICATION AND WHO (DID) (DID NOT) TAKE AN

OATH.

TN | )
SoarA Lisa A DSIR0
SIGNATURE OF NOTARY PRINTED NAME OF NOTARY

GAWP_WORKE geig\PlicrinplalJIASOARDSWET_FORMOWN_AFF WD

Owner or Agent Afftdavit 2 Communily Development



AFFIDAVIT

I (we), the undersigned, certify ownership of the property within this application, that said ownership
has been fully divulged, whether such ownership by contingent or absolute, and that the name of all
parties to an existing contract for sale or any options are filed with this application. I (we) certify that

Michael J. Gavlor, P.E. is (are) duly designated as the agent(s) for the owner, that
the agent(s) is (are) authorized to provide subject matter on the application contained herein, whether
verbal or written, and appear at any public hearing(s) involving this petition. Further, it is understood
that this application must be complete and accurate and the fee paid prior to processing.

Date: ¥22-C ) Title Holdgr: ¢ 22 ,/

Date:  ¥-72-07F Title Holder: <

Date: Title Holder: ¢
Y s

State of :Fl DA

County of P(}S/ %

The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this 22 day of QU{)&L{S“” ,A.D.

20 /57 by Lo BWS cvd BOB N« ECN , whe(1s personallyknown to me or
who has produced as identificafio 0 did not take an

oath.

s
& \\\ P,
S

&l &%

AL
T ATT Y

Notary Public [_1<4). f). DGO

1
Wity

)

B
:
g

g =
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5
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&
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\Innovators Investment Group 07013\Current Site Plan\concept plan 1.dwg, 8/23/2007 10:21:28 AM, HP DeskJet 1220C

SECTION 27, TOWNSHIP 22 SOUTH, RANGE 18 EAST
HERNANDO COUNTY, FLORIDA
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Osprey Cove Professionat Park
Civil Engineering 21764 State Road 54 « Lutz, FL 33549

Land Planning August 23, 2007  (313) 949-5500 FAX (813) 949-0818
Marinas E-Mait: gaylormg@tampabay.im.com
Dredge & Fill

Permitting

Re: Narrative for the Innovators Investment Group Project

This project involves 7.71 acres of property that lies on the northwest side
of the intersection of Hale Road and Cortez Boulevard. The property as it exists
today is vacant except for one single family home at the northwest corner which
is at the end of Mildred Avenue. The site has a small pasture but the majority is a
pine and oak forest with under growth. The terrain is quite unique in the fact that
there is a ridge line that runs north and south and the property drains both to the
west and east from that ridge. The maximum elevation change across the
property is 12 feet.

It is the intent of the project to create a unique planned development
encompassing a 3 story motel along with a restaurant. Both will front on Cortez
Boulevard. Parking will be provided for both of these facilities and will also
provide for a buffer between the commercial and residential along Mildred
Avenue. The easterly portion of the property that fronts Hale Road will be
comprised of a ten thousand square foot retail center and up to thirty thousand
square feet of office condominiums. The site topography and tree canopy will be
protected to the greatest extent possible in order to provide the aesthetics that
the developer seeks. Stormwater management will be via both above ground
retention ponds as well as a significant usage of underground stormwater
storage. This again is proposed in order to allow for the development to take
place but also to preserve tree canopy to the greatest extent possible.

The project will be built in potentially three phases. Specifically the hotel

and restaurant will be a phase and the commercial and office condos will be two
additional phases.

P:\Innovators Investment Group 07013\Correspondence LOT\City of Brooksville\Jobe, Pat Narrative LTR 08-23-07.doc




AceNDA ew no. £~ 3

/[-5-07
CITY OF BROOKSVILLE
MEMORANDUM
To: City Council - o
Via: T. Jennene Norman-Vacha, City Méfiager - // - %M /& %fz_w
From: Emory H. Pierce, Director of Public-Works
Re: Maintenance of Traffic (MOT) Plan and FDOT Permit Requirements for

Christmas Parade

Date: 10/23/07

In addition to the attached MOT plan and permit that requires the signature of the City Police, a
City official, and of the sponsor, a resolution or letter from the City is also requested to be
attached concurring with the sponsor's (Kiwanis) request to close the subject roads.

Attached is a resolution, an example of a letter from Dade City supporting/requesting a street
closure for a fall festival, a closure request form from FDOT, and a a map depicting the requested

street closures.

I request council authorize the Public Works Director and Police Chief to sign the request for the
street closure and approve the attached resolution supporting the street closure.

G:\Emory\102307 FDOT MOT for christmas parade.doc



RESOLUTION NO 2007-22

RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF BROOKSVILLE, FLORIDA
SUPPORTING A REQUEST TO CLOSE JEFFERSON STREET
AND BROAD STREET BETWEEN MAIN STREET AND BELL AVE
ON DECEMBER 8, 2007; PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY
AND CONFLICT; AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE.

WHEREAS, the City is wishing to promote businesses in the downtown
area;

WHEREAS, the City wishes to support the annual Kiwanis Christmas parade
that brings visitors to the City;

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF
BROOKSVILLE, FLORIDA, that the closure of the following Brooksville roadway
segments to street traffic is necessary for public safety during the
Brooksville Christmas Parade.

Jefferson Street, from Bell Avenue to Main Street
Main Street, from Jefferson Street to Broad Street
Broad Street, from Main Street to Bell Avenue

Bell Avenue, from Broad Street to Jefferson Street

CONFLICT: Any prior resolution or policy of the City inconsistent
with the provisions of this resolution are hereby repealed to the extent of
such inconsistency.

SEVERABILITY: If any provision of this resolution or the application
thereof 1is held invalid, such invalidity shall not affect the other
provisions or applications, and to this end, the provisions of this

resolution are hereby declared severable.

EFFECTIVE DATE: This resolution shall take effect on date adopted by
Council.

ADOPTED this 5th day of November, 2007.

CITY OF BROOKSVILLE

By:
David Pugh, Mayor
ATTEST:
Karen M. Phillips, City Clerk
VOTE OF CITY COUNCIL
APPROVED AS TO FORM AND CONTENT Bernardini
FOR THE RELIANCE OF THE CITY OF Bradburn

BROOKSVILLE ONLY: Burnett
7 Lewis

W % y 7 Pugh S

Thomas S. Hogan, Jr.“/'ity AEtorney

G:\WP_WORK\ClerkOffice\RESOL\2007-22 Christmas Parade.doc



STATE OF FLORIDA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION

850-040-585
REQUEST FOR TEMPORARY CLOSING/SPECIAL USE OF STATE ROAD MA‘NTEN’;Z/CEE
Page 10of 2
INSTRUCTIONS.  OBTAIN SIGNATURES OF LOCAL LAW ENFORCEMENT AND

CITY/COUNTY OFFICIALS PRIOR TO SUBMITTING TO

DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION, ATTACH ANY NECESSARY MAPS OR SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS.

NAME OF ORGANIZATION PERSON IN CHARGE —_— DATE. P -
Kiesryr Ciivg of BRoSKS Vi Ly i Rord k| HEELE S /Y2367

ADDRESS OF ORGANIZATION

L 94 20 CorteZ Bivw. BRookSviccs Fo 34¢e; 757776 7225
TITLE OF EVENT BROO KFV/LLE CH{Q/ TM/?‘J" PA(LIQ@ =

DATE OF EVENT STARTING TIME OF EVENT DURAT|ON OF EVENT (AF’*F’ROX) ACTUAL CLOSING TIME {INCLUDING SETTING UP BARRIERS, ETC.)
(T- ¥ -7 /00T Am HouS 203 Piv
PROPOSED ROUTE (INCLUDE STATE RO{’\D NUMBER, SPECIFIC LOCATION, EFQ;MTUDE MAPS)
SOLTH oN FINNG STREET Cp £5mM0G open. STATE ReAP 56A
(TEFFERTON ST 4o DS41 (BROA® STO). THEN ERST or

5 H((BRoRP ST°) 10 BEs L = 7HE Aoty oN BELL AVE.
Us g SNNG SR soh T IVETE MopTy ont

DETOUR ROUTE (INGLUDE ALTERNATE ROUTES - INCLUDE MAPS)

SFE ATTACSHED  EXHIBT "A"

NAME OF DEPT. RESPONSIBLE FOR TRAFFIC CONTROL, ETC. (CITY POLICE, SHERIFF'S DEPT., FLORIDA HWY. PATROL. ETC.}{INCLUDE PRECINCT NO,

E'ROQKS“WLLE: Poz;m@:' DEP/F\

)

SPECIAL CONDITIONS

THIS SECTION IS TO BE COMPLETED WHEN PERMITTING SPECIAL USE OF A STATE ROAD FOR FILMING

LICENSED PYROTECHNICS OPERATOR LICENSE NO

APPROVAL OF LOCAL FIRE DEPARTMENT

LIABILITY INSURANCE CARRIER POLICY EFFECTIVE DATE

COVERAGE AMOUNT ($1,000,000 MINIMUM)

LENGTH OF COVERAGE . DAYS

FEDERAL AVIATION ADMINISTRATION APPROVAL FOR LOW FLYING FILMING

ADDITIONAL LIABILITY INSURANGE AMOUNT (35,000,000 MINIMUM)

TYPED NAME AND TiTLE (INCLUDE BADGE.NO IF APPROPRIATE}

SIGNATURE OF CHIEF OF LAW ENFORCEMENT AGENCY DATE SIGNED

TYPED NAME AND TITLE OF CITYICOUNTY OFFICIAL > gﬁkﬁ[ '//[ SIGNATURE OF CITYICOUNTY OFFICIAL
Fo Ny “PTEREE™ Cly of Buakivi

DiRecjoR PvRiic  [opKE

/ ) / ﬁ/ / /
. / , ALY
AUTHORITIES: CHAPTER 14-65, FLORIDA ADMINISTRATIVE CODE: RULES OF THE DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATIO

N - TEMPORARY CLOSING AND SPECIAL USE OF STATE ROADS, SECTIONS
337.408(1), 496.06 AND 318.008, FLORIDA STATUTES,




850-040-65
MAINTENANCE

02/92
Page 2 of 2

Contractor's obligation to indemnify, defend, and pay for the defense or at the
the Department in the defense and trial of any damage claim or suit and any rel
Department's notice of claim for indemnification to Contractor. Contractor's i

Department's option, to participate and associate with
ated settlement negotiations, shall be triggered by the
nability to evaluate liability or its evaluation of liability

, titte, and interest in
S, assume all risk of and indemnify, defend and save

Ss, damage, cost, or €Xpense arising in any manner on
hts and privileges.

the land to be entered upon and used by the Permittee, and the Permittee will, at all time
harmless the State of Florida and the Department from and against any and all lo
account of the exercise or attempted exercises by said Permittee of the aforesaid rig

During the event, al| safety regulations of the Department
of safety devices, that may be necessary in order to safel
on Uniform Traffic Control Devices (MUTCD)

shall be observed and the holder must take measures, including placing and display

y conduct the public through the project area in accordance with the Federal Manual
. @8s amended, and the Department's latest Roadway,and Traffic Design Standards.

In case of non-compliance with the Department's requirements in effect as of the a
will have to be brought into compliance or removed from the R/W at no cost io the

Submitted by: 7'\// N/‘II\J/f Clvg oF BROG/TS’V/LLE

Permitiee

pproved date of this permit, this permit is void and the facility
Department,

Place Corporate

Signature and Title

Rom k{thELES/ PHKADEC(—}AHZ—MK\M

Altested

Department of Transportation Approval: This Request is Hereby Approved

Recommended for approval Title Date

Approved by

Date

District Secretary or Designee

DISTRIBUTION: Original - Permittee

1st copy - District Maintenance Office
2nd copy - Local Maintenance Engineer
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Chapter 14-65

TEMPORARY CLOSING AND SPECIAL USE OF STATE ROADS

14-65.0025 Scope, Exceptions, and Definitions

14-65.0035 Procedures for Temporary Closing of State Roads Other Than Limited Access Facilities
14-65.006 Temporary Closing and Special Use of Interstate and Other Limited Access Facilities
14-65.0065 Procedures for Special Use of State Roads Including Limited Access Facilities

14-65.0025 Scope, Exceptions, and Definitions. This rule chapter 14-65 specifies procedures for
obtaining a prior written permit for temporary closure of a state road from the Department when
necessary for the conduct of a special event. The rule chapter outlines the requirements for special
temporary use of limited access facilities, state roads other than limited access facilities; and for notice
to the appropriate local law enforcement agencies of repair, reconstruction, or alteration which
necessitates the closing of lanes for vehicular traffic.

(1) Exceptions. For purposes of this rule chapter, the following examples are uses of state roads for
special events which do not require a prior written permit:

(a) A motorcade when no traffic lanes are closed and law enforcement personnel control traffic at
each intersection;

(b) A run, walk-a-thon or bicycle event with a police escort and no detour of traffic; and

(c) A parade on a street which only intersects a state road where law enforcement personnel control
the traffic at such intersections.

(2) The following words and phrases when used in this rule chapter, shall have the meaning ascribed
in this rule:

(a) "Charitable Purpose" has the meaning specified in Section 496.404(2), F.S.

(b) "Commercial Activities" include sale or display for sale, of merchandise; servicing or repairing of
any vehicle, except rendering of emergency service; storage of vehicles being serviced or repaired on
abutting property or elsewhere; solicitation for sale of goods, property, or services or for charitable
purposes; and the display of advertising of any sort.

(c) "Emergency" is defined in Section 252.34, F.S., as any occurrence, or threat thereof, whether
accidental, natural, or caused by man, in war or peace, which results or may result in substantial injury
or harm to the population or substantial damage to or loss of property.

(d) "Limited Access Facility" is as defined in Section 316.003(19), F.S.

(e) "Local Governmental Authority" means a municipality, county, or expressway or transportation
authority serving one or more jurisdictions.

(f) "Special Event" means an art festival, parade, annual charity drive, fair, fund drive, race, run,
motorcade, or similar activities of local interest.

(g) "Special Use" means any activities other than those defined as special events and as detailed in
Rule 14-65.0065.

(h) "State Highway System" is as defined in Section 334.03(25), F.S.

(1) "State Road" is as defined in Section 334.03(27), F.S.

(j) "Temporary Closing" means the closing, detouring or otherwise restricting traffic flow of one or
more vehicle traffic lanes of a street or highway for a cumulative period of fifteen minutes or more.

(k) "Written Permit" is Form 850-040-65, Request for Temporary Closing/Special Use of State Road,
02/92, requesting stated specific permission to close a stated specific section or part of a state road for a
stated specific time period, signed by the District Secretary or designee and the applicant or applicant’s
authorized representative.

http://infonet.dot.state.fl.us/facchapter14/ch14-065.htm 10/8/2007
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Specific Authority 334.044(2), 337.406(1) FS. Law Implemented 252.34, 316.003, 316.006(1), 316.008,
334.03, 337.406, 496.425 FS. History - New 1-19-89, Amended 4-15-92, 12-31-96.

14-65.0035 Temporary Closing of State Roads Other Than Limited Access Facilities.

(1) Procedures for Temporary Closing of State Roads Other Than Limited Access Facilities. The
temporary use and closing of state roads for the purpose of special events, not related to construction,
reconstruction, maintenance or emergency purposes, may be accomplished as follows:

(a) A special event may be permitted by the appropriate local governmental authority.

(b) Prior to temporary closure of a state road for a special event, the local governmental authority
which permits the special event must determine whether a temporary closing of the road is necessary for
the event and obtain prior written approval from the Department unless excepted as defined in Section
14-65.0025(1).

(c) A Request for Temporary Closing/Special Use of State Road, Form 850-040-65, 02/92, shall be
submitted by the responsible official of the local governmental authority to the District Secretary, or
designee, naming the sponsoring officials; stating that local law enforcement officials will manage all
the details involved in administration of the event; and stating that as between the Department and the
local governmental authority, to the extent permitted by Florida law, the local governmental authority
will assume full responsibility for any liability claims arising from, or based on, the activities of the
event.

(d) The local governmental authority shall include with this request:

1. A certified copy of an excerpt from the minutes of a duly scheduled meeting, or duly executed
resolution, of the governmental authority authorizing the special event. The governmental authority
may, by resolution, designate a position within that body (Mayor, City Manager, etc.) to authorize and
sign for the body.

2. A marked map, indicating the temporary detours to be utilized by the public; and showing the
placement of appropriate signs; stationing of any officers or flagmen; and locations of barricades and
cones necessary to detour the traffic in a safe and efficient manner;

3. A description of the provisions made for the temporary rerouting of traffic; and

4. Approval from the United States Coast Guard District Commander authorizing the opening or
closing of any movable bridge within the geographical limits of the event during the time period of the
road closure.

(e) Prior to authorizing the temporary road closing, the Department shall review the proposed detour
route to ensure that traffic volume will be handled and routed safely and efficiently.

(f) Such closing of the state road shall not be for commercial use, except that any portion of a state-
maintained roadway may be used for special events and special use as defined in sections 14-65.0025(2)
(f) and (2)(g) of this rule chapter, together with such commercial activities necessarily related to such
events. Nothing in this rule chapter shall be construed to authorize such special events on the interstate
highway system, toll roads, or other limited access facilities.

(2) Procedures Subsequent to Approval of Request for Temporary Closing of State Roads Other Than
Limited Access Facilities. The Department will return a copy of Form 850-040-65 indicating approval
or disapproval to the submitting applicant. Upon receipt of a copy of Form 850-040-65, Request for
Temporary Closing/Special Use of State Road, 02/92, signed by a District Secretary of the Department,
or designee, the responsible official of the local governmental authority shall notify the applicant for the
special event whether preparation for and execution of the special event may or may not proceed.

(3) Form to Request Temporary Closing or Special Use of State Road. Copies of Form Number 850-
040-65, Request for Temporary Closing/Special Use of State Road, 02/92, is hereby incorporated by
reference and made a part of this rule chapter. Copies of this form may be obtained by contacting any
Department District Maintenance Office.

Specific Authority 334.044(2), 337.406(1) FS. Law Implemented 316.003, 316.006(1), 316.008,
337.406 FS. History - New 1-19-89, Amended 4-15-92, 7-1-92, 12-31-96.

http://infonet.dot.state.fl.us/facchapter14/ch14-065.htm 10/8/2007
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14-65.006 Temporary Closing and Special Use of Interstate and Other Limited Access
Facilities. Temporary closures for special uses will not be allowed on interstate highways, toll roads,
and other limited access facilities on the state highway system with the exception of the following
situations:

(1) Emergency Conditions. When emergency or extremely dangerous conditions are judged to exist,
the Department will assume responsibility for determining whether closure of state roads is warranted.

(2) Request for special use of interstate and other limited access facilities will be made to the
Department. Special use is approved by the Department, in accordance with the provisions of Rule 14-
65.0065.

(3) Use of facilities on interstate highways, toll roads, or other limited access facilities for solicitation
is otherwise prohibited except under the provisions of Rule Chapter 14-28, Florida Administrative Code.
Specific Authority 334.044(2), 337.406(1) FS. Law Implemented 316.006(1), 337.406, 338.01 FS.
History - New 1-19-89, Amended 4-15-92.

14-65.0065 Procedures for Special Use of State Roads Including Limited Access Facilities. The
temporary use of state roads for special use activities, not related to construction, reconstruction,
maintenance, emergency purposes, or special events, may be accomplished in accordance with this rule
chapter. The following information must be supplied to the Department when requesting a permit for
filming:

(1) A copy of pertinent portions of the script with a concise but detailed written description of the
action to occur on the state right of way.

(2) A detailed map showing the proposed filming location and an estimate of the number of event
personnel.

(3) No stunts, staged accidents, explosives, or pyrotechnics that may cause damage to state property
shall be allowed without prior approval of the Department. Use of pyrotechnics requires approval from
the District Secretary, or where applicable, the Executive Director of the Florida Turnpike Enterprise
and a separate approval from the local fire department having jurisdiction over the filming site. Both
must be attached to the special use permit. Additionally, a licensed "Pyrotechnic Operator - Special
Effects" shall be on location and in charge of all use, storage, and handling of special effects items.

(4) The permittee shall provide the Department with proof of liability insurance in the amount of
£1,000,000 for routine filming. If the filming request involves specialized stunts, pyrotechnics, special
effects, the use of some form of air transportation over the state highway right of way, or stunts of any
kind under or adjacent to a structure (bridge) then a minimum of $5,000,000 of liability insurance is
required.

(5) All maintenance of traffic on Department rights of way shall conform to the Federal Manual on
Uniform Traffic Control Devices (MUTCD), incorporated by reference under rule 14-15.010, Florida
Administrative Code; the Department's current Roadway and Traffic Design Standards; and the current
Standard Specifications for Road and Bridge Construction. The Department shall regulate, limit, or
restrict hours of filming to minimize disruption of traffic on the state highway system. When filming
causes undue disruption of traffic, or creates safety hazards on a state highway, the Department shall
require immediate corrective action within a specified time frame, or cause filming to cease if deemed
necessary. The Department shall require the submittal of a maintenance of traffic plan with the request
for permit to ensure compliance with this provision. The Department may require the presence of an off-
duty law enforcement officer in areas of congestion, critical traffic flow, or situations that may cause
hazardous conditions.

(6) Filming of activities on state road rights of way from low flying aircraft must be in compliance
with Federal Aviation Administration regulations, and will not be permitted if the public safety or
welfare is jeopardized. Any activities involving aircraft shall require written notification of overhead
utility companies.

Specific Authority 334.044(2), (27), 335.10(3), 337.406(1) FS. Law Implemented 316.003, 316.006(1),
316.008, 337.406(1), 496.425 FS. History - New 4-15-92.

http://infonet.dot.state.fl.us/facchapter14/ch14-065.htm 10/8/2007
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Last changed: October 04, 2007

Contact person for this site is: James C. Myers

Phone: (850)414-5393

Mailing Address: Office of the General Counsel, 605 Suwannee Street, MS 58, Tallahassee,
Florida 32399-0458

e-mail address: james.myers@dot.state.fl.us

http://infonet.dot.state.fl.us/facchapter14/ch14-065.htm 10/8/2007



E-MAIL: john.kilkenny@dot.state.fl.us

JOHN KILKENNY
PERMITS & CONTRACTS MANAGER

STATE OF FLORIDA

DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION PHONE: (352) 797-5700
16411 SPRING HiLL DRIVE FAX: (352) 7975709
BROOKSVILLE, FL 34604-8167 ToLL FREE: 1-866-750-9173
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EXHIBIT “A”

PARADE DETOUR ROUTE

Northbound traffic on U.S. 41 (South Broad Street) detoured south on Hale
Avenue to Martin L. King Boulevard. Then East on Martin L. King Boulevard to
S.R. 50A (East Jefferson Street) then North on S.R. 50A (East Jefferson Street) to
U.S. 41 (North Broad Street) to end Northbound traffic detour.

Westbound traffic on S.R. S0A (East Jefferson Street) detoured West on

Martin L. King Blvd. to U.S. 41 (South Broad Street) to end Westbound traffic
Detour.

Eastbound traffic on S.R. 50A (West Jefferson Street) detoured at Mildred
Avenue to U.S. 41 (South Broad Street). Then South to Martin L. King Boulevard.
Then East on Martin L. King Boulevard to S.R. 50A (East Jefferson Street) to end
Eastbound Traffic detour.

Southbound traffic on U.S. 41 (North Broad Street) detoured South on S.R.

S50A (East Jefferson Street) to Martin L. King Boulevard. Then West on Martin L.
King Boulevard to U.S. 41 (South Broad Street) to end Southbound traffic detour.

C:\Cadd Dwgs\Parade Route MOT\EXHIBITA.doc
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October 26, 2007

The City of Brooksville
201 Howell Avenue
Brooksville, FI. 34601

RE: Christmas Parade
Dear Kaven Phillips:

In view of the curreist conditions of fiscal conservation, the Brooksville Kiwanis Club in their
endeavor to keep the tradition of providing the community the joy of the aunual Christmas parade,
we understand that the cost of providing police protsction for the parade route needs t6 be addressed.
We wish to have this issue placed on the next City agenda.

The Kiwanis Club wishes to request a partial waiver of uny fees that might be incurred. The Club
is willing to pay a cap amount of $1,000.00 in the assistance of paying for any expenses that might
be needed. As we are working together with other not-for-profit groups, we do not wish io place
the full burden upon the City or the other groups. The parade route hias been expended this year to
help the City Alliance to provide additional expansion of bringing the people to the downtown area,
We hope that the City wili take this into consideration while discussing this matter.

1 look forward to having an answer so that we may proceed with the final plans of providing the
porade to the community.

Sincerely, .

I Ceeretd,

SICNED IN ABSTENTIA To AVOID DeLAY
Scott Smith, Fresident

c.Serw}:g Qur Gommzm('@r Since 1923






CITY OF BROOKSVILLE
APPLICATION FOR TEMPORARY

STREET CLOSURE
201 Howell Avenue
(352)544-5407

INSTRUCTIONS: Complete top portion of form and return to Clerk’s Office, 201 Howell Avenue,
Brooksville, FL 34601. A broad form type events coverage or other insurance policy acceptable
to the City is reguired to protect the City from any and all claims for injuries, or damages
occurring during or resulting from this event in an amount of not less than $100,000 for each
individual and $300,000 for event. Applicant will be notified of estimated cost; receipt of the
deposit and the Certificate of Insurance are required not later than three (3) business days

before the event. Certificate Attached - O Yes O No
Name or Organization Event
Brooksville Kiwanis Club 33rd Annual Brooksville Christmas Parade
Person in Charge Address Telephone
Ron Wheeles, Chair P O Box 685, Brooksville FL 352-796-7225
If unavailable {Alternate Name) Address 340UD-U06D Telephone
Gregg Sutton, Co-Chair Same 352-754~4062
Date of Event Starting Time Ending Time (approx) Estimated Number of 22&?&;2&5
12/8/07 7 am set up 12:30 pm 600+
10 .am-.parade-—starlc
Proposed Route (anclude Street/Aventie, attach loc&tion map)

See attached map - from H.C. School Board grounds from Oakwood, south on Howell to
east on Ft. Dade (ends at Bell Ave.)

I/We Brooksville Kiwanis Club assume responsibility for reimbursing the

City's cost as estimated Pelow, and all liability for injuries and damages and will hold the City harmless

from any claims arisj ctly or indirectly from the event, including or as a result of City’s closure

of the street(s) to’f te,the event. If applicant is a corporation, association, or partnership, the

undersigned warrs: /s authorized to execute binding contracts on behalf of the applicant.
AL,

Signat B .
ignatur€pon Wheeles, Chair
State of Florida

County of _Hernando

LY e .
The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this Z day of S D3 . 20977, by Ron
Wheeles who is personally known to me or who presented N/A as identification,
and who (did) {(did not) take an oath.

¢ I . Karen M. Phillips
Tsic & KAREN M. P'}:fﬁj}'lﬁst d, typed or stamped name of Notary Public]

i g;\%,gﬁ MY COMMISSION # DDS11746
s '&  EXPIRES: January 29,2010

» OF ¥\ A

o ; Fi. Notary Discount-hssoe=Ce: Tl -
';‘}%S%M [Commission Number of Notary Public]

NOTICE: PERMIT NOT VALID UNLESS APPROVED BY DESIGNATED CITY REPRESENTATIVE.

Total Deposit § Received By: Date

Police Chief Date City Manager Date

pistribution: Original to Applicant; Copies to Chief of Police, Director of Public Works, City Manager and City Clerk

NOTE: A LIST OF STREETS BEING CLOSED WITH DATES AND TIMES WILL BE RELEASED TO THE
PRESS NO LESS THAN 5 DAYS PRIOR TO THIS EVENT.

G: \WP_WORK\ClerkOffice\POLICIES\street closure.wpd Revised: 10/03






CITY OF BROOKSVILLE
STREET CLOSURE

COST PROJECTION
201 Howell Avenue
(352)544-5407

Event : I<ilwaNils  CHRisTMAS PARADS
Starting: 16 Arv End: 2 pua
Police Department SEE BArTrTAactHeED
Personnel @ s = $
Equipment e s =S
@ s = 3
@ s = 3
@ s = 3

POLICE DEPARTMENT TOTAL & 2,48/

Fire Department C M% [0 A, OVE RaTe -0 -
Personnel ( fc._Pig;s S5t $ 27.95 =5 139.6S5
Equipment Lt She 3 19.90 =5 Z9.00

S5EFE _She $_ %27 =5 A45¢.75
e s = $
e s = $
FIRE DEPARTMENT TOTAL $ 95

Public Works ové Rats
Personnel 6/ Thre s /(p(p§ =s 532
Equipment 2 TRuCRS €@ 8 = $ S50

@ s = $
@ s = $
@ s = $

PUBLIC WORKS TOTAL s 582

ESTIMATED TOTAL DUE CITY $ 3’7’ S8

TOTAL Actual Costs $

Payment Received By:

G:\WP_WORK\ClerkOffice\FORMS\street.wpd Revised: 10/03



CITY OF BROOKSVILLE
APPLICATION FOR TEMPORARY

STREET CLOSURE

201 Howell Avenue
(352)544-5407

INSTRUCTIONS: Complete top portion of form and return to Clerk’s Office, 201 Howell Avenue,
Brooksville, FL 34601. A broad form type events coverage or other insurance policy acceptable
to the City is required to protect the City from any and all claims for injuries, or damages
occurring during or resulting from this event in an amount of not less than $100,000 for each
individual and $300,000 for event. Applicant will be notified of estimated cost; receipt of the
deposit and the Certificate of Insurance are required not later than three (3) business days

before the event. Certificate Attached - O Yes 0O No

Name or Organization Event

Person in Charge Address Telephone

If unavailable (Alternate Name) Address Telephone

Date of Event Starting Time Ending Time (approx) Estimated Number of Participants
Proposed Route (include Street/Avenue, attach location map)

I/We assume responsibility for reimbursing the
City's cost as estimated below, and all liability for injuries and damages and will hold the City harmless
from any claims arising directly or indirectly from the event, inéluding or as a result of City’s closure
of the street(s) to facilitate the event, and, if applicable, authorization to use copyrighted materials.
If applicant is a corporation, association, or partnership, the undersigned warrants he/she is authorized
to execute binding contracts on behalf of the applicant.

Signature

State of Florida

County of o
The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this ___ day of , 20 . by
+ who is personally known to me or who presented as identification,
and who (did) (did not) take an oath.
[Signature of Notary Public] [Printed, typed or stamped name of Notary Public]

{Commission Number of Notary Public]

NOTICE: PERMIT NOT VALID UNLESS APPROVED BY DESIGNATED CITY REPRESENTATIVE.

Total Deposit § Received By: Date

Tolice Chief Date City Manager Date

Distribution: Original to Applicant; Copies to Chief of Police, Director of Public Works, City Manager and City Clerk

NOTE: A LIST OF STREETS BEING CLOSED WITH DATES AND TIMES WILL BE RELEASED TO THE
PRESS NO LESS THAN 5 DAYS PRIOR TO THIS EVENT.

G:\WP_WORK\ClerkOffice\FORMS\street.wpd Revised: 05/06



To: Chief Turner
From Sgt Maeder
Date: 10-25-07

Subj: Christmas Parade Cost Estimate for Overtime

Police

Police Chief @ 10 hours =

Lieutenant  $42.78 @ 8 hours = $342.24
Detective $35.82 @ 6 hours = $214.92
Detective $32.85 @ 6 hours = $197.10
Sergeant $37.60 @ 7 hours = $263.20
Sergeant $37.60 @ 5 hours = $188.00
Sergeant $32.18 @ 5 hours = $160.90
Patrolman x3 $23.21 @ 6 hours = $417.78
Patrolman x2 $23.21 @ 5 hours = $232.10
Patrolman  $22.10 @ 5 hours = $110.50

Patrolman x2 $15.47 @ 4 hours = $123.76
Evid. Tech $17.81 @ 4 hours = $89.05
Disp. Sgt.  $28.32 @ 4 hours = $141.60
Police man hour cost = $2,481.15

® Page 2
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AGENDA ITEM NO. _ £
1 fs 10T

CITY OF BROOKSVILLE
MEMORANDUM

To: City Council

Via: T. Jennene Norman-Vacha, City Mgnager M
A

From: Emory H. Pierce, Director of Public 3 & /(

Re: MLK Blvd. Re-Paving from Main St. to US 41

Date: September 18, 2007

This matter was put before Council on 6/4/07, Agenda Item No. F2C, and Council
requested Staff to ask the County if a sidewalk could be included in this project. Their answer is
essentially that the current project is for re-paving this road segment and they do not want to
incorporate a sidewalk into the project because of the additional expense. (copy of é-mail
attached).

According to Greg Sutton P.E. Assistant Company Engineer they have budgeted
$100,000.00 for this project and would like the City to contribute another $100,000.00 to achieve
the $200,000.00 needed to do a satisfactory re-paving job.

We have $118,000.00+ in our Multi-Year Capital Fund 308, (FY 07/08 budget copy
attached) and are recommending that we set aside $100,000.00 for this re-paving and enter into
the attached Inter local Agreement that clarifies this and requires the City to pay this amount

within sixty (60) days of project completion. County staff is intending to have this agreement
approved at their Nov. 6, 2007 BOCC meeting.

EHP/ko
G:\Emory\09182007MLK Bivd Repaving from Main St to US 41.doc



INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT

Between CITY OF BROOKSVILLE and HERNANDO COUNTY, providing
Joint Participation for Improvement to Dr. M. L. King, Jr. Blvd.
from Broad Street east to Main Street,

THIS AGREEMENT entered into this 1st day of October , 2007,
by and between CITY OF BROOKSVILLE, a Florida wmunicipal
corporation, acting by and through its City Council, the governing
body thereof, hereinafter referred to as “the CITY” and HERNANDO
COUNTY, a political subdivision of the State of Florida, acting by
and through its Board of County Commissioners, the governing body
thereof, hereinafter referred to as “the COUNTY”.

WITNESSETH:

WHEREAS, Chapter 163, Florida Statutes, permits local
governmental units to make the most effective use of their
resources by enabling them to cooperate with other local
governmental units on a basis of mutual advantage, and thereby
provides services and facilities in a manner that will permit the
most effective deliverance of services to accommodate the needs
and development of local communities; and

WHEREAS, Dr. M. L. King, Jr. Blvd. from Broad Street east to
Main Street, is part of both the CITY and the COUNTY road
maintenance system; and

WHEREAS, Dr. M. L. King, Jr. Blvd. from Broad Street east to
Main Street, is in need of maintenance Dby asphalt resurfacing;
and,

WHEREAS, the CITY and the COUNTY do hereby enter into this
Agreement for the purpose of providing asphalt resurfacing of Dr.
M. L. King, Jr. Blvd. from Broad Street east to Main Street, for
the safety and well-being of the residents of both the city and
the county;

NOW, THEREFORE, the CITY and the COUNTY hereby agree as
follows:

1. The COUNTY shall resurface Dr. M. L. King, Jr. Blvd.
from Broad Street east to Main Street.

2. The CITY shall, within sixty (60) days after completion
of the paving, pay to the COUNTY a sum equal to one-half
of the cost of resurfacing, but not to exceed $100,000.



3. This Agreement shall become effective upon execution by
both parties.

4. This Agreement may be terminated at any time upon mutual
consent of the parties.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have caused the
execution hereof by their duly authorized official on the date and
year first above written.

DONE AND RESOLVED this __ day of , 2007.

(SEAL) CITY OF BROOKSVILLE, FLORIDA

By:

David Pugh, Mayor
ATTEST:
By: APPROVED AS TO FORM AND CONTENT
Karen Phillips, City Clerk FOR THE RELIANCE OF THE CITY OF
BROOKSVILLE ONLY:

%ﬁ%

Thomas S. Hogan,
City Attorney

(SEAL) BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS
OF HERNANDO COUNTY, FILORIDA

By:

Jeff Stabins, Chairperson
ATTEST:
By: APPROVED AS TO LEGAL FORM AND
Karen Nicolai, Clerk of Court CONTENT, OFFICE OF THE COUNTY
ATTORNEY :

County Attorney



Page 1 of 1

Emory Pierce

From: "Bill Busch" <BBusch@co.hernando.fl.us>

To: <epierce@ci.brooksviile fl.us>

Cc: "Charles Mixson" <charlesm@co.hernando.fl.us>
Sent: Friday, July 27, 2007 9:03 AM

Subject: KLK Blvd. paving project
Emory,

As a follow up to our conversation yesterday morning (Jul. 26, 2007) concerning the
sharing of costs for the re-construction of MLK Blvd.;

You requested the county to consider the possibility of constructing a sidewalk along
MLK Blvd. (from US-41 to S. Main Street). We reviewed both the north and south
sides of the project and recommend the sidewalk be constructed on the south side of
the road. Our best quesstimate would be approximately $100,000. for the sidewalk.
There would be additional costs for any survey, excavation, drainage improvements
and possible tree removal.

Due to the many budget cuts we have been required to make this year, It is the
County’s position to participate only in the re-construction costs of MLK Blvd.
pavement. Our original guesstimate for the re-construction of the pavement was
between $200,000. and $250,000. I have requested $100,000. to be set aside in our
budget (FY 2007-08) for this purpose.

Sincerely,
Bill

William G.Busch

Pavement Management Coordinator

Dept. of Public Works, Engineering Division
Herando County Florida

1525 East Jefferson Street

Brooksville, Fl. 34601
bbusch@co.hernando.fl.us

(352) 754-4062

9/18/2007



AGENDA MEMORANDUM

TO: HONORABLE CHAIRMAN AND MEMBERS OF THE
BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS

VIA: GARY KUHL, COUNTY ADMINISTRATOR
FROM: CHARLES G. MIXSON, P.E., COUNTY ENGINEER/ DPW DIRECTOR

SUBJECT: DR. MARTIN LUTHER KING BLVD. PAVING PROJECT
INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT WITH CITY OF BROOKSVILLE

DATE: OCTOBER 18, 2007

BRIEF OVERVIEW: Staff is requesting approval and Chairman’s signature on the attached
Interlocal Agreement with the City of Brooksville to resurface a portion of
Dr. Martin Luther King Blvd. from Broad Street east to Main Street.

BUDGET IMPACT: Hernando County will share cost equally with the City of Brooksville. The
County’s cost of construction will be half the total cost of $197,431.48. (See
attached cost analysis). Funding is available from Pavement Management
Road Project Account.

LEGAL IMPACT: The Board of County Commissioners has the authority to enter an
Interlocal Agreement with the City of Brooksville in accordance with
Florida Statutes 125and 163.

RECOMMENDED ACTION:  Staff recommends the Board of County Commissioners approve the
Interlocal Agreement with the City of Brooksville for the resurfacing of Dr.
Martin Luther King Blvd. from Broad Street east to Main Street.

ADMINISTRATIVE NOTE: __ Reviewed See attached memo

BUDGET APPROVAL:

Enclosed is an Interlocal Agreement for resurfacing a portion of Dr. Martin Luther King Blvd. This agreement allows for
Hernando County to resurface the roadway and to share equally in the cost of the project with the City of Brooksville. The
total cost of the project is $197,431.48.

There is no formal agreement with the City for maintaining Dr. Martin Luther King Blvd. The County’s jurisdiction is
approximately ¥z of the length of the project. Dr. Martin Luther King Blvd. was previously resurfaced/rebuilt in the mid
1997 at 100% construction cost to the County.

Attached is a cost estimate for the resurfacing.
RECOMMENDATION

Staff recommends the Board of County Commissioners approve the Interlocal Agreement with the City of
Brooksville for the resurfacing a portion of Dr. Martin Luther King Blvd., authorize the Chairman’s signature on
the agreement, and forward said agreement to the City of Brooksville for their execution.

CGM:js
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FY 0708 [k of

CITY HALL RENOVATIONS FUND 307

Actual Actual| Budgeted| Projected| Requested
04/05 05/06 06/07 06/07 07/08

INCOME
Intergovernmental Revenue $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
Interest income 18 91 0 15 0
Transfers In 0 2,500 0 0 0
Prior Year Carry forward 637 655 3,175 3,246 0
Total Income $655 $3,246 $3,175 $3,261 $0
EXPENDITURES
Capital Outlay $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
Transfers Out 0 0 3,175 3,261 0
Reserves 655 3,246 0 0 0
Total Expenditures $655 $3,246 $3,175 $3,261 $0

(1) Transferred Out to Public Facilities Repair and Maintenance Fund 306 to close out City Hall Renovations Fund in 06.

MULTI YEAR CAPITAL PROJECT ACCUMULATION FUND 308

Actual Actual| Budgeted; Projected| Requested
04/05 05/06 06/07 06/07 07/08

INCOME
intergovernmental Revenue $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
interest Income 259 2,170 2,000 2,918 3,500
Miscellaneous 0 0 0 0 0
Transfers In 25,000 75,000 0 0 0
Prior Year Carry forward 9,229 34,488 110,688 111,658 114,576
Total Income $34,488 $111,658 $112,688 $114,576 $118,076
EXPENDITURES -
Operating Expenditures $0 $0 $70,000 $0 $118,076 (1)
Capital Outlay 0 0 0 0] 0
Transfers Out 0] 0 0 0 0
Reserves 34,488 111,658 42,688 114,576 0
Total Expenditures $34,488 $111,658 $112,688 $114,576 $118,076

(1) $100,000 with County for paving of MLK and $18,076 Stripping.

09/18/2007 10:10:01 AM
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ITEM NO. - /’
AGENDA ///(/07

MEMORANDUM

TO: HONORABLE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCI}

FROM: T.JENNENE NORMAN-VACHA, CITY

SUBJECT: Transportation Qutreach Program (TOP SR 50 Reverse
Frontage Road & Utility Project — Dralnage Retention
Area Easement for Lot 9. David/Manuel Commercial Park
Subdivision

DATE: OCTOBER 26, 2007

We are currently continuing negotiations with KMS Investment Partnership for
an Agreement for Grant of Easement.

We are hopeful that an agreement can be reached prior to the Council Meeting of
November 5, 2007. We will provide the Agreement for Council review as soon as
possible.

Again, thank you for understanding.






AGENDA ITEM NO. | = 4

STAFF REPORT 18fis/ey
: Honoab e a and City Council

Via: T. Jennene Norman-Vacha, City Manage, / K/‘% oz

From: Bill Geiger, Community Development Director %,(&

Subject: Transportation Outreach Program (TOP)- SR 50 Reverse Frontage Road &

Utility Project - Drainage Retention Area Easement for Lot 9, David/Manuel
Commercial Park Subdivision

Project Area: Near the Southeast Corner of the Intersection of SR 50 (Cortez Blvd.) & SR 50-
A (W. Jefferson Street)

Date: September 21, 2007

BACKGROUND

During the 2002 legislative session, the City was awarded a grant in the amount of $980,000
through the Transportation Outreach Program (TOP). $675,000 of the grant was targeted to be
leveraged with CDBG-ED and City impact fee funds to build the above-referenced frontage road
and install related utilities. Additionally, TOP funding was planned to cover the cost of
purchasing a new transit bus ($110,850) and provide pedestrian-related improvements to the
downtown area with the balance of funds ($194,150). A portion of the frontage road network
(Whitfield Avenue) was constructed in conjunction with the Tractor Supply Company project
using CDBG-ED funds ($179,958.38). The bus was purchased and transferred to the County
pursuant to terms specified within an interlocal agreement, to augment the fixed-route transit
system.

At the December 18, 2006 meeting, City Council reduced the scope of the frontage road project
and authorized staff to proceed with implementing the construction of only those portions of the
project within rights-of-way currently owned by the City. Additionally, City Council directed
staff to research the possibility of using surplus TOP funds to do pedestrian-related improvements
in the downtown area. On June 18, 2007, City Council awarded a contract to WDG
Construction, Inc., to do the reduced-scope frontage road project in the amount of $339,999.99.

CURRENT STATUS

WDG Construction, Inc., commenced work on the project in mid August. On August 22,2007,
the silt fence contractor, during the installation of silt fencing around the perimeter of the existing
DRA on Lot 9 of the David/Manuel Commercial Park subdivision, cut into an underground radial
copper wiring system that provides signal enhancement for the existing radio tower on the site.
The ground radial system is privately owned and was not identified by the “utility locate” process.
Staff met with the property owners of the DRA site (KMS Investment Partnership) on August 23,
2007, to assess the situation. The ground radial system is a web of small (#10) copper wiring that
is placed 2-6" underground. The wiring is run in lines that start at the tower base and stretch out
to varying distances within the DRA, and as previously mentioned, serve to enhance the signal
strength for the broadcast station. During the discussion of the issue concerning the wires that
were cut, the issue of needing an easement was brought up. Asa point of history, when the
David/Manuel Commercial Park plat was approved (April 2002), page two of the plat provided
for a restriction that states, “LOT 9 IS RESTRICTED FOR USE AS A DRAINAGE RETENTION
AREA (DRA) AND FOR A POTENTIAL COMMUNICATION TOWER SITE. SAID DRA IS
DESIGNED TO HANDLE THE DRAINAGE FROM THE “FUTURE DEVELOPMENT” AS




Page 2
Transportation Outreach Program (TOP)
Drainage Easement

NOTED ON THIS PLAT AS WELL AS THAT PORTION OF THE FUTURE ROAD SECTION
DESIGNATED AS TRACT “A” ON THIS PLAT.” Although the plat did not formally dedicate an
easement, the restriction implies the right to place water from the improved condition of the plat
into the DRA.

Since the Providence Boulevard/Whitfield Avenue project includes an area that is located outside
the platted subdivision, the engineer designed a portion of the existing pond to be excavated an
additional average of 1.5 feet more than its current condition. This is necessary in order to meet
SWFWMD permitting requirements for the project, and to continue to maintain the
storage/treatment capacity for the area labeled as “FUTURE DEVELOPMENT” on the plat.
Since the DRA property is under a fee simple ownership, and the project impact is for more than
what the restriction placed with the plat contemplates, the city attorney has indicated that an
easement would be required.

Staff have been communicating with the property owners with respect to working through the
issues and concerns in granting an easement, including the issue of reimbursement for the
repair/replacement of the ground radial system that was and will be further disturbed in excavating
the DRA. An “Agreement for Grant of Easement” is in the process of being negotiated as of the
time this report is being written. An initial draft of the Agreement that has been transmitted to the
owner for consideration is attached.

Time is of the essence, since the TOPS finding is due to expire as of December 31, 2007. The
Owner(s) and the City will either need to agree with the terms of an easement agreement, so that
the contractor may be authorized to continue with the project, or the City will need to close out
the project, and pay the contractor for costs incurred to date as well as for the costs to
repair/replace the ground radial system in the DRA.

ADDITIONAL INFORMATION

Treating this issue as an opportunity, Staff are working with the mayor to address the possibility
of obtaining the cooperation of other property owners in this area to do a version of the project
originally contemplated. With property owner support, the plan is to go back to the FDOT and
request an extension to the grant funding, that would allow for a project that provides for road
connectivity that would benefit all of the existing road network in this area (as opposed to just
building the smaller road segments that won’t connect to anything until additional segments are
constructed).

BUDGET IMPACT:
The cost to cure easement, based on meetings with the owner to date, is estimated at $25,000.
TOPS Grant funds are anticipated to be used to acquire this easement.

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:
Approve the “Agreement for Grant of Easement,” and authorize the mayor to sign the appropriate
documentation.

Attachment: Draft Agreement for Grant of Easement
pc. file G:\Bgeig\Grants\TOPs2002\cc 10012007 Providence_Whitfield project.wpd
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CITY OF BROOKSVILLE
MEMORANDUM
To: CITY COUNCIL
VIA: T. Jennene Norman - Vacha , City ¥ 25’@
From: Emory H. Pierce, Director of Publ 1ks o /jﬂ/éJ/ //;//C// L/\J&/
Re: Southern Hills Plantation Reimbursement & Impact Fee Credit Request

Verification Report Submittal #3

Date: October 22, 2007

We request approval of Submittal # 3 for the purpose of booking impact fee credits for Southern
Hills Plantation Project and Offsite Improvements.

Staff has reviewed these cost numbers and concurs with the amounts and agrees that the subject
work has been completed.

The purpose of these reports is to allow City Council to approve of the costs of the expenditures
the Developer has made prior to the, “ booking”, or creation of impact fee credits for water,
sewer, and transportation expenditures. The credits actually being booked at this time are listed
in the attached memo from Coastal Engineering. As per the various agreements and amendments
related to this project the Developer is allowed to receive impact fee credits for certain
expenditures when the work is completed. Two previous Submittals have been approved.

EHP/ib
G:\Emory\103006 SHP submittal #3.doc






Engineering

Planning

Surveying

Environmental
Construction Management

July 27, 2007

Emory Pierce

City Engineer

City of Brooksville

600 S. Brooksville Ave.
Brooksville, Florida 34601

Re: Southern Hills Plantation — Request Booking for Impact Fee Credits
Mr. Pierce:

Attached for your review is the Reimbursement & Credit Request Verification Report,
Submittal #3 (ETD 03/31/07) to the City of Brooksville Report on Award of Bids & Cost Basis
for Reimbursement On the Soutliern Hills Plantation Project and Offsite Improvements dated
7/27/07 (Report) including Accounting Packets #1 through #8 submitted by Coastal on behalf our
client, Hampton Ridge Developers, LLC (Developer). With your acceptance of the report,
Coastal requests on behalf our client that the report and the request for booking of the impact fee
credits with the Developer as identified below be brought before the Brooksville City Council for
approval.

1. Sewer impact fee credits in the amount of $294,259.24 for costs incurred by the
Developer in providing required information to the City and funds for purchasing real
property through the City’s condemnation process for necessary easements associated
with the Wiscon to SR50 Reuse and Forcemain project.

2. Transportation impact fee credits in the amount of $963,175.55 for cost incurred in the
procurement of ROW for the SR50 2-Lane Collector (a.k.a., Governors Blvd. and the
North-South Road Phase 2). This cost includes $274,300.00 for ROW owned by the
Developer that has been deeded to the City and $688,875.55 in City condemnation costs
paid by the Developer to obtain the remaining required ROW including the Mendez and
Brocoto properties.

When you have completed your review and deemed the report acceptable, Coastal will provide
nine (9) copies of the final Report without the Accounting Packets for your dissemination. For
purposes of subsequent SWFWMD reimbursement submittals following the acceptance of the
Report, Coastal will provide additional copies of the appropriate invoices and checks from the
Accounting Packets when needed.

Please call me if you have any questions.

Sincerely,
COASTAL ENGINEERING ASSOCIATES, INC.

T oo

Tom Mountain
Sr. Vice President

copy: T. Casey with Report and Attachments and w/o Packets
G. Miars with Report and Attachments and w/o Packets
file

M.\2004 Projects\04417 SHP\Reimbl?r(ssgn%ﬁp%%@%gg%ﬁ@&%é&@%g?%%{@%éﬁaﬁg% Emory 072707 doc

e-mail: coastal@coastal-engineering.com






City of Brooksvilie
Memorandum

To: City Council

via: T. Jennene Norman-Vacha, City / /L/VM/Z é)kg)

From: Emory H. Pierce, Director of Public-W

Date: 10/26/07

RE: Water, Sewer and Transportation Impact Fee Credit Summary- Southern Hills
Plantation

Water and Sewer Impact Fee Credits- Submittal No. 1

Submittal No. 1, dated 4/1/05, allowed for the “booking” of $521,859.30 in water impact fee credits
($445/ERU) for the water main lines in SHP PH I and $333,544.85 (of the $517,294.85 in total sewer
impact fees approved in Submittal No. 1 to become eligible as credits as work progressed and City
accepted them) in sewer impact fee credits at $1,170/ERU. Those amounts represent the utility
improvements accepted by the city.

Transportation Impact Fee Credits- Submittal Ne. 1

No transportation impact fee credits were booked at the time of submittal no. 1. The SHP Blvd and
N/S road construction issues had not been settled at that time.

Water Impact Fee Credits- Submittal No. 2

Submittal No. 2 identified an $11,703.94 reduction in water impact fee credit amount approved and
booked in Submittal No. 1 due to corrected invoicing from Specialized Services, Inc ($8,096.34) for
the Potable Water Main Ph I project and a reduction of $3,607 in water line oversizing that was
incorrectly included in submittal 1, but was supposed to be reimbursed directly by the City. No new
water impact fee credits were booked with Submittal No. 2.

Sewer Impact Fee Credits- Submittal No. 2

Submittal No. 2, dated 3/31/06, allowed for the “booking” of $291,817 in sewer impact fees associated
with the completion of the SR 50 West Service Area Agreement ($32,351.50 which was 50% of the
General Conditions amount and $259,466 for 100% of the sewer extension amount). This $291,817 is
eligible for credits at the $1,728/ERU, per the agreement, not the $1,170 rate. Submittal No. 2 also
identified $183,750 (completion of the Regional Pump Station), the balance of the $517,294.85 from
submittal No. 1, to be booked . In addition, Submittal No. 2 also identified an additional $52,406.45 in
impact fee (at $1,170/ERU) credit eligible improvements for the Forcemain SHP to Fairgrounds project
not included in the originally approved $517,294.85 amount in Submittal No: 1.






Transportation Impact Fee Credits- Submittal No. 2

Submittal No. 2, dated 3/31/06, identifies a total of $3,076,890.45 in costs ETD to be recognized for
transportation fee credits. In a memo from Coastal Engineering dated 9/21/2006, $1,162,313.19 of R-
O-W acquisitions, design and permitting costs, modifications and change orders were to be booked.
The balance ($1,914,577.26) will be booked after final acceptance of the roadway by the City.

Water Impact Fee Credits- Submittal No.3

No impact fee credits for water are requested or to be booked in Submittal No. 3.

Sewer Impact Fee Credits- Submittal Ne. 3

In Submittal No.3, $294,259.24 is identified as eligible to be booked as sewer impact fee credits for the
work already completed in the on-going Forcemain-Wiscon to SR 50 portion of the project.

Transportation Impact Fee Credits- Submittal No. 3

Submittal No. 3 identifies $963, 175.55 in transportation impact fee credits associated with the
completed portions of the on-going SR50 2-Lane Collector to be booked.

G:\Emory\102507 impact fee credit narrative council.doc






City of Brooksville
Review of Submittals No. 1,2 and 3 Reimbursement and Credit Request Verification Reports

Impact Fee Credits to Date

10/25/07

Approved

Approved

Approved

Awaiting Council Approval

Submittal No. 1

SR 50 West Service
Area Agreement-
Sewer

Submittal No.2

Submittal No.3

Southern Hills Boulevard-Water Distribution,
Plantation Offsite Ultilities- Site Work (33%), and
Southern Hills Plantation Offsite Utilities- Water
Distribution; a.k.a, Potable Water Main Phase 1
($445/ERU)

$521,859.30

-$11,703.94

Southern Hills Plantation Offsite Utilities- Site
Work (33%), SHP Offsite Utilities- Sanitary and
Onsite Master Earthwork Grading and Drainage-
Schedule A:

Regional Pump Station ($183,750.00)
{$1,170/ERU)

$183,750.00

Forcemain SHP to Fairground ($1,170/ERU)

$333,544.85

$52,406.45

SR 50 West Service Area Agreement
(31,728/ERU)

$291,817.00

Forcemain-Wiscon to SR 50 ($1,170/ERU)

$294,250.24

Transportation- ROW & Drainage Easement
Acquisition, Engineering & Design/Permitting, US
41 Modifications, CO# 8 & CO #9

$1,162,313.19

'SR 50 2-Lane Collector Rd

$963,175.55

impact fee credit summary submittal No 3.xis
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MEMORANDUM

TO: HONORABLE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL

VIA: T. JENNENE NORMAN-VACHA, CITY MANAGER

FROM: THOMAS S. HOGAN, CITY ATTORNEY
SUBJECT: U.S. 41 SR 50-US 41 CONNECTOR ROAD AGREEMENT

DATE: OCTOBER 26, 2007

Attached please find the U.S. 41 SR 50-US 41 connector road implementation agreement
between Hernando County and the agreement between the City of Brooksville and Hampton
Ridge Developers, LLC. The agreements have been reviewed by counsel for the City, LandMar
and the County.

In the agreement between Hernando County and the City, we have asked that the option of
requiring a bond be stricken from paragraph three of the agreement, because, even though the
bond will be the responsibility of LandMar, a bond would cause additional legal complexities
and fees for the City, which we wish to avoid. However, we do not believe this provision is a
deal breaker from a legal perspective.

Additionally in the agreement between Hernando County and the City, the more disconcerting
change was made by the County. Specifically, the County amended paragraph four of the
agreement to state that their failure to amend or dissolve the lease with the Fair Association
which governs the County property at issue will not render the property unmarketable. In other
words, the City would have to take the property subject to the lease, and then negotiate with the
Fair Association, which will likely require payment of monetary consideration to the association.



To: City of Brooksville

Engineering

Planning 966 Candlelight Boulevard « Brooksville « Florida 34601
i (352) 796-9423 « Fax (352) 799-8359
e-mail: coastal@coastal-engineering com
www.coastal-engineering.com

Attn: Jennene Norman-Vacha

From: Tom Mountain //073

Date: October 26, 2007

Re: Fairgrounds ROW

10-26-07 P0O2:21 |IN

We are sending you the attached:

Copies Date No./Pgs Description

SR50-US41 CONNECTOR ROAD IMPLEMENTATION
1 10/25/07 AGREEMENT (City-County) Version 4

AGREEMENT BETWEEN CITY AND DEVELOPER TO FACILITATE
1 10/25/07 FUNDING OF SR50-US41 CONNECTOR ROAD ACQUISITION

THESE ARE BEING TRANSMITTED AS CHECKED BELOW:

] For approval
X For your use
[] As requested

REMARKS:

[] No exception taken [ ] Rejected, see Remarks
[ ] Make corrections noted [] For review and comment
[] Amend & resubmit [] For signature(s)

Here are clean copies for your use and placement on the agend for the Nov 5t City Council
Meeting. Mike Silvey has been provided with original of City-County Agreement



AGREEMENT BETWEEN CITY AND DEVELOPER
TO FACILITATE FUNDING OF
SR50-US41 CONNECTOR ROAD ACQUISITION

THIS AGREEMENT BETWEEN CITY AND DEVELOPER TO FACILITATE
FUNDING OF SR50-41 CONNECTOR ROAD ACQUISITION (“Agreement”) is made and
entered into as of November __ , 2007, by and between the CITY OF BROOKSVILLE, a
Florida municipal corporation, through its City Council (“City”), and HAMPTON RIDGE
DEVELOPERS, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company (“Develeper”), with reference to
the following facts:

WHEREAS, pursuant to Section 2.D.1 of the City of Brooksville, Florida Development
Agreement for Hampton Ridge Project, dated May 28, 2003, as subsequently amended by (collectively,
the “Development Agreement”), the Developer is obligated to construct the S.R. 50-U.S. 41 Collector
Road (as defined and described in the Development Agreement), and to dedicate the necessary right-of-
way therefor, or fund the cost of the City’s acquisition of right-of-way through condemnation or similar
proceedings outside of the “Property” (as defined in the Development Agreement), in exchange for
transportation impact fee credits; and

WHEREAS, on November 12, 2003, the City and the Hernando County (“County”) entered into
that certain Supplemental Interlocal Agreement Regarding the Hampton Ridge 1,600 Acre Tract
(“Supplemental Interlocal Agreement”), providing, in part, for coordination between the City and the
County with regard to the acquisition of right-of-way for the north-south segment of the roadway
connecting State Road 50 (“SR 50”) and U.S. Highway 41 (“US 41”) (defined therein and referred to
herein as the “SR50-US41 Connector Road”, being one and the same as the S.R. 50-U.S. 41 Collector
Road); and

WHEREAS, Section 1.7 of the Supplemental Interlocal Agreement provides, in pertinent part,
the following:

“Once the City has acquired or contracted for all of the right-of-way for the N-S
segment of the SR 50-US 41 Connector Roadway, except for the right-of-way
across the Hernando County parcel east of the Fairgrounds, the City shall advise
the County in writing that it has said right-of~way. Immediately thereafter, the
County shall convey to the City, at fair market value, title to the right-of-way for
that portion of the SR 50-US 41 Connector Road segment crossing their

property.”; and

WHEREAS, the City has previously notified the County that the City has acquired or contracted
for all of the right-of-way for the SR50-US41 Connector Road, except for the right-of-way across lands
owned by the County, which parcel is more particularly described in Exhibit “A” (“County
Property™), and the Hernando County Fair Association, Inc., a Florida not-for-profit corporation (“Fair
Association™), which parcel of real property is more particularly described in Exhibit “B” (“Fair
Association Property”); and

City-Developer Funding Agmt-v3.doc



WHEREAS, the City has obtained and provided to the County and the Fair Association fair
market value appraisals (each an “Appraisal”), in the form of Summary Appraisal Reports, each dated
March 9, 2007, prepared by American Acquisition Group, LLC, through K. Mitchell Caldwell, MAI;
and

WHEREAS, the fair market appraised value of the County Property, including cost-to-cure
compensation, is $1,120,825.00, and the fair market appraised value of the Fair Association Property is
$126,345.00; and

WHEREAS, the City intends to enter into certain SR50-US41 Connector Road Implementation
Agreements with the County and the Fair Association, respectively (collectively, the “Implementation
Agreements”), to further implement Section 1.7 of the Supplemental Interlocal Agreement, in lieu of
condemnation, providing for the conveyance of the County Property and the Fair Association Property
(collectively, the “Properties”) to the City, and the City’s payment to the County and the Fair
Association of the fair market value of their respective Properties as established by the Appraisals; and

WHEREAS, as a condition to entering into the Implementation Agreements, the City requires
Developer to provide the funding necessary for the City to satisfy its obligations under the
Implementation Agreements, in accordance with Section 2.D.1., of the Development Agreement; and

WHEREAS, the City and the Developer desire to provide for the specific implementation of the
agreements with the County and the Fair Association to facilitate the City’s acquisition of the County
Property and the Fair Association Property, on the terms and conditions set forth in this Agreement.

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the agreements and covenants set forth in this
Agreement and the Development Agreement, the parties agree as follows:

1. Recitals; Exhibits. The foregoing recitals are true and correct and, together with all
exhibits attached hereto, are hereby incorporated into this Agreement by this reference.

2. Posting of Security. The Developer shall deliver to the City, or the County and/or the
Fair Association directly if so requested by the City, the Security (as defined in the Implementation
Agreements) in the amounts and forms required by the Implementation Agreements. In exchange for
delivering the Security, the City shall obtain from the County and the Fair Association easements to
enable the construction, installation, maintenance and operation of the potable water main within the
Properties, and permit construction thereof in accordance with the plans and specifications for such
potable water main approved by the City prior to the date hereof. The City will cooperate with the
Developer by obtaining the return of the Security from the County and the Fair Association at the time
required to be returned pursuant to the Implementation Agreements.

3. Acquisition Price. The Developer acknowledges that the City must pay to the County
$1,120,825.00, and to the Fair Association $126,345.00, in consideration for acquisition in lieu of
condemnation of fee simple title to the County Property and the Fair Association Property, respectively.
The Developer shall deliver to the Escrow Agent named in the Implementation Agreements such
amounts pursuant to Section 2.D.1)b) of the Development Agreement, together with any other amounts
required to be satisfied by the City pursuant to the Implementation Agreements, at least one (1) business
day prior to the date on which such amounts are due thereunder.




4. Title; Survey. Developer shall provide, at the Developer’s sole cost and expense, title
insurance commitments, title insurance policies, and boundary surveys as to the Properties at the time
permitted by the Implementation Agreements. Developer shall cause title commitments to be provided
to the City Attorney for the City Attorney’s review and approval in advance of the date for acquisition of
fee simple title to the Properties. Developer shall not have any obligation to cure or satisfy any matters
affecting title to the respective properties, provided that Developer shall cooperate with the City
Attorney in any such efforts, at no further cost or expense to Developer. Developer shall cause title
insurance policies to be issued to the City promptly after the respective closings.

5. Closing Dates. The City agrees to acquire fee simple title to the County and Property and
the Fair Association Property on the dates set forth in the respective agreements. Developer shall have
the right to request that the City acquire the Properties at an earlier date by delivering written notice
thereof to the City, provided that such written notice shall provide for a closing date fifteen (15) days
after the date of such notice, and, provided further, that Developer provides the funding necessary to
complete the acquisition of the Properties on the date so specified. In no event will the City accelerate
the date for acquisition of either the County Property or the Fair Association Property pursuant to the
respective Implementation Agreements unless Developer so requests.

6. Transportation Impact Fee Credits. Immediately after consummating the closings under
the Implementation Agreements, and pursuant to the terms of the Development Agreement, the City
shall provide Developer with transportation impact fee credits equal to all amounts funded by Developer
pursuant to the terms of this Agreement, in recognition that such amounts are being funded to satisfy the
City’s expenses incurred in acquiring the Properties in lieu of condemnation. Developer shall provide to
the City invoices for any costs or expenses incurred and funded by the Developer that are not shown on
the closing statements for such transactions as evidence of the amount to be credited to Developer.

7. Time. Time is of the essence in this Agreement with regard to all acts and dates imposed
on the parties hereto. All time periods and deadlines set forth in this Agreement shall be calculated in
calendar days, unless business days are expressly stated. In the event that the date upon which any
duties or obligations hereunder are to be performed, or the exercise of any option or right or any
deadline hereunder shall occur or be required to occur, shall be a Saturday, Sunday or holiday on which
banks in the State of Florida are closed, then, in such event, the due date for performance of any duty or
obligation or the exercise of any option or right shall thereupon be automatically extended to the next
succeeding business day. All deadlines and time periods shall be deemed to expire or occur, as
applicable, at 5:00p.m. Eastern Time unless otherwise expressly stated herein.

8. Notice. Whenever one (1) party gives notice to the other party concerning any of the
provisions of this Agreement, such notice shall be given by facsimile followed by U.S. Mail, or by
certified mail, return receipt requested. Said notice shall be deemed given when it is deposited in the
United States mail with sufficient postage prepaid (notwithstanding that the return receipt is not
subsequently received). Notices shall be addressed as follows: (a) to the City at 201 Howell Avenue,
Brooksville, Florida 34601, Attention: City Manager, Facsimile: (352) 544-5424, with a copy to the
City Attorney; and (b) to Developer at 14055 Riveredge Drive, Suite 225, Tampa, Florida 33637,
Attention: Graydon E. Miars, Facsimile: (813) 207-0139. These addresses may be changed by giving
notice as provided for in this paragraph.



9. Further Assurances. Each of the parties hereto shall execute and deliver any and all
additional papers, documents, and other assurances, and shall do any and all acts and things reasonably
necessary in connection with the performance of their obligations hereunder and to carry out the intent
of the parties hereto.

10.  Damages, Costs and Expenses. To the extent that the City becomes obligated to pay any
damages or is otherwise liable for any costs and expenses pursuant to the terms of either Implementation
Agreement, the Developer shall be obligated to pay the same or to reimburse the City therefor, as
directed by the City.

11.  Attorneys’ Fees. The prevailing party in any litigation arising out of this Agreement shall
be entitled to costs and reasonable attorneys’ fees and expenses incurred by such party, including any
incurred on appeal or in any administrative proceeding. This provision shall survive the closings and
any termination of this Agreement.

12.  Amendments; Entire Agreement. This Agreement may only be amended by written
consent of both parties hereto. This Agreement, together with the Development Agreement, constitutes
the entire understanding between the parties with respect to the specific subject matter set forth herein.

13. Severability. If any provision of this Agreement is declared unenforceable by a court of
competent jurisdiction, then the remainder of this Agreement shall remain in full force and effect, and
shall be construed, as closely as possible, as if such unenforceable provision were not included herein.

14. Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed in any number of counterparts, each of
which, when executed, shall be deemed to be an original, but all of which shall together constitute one
and the same instrument.

15.  Effect of Agreement. This Agreement shall take effect on the last date on which the City
or the Developer executes this Agreement (“Effective Date”).

[Signatures on following page.]



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this Agreement has been executed as of the date indicated below
next to each parties’ signatures.

ATTEST: CITY OF BROOKSVILLE

a Florida municipal corporation
Karen Phillips By:
City Clerk David Pugh, Mayor

City Council

APPROVED AS TO FORM
AND LEGAL SUFFICIENCY:
Tom Hogan
City Attorney
ATTEST: HAMPTON RIDGE DEVELOPERS, LLC,

a Delaware limited liability company

By:
Graydon E. Miars, Vice President




COMPOSITE EXHIBIT “A"

SECTION 33, TOWNSHIP 22 SOUTH, RANGE 19 EAST
HERNANDO COUNTY

SKETCH OF DESCRIPTION
* NOT A BOUNDARY SURVEY *
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DESCRIPTI! ON (CREATED PER THIS SKETGH)

A PARCEL OF LAND LYING IN AND BEING A PART OF THE SOUTHWEST 1/4 OF SECTION 33, TOWNSHIP 22 SOUTH, RANGE 19 EAST,

HERNANDO COUNTY, FLORIDA AND BEING MORE PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS: FOR A POINT OF BEGINNING COMMENCE

AT THE SOUTHEAST CORNER OF SAID SOUTHWEST 1/4; THENCE ALONG THE SOUTH BOUNDARY OF SAID SOUTHWEST 1/4 N 89" 53' 55" W
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S 00" 21' 13" E A DISTANCE OF 137.72 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING,

CONTAINING 0.17 ACRE, MORE OR LESS.

ORAWHGO INVALID UNLESS SIGHED, DATED
& SEALED BY REGISTERED PROFESSIOHAL

SKETCH OF DESCRIPTION

% PREPARED FOR AND' CERTIFIED TO: DATE
866 Candleligh - Brookeville - Flodds 34601
(352) 758.9423 - Fox (352) 700-8369 0B~08~08
MARCUS M. JR
£8.0000142 u L R CITY OF BROOKSVILLE
FLORIDA CERTIFICATE OF AUTHORIZATION MG, 7200 FLORIDA REGISTRATION NUMBER 6276 D4415
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SECTION 33, TOWNSHIP 22 SOUTH, RANGE 19 EAST
HERNANDQO COUNTY, FLORIDA

SKETCH OF DESCRIPTION
* NOT A BOUNDARY SURVEY *

DESCRIPT! ON (CREATED PER THIS SKETCH)

A PARCEL OF LAND LYING IN AND BEING A PART OF SECTION 33, TOWNSHIP 22 SOUTH, RANGE 19 EAST, HERNANDO COUNTY,
FLORIDA AND ALSO BEING A PART OF A PROPDSED NORTH/SOUTH COLLECTOR ROAD, SAID PARCEL LYING NORTHEASTERLY OF MAGNOLIA CREEK
AND BEING MORE PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS: COMMENCE AT THE SDUTHWEST CORNER OF THE SOUTHEAST 1/4 OF SAID
SECTION 33; THENCE ALONG THE SOUTH BOUNDARY OF SAJD SOUTHEAST 1/4 N 8%* 53' 55° £ A DISTANCE OF 586.24 FEET 10 THE
POINT OF BEGINNING, SAID POINT LYING ON THE NORTHEASTERLY UNE OF MAGNOLIA CREEK: THENCE ALONG SAID NORTHEASTERLY LINE
OF MAGNOLIA CREEK N 56° 22° 33" W A DISTANCE OF 25.92 FEET; YHENCE N 30° 10° 15" W A DISTANCE OF 24.81 FEET; THENCE
WEST A DISTANCE OF 19.84 FEET; THENCE N 56" 53 58" W A DISTANCE OF 21,68 FEET; THENCE N 87" J1' 49" W A DISTANCE OF
19.60 FEET; THENCE N 69' 57' 56" W A DISTANCE OF 40.12 FEET; THENCE 5 76" 32' 53" W A DISTANCE OF 44.96 FEET; THENCE
N 22° 37' 04" W A DISTANCE OF 30.84 FEET; THENCE S BF 36' 43" W A DISTANCE OF 21.00 FEET; THENCE S 52" 24° 01" W A
DISTANCE OF 11,28 FEET; THENCE N 73" 29' 03" W A DISTANCE OF 16.10 FEET; THENCE N 05° 45° 08" £ A DISIANCE OF 18.08
FEET; THENCE N 22" 03° 41" £ A DISTANCE OF 13,10 FEET; THENCE N 85' 24" 41" W A DISTANCE DF 25.09 FEET:; THENCE N 41" 49" 44" W
A DISTANCE OF 28.00 FEET; THENCE N 63 19' 21" W A DISTANCE OF 40.36 FEET; THENCE N 41° 43° 26° W A DISTANCE OF 14.76 FEEL
THENCE S 37 48' 56" W A DISTANCE OF B.76 FEET; THENCE S 07 52' 32" W A DISTANCE OF 15.06 FEET; THENCE S 74" 17' 41" W A
DISTANCE OF 11.56 FEET; THENCE N 54 54' 44" W A DISTANCE OF 13.47 FEET; THENCE N 307 38' 48" W A DISTANCE OF 10.22 FEET;
THENCE N 54' 18" 37° W A DISTANCE OF 13.98 FEET; THENCE N 00’ 32' 30" £ A DISTANCE OF 50.83 FEET: THENCE N 34 57" 36" W
A DISTANCE OF 40.71 FEET; THENCE N 04" 32' 05" E A DISTANCE OF 67,79 FEET: THENCE N 42° 21° 28" W A DISTANCE OF 20,39 FEET:
THENCE N 38 27' 517 E A DISTANCE OF 76.81 FEET; THENCE S 78 57° {7” W A DISTANCE OF 11.55 FEET TO A POINT ON THE
NORTHWESTERLY RIGHT OF WAY LINE OF A PROPOSED NORTH/SOUTH COLLECTOR ROAD, SAID FOINT BEING ON A CURVE CONCAVE
SOUTHEASIERLY HAVING A RADIUS OF 2160.00 FEET, A DELTA OF 08' 17" 36, A CHORD DISTANCE OF 312,37 FEET AND A CHORD BEARING
F N 52° 30" 00" E; THENCE ALONG THE ARC OF SAID CURVE A DISTANCE OF 332,65 FEET TO A POINT OF TANGENCY; THENCE CONTINUE
ALONG SAID RIGHT OF WAY UINE N 56 38' <B" E A DISTANCE OF 3B9.81 FEET TO THE POINT OF CURVATURE OF A CURVE CONCAVE
NORTHWESTERLY HAVING A RADIUS OF 1749.94 FEET, A DELTA OF 23" 06’ 297, A CHORD DISTANCE OF 700.99 FEET AND A CHORD
BEARING OF N 45" 05' 34" E; THENCE ALONG THE ARC OF SAID CURVE A DISTANCE OF 705,77 FEET TO A POINT OF TANGENCY;
THENCE N 33 32° 20" £ A DISTANCE OF 14,22 FEET YD THE EAST BOUNDARY OF THE SOUTHWEST 1/4 OF THE SOUTHEAST 1/4 OF SAID
£ SECTION 33; THENCE ALONG SAID EAST BOUNDARY S 00' 31' 54" E A DISTANCE OF 2D2.89 FEET TO A POINT ON THE SOUTHEASTERLY
RIGHT OF WAY LINE OF A PROPOSED NORTH/SOUTH COLLECTOR ROAD, SAID POINT BEING ON A CURVE CONCAVE NORTHEASTERLY HAVING
: A RADIUS OF 1569,94 FEET, A DELTA DF 18" 23’ 19%, A CHORD DISTANCE OF 597.57 FEET AND A_CHORD BEARING OF § 47 27" 09" W;
: THENCE ALONG THE ARC OF SAID CURVE A OISTANCE OF 60D.15 FEET TO A POINT OF TANGENCY; THENCE S 56 38° 48 W A DISTANCE
OF 376,17 FEET; THENCE LEAVING SAID RIGHT OF WAY LINE S 24° 17' 20" E A DISTANCE OF 65.81 FEET: THENCE S 05' 24’ 31" £ A
DISTANCE OF 16B.27 FEET; THENCE S 00' 0B' 16 W A DISTANCE OF 249.33 FEET TO THE SOUTH BOUNDARY OF THE SOUTHEAST 1/4
DF SAID SECTION 33; THENCE ALONG SAID SOUTH BOUNDARY N B9' 53" 55 W A DISTANCE OF 12.23 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING.
SUBJECT TO A 100 FOOT WIDE FLORIDA POWER CORPORATION RIGHT OF WAY AS RECORDEC IN OFFICIAL RECORD BOOK 51, PAGE 155,
PUBLIC RECORDS OF HERNANDOD COUNTY, FLORIDA

CONTAINING 6.36 ACRES, MORE OR LESS.

SHEET 2 OF 2

— T R TR
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Emvironme nit
g oiing Sseealeg b o Mansgsment PREPARED FOR AND CERTIFIED TO: DATE
866 Candialigh . - Florss 34601
(352) 795-B423 - Fax (352) 705-8359 030807
EB-0000142 LARCUS B WML IR b e CITY OF BROOKSVILLE
FLORIDA CERTIFKATE OF AVTHORIZATION NO, 7200 FLORIDA. REGISTRATION RUWBER 6276 04415
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EXHIBIT "B"
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066 Candlelight Boulevard * Brooksville « Florida 34601
(352) 796-9423 » Fax (352) 799-8359
e-mail: coastal@coastal-engineeting.com

www.coastal-engineering.com

To: Hernando County Engineering Division

Attn: Mike Silvey

From: Tom Mountain /

Date: October 26, 2007

Re: Fairgrounds ROW

We are sending you the attached:

Copies Date No./Pgs Description

SR50-US41 CONNECTOR IMPLEMENTATION AGREEMENT —
1 10/24/07 VERSION 4
THESE ARE BEING TRANSMITTED AS CHECKED BELOW:

] For approval [7] No exception taken ] Rejected, see Remarks
X For your use ] Make corrections noted ] For review and comment
] As requested ] Amend & resubmit ] For signature(s)

REMARKS:

Lets go with this agreement with Kent’s edits as provided by Donna Feldman. The City is putting
the same on their City Council agenda for Monday, November 5, 2007.

We plan to be ready for the Fair Association Meeting scheduled for Monday, November 5™ 11:00
AM, at the Fairgrounds.

Thanks.



SR50-US41 CONNECTOR ROAD
IMPLEMENTATION AGREEMENT

(City-County)

THIS SR50-US41 CONNECTOR ROAD IMPLEMENTATION AGREEMENT (City-
County) (“Agreement”) is made and entered into as of November ____, 2007, by and between
the CITY OF BROOKSVILLE, a Florida municipal corporation, through its City Council
(“City”), and HERNANDO COUNTY, a subdivision of the State of Florida, through its Board
of County Commissioners (“County”), with reference to the following facts:

WHEREAS, on November 12, 2003, the City and the County entered into that certain
Supplemental Interlocal Agreement Regarding the Hampton Ridge 1,600 Acre Tract
(“Supplemental Interlocal Agreement”), providing, in part, for coordination between the City
and the County with regard to the acquisition of right-of-way for the north-south segment of the
roadway connecting State Road 50 (“SR 50”) and U.S. Highway 41 (“US 41”) (commonly
referred to as the “SR50-US41 Connector”); and

WHEREAS, Section 1.7 of the Supplemental Interlocal Agreement provides, in pertinent
part, as follows:

“Once the City has acquired or contracted for all of the right-of-way for
the N-S segment of the SR 50-US 41 Connector Roadway, except for the
right-of-way across the Hemando County parcel east of the Fairgrounds,
the City shall advise the County in writing that it has said right-of-way.
Immediately thereafter, the County shall convey to the City, at fair market
value, title to the right-of-way for that portion of the SR 50-US 41
Connector Road segment crossing their property.”; and

WHEREAS, the City has previously notified the County that the City has acquired or
contracted for all of the right-of-way for the SR50-US41 Connector, except for the right-of-way
across lands owned by the County, which parcel is more particularly described in Exhibit “A”
(“County Property”), and lands owned by the Hemando County Fair Association, Inc., a
Florida not-for-profit corporation (“Fair Association”), which parcel of real property is more
particularly described in Exhibit “B” (“Fair Association Property”); and

WHEREAS, the City has obtained and provided to the County and the Fair Association
fair market value appraisals, in the form of Summary Appraisal Reports, each dated March 9,
2007, prepared by American Acquisition Group, LLC, through K. Mitchell Caldwell, MAI (each
an “Appraisal”); and

WHEREAS, the fair market appraised value of the County Property, including cost-to-
cure compensation, is $1,120,825.00; and

WHEREAS, the City and the County desire to further implement Section 1.7 of the
Supplemental Interlocal Agreement, providing for the conveyance of the County Property by the
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County to the City, and the City’s payment to the County of the fair market value of the County
Property as established by the Appraisal; and

WHEREAS, the parties are authorized to enter into this Agreement pursuant to Chapters
125, 163 and 166, Florida Statutes.

NOW, THEREFORE, for good and valuable consideration, as set forth in this Agreement
and performance of the covenants and agreements of the parties as set forth herein, the City and
County agree as follows:

1. Recitals; Exhibits. The foregoing recitals are true and correct and, together with
all exhibits attached hereto, are hereby incorporated into this Agreement by this reference.

2. Acceptance of Appraisal. By its execution of this Agreement, the County hereby
approves and accepts the Appraisal, and agrees to accept the sum of $1,120,825.00 as the fair
market value, including cost-to-cure compensation, for the County Property (‘“Acquisition
Price”).

3. Security for Performance. As security for the City’s agreement to pay the
Acquisition Price to the County, the City shall cause a bond or letter of credit, in a form
reasonably acceptable to the City and the County, to be delivered to the County, naming the
County as beneficiary thereof, in the amount of the Acquisition Price (“Security”). The City
shall cause the Security to be delivered to the County within thirty (30) days after the Effective
Date (defined in Paragraph 17 below) of this Agreement. The County shall release the Security
to the City, or the provider thereof, at the Closing (defined in Paragraph 5 below).

4. Title; Survey. The City shall have the right to obtain a title insurance policy and
boundary survey in connection with the City’s acquisition of the County Property. The City
shall obtain such title insurance policy and survey at no cost or expense to the County, except as
may be required for the County to cure or satisfy any title or survey matters which the City
deems to be title or survey defects upon the City’s review of a title insurance commitment for the
issuance of such title insurance policy and the boundary survey. The County, at the County’s
cost and expense, shall cure any monetary liens and encumbrances, any gaps, gores, overlaps or
physical encroachments onto or off of the County Property, and any matters which render title
unmarketable. Without limiting the generality of the foregoing, the County shall in good faith
using its best efforts seek to cause the existing lease in favor of the Hernando County Fair
Association, Inc. (“Lease”), to be amended, partially released or terminated prior to or at
Closing, such that the County Property is conveyed to the City free and clear of the Lease.
Failure to cause such amendment, partial release, or termination shall not render title
unmarketable.

5. Closing. The County shall convey the County Property to the City, and the City
shall pay the Acquisition Price to the County on January 30, 2008, or such earlier date as may be
elected by the City, in its sole discretion, by delivering written notice thereof to the County
identifying a date no sooner than ten (10) business days after the date of such notice. The date
on which the Closing occurs shall be referred to herein as the “Closing Date”. The Closing shall
be handled through Donna J. Feldman, P.A., acting as Escrow Agent for the transaction



(“Escrow Agent”). At least one (1) business day prior to the Closing Date, the parties shall
deliver the following to Escrow Agent:

(a) The County shall deliver a deed in the form of Exhibit “C” attached
hereto (“Deed”), fully executed and notarized, and in recordable form, together with an
applicable Form DR-219;

(b) The City shall deliver or cause to be delivered the Acquisition Price by
wire transfer of readily available funds;

(c) Each party shall deliver evidence of its authority to consummate the
transaction, in the form of a duly adopted resolution of its governing body;

(d) Each party shall deliver an executed counterpart of a closing statement
prepared by Escrow Agent; and

(e) Each party shall deliver such other documents as may be reasonably
requested by either party or the Escrow Agent to consummate the transaction.

Upon the Escrow Agent’s receipt of the foregoing deliveries, the Escrow Agent is authorized to
deliver the Acquisition Price to the County, deliver the Deed to the Clerk of Hemando County
for recording in the Public Records of Hernando County (“Public Records™), and deliver any
other documents to the appropriate parties, as applicable.

6. Water Main Easement. The City desires to expedite the construction and
installation of a potable water main within the County Property providing a connection to the
City’s potable water system. Within ten (10) days after the County receives the Security, the
County shall grant to the City a temporary, non-exclusive easement for construction, installation,
operation and maintenance of the water main and associated fixtures and appurtenances, together
with rights of ingress and egress as reasonably necessary to accomplish the purpose of such
easement, by delivering to the City the duly executed and notarized original of the easement
agreement attached hereto as Exhibit “D” (“Easement Agreement”). The Easement
Agreement shall terminate automatically upon recordation of the Deed in the Public Records.
Upon the City’s receipt of the Easement Agreement, the City shall be entitled to record the same
in the Public Records, and to cause construction to be commenced with respect to the City’s
potable water main in accordance with plans and specifications therefor as approved by the City.
The County acknowledges and agrees that such water main, and associated fixtures and
appurtenance, shall constitute the property of the City, and the County shall have no rights or
entitlements thereto. To the extent permitted by law without waiver of sovereign immunity in
tort, the City agrees to hold the County harmless from any and all claims, costs, or damages
resulting from the City’s willful or negligent acts with respect to use of this easement.

7. Risk of Loss. The County shall bear all risk of loss associated with the County
Property until the delivery of the Deed. The City shall bear all risk of loss associated with any
improvements made to the County Property by the City pursuant to the Easement Agreement.

8. Default; Resolution of Disputes. In the event of any default by either the City or
the County to timely and fully satisfy its obligations under this Agreement, then the non-




defaulting party shall have all rights and remedies available at law and in equity to enforce the
same. If the parties fail to resolve any conflicts related to issues covered in this Agreement, such
dispute shall be resolved in accordance with governmental conflict resolution procedures by
submitting to non-binding mediation under Chapter 164, Florida Statutes; provided, however,
that the parties’ agreement to pay liquidated damages as provided above shall not require nor be
subject to such dispute resolution process. All disputes shall be governed by the laws of Florida,
and venue of any dispute shall be in Hernando County.

9. Construction of Agreement. Both parties hereto acknowledge that they have had
the benefit of independent counsel with regard to this Agreement and that this Agreement has
been prepared as a result of the joint efforts of all parties and their respective counsel.
Accordingly, all parties agree that the provisions of this Agreement shall not be construed or
interpreted for or against any party hereto based upon authorship.

10. Time. Time is of the essence in this Agreement with regard to all acts and dates
imposed on the parties hereto. All time periods and deadlines set forth in this Agreement shall
be calculated in calendar days, unless business days are expressly stated. In the event that the
date upon which any duties or obligations hereunder are to be performed, or the exercise of any
option or right or any deadline hereunder shall occur or be required to occur, shall be a Saturday,
Sunday or holiday on which banks in the State of Florida are closed, then, in such event, the due
date for performance of any duty or obligation or the exercise of any option or right shall
thereupon be automatically extended to the next succeeding business day. All deadlines and
time periods shall be deemed to expire or occur, as applicable, at 5:00p.m. Eastern Time unless
otherwise expressly stated herein.

11.  Notice. Whenever one (1) party gives notice to the other party concemning any of
the provisions of this Agreement, such notice shall be given by facsimile followed by U.S. Mail,
or by certified mail, return receipt requested. Said notice shall be deemed given when it is
deposited in the United States mail with sufficient postage prepaid (notwithstanding that the
return receipt is not subsequently received). Notices shall be addressed as follows: (a) to the
City at 201 Howell Avenue, Brooksville, Florida 34601, Attention: City Manager, Facsimile:
(352) 544-5424, with a copy to the City Attorney; (b) to the County at 20 N. Main Street, Room
460, Brooksville, Florida 34601, Attention: , Facsimile: ; and (c) to
Escrow Agent at 19321-C U.S. Highway 19 North, Suite 103, Clearwater, Florida 33764,
Attention: Donna J. Feldman, Esq., Facsimile: (727) 536-7270. These addresses may be
changed by giving notice as provided for in this paragraph.

12.  Further Assurances. Each of the parties hereto shall execute and deliver any and
all additional papers, documents, and other assurances, and shall do any and all acts and things
reasonably necessary in connection with the performance of their obligations hereunder and to
carry out the intent of the parties hereto.

13. Amendments; Entire Agreement. This Agreement may only be amended by
written consent of both parties hereto. This Agreement, together with the Supplemental
Interlocal Agreement, constitutes the entire understanding between the parties with respect to the
specific subject matter set forth herein.



14. Severability. If any provision of this Agreement is declared unenforceable by a
court of competent jurisdiction, then the remainder of this Agreement shall remain in full force
and effect, and shall be construed, as closely as possible, as if such unenforceable provision were
not included herein.

15. Escrow Agent. The payment of all funds provided hereunder and the delivery of
all documents to the Escrow Agent is for the accommodation of the parties to this Agreement.
The duties of the Escrow Agent shall be determined solely by the express provisions of this
Agreement. Escrow Agent shall deliver the funds and documents held by Escrow Agent as
required by the terms of this Agreement. In the event Escrow Agent receives a written demand
. from either party other than in strict accordance with the terms of this Agreement, then Escrow
Agent shall give written notice to the other party of such demand and of Escrow Agent's
intention to comply therewith. If Escrow Agent does not receive a written objection within five
(5) days after delivery of such notice, then Escrow Agent is hereby authorized to comply with
the instructions so received. If, however, Escrow Agent receives written objection from the
other party within such 5-day period, then Escrow Agent shall continue to hold the funds and/or
documents until otherwise directed by joint written instructions from the parties, or until a final
judgment of an appropriate court is issued. The parties authorize Escrow Agent, without creating
any obligation on the part of Escrow Agent, in the event this Agreement, the funds or the
documents become involved in litigation, to deliver the same to the clerk of the court in which
the litigation is pending and thereupon Escrow Agent shall be fully relieved and discharged of
any further responsibility under this Agreement. The undersigned also authorize Escrow Agent,
if it is threatened with litigation or if in doubt as to Escrow Agent’s duties, to interplead all
interested parties in any court of competent jurisdiction and to deliver the funds and/or
documents with the clerk of the court and thereupon Escrow Agent shall be fully relieved and
discharged of any further responsibility hereunder. Escrow Agent shall not be liable for any
mistake of fact or error of judgment or any acts or omissions of any kind unless caused by its
own willful misconduct or gross negligence. Escrow Agent shall be entitled to rely on any
instrument or signature believed by it to be genuine and may assume that any person purporting
to give any writing, notice or instruction in connection with this Agreement is duly authorized to
do so by the party on whose behalf such writing, notice, or instruction is given. This provision
shall survive the Closing and any termination of this Agreement.

16.  Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed in any number of counterparts,
each of which, when executed, shall be deemed to be an original, but all of which shall together
constitute one and the same instrument.

17. Effective Date. This Agreement shall take effect on the last date on which the
City or the County executes this Agreement (“Effective Date”).

[Signatures on following pages.]



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this Agreement has been executed as of the date indicated
below next to each party’s signature.

ATTEST: CITY OF BROOKSVILLE,
a Florida municipal corporation

Karen Phillips

City Clerk By:

David Pugh, Mayor
APPROVED AS TO FORM City Council
AND LEGAL SUFFICIENCY:

Tom Hogan
City Attorney

ATTEST: HERNANDO COUNTY,
a subdivision of the State of Florida

- Karen Nicolai

County Clerk By:

Jeff Stabins, Chairman
APPROVED AS TO FORM Board of County Commissioners
AND LEGAL SUFFICIENCY:
Geoffrey Kirk

Assistant County Attomey

WITNESSES: JOINED IN BY ESCROW AGENT:

DONNA J. FELDMAN, P.A.

By:

Donna J. Feldman, President



EXHIBIT “A”

County Property




COMPOSITE EXHIBIT "A"

SECTION 33, TOWNSHIP 22 SOUTH, RANGE 19 EAST
HERNANDC COUNTY
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SECTION 33, TOWNSHIP 22 SOUTH, RANGE 19 EAST
HERNANDO COUNTY, FLORIDA N
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SECTION 33, TOWNSHIP 22 SOUTH, RANGE 19 EAST
HERNANDGO COUNTY, FLORIDA

SKETCH OF GESCRIPTION
* NOT A BOUNDARY SURVEY *

DESCRIPTI ON (CREATED PER THIS SKETCH)

A PARCEL OF LAND LYING IN AND BEING A PART OF SECTION 13, TOWNSHIP 22 SOUTH, RANGE 18 EAST, HERNANDO COUNTY,
FLORIDA AND ALSO BEING A PART OF A PROPOSED NORTH/SOUTH COLLECTOR ROAD, SAID PARCEL LYING NORTHEASTERLY OF MAGNOLIA CREEK
AND BEING MORE PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS: COMMENCE AT THE SDUTHWEST CORNER OF THE SOUTHEAST 1/4 OF SAID
SECTION 33; THENCE ALONG THE SOUTH BOUNDARY OF SAID SOUTHEAST 1/4 N 89* 53° 55" E A DISTANCE OF 586.24 FEET TO THE
POINT OF EEGINNING, SAID POINT LYING ON THE NORTHEASTERLY LINE OF MAGNOLIA CREEK; THENCE ALONG SAID NDRTHEASTERLY LINE
OF MAGNOLIA CREEK N 56° 22" 33" W A DISTANCE OF 25.92 FEET: THENCE N 30° 10" 15" W A DISTANCE OF 24.81 FEET; THENCE
WEST A DISTANCE OF 19.94 FEET; THENCE N 56 53" 59° W A DISTANCE OF 21,68 FEET; THENCE N 87 31" 45° W A DISTANCE OF
I9 GD FEET; THENCE N 69° 57' 56" W A DISTANCE OF 40,12 FEET; THENGE S 76" 32° 53" W A DISTANCE OF 44.96 FEET; THENCE
2" 37° 04" W A DISTANCE OF 30.84 FEET; THENCE S BX 36° 43" W A DISTANCE OF 21.00 FEET; THENCE S 52° 24" 01" WA
DISTANCE OF 1,28 FEET; THENCE N 73° 28° 03" W A DISTANCE OF 16.10 FEET; THENCE N 05° 45° 08° £ A DISTANCE OF 18.08
FEET, THENCE N 22° D3’ 41" E A DISTANCE OF 13, 10 FEET; THENCE N 85 74" 41" W A DISTANCE OF 25.09 FEET; THENCE N 41° 43" 44" W
A DISTANCE OF 28.00 JFEET; THENCE N 63 19" 21" W A DISTANCE OF 40.56 FEET; THENCE N 41° 43° 26" W A DISTANCE OF 14.76 FEET;
THENCE S 37 4B" 56 W A DISTANCE OF 8.76 FEET; THENCE S 07 52' 32" W A DISTANCE OF 15.896 FEET; THENCE S 74" 17' 41" W A
DISTANCE OF 11.56 FEET; THENCE N 64° 54' 44° W A DISTANCE OF 13.47 FEET; THENCE N 30 38" 48~ W' A DISTANCE OF 10. 22 FEET;
THENCE N 54 18" 37" W A DISTANCE OF 13.98 FEET: THENCE N 00° 52" 30" £ A DISTANCE OF 50. 83 FEET; THENCE N 34° 57 36" W
A DISTANCE OF 40.71 FEET; THENCE N 04’ 32° 06" £ A DISTANCE OF 67.79 FEET; THENCE N 42° 21" 28" W A DISTANCE OF 20,39 FEET:
THENCE N 38 27' 51" £ A DISTANCE OF 76.81 FEET; THENCE S 78" 57" 17" W A DISTANCE OF 11.55 FEET TO A PDINT ON THE
NORTHWESTERLY RIGHT OF WAY LINE OF A PROPOSED NORTH/SOUTH COLLECTOR ROAD, SAID FOINT BEING ON A CURVE CONCAVE
SOUTHEASTERLY HAVING A RADIUS OF 216D.00 FEET, A DELTA OF 08 17° 3567, A CHORD DISTANCE OF 312,57 FEET AND A CHORD BEARING
52 " E; THENCE ALONG THE ARC OF SAID CURVE A DISTANCE OF 312,65 FEET TO A POINT OF TANCENCY: THENCE CONTINUE
ALONG SAID RIGHT OF WAY UNE N 56° 38' 48" E A DISTANCE OF 389, 81 FEET TO THE-POINT OF CURVATURE OF A CURVE CON! CAVE
NORTHWESTERLY HAVING A RADIUS OF 1749.94 FEET, A DELTA OF 23 06’ 29°, A CHORD DISTANCE OF 700.99 FEET AND A CHORD
BEARING OF N 45" 08" 34 E; THENCE ALONG THE ARC OF SAID CURVE A DISTANCE OF 705.77 FEET TO A POINT OF TANGENCY;
THENCE N 33 32" 20" E A DISTANCE OF 14.22 FEET TO THE EAST BOUNDARY OF THE SOUTHWEST 1/4 OF THE SOUTHEAST 1/4 OF SAID
SECTION 33; THENCE ALONG SAID EAST BOUNDARY S 00" 31' 54" E A DISTANCE OF 202.89 FEET TO A PDINT ON THE SOUTHEASTERLY
RIGHT OF VAY LINE OF A PROPDSED NORTH/SOUTH COLLECTOR ROAD, SAID FOINT BEING ON A CURVE CONCAVE NORTHEASTERLY HAVING
A RADIUS OF 1868.94 FEET, A DELTA OF 18' 23° 187, A CHORD DISTANCE OF 597.57 FEET AND A CHORD BEARING OF § 47 27' 09" W,
THENCE ALONG THE ARC OF SAID CURVE A DISTANGE OF 600.15 FEET TO A POINT DF TANGENCY; THENCE S S5 38° 48" W A DISTANCE
OF 376,17 FEET: THENCE LEAVING SAID RIGMT OF WAY LINE S 24° 17 20" £ A DISTANCE OF 6581 FEET; THENCE 5 05° 24' 31" E A
DISTANCE OF 168.27 FEET; THENCE S 00" 08' 16" W A DISTANCE OF 249.33 FEET 70 THE SOUTH BOUNDARY OF THE SOUTHEAST 1/4
OF SAID SECTION 33 THENCE ALONG SAID SOUTH BOUNDARY N BY 53 55° W A DISTANCE OF 12.23 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING.
SUBJECT 1D A 10D FOOT WIDE FLORIDA POWER CORPORATION RIGHT OF WAY AS RECORDED IN OFFICIAL RECORD BODK 51, PAGE [55,
PUBLIC RECORDS OF HERNANDO COUNTY, FLORIDA.

CONTAINING 6.36 ACRES, MORE OR LESS.
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EXHIBIT “B”

Fair Association Property




EXHIBIT "B
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SECTION 33, TOWNSHIP 22 SOUTH, RANGE 19 EAST
HERNANDO COUNTY, FLORIDA N

SKETCH OF DESCRIPTION NAos
* NOT A BOUNDARY SURVEY * - g

NOTE
BEARINGS SHOWN HEREON BASED
QN THE FLORIDA STATE PLANE

COORDINATE SYSTEM, WEST ZONE

NORTH BOUNDARY OF THE SW 1/4 OF
SE 1/4 OF SEC. 33, TWP. 22 5., RNG.

THE NORTH BOUNDARY HERNANDO COUNTY PROPERTY

N 69'31 21" € 1316,

o
19 21500

|

/‘8 INCLUDED 13

POINT OF BEGINNING
SW CORNER OF THE SE 1/4 OF
SEC. 33, TWP. 22 S, RNG. 19 £,

DURING RETRACEMENT OF 3rd STANDARD PARALLEL IN

SW 1/4 OF THE SE 1/4
SECTION 33, TWP. 22 S,, RNG. 19 E.

TORNSHIP LINE ESTABLISHED BY GEQRGE f. YOUNG, INC.
1980 FOR THE FLORIDA DEPARTMENT OF NATURAL RESOURCES SEC. 33, TWP. 22 S, RNG. 18 E.

2T\

o' 2000 3 4po’ 600"

SCALE: 1% = 200°

THE
19 £, AND

52"

SOUTH BOUNDARY OF THE SE 1/4 OF ’

DESCRIP TI ON (CREATED PER THIS SKETCH)

A PARCEL OF LAND LYING IN AND BEING A PART OF SECTION 33, TOWNSHIP
22 SOUTH, RANGE 1§ EAST, HERNANDO COUNTY, FLORIDA, LYING msram'
OF' YHE WESTERLY RIGHT OF WAY UNE OF ‘mE PROPOSED - NORTH/SD!
COLLECTOR ROAD AND SOUTHWESTERL DF MAGNDUA CREEK AND BEIMG )A‘Ov?E
PARTICULARLY DESCRISED AS FOLLOWS: A POINT OF BEGINNING COMMENCE
T THE SOUTHWEST CORNER OF THE soumasrwof SAID_SECTION 33; THENCE

33
CURVE TABLE ALONG THE WEST BOUNDARY OF SAID SOUTHEAST 1/4 N 00" 21" 137 W A DISTANGE
["CURVE | RADIUS | DELTA ANGLE | ARC LENGIH ] CHDRD LENGTH | CHORD BEARING ggn’rﬁggu% 0 AC;’D%JNE O?l% nsli‘ml&?‘lwgl}ia%c;(r O}OJF WAY UNE OF SAID
£ 5 e 5 ger :‘ OLLE CAVE,
el | 236D.00" | 085213 1 334,38 i 334.05 | N 4¥5507" E SouT YI:_AWHGA g;DIUS 05{6';’1‘50.00 A DELTA OF D§$§%7. E’
THENCE ALONG THE ARC OF SAID CURVE A DISTANGE OF 534.38 FEET YO THE
LINE TABLE LINE TABLE NORTHEASTERLY LINE OF MAGNOLIA CREEK: THENCE ALONG SAID NORTHEASTERLY
LINE_| BEARING DISTANCE | TIRE | BEARING DISTANCE LINE N 78° 57" 17° E A DISTANCE OF 11.55 FEET: mmcz s 3g° 27' 51° w
L TE5T AT E 1,55 £ BE2441" E —25.00" | A DISTANCE DF 768! reer msncs S 42 21° 26" £ A DISTANCE OF 20.39
¥, SEP7 51 W 6.61" | X 705 41" W 30" : THENCE $ OF 32" 06 DISTANCE OF 67.79 FEET; THENCE § 34" 57" 36" F
C 555" Tkl SEEETW o A DISTANCE OF 40 5 00 32 0% W A DISTANCE OF 50,83 FEET;
v PN o5 = So-t 54 18° 377 £ A DISTANCE OF 1595 FEET: THENCE S 307 38' 48" E A
L 0432 06, 279 L 132803 :10 ST 10.22 FEET; 5 64 56" 44" £ A DISTANCE OF 1347 FEEY; MHENCE
L: 34 40.71 | L20 5224017 :28 N 74 17" 417 £ A DISTANCE OF 1156 FEIT; THENCE N 07 52° 32° £ A DSTAWE OF
i q 50.63 ¥ 85354 .00 15596 FEET, THEWCE H 37 4B' 56° € A DXSTAKE OF 8.76 FEET; THENCE S 41" 43' 26" £
L T1837" 86| 1221 S 22°5704" 30.84" DISTANCE OF 14.76 FEET; THOWE S B 18° 21" E A DISTANCE OF 4035 FEET; THENCE
LE SO 3546 5.557] 053 537537 F TR S 41" 49" 44™ £ A DISIANCE OF 25.00 FEET; THONGE 5 B5' 2f° 41" £ A DISTANCE. OF
Ty <2771 LR g A A a
S EATiA ii ot S0 ET5E o 2509 EEET; 527 0’ #17 ¥ A DISTANCE OF 13,10 FEET; THENCE 5 05 45° 08" W
X T e — Sty -1, 2 e .08 FEET; THENCE S 75 20" 03° £ A DISTAKCE OF 1 :
L £I1741 155 | | L25 8731 48 -60_ | N 52 24' 01" £ A DSTANCE OF 11.28 FEET; THINCE N B 36° 43° £ A DISTAWYE OF
3 o752 32 19,96 ) L2§ 565359 68 21,00 FEET; THENCE S 22° 37° 04" E A DISTANCE OF 30.84 FEET; THENCE
(12 74855 B.76 27 EAST. .04 * 53° £ A DISTANCE OF 44.96 FEET; THENCE 5 69' 57° 56" E A
13 AT4326" 476" (z8_ 1§ 301015 E 24,87 DISTANCE OF 40.12 FEET: THENCE S 87° 31°' 48" £ A DISTANCE OF 19.60
L14 ET19°21° 40,35 128 |5 562233 25.67" | FEET; THENCE § 56 53 597 £ A DISTANCE i
5 Ty T SE 5] e A _DISTANCE OF 19.84 NCE $ 30° 10° 15° £ A DISTANCE OF 24.81
= 2 FEET, THENCE § SE 22° 397 £ A DISTANGE OF 25.02 FEET 10 A POINT ON
BDUNDARY OF THE SOUTHEAST 1/4 OF SAID SECTION 33; THENCE ALONG
SAD SOUTH BOUNDARY S 89" 53" 55" W A DISTANCE OF 586,24 FEET TO THE
POINT OF BEGINKING.
CONTAINING 1.97 ACRES, MORE OR LESS,
Enginoating DRAMEAP:-%DN;;UD UNLESS SIGNED, DATED
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bl SKETCH OF DESCRIPTION
Emdronmenty
Continclion Manageman
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EXHIBIT “C”

Deed



Prepared by and when
recorded mail to:

DONNA J. FELDMAN, P.A.
19321-C U.S. Highway 19 North
Suite 103

Clearwater, FL 33764

Parcel Tax ID# :
R33 422 19 0000 0510 0000
R33 422 19 0000 0370 0000

THIS DEED, made this day of , 2008, by Hernando County, a
political subdivision of the State of Florida, whose address is 20 N. Main Street, Room 460,
Brooksville, Florida 34601, party of the first part, and the City of Brooksville, Florida, a Florida
municipal corporation, whose address is 201 Howell Avenue, Brooksville, Florida 34601, party of
the second part:

WITNESSETH that the said party of the first part, for and in consideration of the sum of Ten
and 00/100 Dollars to it in hand paid by the party of the second part, receipt whereof is hereby
acknowledged, has granted, bargained and sold to the party of the second part, its successors and
assigns forever, the following described land lying and being in Hernando County, Florida:

That certain real property which is more particularly described in
Exhibit “A” attached hereto and incorporated herein by this reference

(“Property™).

IN WITNESS WHEREOF the said party of the first part has caused these presents to be
executed in its name by its Board of County Commissioners acting by the Chair of said board, the
day and year aforesaid.

(OFFICIAL SEAL)

HERNANDO COUNTY,

a political subdivision of the
ATTEST: State of Florida

By:
Karen Nicolai, Clerk Jeff Stabins, Chairman

Board of County Commissioners

APPROVED AS TO FORM
AND LEGAL SUFFICIENCY

Assistant County Attorney
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EXHIBIT “A”



COMPOSITE EXHIBIT "A"

: SECTION 33, TOWNSHIP 22 SOUTH, RANGE 19 EAST
i HERNANDO COUNTY

SKETCH OF DESCRIPTION
* NOT A BOUNDARY SURVEY *

N

\ / NOTE

BEARINGS SHOWN HEREON BASED
W E ON THE FLORIDA STATE PLANE
, \ COORDINATE SYSTEM, WEST ZONE

. .S . .
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SCALE: 1" = 100"
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TOWNSHIP LINE ESTABUSHED BY GEORGE F. YDUNG, INC.
DURING RETRACEMENT OF 3rd STANOARD PARALLEL N
1980 FOR THE FLORIGA DEPARTMENT OF NA

TOWNSHIP 22 SOUTH

// / TOWNSHIP 23 SOUTH
SOUTH BOUNDARY OF THE SW 1/4 OF / "\'POINT OF BEGINNING

SEC. 33, TWP. 22 S, RNG. 1P E.
SE CORNER OF THE SW {/4 OF

,I SEC. 33, TWP. 22 5, RNG. 19 E.
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CURVE DATA LINE DATA
[CURVE | RADIUS | DELTA ANGLE | ARG LENGTH | CHORD LENGIH [ CHORD BEARING ' UINE_| BEARING DISTANCE
[Tt [ 2160,00° | 04'34'51" 1 172.70° | 172,65 | N 371136 £ R N _B§'5355 W 105.22"
L S 002113" E 137.72°

DESCRI!IP T O N (CREATED PER THIS SKETCH)

A PARCEL OF IAND LYING IN AND BEING A PART OF THE SOUTHWEST 1/4 OF SECTION 33, TOWNSHIP 22 SOUTH, RANGE (9 EAST,
HERNANDD COUNTY, FLORIDA AND BEING MORE PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS; FOR A POINT OF BEGINNING COMMENCE
AT THE SOUTHEAST CORNER OF SAID SOUTHWEST 1/4; THENCE ALONG THE SOUTH BOUNDARY OF SAID SOUTHWEST 1/4 N 89" 53’ 55° W
A DISTANCE OF 105.22 FEET 70 A POINT ON A CURVE CONCAVE SOUTHBQSTERLY HAVING A RADIUS OF 2160.00 FEET, A DELTA OF
04" 34’ 51%, A CHORD DISTANCE OF 172.55 FEET AND A CHORD BEARING OF N 37° 11' 35" E; THENCE ALONG THE ARC OF SAD
CURVE A DISTANCE OF 172,70 FEET TO THE EAST BOUNDARY OF SAID SOUTHWEST 1/4: THENCE ALONG SAID EAST BOUNDARY

S 00" 21' 13" E A DISTANCE OF 137.72 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING,

CONTAINING 0.17 ACRE, MORE OR LESS.

DRAWRG INVALRD UHLBS SIGHED, DATED
Engineciing & SEALED BY REGISTERED PROFESSKMAL

plmies SKETCH OF DESCRIPTION
Environmantsl
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SECTION 33, TOWNSHIP 22 SOUTH, RANGE 19 EAST

HERNANDO COUNTY, FLORIDA N
SKETCH OF DESCRIPTION \Y V4
* NOT A BOUNDARY SURVEY * W
NOTES 4 A
BEARINGS SHOWN HEREON BASED ’ , .S , \
ON THE FLORIDA STATE PLANE ) 200 400 600

COORDINATE SYSTEM, WEST 2008 ™ ™ s s

SEE SHEET 2 OF 2 FOR DESCRIPTION. N
SCALE: 17 = 200
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SECTION 33, TOWNSHIP 22 SOUTH, RANGE 18 EAST
HERNANDO COUNTY, FLORIDA

SKETCH OF DESCRIPTION
* NOT A BOUNDARY SURVEY *

DESCRIPTI ON (CREATED PER THIS SKETCH)

A PARCEL OF LAND LYING IN AND BEING A PART OF SECTION 33, TOWNSHIP 22 SOUTH, RANGE 1B EASY, HERNANDD COUNTY,
FLORIDA AND ALSO BEING A PART OF A PROPOSED NORTH/SOUTH COLLECTOR ROAD, SAID PARCEL LYING NORTHEASTERLY OF MACNOLIA CREEK
AND BEING MORE PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS: COMMENCE AT THE SDUTHWEST CORNER OF THE SOUTHEAST 1/4 OF SAID

SECTION 33; THENCE ALONG THE SOUTH BOUNDARY OF SAID SOUTHEAST 1/4 N 89' 53’ 557 E A DISTANCE OF 586.24 FEET 10 THE
POINT OF BEGINNING, SAID POINT LYING ON THE NORTHEASTERLY LINE OF MAGNOLIA CREEK THENCE ALONG SAID NORTHEASTERLY LINE
OF MAGNOLIA CREEK N 56° 22° 33" W A DISTANCE OF 25.92 FEET; THENCE N 30" 10’ 5% W A DISTANCE OF 24.91 FEET; THENCE

WEST A DISTANCE OF 19 94 FEET; THENCE N 56" 53° 59" W A DISTANGE OF 21,68 FEET; THENCE N 8r 31" 49 W A DISTANCE OF
19.60 FEET; THENCE N 68° 57" 567 W A DISTANCE OF 40.12 FEET: THENCE S5 76" 32° 53" W A DISTANCE OF 44.96 FEE T; THENCE
N 22" 37° 04" W A DISTANCE OF 30.84 FEET; THENCE S BY 35 43" W A DISTANCE OF 21.00 FEET; THENCE § 52' 24' 01" W A
DISTANCE OF 11.28 FEET; THENCE N 73 29° 03" W A DISTANCE OF 16.10 FZET; THENCE N 05° 45" 08" £ A DISTANCE OF 18,08
FEET: THENCE N 22' 0" 417 £ A DISTANCE OF 13, 10 FEET; THENCE N 85 24 41" W A DISTANCE OF 25.09 FEET: THENCE N 41° 43' 44 W
A DISTANCE OF 28.00 FEET; THENCE N 63 19' 217 W A DISTANCE OF 40.36 FEET; THENCE N 41" 43 26" W A DISTANCE OF 14.76 FEET;
THENCE 5 377 48’ 56" W A DISTANCE OF 8.76 FEET; THENCE S O7 52" 32% W A DISTANCE OF 15.96 FEET; THENCE 5 74' 17' 417 W A
DISTANCE OF 11,56 FEET; THENCE N 64° 5¢° 44" W A DISTANCE OF 13, 47 FEET: THENCE N 30" J8' 48" W A DISTANCE OF 10.22 FEET:
THENCE N 54° 18" 37° W A DISTANCE OF 13.88 FEET: THENCE N 0O 32" 30" £ A DISTANCE OF 50.B3 FEET; THENCE N 34 57 36" W
A DISTANCE OF 40.71 FEET: THENCE N 04' 32' 05° E A DISTANCE OF 57.79 FEET; THENCE N 42 21" 29" W A DISTANCE OF 20.39 FEET;
N 38 27° 51" E A DISTANCE OF 76.81 FEET; THENCE S 78" §7' 17" W A DISTANCE OF 11.55 FEET TO A POINT DN THE
NORTHWESI'ERLY RIGHT OF WAY LINE OF A PROPOSED NORTH/SOUTH COLLECTOR ROAD, SAID FOINT BEING ON A CURVE CONCAVE
SDUTHEASTERLY HAVING A RADIUS OF 2160.00 FEET, A DELTA OF 08 17° 367, A CHORD DISTANCE OF 312,37 FEET AND A CHORD BEARING
OF N 52 30" 00" E; THENCE ALONG THE ARC OF SAID CURVE A DISIANCE OF 312.65 FEET TO A POINT OF TANGENCY; THENCE CONTINUE
ALONG SAID RIGHT OF WAY UNE N 56 38' 48" £ A DISTANCE OF 383, BI FEET TO THE POINT OF CURVATURE OF A CURVE CONCAVE
NORTHWESTERLY HAVING A RADIUS OF 1749.94 FEET, A DELTA OF 23 06" 29° A CHORD DISTANCE OF 700.89 FEET AND A CHORD
BEARING OF N 45° D§' 347 E; THENCE ALONG THE ARC OF SAID CURVE A DISTANCE OF 705.77 FEET TO A POINT OF TANGENCY:
THENCE N 33 32' 2D £ A DISTANCE OF 14.22 FEET TO T E EAST BOUNDARY OF THE SOUTHWEST 1/4 OF THE SOUTHEAST 1/4 OF SAID
SECTION 33; THENCE ALONG SAID EAST BOUNDARY 5 DO* 51 54" E A DISTANCE OF 202.89 FEET TO A POINT ON THE SOUTHEASTERLY
RIGHT OF WAY UNE OF A PROFOSED NORTH/SOUTH COLLECTOR ROAD, SAID POINT. BEING ON A CURVE CONCAVE NORTHEASTERLY HAVING
A RADIUS OF 1855.94 FEET, A DELTA OF 18" 23° 19°, A CHORD DISTANCE DF 587.57 FEET AN CHORD BEARING OF & 47° 27 09" W
THENCE ALONG THE ARC OF SAID CURVE A DISTANCE OF 600.15 FEET TO A POINT OF TANGENCY' THENCE 5 56" 38° 48" W A DISTANCE
OF 376,17 FEET; THENCE LEAVING SAID RIGHT OF WAY UNE S 24" 17' 20" £ A DISTANCE OF 65.81 FEET; THENCE 5 05° 24' 31" E A
OISTANCE OF 16B8.27 fEET; NCE 5 00° 0B’ 16° W A DISTANCE OF 249. 33 FEET TO THE SOUTH BDUNDARY OF THE SOUTHEAST 1/4
OF SAID SECTION 33; THENCE ALDNL'-' SAID SOUTH BOUNDARY N 89* 53" 55° W A DISTANCE OF 12,29 FEET TD THE POINT OF BEGINNING.
SUBJECT TO A 100 FOOT WIDE FLORIDA POWER CORPORATION RIGHT OF WAY AS RECORDED IN OFFICIAL RECORD BODK 51, PAGE 155,
PUBLIC RECORDS OF HERNANDO COUNTY, FLORIDA

CONTAINING 6.56 ACRES, MORE OR LESS.

SHEET 2 OF 2

886

DRAWIHG JNVALI) UNLESS SKGHED, DATED

Ergheeiing & SEAUED BY REGITERED PROFESSIONAL

;"mm;?v SKETCH OF DESCRIPTION
Ervircnmeres

oo ,e,lm.m,,, oo eon Managemant PREPARED FOR AND CERTIFIED TO: DATE
Candisligh ) Florian 34601
(252) 7960423 - Fu(JSZ)TBBEJSB 03—08~07}
B-000014 LaRoUs B WAL R CITY OF BROOKSVILLE
FLORIDA CERMFICATE DF AFIHORIZATON HO, 7200 FLORIDA REG'STRATION NUMBER 6276 04415
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EXHIBIT “D”

Fasement Agreement

10



Prepared by and when

recorded mail to:

DONNA J. FELDMAN, P.A.
19321-C U.S. Highway 19 North
Suite 103

Clearwater, FL 33764

Tax Parcel No:

GRANT OF TEMPORARY INGRESS, EGRESS
AND CONSTRUCTION EASEMENT

THIS GRANT OF TEMPORARY INGRESS, EGRESS AND CONSTRUCTION
EASEMENT (“Grant™) is made this ___ day of , 2007, by and HERNANDO
COUNTY, a political subdivision of the State of Florida, whose address is 20 Main Street,
Brooksville, Florida 34601 (“Grantor™) in favor of the CITY OF BROOKSVILLE, FLORIDA, a
Florida municipal corporation, whose address is 201 Howell Avenue, Brooksville, Florida 34601
(“Grantee”).

WITNESSETH:

Grantor, for and in consideration of the sum of Ten Dollars ($10.00) and other valuable
consideration, paid receipt of which is hereby acknowledged, does hereby grant unto Grantee, its
successors and assigns, the following:

1. A non-exclusive, temporary easement (“Easement”) for construction, installation,
operation and maintenance of a potable water main and associated fixtures, structures and
appurtenances, over, under, across and through that certain real property as more particularly
described in Exhibit “A” attached hereto (“Easement Area™), together with rights of ingress and
egress thereto as may be required for purposes of exercising the easement rights granted hereby.

2. Grantee shall improve the Easement Area, if at all, at Grantee’s cost and expense,
and Grantee shall maintain and repair the Easement Area and any improvements located therein at
Grantee’s cost and expense. Any work performed by Grantee shall be performed in a good and
workmanlike manner.

3. The Easement shall constitute a covenant running with the land and shall be binding
upon and inure to the benefit of the parties hereto, their successors and/or assigns, subject to
termination as set forth herein. The Easement shall terminate automatically, without joinder or
consent of any party, upon recordation of a deed conveying the Easement Area in fee simple to
Grantee.



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned has caused this Grant to be executed the day and
date first above written.

GRANTOR:
ATTEST:
HERNANDO COUNTY,
a political subdivision of the
State of Florida
By:
Karen Nicolai, Clerk Jeff Stabins, Chairperson
Board of County Commissioners
APPROVED AS TO FORM
AND LEGAL SUFFICIENCY
Assistant County Attorney
State of Florida
County of Hernando
The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this day of , 2007,

by Jeff Stabins, as Chairperson, Board of County Commissioners of Hernando County, Florida, a
political subdivision of the State of Florida. He is personally known to me or has
produced (type of identification) as identification.

Signature of Notary Public, State of Florida

Typed Name of Notary Public
(SEAL) Commission Expires

C:\Documents and Settings\tmountain\Local Settings\Temporary Internet Files\OLKB\Temporary Construction Easement-County.doc
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EXHIBIT “A”
(Easement Area)
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COMPOSITE EXHIBIT "A"

SECTION 33, TOWNSHIP 22 SOUTH, RANGE 19 EAST
HERNANDG COUNTY

SKETCH OF DESCRIPTION
* NOT A BOUNDARY SURVEY *

N

\ ( NOTE
E

BEARINGS SHOWN HEREON BASED
ON THE FLORIDA STATE PLANE
’ \ COORDINATE SYSTEM, WEST ZONE
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SCALE: 1" = 100'
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OWNER: HERNANDO COUNTY
PARCEL LD.# R33 422 18 000D 0510 0DOD
HERNANDO COUNTY
ANIMAL CONTROL
7443.8 5Q. FT.
0.17£ ACRES

G/ o~ TOWNSHIP UNE ESTABUSHED 8Y GEORGE F. YOUNG, ING.
DURINI IENT OF 3ed STANDARD PARALLEL IN
1580 FOR THE l'LORfDA DEPARTUENT OF NATURAL RESOURCES

TOWNSHIP_22 SOUTH

~ TOWNSHIP 23 SOUTH

f

/ I

SOUTH BOUNDARY OF THE SW 1/4 OF {

SEC. 35, TWP, 22 5., RNG. 1 & / A I:EOJDIXLR% mBEE;EI”yLIyG
0 SEC. 33, TWP. 22 5., RNG. 19 &,
|
|
!

CURVE DATA LINE DATA
[CCURVE | RADIUS | DELTA ANGLE | ARC LENGIR | CHORD LENGIH | CHORD BEARING l DINE | BEARING DISTANCE
et [ 2160.00" | 04'3451" | 172,70 | 17265 [N 371136 E [ N 855355 W 105,22
L 5 00'21°13" E 137,72

DESCRIPT! ON (CREATED PER THIS SKETCH)

A PARCEL OF LAND LYING IN AND BEING A PART OF THE SOUTHWEST 1/4 OF SECTION 33, TOWNSHIP 22 SOUTH, RANGE 19 EAST,
HERNANDO COUNTY, FLORIDA AND BEING MORE PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS: FOR A POINT OF BEGINNING COMMENCE
AT THE SOUTHEAST CORNER OF SAID SOUTHWEST 1/4; THENCE ALONG THE SOUTH BOUNDARY OF SAID SOUTHWEST (/4 N B9' 53° 557

A DISTANCE OF 1D5.22 FEET TO A POINT ON A CURVE CONCAVE SOUTHEASTERLY HAVING A RADIUS OF 2160.00 fEET, A DELTA OF
04' 34" 51% A CHORD DISTANCE OF 172.65 FEET AND A CHORD BEARING OF N 37 36" E; THENCE ALONG THE ARC OF SAID
CURVE A DISTANCE OF 172,70 FEET TO THE EAST BOUNDARY OF SAID SOUTHWEST 1/4, THENCE ALONG SAID EAST BOUNDARY
500" 21" 13™ £ A DISTANCE OF 137.72 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING,

CONTAINING 0,17 ACRE, MORE OR LESS.

DRAMHO INVALID UMLESS SIGHED, DATED
Englaecdng & SEALD Y REGISTERED PROFESSIONAL

B SKETCH OF DESCRIPTION

TN et e ioe, o nicton Hansgameny PREPARED FOR AND' CERTIFIED TO: DATE
DGSCandllgllgh{Bouluvlrd - Brookmile - Flonds 34601 OB—08~08)
52} 7B8-9423 « Fnx (352) 758-B350 bt
EB-D00D142 MARCUS M, MALL, JR.
SRS W R CITY OF BROOKSVILLE
FLOAIDA CERMACATE OF AUTHORZATION HO. 7200 FLORIDA RECISTRATION NUMBER 6278 04415
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SECTION 33, TOWNSHIP 22 SOUTH, RANGE 198 EAST
HERNANDO COUNTY, FLORIDA

SKETCH OF DESCRIPTION
* NOT A BOUNDARY SURVEY *

N

\Y T4

NOTES

BEARINGS SHOWN HEREON BASED
ON THE FLORIDA STATE PLANE
COORDINATE SYSTEM, WEST ZONE

SEE SHEET 2 OF 2 FOR DESCRIPTION.
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Fioind: SKETCH OF DESCRIPTION
Emvironmania
Ma
anqneerhq Buscciates, e, regemant PREPARED FOR AND CERTIFIED TO: DATE
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{352) 706.0423 - Fa: (:52) 788:B35D 03-~08~-07]
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SECTION 33, TOWNSHIP 22 SOUTH, RANGE 19 EAST
HERNANDO COUNTY, FLORIDA

SKETCH OF DESCRIPTION
* NOT A BOUNDARY SURVEY *

DESCRIPTI ON (CREATED PER THIS SKETCH)

A PARCEL DF LAND LYING IN AND BEING A PART OF SECTION 33, TOWNSHIP 22 SDUTH, RANGE 19 EAST, HERNANDO COUNTY,
FLORIDA AND ALSO BEING A PART OF A PROPOSED NORIH/SOUTH COLLECTOR ROAD, SAID PARCEL LYING NORTHEASTERLY OF MAGNOLIA CREEX
AND BEING MORE PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS: COMMENCE AT THE SOUTHWEST CORNER OF THE SOUTHEAST 1/4 DF SAID
SECTION J33; THENCE ALONG THE SOUTH BOUNDARY OF SAID SOUTHEAST 1/4 N 89" 53’ 55" £ A DISTANCE OF 586,24 FEET TO YHE
POINT OF BEGINNING, SAID POINT LYING ON THE NORTHEASTERLY UNE OF MAGNOLIA CREEK; THENCE ALONG SAID NORTHEASTERLY LINE
OF MAGNOLIA CREEK N 56" 22° 33° W A DISTANCE OF 25.92 FEET; THENCE N 30° 10' 15" W A DISTANCE OF 24.9% FEET; YHENCE
WEST A DISTANCE OF 19.94 FEET; THENCE N 56" 53" 56" W A DISTANCE OF 21,68 FEET; THENCE N B7 31' 49" W A DISTANCE OF
19.60 FEET: THENCE N 69" 57° 56° W A DISTANCE OF 4D.12 FEEJ; THENCE 5 76° 32' 53" W A DISTANCE OF 44.96 FEET: THENCE
N 22° 37' 04" W A DISTANCE OF 30.84 FEET; THENCE S 83 35° 43" W A DISTANCE OF 21.00 FEET: THENCE S 52° 24° 01
DISTANCE OF 11,28 FEET; THENCE N 73 29° 03" W A DISTANCE OF 18,10 FEET; THENCE N 05° 45' 08" € A DISTANCE OF 18.08
FEET; THENCE N 22° D3’ 41" E A DISTANCE OF 13,10 FEET: THENCE N B5' 24° 41" W A DISTANCE OF 25,09 FEET; THENCE N 41" 48" 44" W
A DISTANCE OF 28.00 FEET; THENCE N 63° 19" 21” W A DISTANCE OF 40.36 FEET; THENCE N 41° 43" 26" W A DISTANCE OF 14.76 FEET:
THENCE S 37 48° 56" W A DISTANCE OF 8,76 FEET; THENCE 5 O7 52' 32" W A DISTANCE OF 15.96 FEET; THENCE S 74° 17° 41° W A
DISTANCE OF 11.56 FEET; THENCE N 54 54' 44" W A DISTANCE OF 13.47 FEET; THENCE N 30' 38' 48 W A DISTANCE OF 10,22 FEET:
THENGE N 54° 18" 37° W A DISTANCE DF 13,98 FEET; THENCE N 00" 32' 30” £ A DISTANCE OF 50.83 FEET: THENCE N 34" 57° 36° W
A DISTANCE OF 40.71 FEET; THENCE N 04° 32' 05° E A DISTANCE OF 67.79 FEET; THENCE N 42" 21' 29 W A DISTANCE OF 20.39 FEET:
THENCE N 38" 27' 51" E A DISTANCE OF 76.81 FEET; THENCE S 78° 57' 17° W A DISTANCE OF 11.55 FEET TO A POINT ON THE
NORTHWESTERLY RIGHT OF WAY LINE OF A PROPOSED NORTH/SOUTH COLLECTOR ROAD, SAID FOINT BEING ON A CURVE CONCAVE
SOUTHERSTERLY HAVING A RADIUS OF 218D.00 FEET, A DELTA OF 0B’ 17' 36%, A CHORD DISTANCE OF 31237 FEET AND A CHORD BEARING
OF N 52° 30" 00> E; THENCE ALONG THE ARC OF SAID CURVE A DISTANCE OF 312.65 FEET T A PDINT OF TANGENCY: THENCE CONTINUE
ALONG SAID RIGHT OF WAY LINE N 56° 38" 4B" E A DISTANCE OF 389.81 FEET TO THE POINT OF CURVATURE OF A CURVE CONCAVE
NORTHWESTERLY HAVING A RADIUS OF 1749.94 FEET, A DELTA OF 23 08' 28%, A CHORD DISTANCE OF 700.99 FEET AND A CHORD
BEARING OF N 45° 05°' 34" E; THENCE ALONG THE ARC OF SAID CURVE A DISTANCE OF 705.77 FEET TO A POINT OF TANGENCY;
THENCE N 33 32° 20° E A DISTANCE OF 14.22 FEET 1O THE EAST BOUNDARY OF THE SOUTMWEST 1/4 OF THE SOUTHEAST 1/4 OF SAD
SECTION 33; THENCE ALONG SAID EAST BOUNDARY S DO* 31’ 54" £ A DISTANCE OF 202.89 FEET TO A POINT ON THE SOUTHEASTERLY
RIGHT OF WAY LINE OF A PROPOSED NDRTH/SOUTH COLLECTOR ROAD, SAID POINT BEING ON A CURVE CONCAVE NORTHEASTERLY HAVING

A RADIUS OF 1869.94 FEET, A DELTA OF 18' 23’ 19", A CHORD DISTANCE OF £97.57 FEET AND A CHORD BEARING OF S 47 27° 09" W;

THENCE ALONG THE ARC OF SAID CURVE A DISTANCE OF B00.15 FEET TD A POINT OF TANGENCY; THENCE S 56" 38' 48" W A DISTANCE
DF 37517 FEET; THENCE LEAVING SAID RIGHT OF WAY LINE S 24’ 17° 20° E A DISTANCE OF 65.81 FEET; THENCE 5 05° 24' JI1°F A
DISTANCE OF 168,27 FEET; THENCE § 00" 06' 16" W A DISTANCE OF 249.33 FEET TO THE SOUTH GOUNDARY OF THE SOLTHEAST |

/4
OF SAID SECTION 33; THENCE ALONG SAID SOUTH BOUNDARY N 89" 53° 55° W A DISTANCE OF 12,29 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING.

SUBJECT TO A 100 FOOT WIDE FLORIDA POWER CORPORATION RIGHT OF WAY AS RECORDED IN OFFICIAL RECORD BOOK 51, PAGE 1553,
PUBLIC RECORDS OF HERNANDO COUNTY, FLORIDA.

CONTAINING 6.36 ACRES, MORE OR LESS.

SHEET 2 OF 2
— P TR R
gm SKETCH OF DESCRIPTION
PREPARED FOR AND CERTIFIED TO! DATE
ey - St et s o3-08-07
EBDOODTAZ e K o CITY OF BROOKSVILLE
FLORIDA CERNFICATE OF AUTHORIIATION MO, 7200 FLORIDA REGISTRANON RKUMBER 6276 04415
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AGENDA [ToM NO. £ -8

T —

Memorandum

To: Honorable Mayor and City Council Members
Via:

From:

Subject:  Advisory Board Positions

Date: October 26, 2007

The following advisory board positions are subject to appointment:

Planning & Zoning Commission
One vacancy to fill an unexpired 3-year term of office through January 31, 2009, replacing Charles

Miller.
Shannon Andras-Pettry (New Applicant)
Ronald H. Lawson (New Applicant)
E.E. Ernie Wever, Jr.* (Current Alternate)

(*NOTE: If Mr. Wever, who is a current Alternate, is appointed to the full-time
position, another alternate will need to be appointed through January 51,
2009.)

All are registered voters and City residents, as required.

KMP/jlp

{G:\WP_WORK\ClerkOffice\MEMOS\Council - Board Appointments 2007.wpd]



PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION

The Planning & Zoning Commission consists of five (5) voting members and two
(2) alternate members who must be City residents. The alternate members
would vote in the absence of a full time member. The Commission makes
recommendations to City Council on =zoning/re-zoning petitions, annexation
petitions, comprehensive plan amendments, preliminary/final plats, and
vacation of right-of-way petitions. Final decisions are made by the
Commission on special exceptions and variance petitions, as well as appeals
of administrative decisions or interpretations. Pursuant to Ordinance #562
adopted May 20, 1996, City Council may choose to hear appeals of any Planning
and Zoning Commission decisions. The terms of office are for four (4) years
and members must be City residents. The following is a list of the members
of the Planning & Zoning Commission, their terms of office, addresses and
phone numbers:

George H. Rodriguez, CHAIRMAN, 110 S. Brooksville Ave.; 796~-8994 (work) or
796-6857 (home). Reappointed March 6, 2006 to a four vyear term, which
expires March 31, 2010.

John A. Wanat, VICE CHAIRMAN, 501 Underwood Ave., 799-7225 (work); 796-7063
(home); 650-7091 (cell); E~Mail: jawanat@firstam.com. Reappointed January 8,
2007, to a four year term, which expires January 31, 2011.

Gharles—H-—Miller,—60—Fernweod-Briver—156~5210- {home}. Reappointed January
24, 2005, to a four year term, which expires January 31, 2009. Resigned as of
August 6, 2007.

Elmer D. Korbus, 415 Hillside Court; 796-2980 (home). Reappointed January 8,
2007, to a four year term, which expires January 31, 2011.

Louise O. Taylor, P.0O. Box 372; 796-9895 (home). Reappointed on January 8,
2007 to a four year term, which expires January 31, 2011.

E. E. “Ernie” Wever, Jr., ALTERNATE, 920 Moonlight Ln.; 799-0802 (home).
Appointed 1/8/07 to an unexpired four year term of office through January 31,
2009. (Replaced Virginia G. Garnett)

Donald Carnes Varn, ALTERNATE, 451 Howell Ave.; 397-9611 (home). Appointed
1/8/07 to a four year term of office through January 31, 2011. (Replaced
Richard E. Lewis)

Ex-officio & Support Staff

Thomas S. Hogan, Jr, Esquire, City Attorney, P.0O. Box 485, Brooksville, FL
34605; (352) 799-8423 office and fax (352) 799-8294 (also receives packet),
Email: citvattorney@ci.brooksville.fl.us

Bill Geiger, Community Development Director/City Liaison (Non-Voting) to the
Board; 544-5430 (work), Email: bgeiger@ci.brooksville.fl.us.

Patricia Jobe, Secretary to the Board; 544-5430 (work) ; Email:
piobe@ci.brooksville.fl.us or wiespersen@ci.brooksville.fl.us

Ken Pritz, Non-voting School Board Representative, Director of Planning &
Accountability, Hernando County School Board, 919 N. Broad St., 797-7096.

*Duties modified by Ordinance #562-A adopted March 3, 1997, consolidating duties of
Planning and Zoning Board and Zoning Adjustment and Appeals Board, as well as being
renamed to “Commission”.

pc: KP - Blue Binder - Orig
Bd. Sec., Chair & Vice-Chair

Master Binder Manual

G:\WP_WORK\ClerkOffice\BOARDS\Planning & Zoning Commission\P&Z Member List.wpd Revised: 8/14/07



‘Below is the result of your feedback form. It was submitted by
(Shannon R. Andras~Pettry)(andraspettrv@tampabav.rr.com) on
Wednesday, October 17, 2007 at 15:26:35

Salutation: Mrs.

Home Address: 451 Rogers Avenue
City: Brooksville

State: FL

Zip Code: 34601

Home Phone: (352) 848-0511

Work Phone: (352) 200-5228
/7\
,\\[

City Resident: on 5 An’
. /(("‘p ﬂ!

Registered Voter: 14

Present Employer: MDI

Employer's Address: 10087 Cortez Blvd

Employer's City: Brooksville

Employer's State: FL

Employer's Zip Code: 34613

Education: 1988: High School Diploma, Plant City High School
1988-1992: Polk Community College, No Diploma

Experience: I currently serve on the PersonnelfAdv1sory Board :and:am a
resident of the City of Brooksville, having lived here for almost seven
years. I have experience in both development and construction through
prior work history both at Marriott Ownership Resorts and Andras
Engineering & Construction. I am very interested in being a part of the
growth and development of our community.

Reference 1: Charlotte Goethe Hannaway (352) 799-0848

Reference 2: Beth Garman (352) 585-23508

Reference 3: Frank Bierwiler (352) 279-92061

Position: Full Member Position

Planning & Zoning Board: on



oz
S d [ GAelo7
City of Brooksville Application

for City Advisory Board/
Committee Appointment

PLEASE TYPE OR PRINT

( Mr.;/MIJ?sn.ﬂ/g;{iss/Ms. ?OUALD H . LAVJSOJ

ADDRESS: | 6 pﬂossY St
Brocoksvicee o f3¢(90!
PHONE No: Home (292.) 199-O513 work B52) Bl-4006 w 3130

E-MATL ADDRESS: ﬁtronJ 154 @ YALoS , caoM

RESIDENT OF THE CITY OF BROOKSVILLE:  Yes v No ' ‘y’]‘ 1
REGISTERED VOTER: Yes / No vorer ™ #: \OUUU (53 v ("/2‘4/{
PRESENT EMPLOYER: h}lrﬂl ACOOCHIZE Eu[gg ELEC,IRQ § COPEERATIVE
EMPLOYER'S ADDRESS: (0005 CGRTEzBLuo , Broorsiiee FL 34613
epucaron: A5, pDeaeee. P H.CC

(Use back of form for additional information)

EXPERTENCE (DETAILED) RELEVANT TO BOARD/COMMITTEE POSITION:

(Please do not substitute “many boards” for experience.)
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Applicants must be registered voters in the State and preferably residents of the
City of Brooksville. However, applicants for the Personnel Board, Planning and
Zoning Board, the Firefighter's Pension Trust Fund Board of Trustees and the
Police Officer’s Pension Trust Fund Board of Trustees must be residents of the
City of Brooksville. Specific qualifications may apply to certain advisory board
positions.
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WHICH BOARD/COMMITTEE ARE YOU APPLYING FOR? (Please check the position you are
interested in filling.)

Beautification Board: 3-year terms; 7 members

Brooksville Cemetery Advisory Committee: 4 year terms; 7 members with one
member being a Council Member.

Brooksville Housing Authority: 4-year terms; 7 members
[Requires Filing of Financial Disclosure and Gift Disclosure Forms
with the Supervisor of Elections within 30 days following
appointment and Every Year Thereafter (See Attached)]

CDBG Citizen's Advisory Task Force: No terms; 5 members;
[Requires Filing of Financial Disclosure and Gift Disclosure Forms
with the Supervisor of Elections within 30 days following
appointment and Every Year Thereafter (See Attached)]

Firefighters Pension Trust Fund Board of Trustees: 2-year terms; 5 members
(2 city residents, 2 City firefighters, and 1 person chosen by balance of
members)
[Requires Filing of Financial Disclosure and Gift Disclosure Forms
with the Supervisor of Elections within 30 days following
appointment and Every Year Thereafter (See Attached)]

Parks & Recreation Advisory Board: 4 year terms; 7 members.

Personnel Board: 3-year terms; 7 members (3 laypersons who must be City
residents and 4 City employees)

L/’//;lanning & Zoning Commission : 4-year terms; 5 members.
[Requires Filing of Financial Disclosure and Gift Disclosure Forms
with the Supervisor of Elections within 30 days following
appointment and Every Year Thereafter (See Attached)] (Must be City
Residents)

Police Officer’s Pension Trust Fund Board of Trustees: 2-year terms; 5
members (2 City police officers, 2 city residents and 1 person chosen by
balance of members)
[Requires Filing of Financial Disclosure and Gift Disclosure Forms
with the Supervisor of Elections within 30 days following
appointment and Every Year Thereafter (See Attached)]

- Other Committees or Boards

turn completed form to: City Clerk
City of Brooksville
201 Howell Avenue
Brooksville, FL 34601-2041

(352) 544-5407
(Revised 02/02/06)
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RESUME

RONALD H. LAWSON
15 Crosby Street, Brooksville, FL. 34601

Withlacoochee River Electric Cooperative

Supervisor of Engineering Services
January 2005 - Presemnt

I am currently responsible for the supervision of a 12 person engineering department.
My department’s responsibilities are to provide electrical distribution design for new
residential and commercial development, as well as to insure the efficiency of the
Withlacoochee River Electric Cooperatives West Hernando District electrical grid
system currently serving approximately 60,000 consumers.

Engineering Service Technician
March 1983 - January 2005

I have been personally responsible for cest proposals/planning of the relocation of
electrical facilities for the following major projects: Suncoast Parkway Construction,
US 19, Mariner Blvd. and Spring Hill Drive widening. I have provided the
engineering services for the Coastal Way Shopping Plaza, Publix @ Barclay,
Walmart US 19, Sam’s Club and various other commercial construction prejects. I
managed the coordination between WREC’s construction and service departments
with comsumers, builders, developers, emgineers and various other wutilities and
County Governmental Agencies. In addition I provide engineering data required to
install underground, overhead, secondary and primary service. I was involved in the
re-conductoring of WREC’s Spring Hill IT Substation which involves construction of
4 miles of double circuit distribution feeder which provides electricity to the NW
Spring Hill area as well as the planning of the Brooksville Regiomal Hospital,
Hernando County Scheols Challenger K-8 School, School “J” and the Sterling Hill
Subdivison. Other various duties include assisting with the communication and clean
up efforts before, during and after major power outages as a result of storms and
hurricanes. As well as assisting with efforts provided by FEMA and the Hernando
County Office of Emergency Management.

Regency Communities of Florida

May 1979 - March 1983

I was responsible for the enhancement of working drawings and monthly update of
company wide specification sheets as issued to purchasing, accoumting and
construction. I designed, created blueprints and obtained permitting for single family
homes, recreation centers, condominiums, and sales centers. I verified lots and
worked in cooperation with the engireers, surveyors and utility crews on various
projects.



Ellis Banking Corporation
March 1975 - May 1979

In the position of Head Teller, my main responsibility was to manage/supervise and
review the employees so as to provide quality customer service as well as work as a
team to accomplish our daily goals. Prior to leaving the banking industry my title as
Loan Adjuster held responsibilities such as the collection and maintenance of past
due loans, repossessions, foreclosures and delinquencies and report this information
to the Board of Directors.

Neisner’s Department Store
October 1973 - February 1975

United Parcel Service
June 1972 - September 1973

EDUCATION

Coventry High School
Coventry, Rhode Island

Pasco Hernando Community College
Graduated May 1977
A.S. Degree - General Studies

Major Studies: Architectural Drafting and Design; Surveying; Building
Construction Technology and Banking

PHCC Certificate of Completion: Supervisory Development 2007
Certificate of Completion: FEMA-Disaster Preparation

Committee involvement: District Safety Committee; District Coordinator for
A.C.R.E. for four years and Christmas Committee

Communrity involvement: HYL Baseball League, Historic Home Restoration and a
member of the National Trust for Historic Preservation

Award Recipient: December 2005 - Margaret Ghiotto Residential Beautification
Award

January 2006 - Margaret Ghiotto Beautification of the Year Award
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Applicants must be registered voters in the State and preferably residents of the

City of Brooksville. However, applicants for the Personnel Board, Planning and
Zoning Board, the Firefighter's Pension Trust Fund Board of Trustees and the
Police Officer’'s Pension Trust Fund Board of Trusteesmust be residents of the

City of Brooksville. Specific qualifications may apply to certain advisory board
positions.
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WHICH BOARD/COMMITTEE ARE YOU APPLYING FOR? (Please check the position you are
interested in filling.)

Beautification Board: 3-year terms; 7 members

Brooksville Cemetery Advisory Committee: 4 year terms; 7 members with one
member being a Council Member.

Broocksville Housing Authority: 4-year terms; 7 members
[Requires Filing of Financial Disclosure and Gift Disclosure Forms
with the Supervisor of Elections within 30 days following
appointment and Every Year Thereafter (See Attached)]

CDBG Citizen's Advisory Task Force: No terms; 5 members;
[Requires Filing of Financial Disclosure and Gift Disclosure Forms
with the Supervisor of Elections within 30 days following
appointment and Every Year Thereafter (See Attached)]

Firefighters Pension Trust Fund Board of Trustees: 2-year terms; 5 members
(2 city residents, 2 City firefighters, and 1 person chosen by balance of
members)
[Requires Filing of Financial Disclosure and Gift Disclosure Forms
with the Supervisor of Elections within 30 days following
appointment and Every Year Thereafter (See Attached)]

Parks & Recreation Adviscry Board: 4 year terms; 7 members.

Personnel Board: 3-year terms; 7 members (3 laypersons who must be City
residents and 4 City employees)

Planning & Zoning Commission : 4-year terms; 5 members.
[Requires Filing of Financial Disclosure and Gift Disclosure Forms
with the Supervisor of Elections within 30 days following
appointment and Every Year Thereafter (See Attached)] (Must be City
Residents)

Police Officer’s Pension Trust Fund Board of Trustees: 2-year terms; 5
members (2 City police officers, 2 city residents and 1 person chosen by
balance of members)
[Requires Filing of Financial Disclosure and Gift Disclosure Forms
with the Supervisor of Elections within 30 days following
appointment and Every Year Thereafter (See Attached)]

Other Committees or Boards

G leaa e [R—E-0L

Sighature of Applicant,”

NOTE:

Return completed form to: City Clerk
City of Brooksville
201 Howell Avenue
Brooksville, FL 34601-2041
(352) 544-5407
(Revised March 15, 2006)
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CORRESPONDENCE-TO-NOTE
REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING - November 05, 2007

TYPE:
DATE:

RECEIVED FROM:

ADDRESSED TO:

SUBJECT:

TYPE:
DATE:

RECEIVED FROM:

ADDRESSED TO:
SUBJECT:

TYPE:
DATE:

RECEIVED FROM:

SUBJECT:

TYPE:

DATE:

SENT BY:
ADDRESSED TO:
SUBJECT:

TYPE:

DATE:

SENT BY:
ADDRESSED TO:
SUBJECT:

TYPE:

DATE:

SENT BY:
ADDRESSED TO:

SUBJECT :

Audit

September 14, 2007

Malcolm Johnson & Company PA

Brooksville Housing Authority Board of Commissioners/
HUD Jacksonville, FL

Brooksville Housing Authority Audit as of 12/31/06

Letter

September 21, 2007

Mary Beth Gary, CPA, Managing Director

Oliver & Joseph, P.A.

City Manager Norman-Vacha

Information pertinent to extending Oliver & Joseph,
P.A.'s original contract with the City for one year,
to include the audit of the fiscal year ended
September 30, 2007.

Notice of Filing

October 3, 2007

Colleen M. Fitzgerald, Esqg.

Notice of Filing the 90% complete project design
plans pursuant to the Stipulated Final Judgment
entered in 'City of Brooksville, Plaintiff, vs
Pedro Mendez, Angel L. Bonilla and Hernando
County Tax Collector, Defendants.

Letter

October 4, 2007

Stephen J. Baumgartner, Finance Director

Alvin Mazourek, Hernando County Property Appraiser
Cover for 2007 Certification of Final Taxable Value.

Letter

October 4, 2007

Stephen J. Baumgartner, Finance Director
Juanita B. Sikes, Hernando County Tax Collector
Cover for HC-422 Certification of Taxable Value.

Letter

October 5, 2007

Mayor Pugh

D. Ray Eubanks, Planning Manager, Florida Department
of Community Affairs/Bureau of Local Planning

Cover for Proposed Amendments to the Future Land

Use Map and Text of the City of Brooksville's
Comprehensive Plan (Ref.CPR2007-L1 & CPA2007-L2)



10.

11.

12.

13.

TYPE:
DATE:

RECEIVED FROM:

ADDRESSED TO:
SUBJECT:

TYPE:

DATE:

SENT BY:
ADDRESSED TO:
SUBJECT:

TYPE:

DATE:

SENT BY:
ADDRESSED TO:
SUBJECT:

TYPE:
DATE:

RECEIVED FROM:

ADDRESSED TO:
SUBJECT :

TYPE:

DATE:

SENT BY:
ADDRESSED TO:
SUBJECT :

TYPE:
DATE:

RECEIVED FROM:

ADDRESSED TO:
SUBJECT :

TYPE:
DATE:

RECEIVED FROM:

ADDRESSED TO:
SUBJECT :

Email

October 5, 2007

Shannon Andras-Pettry

City Clerk Phillips

Notification of resignation from the Brooksville
Housing Authority Board.

Letter

October 11, 2007

Timothy A. Mossgrove, Chairman

Mayor and Council Members

Cover for City of Brooksville Firefighters'
Retirement Trust Fund-Annual Report of
Investment Activity.

Letter

October 12, 2007

Stephen J. Baumgartner, Finance Director

Property Tax Administration Program (TRIM Compliance)
Cover for mandatory Certification of Compliance

Form DR-487 (and attachments) for the City.

Letter

October 15, 2007

D. Ray Eubanks, Administrator/Department of
Community Affairs

Mayor Pugh

Notification that the City's Proposed Comprehensive
Plan Amendment (Ref. # Brooksville 07-2) is being
reviewed and the Department's ORC report will be
mailed to the City on or about December 11, 2007.

Letter

October 17, 2007

Stephen J. Baumgartner, Finance Director

Vernon M. Fuller, Area Director/USDA Rural Development
Cover for mandatory Community Facility Loan Quarterly
Report ending 9/30/07 for the City of Brooksville.

Final Order No. DCA07-GM-240 (Majestic Oaks Dev.)
October 18, 2007

General Counsel/Department of Community Affairs

City of Brooksville

Notification of Order closing file on Case #06-5084GM
regarding whether the City of Brooksville's
Comprehensive Plan Amendment adopted by Ordinance No.
718 on September 18, 2006 is in compliance with the
Local Government Comprehensive Planning and Land
Development Regulation Act, Ch. 163, Part II, FS.

Letter

October 26, 2007

Ray Graber, Director of Government & Public Affairs
BrightHouse Networks

City Clerk Phillips

Update regarding BrightHouse Network's channel
realignment plan, including Government channels.



Monthly Reports

September 2007 Departmental Monthly Reports
Community Development Departmental
Department of Public Works
Finance Department
Fire Department
Human Resources Department
Parks and Recreation Departmental
Police Department

Miscellaneous Minutes

City Advisory Boards

Firefighters' Pension Trust Fund April 26, 2007
Board of Trustees

Police Officers' Pension Trust Fund July 25, 2007
Brooksville Housing Authority August 23, 2007
Beautification Board September 11, 2007

Council Rep. Boards

Youth & Family Alternatives, Inc. July 16, 2007
Hernando County Community Alliance Meeting August 9, 2007
Hernando County Community Anti-Drug Coalition August 29, 2007
Hernando County Fair Association September 13, 2007

Withlacoochee Regional Water Supply Authority September 19, 2007

Withlacoochee Regional Planning Council September 20, 2007
Board of Directors Meeting

Withlacoochee Regional Planning Council September 20, 2007
Executive Committee Meeting

Hernando County Community Anti-Drug September 26, 2007
Coalition

NOTE: COPIES OF ALL CORRESPONDENCE ON FILE IN THE OFFICE OF THE CITY CLERK

G:\WP_WORK\ClerkOffice\Correspondence-to-Note\l1-05-07 Corresp to Note-doc



GL FDS
Fund Account Line
LRPH HA code 322
LRPH HA code 354
LRPH HA code 512.1/933
LRPH HA code 312
LRPH HA code 512.1/961
LRPH HA code 143
ILRPH HAcode 512.1/933
LRPH HA code 512.1/942
LRPH HA code 143.1

BROOKSVILLE HOUSING AUTHORITY
Brooksville, Florida

SCHEDULE OF AUDIT ADJUSTMENTS

DECEMBER 31, 2006
(Continued)

Description Dr.

Cr.

®)
Accrued compensated absences - current 6,053
Accrued compensated absences - long-term 16,232
Unrestricted net assets/Employee benefits

To correct accrual of compensated absences at

year end.

(This entry should be made to the financial statements and
to the general ledger.)

(6)
Vendors payable 16,938
Unrestricted net assets/Insurance expense

To eliminate subsequent payment of 2007 insurance from the
year end accounts payable accrual.

(This entry should be made to the financial statements and

to the general ledger.)

()
Inventories - Gas 13,375
Unrestricted net assets/Maintenance materials

To record estimated value of LP gas in tanks at

year end. This the same amount as one year ago.

(This entry should be made to the financial statements and
to the general ledger.)

@®)
Unrestricted net assets/Maintenance materials 13,943
Allowance for obsolete inventories

To adjust allowance for obsolete inventory to reflect
estimated real value of assets on hand. This determination
was made based upon physical inspection at time of audit,
with staff knowledge that little change had occurred in the
time elapsed.

(This entry should be made to the financial statements and
to the general ledger.)

22,285

16,938

13,375

13,943



“OLIVER & JOSEPH, PA.

CERTIFIED PUBLIC
ACCOUNTANTS

September 21, 2007

Mrs. T. Jennene Norman-Vacha
City of Brooksville

201 Howell Avenue

Brooksville, Florida 34601

Dear Jennenne:

Per the original contract executed September 13, 2004, the audit agreement may be extended two (2)
fiscal years beyond September 30, 2006 by mutual agreement of both parties. This document is to
serve as an extension of the original contract for one year, to include the audit of the fiscal year ended
September 30, 2007. Further, execution of this document includes the significant terms of the audit
engagement as described in the letter dated August 13, 2007 and approved by City Council.

If you have any questions please let me know. Please sign below and return one copy to us for our
files.

Sincerely,

OLIVER & JOSEPH, P.A.

Mandging Director

MBG/mrp

Response:

This letter correctly sets forth the understanding of the City of Brooksville, Florida.

Date:_/D-23.07

[-5-07
Members of: 18 N. Broad St., Brooksville, FL 34601 Z/U

American Institute of Certified Public Accountants Tel: 352-796-1444 Fax: 352-796-4045 www.OliverCo.com
Florida Institute of Certified Public Accountants — : j i "D

PCPS, The AICPA Alliance for CPA Firms

Other Offices In. Hernando and Spring Hill
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IN THE CIRCUIT COURT OF THE FIFTH JUDICIAL CIRCUIT
IN AND FOR HERNANDO COUNTY
CIVIL DIVISION

CITY OF BROOKSVILLE,
Plaintiff,

CASE NO.: H-27-CA2005-981
V.

PEDRO MENDEZ, ANGEL L. BONILLA

AND HERNANDO COUNTY
TAX COLLECTOR
Defendants.
/
NOTICE OF FILING

Plaintiff, CITY OF BROOKSVILLE, by and through its undersigned attorneys, hereby
gives Notice of Filing the ninety percent (90%) complete project design plans pursuant to the

Stipulated Final Judgment entered in the above-captioned matter.

FBN: 0724076

Colleen M. Fitzgerald, Esquire

FBN: 0182192

GrayRobinson, P.A.

201 North Franklin Street, Ste. 2200
Tampa, FL 33602

Telephone: (813) 273-5000
Facsimile: (813) 273-5145 |
Attorneys for Plaintiff \}» i
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City of Brooksville

(362) 5445400 (Phone)
(352) 544.-542,4: (Fax)
10-05-07 £3§2)5i44;5420 (TDD)

’() -
October 4, 2007 \ g

Mr. Alvin Mazourek
Hernando County Property Appraiser
201 Howell Avenue, Suite 300
Brooksville, FL 34601-2041
Re: Certification of Final Taxable Value 2007
Dear Mr. Mazourek:
Please find copies 1 and 2 of Certification of Final Taxable Value HC-422 for 2007 Year.

Thank you.

Sincerely,

(20 ﬁ S
Stephen J Baumgartner

Finance Director 5

attachments

U:\My Documents\open office\ docs\letter trim DR-422 property appraiser.doc

201 Howell Avenue. Brooksville. Flarida Z46071_2041



City of Brooksville

§Co

October 4, 2007

Ms. Juanita B. Sikes

Hemando County Tax Collector
20 North Main Street, Room 112
Brooksville, FL 34601

Re: Certification of Final Taxable Value for 2007

Dear Ms. Sikes:

Please find copy 4 of HC-422 Certification of Final Taxable Value.

Thank you.

%W

Stephen J Baumgartn
Finance Director

Sincerely,

attachment

U:\My Documents\open office\ docs\letter trim HC422 tax collector.doc
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ity of Brooksville

(352) 544-5420 (TDD)

October 5, 2007

Mr. D. Ray Eubanks, Planning Manager MAILED VI4 CERTIFIED MAIL
Florida Department of Community Affairs RETURN RECEIPT REQUESTED
Bureau of Local Planning

Plan Processing Team

Sadowski Building

2555 Shumard Oak Boulevard

Tallahassee, FL. 32399-2100

RE:  Transmittal of Proposed Amendments to the Future Land Use Map and Text of the City of
Brooksville’s Comprehensive Plan (Ref. CPA2007-11 & CPA2007-L2)

Dear Mr. Eubanks:

Please find enclosed, in accordance with Sections 163.3161 through 163.3215, Florida Statutes and Chapters
9J-5 and 9J-11.006, Florida Administrative Code, three copies of the above-referenced, proposed Large-Scale
Amendments to the Text (of several Elements) and Future Land Use Map of the City of Brooksville’s
Comprehensive Plan.

The following information is provided to fulfill the requirements of Rule 9J-11.006(1), FAC:

Rule 9J11.006(1)(a)1 and 2 - The Brooksville City Council, serving also as the Local Planning Agency (LPA),
held public hearings concerning the amendments to the future land use map and text of the Comprehensive Plan
on October 1, 2007, after public notice was issued as required. Atsaid public bearing, the LPA recommended
and the City Council approved transmittal of the proposed amendments to the Florida Department of
Community Affairs for review. A copy of the public notice is enclosed.

Rule 9J11.006(1)(a)(b) and (c) - The City hereby certifies that the proposed amendments, including supporting
documents, which include data and analysis supporting the proposed amendments, have been transmitted to
the Withlacoochee Regional Planning Council, Southwest Florida Water Management District, Florida
Department of Transportation (District Seven), Florida Department of State (Division of Historic Resources),
Florida Department of Environmental Protection, Hernando County Local Planning Agency, Office of
Educational Facilities of the Commissioner of Education and the Hernando County School Board. The packets
were mailed to each of these agencies on October 9th, 2007.

Rule 9J11.006(1)(2)3 - CPA 2007-L1 creates Goals, Objectives and Policies to provide the background and
guidance to implement the School Concurrency requirement. The amendment creates Chapter 11, Public
School Facilities Element (PSFE), which contains two goals with supporting objectives and policies to address
the issues contained in Chapter 163 F.S., as adopted by the Florida Legislature in SB 360, and implements an
interlocal agreement between Hernando County, the Hernando County School Board and the City of
Brooksville. There are policy changes to the Future Land Use, Intergovernmental Coordination and Capital
Improvements Elements to maintain overall consistency within the Comprehensive Plan as a result of

T NS e

201 Howell Avenmne. Beankevills. Flarda 546012041
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Karen Phillips

From: <andraspettry@tampabay.rr.com>
To: *Karen Phillips" <kphillips@gi.brooksville.fl.us>
Cc: “Brooksville Housing Authority”" <eloos@tampabay.rr.com>; "rcmclean”

<remclean@tampabay.rr.com>; "Ric Gilmore" <RGilmore@SAXONGILMORE.COM>,
<jnvacha@ci.brooksville.fl.us>; <ytaylor@yahoo.com>; <ewatkins1@tampabay.rr.com>,
<brooks@nextconnect.net>; <jsoto@tampabay.rr.com>; <stevezeledon@earthlink.net>;
<hpdouglas@hpdouglasassociates.com>; <dpugh@ci.brooksville.fl.us>;
<fburnett@ci.brooksville.fl.us>; <jbernardini@ci.brooksville.fl.us>;
<fbradburn@eci.brooksville.fl.us>; <rlewis@ci.brooksville.fl.us>

Sent: Friday, October 05, 2007 9:40 AM

Subject:  Brooksville Housing Authority Board Resignation

October 5, 2007

Karen Phillips, City Clerk
City Of Brooksville

201 Howell Avenue
Brooksville, FL 34601

Re: Brooksville Housing Authority Board Resignation
Dear Ms. Phillips;

At this time, with the turmoil and the disarray that the Brooksville Housing Authority is in, I feel that as
a Commissioner, | need to be investing a great deal of time into the day-to-day business aspect of the
Authority to ensure accuracy and accountability. Unfortunately, due to my responsibilities as a parent of
three children and my ever growing busy schedule, it is very difficult for me to afford the appropriate
time I feel is needed to do this.

Additionally, in past meetings and during numerous conversations with Mr. McLean, I have requested
we hold all future meetings at City Hall with a police officer in attendance, but these accommodations’
have not been arranged. 1 feel that with the tension surrounding the ongoing circumstances at the
Brooksville House Authority, that the Board Member’s safety has been compromised and I do not feel
that it is in my best interest nor in the best interest of my family to continue serving on this Board.

It is with a heavy heart that I will have to offer my resignation from my position as a Commissioner of
the Brooksville Housing Authority at this time.

I want to thank you for giving me the opportunity to serve my community that I so proudly live in and
hope that at some point in my life when my children are older and I have more time to invest, you will

consider me again.

Sincerely,

Shannon Andras-Pettry C/ﬂj / i , 7

cc: City Council

10/5/2007 Q
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FIREFIGHTERS’ PENSION TRUST FUND
BOARD OF TRUSTEES

85 Veterans Ave, Brooksville, Fl. 34601
352-544-5445 Fax- 352-544-5462

October 11, 2007

Honorable Mayor and Members of City Council
City of Brooksville

c/o T. Jennene Norman-Vacha

201 Howell Avenue

Brooksville, Florida 34601

Re: City of Brooksville Firefighters’ Retirement Trust Fund- Annual Report of Investment Activity

Dear Jennene:

In accordance with Section 112.661(15), Florida Statutes, please find enclosed the annual report of
investment activity of the City of Brooksville Firefighters’ Retirement Trust Fund. This report
includes investments in the portfolio as of September 30, 2007 listed by class or type, book value,
income earned and market value as of the stated date. This report must also be made available to
the public.

Sincerely,
o A

TIMOTHYA. MOSSGROVE
Chairman

smm

cc: Steve Baumgartner, Finance Director
Karen Phillips, City Clerk
Scott Christiansen, Attorney

CHIEF  TIMOTHY A. MOSSGROVE, CHAIRMAN LIEUTENANT . GERALD E. WARD, VICE CHAIRMAN FRANK R. PHILLIPS, SECRETARY
REGINA ANN MARTIN, MEMBER PAUL D. BABCOCK, MEMBER,

¢

and H/S’/o’/’
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(352) 544-5400 (Phone)
(352) 5445424 (Fax)
(352) 544-5420 (TDD)

Cilﬁy of Br@@ﬂ«svﬁﬂe

October 12, 2007

Property Tax Administration Program
“TRIM COMPLIANCE”

Post Office Box 3000

Tallahassee, FL 32315-3000

CERTIFIED RECEIPT NO. 7000 0520 0016 5840 5511

Re: DR-487 2007/2008 Certification of Compliance (TRIM
Compliance Package)

Dear Ladies and Gentlemen:
In accordance with the laws of the State of Florida, the
accompanying Certification of Compliance, Form DR-487 and

attachments are hereby submitted for your review.

If there is any further information that is required, please
notify us at your earliest opportunity. s

Thank you for your support and assistance

Yours very truly,

Néa

" /'

p 4
Stephen J Baumgartne
Finance Director

Postage | $
enclosures Certified Fee
Postmark
Return Recelpt Fee Here

(Endorsement Required)

Restricted Delivery Fee
(Endorsement Required)
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STATE OF FLORIDA

DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY AFFAIRS

"Dedicated to making Florida a better place to call home”

CHARLIE CRIST THOMAS G. PELHAM
Govemor October 15, 2007 Secretary

The Honorable David Pugh, Jr.
Mayor of Brooksville

City of Brooksville

201 Howell Avenue
Brooksville, Florida 34601-2041

Dear Mayor Pugh:

Thank you for submitting the City of Brooksville’s proposed comprehensive plan amendments
for our review. The reference number for this amendment is Brooksville 07-2.

We have conducted an inventory of the plan amendment package to verify the inclusion of all
required materials. The submission package appears to be complete, and your proposed plan amendment
will be reviewed pursuant to Chapter 163, Florida Statutes. Once the review is underway, you may be
asked to provide additional supporting documentation by the review team to ensure a thorough review.
The Department’s ORC report will be mailed to you on or about_December 11, 2007.

Also, please be advised that Section 163.3184(8)(c), Florida Statutes, requires the Department to
provide a courtesy information statement regarding the Department’s Notice of Intent to citizens who
furnish their names and addresses at the local government’s plan amendment transmittal (proposed) or
adoption hearings. In order to provide this courtesy information statement, local governments are required
by law to furnish the names and addresses of the citizens requesting this information to the Department.
Please provide these required names and addresses to the Department when you transmit your adopted
amendment package for compliance review. In the event no names, addresses are provided, please provide
this information as well. For efficiency, we encourage that the information sheet be provided in electronic
format.

If you have any questions please contact Brenda Winningham, Regional Planning Administrator,
that will be overseeing the review of the amendments, at (850) 487-4545.

Sincerely,

64, < o g,
« . / N J »

D. Ray Eubanks, Administrator >

Plan Review and Processing / (ol

DRE/af

2555 SHUMARD OAK BOULEVARD $ TALLAHASSEE, FLORIDA 32399-2100
Phone: 850.488.8466/Suncom 278.8466 FAX: 850.921.0781/Suncom 291.0781
internet address: http.//www.dca.state.fl.us

cHTICAL STATE CONCERN FIELD OFFICE COMMUNITY PLANNING EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT HOUSING & COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT

2796 Overseas Highway, Suite 212 2555 Shumard Oak Boulevard 2555 Shumard Oak Boulevard 2555 Shumard Oak Boulevard

Marathon, FL 33050-2227 Tallahassee, FL 32355-2100 Tallahassee, FL 32399-2100 Tailahassee, FL 32399-2100

(305) 289-2402 (850) 488-2356 (850) 413-9969 {850) 488-7956 e
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(352) 544:-5400 (Phone)
(352) 54:4--5424: (Fax)
(352) 544-5420 (TDD)

October 17, 2007

Mr. Vernon M. Fuller
Area Director

USDA Rural Development
2629 Waverly Barn Road, Suite 129

Davenport, FL 33897 CERTIFIED MAIL 7000 0520 0016 1779 9033

Re: City of Brooksville Community Facility Loan; Quarterly
Report ending 9/30/2007

Dear Mr. Fuller:

Enclosed is our Community Facility Loan Quarterly Report ending
9/30/07 for the City of Brooksville.

The following is recap of the items that are enclosed:

1.) Form RD 442-2 with 06/07 City of Brooksville General Fund Annual
Budget including 06/07 budget amendments; Quarterly data from
07/01/07 through 9/30/07; Year to date data from 10/01/06 through
9/30/07. Revenues and expenditures are estimated based on our
current unaudited financial statements.

2.) Supplemental Data with Property Insurance and Distribution

of Cash for City’s General Fund and Debt Service and Reserves
for 2006 Capital Improvement Revenue Bond.

Thank you to you and your staff for your assistance to the City.
Yours very truly, (/,,__m.

Stéphen J Baumgartner

Finance Director

enclosures

pc: T. Jennene Norman-Vacha, City Manager
Karen Phillips, Dir. of Administration & City Clerk
Mr. Emory Pierce, Public Works Director

G:\Users\sbaum\My Documents\open office\USDA quarterly report 09 30 07 letter.doc
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FINAL ORDER NO. DCA07-GM-240

STATE OF FLORIDA
DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY AFFAIRS

HERNANDO COUNTY,
Petitioner,

vs. Case No.: 06-5084GM

DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY
AFFAIRS and CITY OF BROOKSVILLE,

Respondents,

and

MAIJESTIC OAKS PARTNERS, LLC
and MAJESTIC OAKS DEVELOPERS,
LLLP,

Intervenors.

/

FINAL ORDER

An Administrative Law Judge of the Division of Administrative Hearings has entered an -
Order Closing File in this proceeding. A copy of the Order is attached to this Final Order as

Exhibit A.

BACKGROUND

This is a proceeding to determine whether the City of Brooksville (City) Comprehensive
Plan Amendment adopted by Ordinance No. 718 on September 18, 2006, is “in compliance” with
the Local Government Comprehensive Planning and Land Development Regulation Act, Ch.

163, Part II, Florida Statutes (the “Act”).
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HETWORKS 5 ‘M T
1004 U, S, Highway 92, wast
Auburndale, Florida 33823

October 26, 2007

Karen Phillips, City Clerk
City of Brooksville

201 Howell Avenue
Brooksville, FL 34601-2041

Dear Mrs. Phillips:

I would like to give you an update regarding Bright House Networks™ channel
realignment plan.

« The Hemando Government Channel will remain on Bright House
Networks’ Basic Service tier as an unscrambled digital channel,
effective December 11, 2007

¢ The Government Channel will be on cable Channel 622

« Bright House Networks will make a converter box available, at a low
monthly fee of $1.00 (plus taxes), for those basic customers who do
not already have one so that they may view the education
programming.

» When the realignment is complete, the converter box will also provide
additional digital channels from WEDU, WUSF, WFLA, WFTS, WTSP
and the NASA Channel.

o Bright House Networks will continue to notify and educate customers
on the new channel locations.

We hope this information answers any questions you may have regarding the
change. Please contact me if you have further questions.

Sinoerely,

r—

Director of Government & Public Affairs

)”)47. L
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CITY OF BROOKSVILLE

Community Development Department
Monthly Activity Report

September 2007
CATEGORY This Month Fiscal Year to Date This Month Last
Last Year Fiscal Year to Date
September 2007 10/01/06 - 9/30/07 (September 2006) 10/01/05-9/30/06
Building/Development Reviews 20 637 27 525
Occupational Licensing Reviews 14 195 20 172
Zoning Research Responses 59 859 65 668
Variances 0 5 1 3
Special Exceptions 2 17 0 1
Re/Zoning Amendments 1 15 1 5
Annexation 0 3 2 14
Conditional Plat 2 8 0 6
Final Plat 1 5 0 9
PDP Master Plan SEU/Zoning 0 6 0 2
Comprehensive Plan Amendments 2 4 0 2
Code Enforcement Violations 17 174 30 180
September 2007 Monthly Report Page 1 of 2 Community Development Department




MINUTES

Firefighters’ Pension Trust Fund Board of Trustees
April 26,2007

The Firefighters’ Pension Trust Fund Board of Trustees met on Thursday, April26, 2007at City Council
Chambers, 201 Howell Avenue, Brooksville, Florida 34601

PRESENT:  Gerald Ward, Vice-Chairman; Frank Phillips, Secretary; Regina Martin and Paul
Babcock, Members of the Board., Also, Susan Mae McCrary, Adm. Asst./ Recording
Secretary; Brad Heinrichs of Foster and Foster ; Jeanine Bettinger and Richard
Cristini,CPA  Bryan Barkardjiev, Bogdahn and Associates..

ABSENT: Timothy Mossgorve, Chairman was out of town.
CALL TO ORDER: The meeting called to order by Vice Chairman Ward at 5:55 p.m.
MINUTES OF MEETING OF MARCH 29, 2007

Motion

Motion by Frank Phillips; seconded by Regina Martin, voted upon and carried unanimously to approve.
DAVIDSON, JAMIESON AND CRISTINI, CPA
(a) Audit for fiscal year ending September 30, 2006.

Jeanine Bettinger explained the audit. The state money has increased from the prior year. Investment interest
has increased, which in part is due to the transition from Sun Bank to Salem Trust. There was a decrease in
the fund assets due to the DROP distribution of $286,000.

The Memorandum of Information indicated that the check registers be sent to them. They finally received
them after several requests and that they are now receiving them from Salem.

She commented positively on Susan’s assistance and organization of the files and that it is a pleasure
working with her and other city employees.

Motion

Motion to approve the audit for fiscal year ending September 30, 2006, made by Regina Martin; seconded
by Frank Phillips; voted upon and carried unanimously to approve.

FOSTER AND FOSTER

Brad Heinrichs addressed the Board. He advised that annually the actuary looks at the member contribution
rate required for the 20 vyear retirement provision. Last year they presented a decrease in the member
contribution from 4% to 3.8%, and proposed an Ordinance. For whatever reason this did not happen. At
this time the member contribution rate could fall to 2.97 % . When the ordinance for retirement after 20
years was presented, the city wanted a provision in the ordinance that all costs would be borne by the
members and there would be no cost to the city.

Motion

Frank Phillips made a motion for Scott Christiansen to present an ordinance revision dropping the member
contribution rate from 4% to 2.97%; seconded by Regina Martin, voted upon and carried. 4-0

Mr. Heinrichs stated that in 2004 there was much hurricane related overtime. The view of the actuary was
that this should not be included for purposes of projecting someone’s pay at retirement for funding purposes.
Charles Slavin, actuary in Division of Retirement in Tallahassee, disagrees and as a result they came to a
compromise that the hurricane overtime would be included for those within five years of retirement and not
included for those not within this range. Therefore, the Valuation was revised at his request resulting in a
small increase in the funding requirement, which was inconsequential since the city contributed enough.

o pu e
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POLICE OQOFFICERS’ PENSION TRUST FUND
BOARD OF TRUSTEES

Wednesday, July 25, 2007 5:00 P.M.

Police Officers’ Pension Trust Fund Board of Trustees met with members Joe
Quinn, Vice-Chairman, Randal Orman, Secretary, Jason Matheson, Member, Charles

Price, Member, David West of Bogdahn & Associates, Bonni Jensen, Board
Attorney, and Patrick Donlan of Foster & Foster. Also present were Margaret
Bosack, Recording Secretary, and Kim Harsin, Administrative Assistant. Absent

were Jason Brough, Chairman and Jim Delach, City Liaison.

CATL TO ORDER
Meeting was called to order at 5:04 pm.

APPROVAL OF MINUTES
Motion was made to approve January 24, 2007 minutes. Motion carried 4-0.

CORRESPONDENCE TO NOTE
Attorney Jensen informed the Board that there were three (3) items (C-13, C-14,
C-15) that needed action.

Motion was made to direct deposit checks to Salem Trust from Lynch Jones &
Ryan. Motion carried 4-0.

Member Matheson presented possible improvements to the plan. Mr. Donlan
explained a one time lump sum versus a percent payout and the difference
between “DROP” and “PLOP’” options.

Motion was made to have an actuarial analysis conducted by Foster & Foster to
determine the impact of raising the multiplier from 3.5 to 4.0 percent with a
cost not to exceed $1,000. Motion carried 4-0.

No motion was made to receive & file the correspondence to note.

CONSENT AGENDA

Legal Services Fees - Bonni S. Jensen, Esquire
Approval of fees in the amount of $1,160.25 to be paid by Salem Trust
Attachment- statement period ending 02/15/2007

Legal Services Fees — Bonni S. Jensen, Esquire
Approval of fees in the amount of $44.20 to be paid by Salem Trust
Attachment -~ statement period ending 03/15/07

Investment Monitor Fee - Bogdahn Consulting
Approval of fees in the amount of $1,625.00 to be paid by Salem Trust
Attachments:-Statement for period 01/01/07 - 03/31/07

Legal Services Fees - Bonni S. Jensen, Esquire
Approval of fees in the amount of $44.20 to be paid by Salem Trust
Attachment - statement period ending 04/15/07

Investment Manager Fee - Dana Investment Advisors, Inc.

Approval of fees in the amount of $3,785.56 to be paid by Salem Trust
Attachments: Statement for First Quarter 2007

Custodial Fees - Salem Trust Company

Approval of fees in the amount of $750.00 to be paid by Salem Trust
Attachment - Statement period ending March 31, 2007

/
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Brooksvitle Housing Authority
800 Continental Drive
Brooksville, Florida 34601
(352) 796-6547 or (352) 796-6517
FAX (352) 796-4899

Ronnie C. McLean
Executive Director

Minutes from August 23, 2007 Board Meeting

Present:

Board members: Steve Zeledon, Shannon Pettry, Paul Douglas, Yvette Taylor, Jeanette Soto,
James Brooks, Earl Watkins

Staff: Attorney Charles Luckie; Ronnie McLean, Executive Director; Pamela Gaines

Mr-. Zeledon called the meeting to order at 6:10 PM with a moment of silence followed by the
Pledge of Allegiance.

The new Board members introduced themselves.

Executive Director’s Report

Mr. McLean explained that HUD is in the process of conducting a forensic audit and that
Malcolm and Johnson had already conducted an audit. Policies, procedures, tenant applications,
and rental agreements all need to be revamped.

6:27 PM - Mr. Watkins joined the meeting.

Mr. Douglas asked how these plans and policies interrelate with HUD.

Mr. McLean explained that the BHA is governed by HUD regulations and State mandated
procedures regarding procurement.

Mr. Douglas asked what the BHA expected from HUD.

Mr. McLean explained that he expected to find out what shape our finances are in and what to
do about Lane Electric and Summit Villas and the electrical problems.

Mrs. Pettry stated that HUD now has a zero tolerance policy with the Brooksville Housing
Authority. If BHA had not conducted the audits, they might not receive further funding from

HUD.

Mr. Brooks asked if the BHA foresees any more charges.

Mr. McLean responded that an investigation is still underway.

/ . 7 //Lf s e
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BEAUTIFICATION BOARD MINUTES

Tuesday, September 11, 2007 5:30 P.M.

The Beautification Board met with members Sally Sperling, Nicole Sensale,
Louise Taylor, Alison Jones and Delores Jackson. Also present were Joe
Bernardini, Council Liaison and Janice L. Peters, Acting Board Secretary.
Absent Members were Lou Kavouras and Jay Thompson.

The meeting was called to order by Vice-Chairman Sperling at 5:35 p.m.,
followed by a moment of silence and the Pledge of Allegiance.

Approval of Minutes
June 12, 2007 - Board Meeting

Motion:

Motion was made by Board Member Sensale; seconded by Board Member Jones for
approval of the June 12, 2007 Regular Board Meeting Minutes. Moticn carried
5-0.

Margaret R. Ghiotto Commercial Beautification Award

Nominations:

838 E. Jefferson Street - Jose L. Calderon
(Ease Street Home décor)
(Nominated by Board Member Sensale 06/12/07)

937 E. Jefferson Street ~ GLM Investments, LLC
(American Turf Equipment)
(Nominated by Chairman Kovouras 06/12/07)

246 E. Fort Dade Avenue - Hensley Chiropractic
(Nominated by Board Member Taylor 06/12/07)

966 E. Jefferson Street - John F. Mason, Jr.
(Farmer John's Key West Cafe) i

Vice Chairman Sperling reviewed the four nominations, which were discussed.

Council Liaison Bernardini indicated American Turf Egquipment was a new
business and he did not think Hensley Chiropractic was finished vyet.

Vice Chairman Sperling recommended carrying over Hensley Chiropractic to next
month's agenda and asked if anyone had a motion for Easy Street Home Décor
along with carrying over the other nominations. Board Member Jones pointed
out she was in favor of awarding this month's award to Farmer John's Key West
Cafe.

Motion:

Motion was made by Board Member Sensale; seconded by Board Member Taylor for
approval of awarding the commercial award toc Easy Street Home Décor and to
carry over the other three nominations over to next month's agenda. Motion

v U g '?(//‘.0‘
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From: "Gloria Gorby" <ggorby@yfainc.org>

To: "Barbara O'Sullivan" <Q'Sullivan_B@HCSB k12.fl.us>; "Brenfroe@hernandosheriff.org"
<brenfroe@hernandosheriff.org>; "Carol Ellis" <Carole569@belisouth.net>; "Chief Hensley"
<mhensley@hernandosheriff.org>; "Commissioner Diane Rowden"
<drowden@co.hernando.fl.us>; "Doug McCaul" <pinecrestsh@yahoo.com,>; "Dr. Trump"
<rtmtwoods@uwildblue.net>; <dstravino@sum.net>; "Ed Hobin" <ed.hobin@swfwmd.state.fl.us>;
"Frankie Burnett" <fburnett@ci.brooksville.fl.us>; "Jean Rags" <jeanr@co.hernando.fl.us>;
"Marlene Shaw" <Marlene.Shaw@erapearson.com>; "Maureen Soliman"
<mosey217 @hotmail.com>; "Nancy Robinson" <mikejosephrob@aol.com>; "Richard Ballard"
<rgba3d@tampabay.rr.com>; "Robert Sprague " <rsqrague20@tampabay.rr.com>; "Sheriff Bill
Farmer" <billfarmer@nextel.blackberry.net>; "Sheriff Dawsy" <jdawsy @sheriffcitrus.org>; "Tom
Mylander" <smylan1@bellsouth.net>

Cc: "Mark Phillips" <mphillips@yfainc.org>; "Jim Simms" <jsimms@yfainc.org>; "Carolyn Kehr"
<ckehr@yfainc.org>; "George Magrill" <gmagrili@yfainc.org>; "Glenn Parkinson”
<gparkinson@yfainc.org>; "Martha Gonzalez" <mgonzalez@yfainc.org>; "Gina Prespare”
<gprespare @yfainc.org>

Sent: Tuesday, October 02, 2007 12:06 PM

Subject: Minutes from the July 16th Advisory Board meeting

Karen Phillips

Below you will find the minutes of the last meeting. If you have any questions please let

me know. The next meeting is scheduled for Monday, October 15 th, Please join us at the
New Beginnings Youth Shelter at 4 p.m. Please acknowledge your attendance by emuail
or calling me at 727-835-1635 x 304. Thank you so much for your continued support.
Gloria

Youth and Family Alternatives, Inc.
Citrus, Hernando and Sumter Counties

Advisory Board Meeting ’
Minutes
July 16, 2007
4:00 p.m. to 5:00 p.m.

Attendees: Richard Ballard, Ed Hobin, Glenn Parkinson, Gina Prespare, Jim Simms, Robert Sprague,
Martha Gonzalez, and Mark Phillips.

Testimonial from a Shelter Youth: Glenn Parkinson, Director of the shelter introduced a local teenager
who has been staying at the shelter. Debbie (pseudonym) told of her reason for being at the shelter. She
was brought before a judge and was sent to the shelter for truancy. Debbie told of the help the shelter
has given her and how staff assisted her to become more responsible in her actions. Ed Hobin and other
volunteers interacted with Debbie and encouraged her to be involved at school.

Welcome: After welcoming volunteers, staff and our special guests, Ed Hobin graciously chaired the
meeting. The meeting was called to order.

Election of New Chair o
;'1:,- /I
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Hernando County Community Alliance Meeting
August 9, 2007

Members Present: Dina Baswell, The Harbor; Linda Bixby, C.A.P.P.; Dennis Callaghan, DCF; Jennifer
Dallner, Big Brothers/Big Sisters; Bill D’ Aiuto, DCF; Judith Everett, District 13 SEDNET; Alli Freda, HCSO:
Sophia Grenier, Youth & Family Alternatives; John Heyne, Teen Court; Harry Hill, DJJ; Carolyn Kehr, Youth
& Family Alternatives; Morgan Moeller, Dawn Center; Robert Palin, Spring Hill United Church of Christ;
Debra Pilla, CARE Network; Jean Rags, Health & Human Services; Janice Roy, Children’s Advocacy Center;
Barbara Smith, HCSB; Tamera Stewart, HCSO; Jeanne Travaglino, Devereux Kids; Francine Ward, MFCS;
Dolly Warden, World Relief, Barbara Wheeler, E.D.

Welcome & Introductions

Lisa Panzer was out of town for today’s meeting so she asked Judy Everett to facilitate the meeting. Judy
welcomed everyone and had everyone introduce themselves. She then requested that everyone review the
minutes from the last meeting. A motion to approve the minutes was made by Debra Pilla, seconded by Dina
Baswell. Minutes were approved.

Announcements

Judy Everett requested everyone to review the handouts that were provided concerning “Family Footpaths™
Navigating the Road to a Healthy Family by Helping Parents/Grandparents Understand Family Dynamics. The
day-long seminar was being sponsored by the Isaiah Foundation on August 25" at the First United Methodist
Church of Homosassa.

Carolyn Kehr stated that Youth & Family Alternatives, Inc. will be offering Anger Management classes for
adolescents, ages 10-17 from 6:00 — 7:00 p.m. at the New Beginnings Youth Shelter. The sessions will be held
on Tuesdays beginning September 4" and continue for four weeks. Referrals will be considered by assessment.
The cost is $25 per youth for the four sessions. All four sessions must be attended with participation in order to
receive a Certificate of Completion.

Dina Baswell announced The Harbor will be attempting to assign a Case Manager (CM) to serve every school.
Starting out the school year, a CM will be at the following schools: One CM will based out of West Hernando
M.S. and service Central H.S. and Pinegrove E.S.; a CM will be based at Brooksville E.S. and serve Moton E.S.,
Parrott M.S., Hemando H.S. and STAR; and a CM will be shared at Fox Chapel M.S., Deltona E.S., Springstead
H.S., Nature Coast Tech. H.S. and Spring Hill E.S. Call Dina Baswell with questions: 540-9335 x4054 or 634-
0322 (cell).

Judy also shared information concerning the grant through Hernando County Schools and the Department of
Vocational Rehabilitation. Three Transition Specialists have been hired to assist the high schools in placing the
most at-risk students out in the community workforce. They will work with area businesses and the Department
of Vocational Rehabilitation to assist these students to learn vocational skills.

Guest Speaker: Dolly Warden

The Many Faces of Human Trafficking

Dolly Warden is a Minister working for World Relief out of the Tampa Bay office. Last October, World Relief
received a three year grant under the Office for Victims of Crime, Department of Justice, to work with survivors
in five counties which includes Hernando. They are partnered with the Clearwater Police Department who
works with the law enforcement piece of the grant. This grant is designed to assist non-citizens of the U.S.

Dolly showed a DVD which was put out by the Department of Health & Human Services which depicts the
perspective of the victims/survivors. The point put across by the DVD included “Rescue & Restore — look

beneath the surface and find the clues.”

Victims of human trafficking may look like many of the people you help everyday. Look for the following
clues: evidence of being controlled, evidence of inability to move or leave job, bruises or other signs of physical

1 B , ,//,-'(r ('
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Hernando County Community Anti-Drug Coalition sg- Uwz/f
6147 Deltona Blvd., Spring Hill, FL 34606 bff:@ %
Phone: 352-596-8000 * Fax: 352-596-8002 ';,\ s

info@hernandoantidrug.org -ﬁf{i’x*\

Hernando County Community Anti-Drug Coalition
Meeting Minutes
August 29, 2007

Present: Richard Lewis (City of Brooksville), Ann-Gayl Ellis (HC Health Department),
Karen Gidden (HC Health Dept.), Sophia Greiner (YFA), Harry Hill (YFA), Lisa
Hammond (BHER Group), Alex Meyer (Chill Smart), Charlie Watson (Chill Smart),
Ricardo Ruiz (HCSO/SRO), J.R. Hutchinson (HCSO/SRO Sergeant), Chrissie Parris
(The Harbor), Shari Noriega (PTA), Jim Striegel (The Harbor), Tresa Watson (CENAPS)

Meeting called to order at 3:35 p.m. Upon Tresa’s request, participants conducted
introductions.

Richard presented a motion to accept minutes from the July meeting. Lisa seconded
the motion. Motion carried.

Alcohol and Youth Task Force

Tresa stated that Teen Court is screening better for kids being referred to Chill Smart.

In the last meeting it was mentioned that some Teen Court referrals were disruptive and
pro-drug. The Harbor's pre —treatment substance abuse groups were a more
appropriate referral for the more “challenging” kids and this seems to be working well.

In the last two meetings Chill Smart had a guest speaker which was a nice change from
the curriculum. During the next meeting, Chill Smart will address marijuana due to a
concern of one of the Teen Court referral participants. :

Kiwanis Kids Day is on September 15 at Tom Barn Park from 10 a.m. -2 p.m.
HCCADC will have a booth set up and all are encouraged to attend.

Alex Meyer and Charlie Watson attended the Florida Youth Prevention Delegation
(FYPD) retreat August 8-10 in St. Pete Beach and represented Hernando County. The
FYPD meets every 2 months and 2 delegates from every county in Florida attend. It is
a state wide youth led organization focusing on prevention issues and redefining social
norms. Alex and Charlie presented a power point presentation on their time at the
retreat. Activities included an Impassioned Speaker to talk of being passionate about
more than just one thing in life, the National Guard spoke about peer pressure and
conducted a rope activity, the Live Free/Tampa Coalition presented statistics about
Pinellas County, a public speaking speaker, Everest Challenge and Glow in the Dark
Volleyball. Y

Local People Solve Local Problems
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Hernando County Fair Association Board Meeting
Minutes of September 13. 2007

Meeting called to order at 6:00 p.m. by President Bernardini who then led us in prayer and pledge
Nancy Moores, acting secretary, took roll and established a quorum was present (see roster)

Hurst moved, it was seconded and the motion to accept the minutes as clarified passed unanimously.
Bernardini noted the motocross track is the open issue, not the contract with Tracy Price.

Hurst moved, it was seconded and the motion to accept the Financial Report for audit passed unanimously.
Bernardini presented a comparison to August 2006 during which we were negative $12,072.

Unfinished Business

1. Lease — Bernardini reported that Nicholson and Russell are currently in talks regarding the lease.

2. Piano — Moores reported the details and Hurst moved, it was seconded and the motion passed
unanimously to authorize Moores to purchase the piano if cost, with moving, does not exceed $600.

3. Train — Jackson reported three members acknowledged receipt of the letter and the display will be
removed on or before October 31, 2007.

4. Roof — Jackson reported the work is near completion and no leaks, puddles or other indicators of trot
have been found during or following the recent rains.

5. Motocross — Bernardini stated they are still considering the three options: move, lease, destroy

6. Bulls & Barrels — Hurst presented three options and quotes following meetings with Five Star and B¢

Campbell. After discussion, Moores moved, it was seconded and the motion passed unanimously to accept |
Campbell’s one day Bulls & Barrels offer at $12,000 which includes added prize money from the Fair
Association, contingent upon his acceptance of a check as payment.

7. Midway — Jackson and Bernardini reported that, following our vote last month, they spoke with Wad
Shows to finalize the contract and their representative changed the percentage offered. Reithoffer Shows we
approached and agreed to the same terms as we had with Deggler. Following discussion and several
endorsements of Reithoffer, Moores moved, it was seconded and the motion passed unanimously to enter in
contract for the 2008 midway with Reithoffer Shows to provide for a seven day fair with details as presentec
his e*mail. ;

New Business

1. Agenda item “Marine Corps” is tabled until October meeting

2. The suggestion from Allied Insurance Company was noted — no action

3. Correspondences were noted

4. Livestock Committee Chair Clark wanted members to know there was an inmate on grounds during 1

fair last year that was father to two livestock exhibitors and he established contact with those children during
work on the grounds. Bernardini noted the supervision of the inmates during the fair will be a priority this y
5. Livestock Committee Chair Clark presented an issue regarding an error made in the livestock sale.
While the financial error was corrected, the supporter was still not comfortable with the outcome. Clark mo
it was seconded and the motion carried unanimously to refund $1,066.55 to Goodwin Bros to show apprecia
for their support and acknowledgement of the inconvenience.

6. Jackson announced several new committee chairs and asked for others to step forward to fill holes.

Respectfully submitted by Nancy A. Moores, acting secretary to the Fair Association Board for 09/13/07
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i MINUTES — WITHLACOOCHEE REGIONAL WATER SUPPLY AUTHORITY
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING, SEPTEMBER 19, 2007

‘ DATE: September 19, 2007
TIME: 4:30 p.m.
PLACE: Hernando County Government Center

County Commission Chambers
20 N. Main Street, Brooksville, FL. 34601

MEMBERS PRESENT

Joyce Valentino, Citrus County Commissioner

Gary Bartell, Citrus County Commissioner

Dennis Damato, Citrus County Commissioner

Rose Rocco, Hernando County Commissioner
Christopher Kingsley, Hernando County Commissioner
Dale Swain, Bushnell City Councilman

Phillip Price, Crystal River City Councilman

Joe Bernardini, Brooksville City Councilman

MEMBERS ABSENT

Richard Hoffman, Sumter County Commissioner

Randy Mask, Sumter County Commissioner

Daniel Owen, Ocala City Councilman

Kent Guinn, Ocala City Councilman

David Russell, Hernando County Commissioner
9 Diane Rowden, Hernando County Commissioner

OTHERS PRESENT

Jack Sullivan, Executive Director

Larry Haag, WRWSA Attorney

Barbara Sullivan, Recording Secretary

Alys Brockway, Hernando County Utilities
Dale Ravencraft, Hemando County Utilities
Diane Salz, WRWSA Legislative Liaison
Peter Rocco, Hemando County

Robert Knight, Citrus County Utilities

Pete Hubbell, Water Resources Associates
David Moore, Executive Director, SWFWMD
Jimmy Brooks, SWFWMD

Mikel Renner, SWFWMD

Brian Armstrong, SWFWMD

Mark Barcelo, SWFWMD

State Senator Charles Dean, Senate District 3
State Representative Ron Schultz, House District 43
Hans Wicker, Citrus County

Al Grubman, TOO FAR, Citrus County
Sophia Diaz-Fonseca, City of Inverness

Troy Kuphal, Marion County Water Resources Director
Guy Marwick, Marion County

McKenzie Smith, Hernando County

Chester Bradshaw, Citrus County

Hans Wicker, Citrus County
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WITHLACOOCHEE REGIONAL PLANNING COUNCIL
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING

DATE: September 20, 2007

TIME: 7:00 P.M.

PLACE: Withlacoochee Regional Planning Council
1241 S. W. 10" Street
Ocala, FL 34471-0323

MEMBERS PRESENT:

Ken Hinkle, Citrus County Municipal Representative
Vicki Phillips, Citrus County Commissioner

Joyce Valentino, Citrus County Commissioner

Rose Rocco, Hernando County Commissioner

Joe Johnston, I1I, Hernando County Governor’s Appointee
Buddy Selph, Henando County Governor’s Appointee
Steve Holcomb, Levy County Municipal Representative
Danny Stevens, Levy County Commissioner

Wilma Loar, Marion County Municipal Representative
Patricia Gabriel, Marion County Governor’s Appointee
Ed Kelly, Marion County Governor’s Appointee

Garry Breeden, Sumter County Commissioner

Ed Nowe, Sumter County Governor’s Appointee

Doug Sanders for Richard S. Owen, Non-Voting Ex-Officio Member
representing SWFWMD

MEMBERS ABSENT:

Dennis Damato, Citrus County Commissioner

John Thrumston, Citrus County Commissioner

David Pugh, Hernando County Municipal Representative
Jeff Stabins, Hernando County Commissioner

Diane Rowden, Hernando County Commissioner

Chris Kingsley, Hernando County Commissioner

Dave Russell, Hernando County Commissioner

Nancy Bell, Levy County Commissioner

Eugene Trimpert, Levy County Governor’s Appointee
Barbara Fitos, Marion County Commissioner

Stan McClain, Marion County Commissioner

James Payton, Marion County Commissioner

Andy Kesselring, Marion County Commissioner
Charlie Stone, Marion County Commissioner

Roslyn Stephens, Marion County Governor’s Appointee
Mary Sue Rich, City of Ocala Municipal Representative
Ronald Allen, Sumter County Municipal Representative
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WITHLACOOCHEE REGIONAL PLANNING COUNCIL
. EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE MEETING

DATE: September 20, 2007

TIME: 5:45 P.M.

PLACE: Withlacoochee Regional Planning Council
1241 S. W. 10™ Street
Ocala, FL 34471-0323

MEMBERS PRESENT:

Vicki Phillips, Citrus County Commissioner
Joe Johnston, III, Hernando County Governor’s Appointee
Pat Gabriel, Marion County Governor’s Appointee

MEMBERS ABSENT:

Danny Stevens, Levy County Commissioner
Charlie Stone, Marion County Commissioner
Ronald Allen, Sumter County Municipal Representative

STAFF PRESENT:

' Glenda J. Howell, Office Manager
Michael R. Moehlman, Executive Director

AGENDA ITEM #1 - CALL TO ORDER

The meeting was called to order at 5:55 p.m. by the Chair, Ms. Vicki Phillips.

AGENDA ITEM #2 - ROLL CALL

Ms. Howell called the roll and a quorum was present.

AGENDA ITEM #3 - ADOPTION OF AGENDA

A motion was made by Ms. Gabriel and seconded by Mr. Johnston to adopt the MOTION TO ADOPT
agenda as written. Motion carried unanimously. AGENDA

AGENDA ITEM #4

A. Executive Director’s Performance Review

Mr. Moehlman handed out a table that he had prepared on Florida RPCs -
Executive Director Compensation which included other FL EDs projected 2007
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Hernando County Community Anti-Drug Coalition \~>} }',ﬁﬁ»/
6147 Deltona Blvd., Spring Hill, FL 34606 e L
Phone: 352-596-8000 * Fax: 352-596-8002 ‘;,,\ J),;,‘\

info@hernandoantidrug.org > i

Hernando County Community Anti-Drug Coalition
Meeting Minutes
September 26, 2007

Present: Richard Lewis (City of Brooksville), Karen Gidden (HC Health Dept.), Lisa
Hammond (BHER Group), Chrissie Parris (The Harbor), Alex Meyer (Chill Smart), Tresa
Watson (CENAPS), Sandra Marrero (The Harbor)

Meeting called to order at 3:35 p.m. Upon Tresa'’s request, participants conducted
introductions.

Richard presented a motion to accept minutes from the August meeting with the
correction of one misspelled word . So noted, Karen seconded the motion. Motion
carried.

Alcohol and Youth Task Force

Tresa stated Chill smart is going smoothily Sandra requested the adults meet for
strategic planning of the youth group. She announced that the youth hae been
receiveing prevention education continuously and also wants to make it fun and
engaging for youth. Tresa welcomed any feedback from members. Tresa informed the
members that Chrissy Parris worked diligently to create and distribute a Family Day
flyer to the Hernando County Schools. Tresa received four calls from parents as a
result of the flyers. They requested information about Chill Smart. Tresa summarized
yesterday’s Chill Smart meeting's lesson regarding stages of addiction.

Kiwanis Kids Day was rained out. Tresa mentioned that the event was competing with
an event held by United Way at the same time. Nevertheless, Chill Smart was set up
and prepared with information and interactive displays. Prior to getting rained out,
literature was distributed to families and many participated in the “Spin the Bottle”
interactive display. Richard asked if Chill Smart had banners. Sandra stated we did
have one used at Kiwanis Kids Day, but it went missing. Richard announced that Coca
Cola will assist with creating a banner sometimes. Tresa asked for contact name at
Coca Cola. Dudley Hampton, the previous community contact person is no longer at
Coca Cola. Tresa will follow up.

Walmart

Tresa announced that a manager from Walmart on SR50 contacted Chill Smart and
requested they host a table during their “Safety Month™. Chill Smart will display on
October 13, 2007 from 9-1 p.m. Chill Smart will bring literature and interactive displays,
including Night Vision Goggles, and the Smoking Suzie. Richard stated that Walmart
may give a contribution if one is requested. Tresa will ask for a donation. Walmart will
do light advertising.

k)

ads for alcohol yet the show is marketed for people of all ages.

Local People Solve Local Problems
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